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MEMORABLE MOMENTS

Shri D. L. Rawal, CMD, Dena Bank,
handing over a Dividend Warrant
of ¥ 29.36 crores for the year 2009-10,
to the Hon'ble Union Finance Minister,
Shri Pranab Mukherjee. Seen alongside
(R-L) Shri A. K. Dutt, ED, Shri D. L. Rawal,
CMD, Shri Pranab Mukherjee, Hon'ble FM,
Shri R. Gopalan, Secretary Dept. of
Financial Services & Shri M. K. Sharma,
GM, Dena Bank.
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A meeting of Parliamentary Standing Committee on Industry was held in Mumbai on 05.06.2010. seen in the picture Shri D.L. Rawal, CMD, Dena Bank,
discussing with the committee members. Also seen alsongside is Shri A.K. Dutt, Executive Director, Dena Bank and Senior Executives of the Bank.
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Shri A.K. Dutt, Executive Director,
Dena Bank, seen alongwith
Dr. D. Subbarao, RBI Governor
at the RBIl's Outreach program at
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Khadna Village, district Dhamtari
in Chhattisgarh. Also seen in the
Photograph Shri M.K. Jain, General

Manager, Dena Bank.
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Government of India, Ministry of Finance, infused capital of ¥ 539 crores in the Bank by way of preferential allotment of Eqwty. Extra Ordinary General
Meeting was held on 21.03.2011 to seek approval of the existing shareholders of the Bank before issuance of the Equity Shares to the Government
of India, Seen on the dias, Shri D.L. Rawal, CMD Dena Bank and Shri A.K. Dutt, ED, Dena Bank along with other Directors of the Board.
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During the year 2010-11 the following Directors also served on the
Board of Directors of the Bank
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Shri Chandra Kishore Shri. Kamlesh Kumar Goel
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During the year 2010-11 the following General Managers also
served with the Bank
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Shri Anandi Lal
(Up to 31.01.2011)
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Shri Anil Kamat
(Up to 28.02.2011)

it 3. & i

Shri J. P. Kurias
(Up to 31.03.2011)
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TIAR JeAIHS HII-Freaie YEAR WISE COMPARATIVE PERFORMANCE

& - e AFes

PRI ATETH Td GATET

SRET3 F T

T & P S
I F BR ST Arege
(TNETR) TTET IMET

T @ T
HHAIRGT B T3

Performance Parameters

Delivery Channels &
Resources

No. of Brances

Of Which Computerised
Branches

Out of Which, Brs. with Core
Banking Solution (CBS)

No. of ATMs

No. of Employees
Capital

Capital

Reserves (Excluding
Revaluation Reserves)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)
Business Parameters
Business Mix

Increase in %

Total Deposits

Increase in %

Total Advances (Gross )
Increase in %

Loan & Advances (Net)
Increase in %
Investment (Net)
Increase in %

Advances to Priority Sector

Priority Sector Advances in % terms

Agriculture
Increase in %
Retail

Increase in %

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

1135

1135

13

269

10120

286.82

958

11.52

46373

20.85

27689

17.22

18683

26.68

18303

28.61

9325

8.80

7629

42.03

3344

41.51

3419

52.02

1160

1160

108

316

9957

286.82

1280

11.09

57324

23.61

33943

22.58

23381

25.15

23024

25.79

10335

10.83

8096

43.32

2794

-16.45

4294

2859

1184 1223 1291
1184 1223 1291
606 1223 1291
387 396 496

9883 10525 9953

286.82 286.82  333.39

1662 2106 3126

12.07 12.77 13.41

72235 87066 =~ 109373

26.01 20.53 25.62

43051 51345 64210

26.83 19.26 25.06

29185 35721 45163

24.82 22.40 26.43

28878 35462 44828

25.42 22.80 26.42

12473 15694 18769

21.29 25.82 19.59

9715 11718 15150

41.55 40.15 42.41

3851 4826 6389

37.83 25.32 32.39

4424 5380 6136

3.03 21.61 14.05
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FHAR JeIHS HRI-Freae YEAR WISE COMPARATIVE PERFORMANCE

o1 - frreres AFEs Performance Parameters 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

NI&H, g Ud HegH W(Eﬂ'@m) Micro, Small and Medium 3158 3885 4775 5647 6784

Enterprises (MSME)

% Q‘% Increase in % 139 23.02 22.90 18.26 20.13
farefta Reerfer Financials :

e @ Operating Profit 63537 65644  726.36 84058 1223.79
foaet @ Net Profit 20156  359.79 42266 51125 611.63
S2ISiRC:IE2) Interest Income 2088 2676 3447 4010 5034
TsT T Interest Expenses 1263 1817 2383 2910 3270
ToTaR 3T Non Interest Income 422 478 430 589 534
T 3T Total Income 2510 3154 3878 4599 5567
DA Tg Total Expenses 1875 2468 3151 3758 4344
aer =msT Aot Net Interest Margin 3.00 2.67 2.91 2.61 3.17
STHRITET AT Cost of Deposit 4.89 5.90 6.36 6.21 5.76
fer @ Cost of Fund 5.19 5.95 6.47 6.31 5.87
3t W 3m Yield on Advances 8.66 10.11 10.71 10.32 10.24
et o= ama Yield on Funds 7.84 8.22 8.76 8.52 8.62
3t oY gfme Return on Assets 0.71 1.06 1.02 1.01 1.00
sfeaet w yfawer Return on Equity 20.83 27.12 24.05 2355  26.71
e IR 31517 Earning per share 7.03 12.54 14.74 17.83 21.26
ST ToTaI ST Asset Quality Ratios :

AP .90 Gross NPA 74448 57260 62077 64199  842.24
Hebel AT D JeT H GrossNPA to Gross 3.98 2.45 2.13 1.80 1.86
el IR e anfaar &r Advances Ratio %

FUE %

e g e Net NPA 3648 21543 31338 42753 548.95
faer a1fimt &f g # e Net NPA to Net Advances 1.99 0.94 1.09 1.21 1.22
IR fres snfaat & s Ratio%

T.UL.E YA Hax st NPA Provision Coverage 50.05 60.70 48.27 78.61 74.62
JYTEh T SA-TUTT Productivity Ratios :

gfa HHART PRITR Per Employees Business 4.58 5.76 7.31 8.27 10.99
e oTRaT PRIER Per Branch Business 44.76 54.03 66.45 71.21 91.60
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a1 S
DENA BANK

ger srafer : 31 BTRe Hev, #H1-10, 5t &, aiar-Feif diciae, J1a1 (99), & - 400 051.
Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

Sl
TAGERT a1 &1 e & fob &1 9 o IR IRa! @l Uged! v
AT FHT AHAR, 18 T, 2011 BT 3URTET 3.00 Fof HE, T
ARG TaEHEe d6d giereror veifdenea, 3Tarur sl o,
faet uret (af¥aw) Ha% - 400 056 ¥ F=ifhd BT BT Furfad B
&q 3manfara gnm |

& . 1

"31 AT 2011 & G U 3R 3T TRIE BT T aY o A1 U g1
oIEl, S o PGS Ud Tfafdiedt WX fFewid quse o Ruid qor
T U 3R oI UR eiRaT WRIETdi ol Rule R faaR-fawsl, srgAres
Tq 3R BT

& . 2

"f=Trar a¥ 2010-11 & e STorae QroRT W arwrer ey SR

o
eI AvUSH & STGRMIIR

AN~

515 B [EIRGAIER)
f&qid ©  08.06.2011 31ezeT U9 Uy Feeis
femforT :

1. =Rt @1 g

THT ¥ UM 5 3R AdG B BT / B U ARURS 3T
I R FHT H BT 310 BT UM g JAT HIGH IR b [e1e
yfaffér fges -t @1 ur g/ 8. gfafere gt &1, 39 ghe
3 gfarer e &R & T 31T YRR B H I deed!
TN AT THT B ARG I HH F HH IR 6F 49 31T gIar
13 eI, 2011 BT HMH-BIST BT THA TAG & & THI AT ITH 4d
d o1 faffde e W saeg e & s anfee.

2. yiftrpa wfaffr ot Frgfe

R P A Ffaa e, S 89 B IReRS @1, & [ftad
TTIhd TTAf-Ter & T § Pis T UaT afeh w7 H 3uReid I8 a1 e
BT BT Id b U 8T &N 51 dcb [ 3 Tarerad mfergsd Tiaf-rer & =
% Frgfes fawad wabed, for o # a8 wiRd g3 &, 3S I gRT
T fesar g3, @1 afdfeiny deedt aiie Jwg T d i 3 &1
FH IR To Tger 377 JUaR 13 e, 2011 BT BB BT THI FHT
B I qd B afda, < 3, ge ey, < SURe e, R
HiSe, 10, 3 T, FET-Har e, aiaT (4d) §a§ 400 051. B
URT THT T &7 & ST,

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting
of the Shareholders of Dena Bank will be held on Monday, 18th
July, 2011 at 3.00 p.m. at Auditorium, Sir Sorabji Pochkhanawala
Bankers’ Training College, J.V.P.D. Scheme, Vile Parle (West),
Mumbai-400 056 to transact the following business:

Item No. 1

“To discuss, approve and adopt the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2011 and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on
that date, the report of the Board of Directors on the working and
activities of the Bank for the period covered by the Accounts and
the Auditors’ Report on the Balance Sheet and Accounts.”

Item No.2

“To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the financial year 2010-
2011

By Order of the Board of Directors

¥

g

Place : Mumbai (D. L. Rawal)

Date : 08.06.2011 Chairman & Managing Director

NOTES :
1. APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF. The proxy, in
order to be effective must be received by the Bank at the place
specified in the proxy form, not later than FOUR DAYS before the
date of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the
close of office hours on Wednesday, 13th July, 2011.

2. APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting as a
duly authorised representative of a company or any body corporate
which is a shareholder of the Bank, unless a copy of the resolution
appointing him/her as a duly authorised representative, certified to
be true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which it was passed
shall have been deposited with the Company Secretary, Dena
Bank, Investor Relation Centre, Dena Corporate Centre, 3rd Floor,
C-10, G-Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai
400 051 not later than FOUR days before the date of the Fifteenth
Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the close of office hours
on Wednesday, 13th July, 2011.
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3. SufRerfr-wrg-gaer o=l
YRYR®! & Jiger & fae Juhefa-gg-uae wif 39 R &

T FAH 8. YRYRDI AR GRPI/ITIH Ay 3
FRIY ¢ 6 9 399 for T WM W e EER dRe 30 qHl
A R I B | TORURS & TG T HTa/ARaTRT 3uieitd-
TE-YIeT gt § gEIRy a1 yiftrgsd giatty, sk o Reifa & @
3eoreg Y |

4. 98 < G

P BT ATRURDT BT IoRex 3R IR 3FRUT Ioex I AT T4
3IR CATHIT T UraT GHRad B b 36620 I AR, 09 JeTls, 2011 7
AR, 18 TS, 2011 @1 ot 2nf¥ren) aa o< <& |

5. TTHIST BT YA

fcere #aer gRT URIfad THiET BT YA 39 ARYURDT BT fvar
Sem f51ds ur 2R STsir wu # Hisle € 3R fotat 9 18 e,
2011 P b B ITRYUR®DT &b Aok | &of &, dAT U IIRYRD
STeh UTT AR TBITSIHA U & I ATHIeT BT Haa, feurforest
ERT 8 JATE, 2011 BT FHG BHBIS & THI Juctees arref Tt
% fgaxont gon §% @ vd ud & fgaRor & 3meR W) fHar s
AT T aRC A HTEROT THT B IRIG & 30 &t & MR
/T v fow ST, ATTer YA o ARG 28 TS, 2011 B

6. 3TaRoT

BT BT H R IR GHUT T3 Bl 37aR0T faei dfed db &
UsiIad Ud 37dRUT Uaive ol Wil ST TITEs.

7. LT gAagi o FARNG AaT (84.5.91.89) a1 erier ia=
& fore i o1 aftw

&) M.R.dF F SfRE & 3FER, 1 3”psR, 2009 W FHeA &
HIEZH & SFRYUT BT I ATEI I THRNE HaT (8.5, 9.29)
J gferenfie fsan @ aon doi 3 srjeer fae e & 5 3 Ra gwa
¥ v9.3. 409, Weonrt o1 399 o, w3 e, aiftart Ta #
PR dfHT TaremE (@& safaoE & §- doi gRT sefed
T Td gUS S @ 6 R e w3 8. I difos vu F vd
SUAGID BT W AR IEATT ATRYRDI Pl ATHIRT YA &
TS . Giaer gaH &R @M &, Hifdd v H AR I@are
YRORYR® 09.07.2011 I UgeT BIfcTal H¥em ¢ g Ard faw e udt
TR USIIBR TF 3cR0T Uoicl I e fed @Nd 3 HaTed Id @ wIe
yfafaiT & A 39b 9 gRT Y dI Ts @IaT I Jiad B
Jhd &. Ferag I DU H AR IE-ATeT UIRYRSD 09 Jellg 2011
UgeT Gaf¥d I B Bier gfafeiitr & A1er 78 S Wrar T 39
Teutforest Feumir (€T & gfud &R STel 396! e @ 8. fom
IRERGT 7 U713 41.09. & folv 3 Taa=or 3TRE.wsr . o7 uger
& uRgd o feu &, 30T faaR0T gaRT IRgd R B SRR el &

Q) U IRURG 57 § @ R - FideT 6 et # €, 9
T3 3.0, & SiAid Fel SU qe 3T ATHieT aRel & HTeH
J ETHTLT BT YA fHaT SO, 37 AARGRST I 30T dF G
e, % U9 ORET &1 A Jiad BT 8N @l 9 ABCIBRIT 8

3. ATTENDANCE SLIP-CUM-ENTRY PASS

For the convenience of the shareholders, Attendance Slip-cum-
Entry-Pass is annexed to this report. Shareholders / Proxy holders/
Authorised Representatives are requested to affix their signatures
at the space provided therein and surrender the same at the venue.
Proxy / Authorised Representative of the shareholder should state
on the Attendance slip-cum-entry pass as ‘Proxy’ or ‘Authorised
Representative’ as the case may be.

4. BOOK CLOSURE

The Register of the Shareholders and the Share Transfer Register of
the Bank will remain closed from Saturday, July 09, 2011 to Monday,
July 18, 2011 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of Annual General
Meeting and for ascertaining the entitiement of dividend.

5. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

Payment of dividend to shareholders as proposed by the Board
of Directors shall be paid to those shareholders holding shares
in physical form, whose names appear on the Register of
Shareholders of the Bank as on 18thJuly, 2011 and in respect of
shares held in dematerialised form, the dividend will be paid on the
basis of beneficial ownership details and address, Bank Account
etc. as per details to be furnished by the depositories as at the end
of business on 8th July, 2011 and the dividend warrants shall be
mailed / credited within 30 days from the date of Annual General
Meeting. The dividend payment date will be 28th July, 2011.

6. TRANSFERS

Share Certificates in case of physical holding along with transfer
deeds should be forwarded to the Registrar & Transfer Agent of
the Bank.

7. NATIONAL ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE (NECS) and
Bank Mandate for Dividend payment

a) As per RBI notification, with effect from October 1, 2009,
the remittance of money through ECS is replaced by National
Electronic Clearing Service ( NECS ) and banks have been
instructed to move to the NECS platform with immediate
effect. NECS essentially operates on the new and unique bank
account number allotted by banks post implementation of
Core Banking Solutions ( CBS ). The Bank is offering the facility
of NECS for payment of Dividend to the shareholders holding
shares in physical form as well as electronic form. Shareholders
holding the shares in Physical form can furnish the unique account
no. provided by their Bank along with a photo copy of a cheque
pertaining to the concerned account, to the Registrar & Transfer
Agents at the address mentioned below, quoting the folio number
before 09.07.2011. The shareholders holding shares in electronic
form are requested to furnish the new Bank Account Number, along
with a photo copy of a cheque pertaining to the concerned account,
to their Depository Participant ( DP ) where they are holding Demat
Account well before 9th July, 2011. The shareholders who have
already furnished the said detail for NECS to RTA / DP need not to
furnish the same again.

b) The shareholders having Bank Accounts in non CBS Bank
Branches will not be covered under NECS and will be paid Dividend
by way of Dividend warrants. These shareholders are required to
furnish their Bank Account number, the name of the Bank and the
Branch where they would like to deposit the Dividend warrants for



o a1 S
“DENA BANK

Annual Report 2010-2011 | 9

HTFT NOTICE

TTHTST R E STHT BRAT TTEd 2. eTHIY TRE b Udh HITT IR ARERbI
& AT & 3FETaT U faRoT gied IS dlfds aRel & HUCYDT ThaldRoT
I I9 Ah. IR [GaR0T GUH / THA IRURS GRI HHTeIad

T TR 09.07.2011 ¥ UgeT BIicidl T¥T Jfad HRd gP UsidR U
3RUT BT BT U= BT ML,

8. arar 7 fooe e A, afe HE B ar

U SRRYRSD! Totai= faxira af 1996-97, 1997-98, 1998-99, 1999-
2000, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09 AT 2009-10 ¥ T TRT BT
THAIBROT el fhar & / amrer gt =gt fhar &, 3% a1 & i
J gWIIdoe ETHTRT IRT ST B &g 9 & ASGR B9 LR 3FaR0T
TITC & HUd PR

3fpm HwrT (@usAt &1 siftmger vd siaRon) aifEfaw 1970 @
ERT 108 & ¥R, TS 37ad ATHieT Wi # 37aR0T & &1d au| b
TITHTST ST RATIT 31T I& & AT 39 fo1u I grar =&t fepar simar ar
39 U it 1956 P GRT 205 T 6 dET YR TRPR GRT
e faere fRrerr vd gRerm o8 (31 § O ) # siaka o= fear
ST, 31 396 Taer # § a1 378 § O v & wweT fhe g B

PR ‘_‘1?()[ fepar e,

9. 7al # gRae

UY YRUR® Todh! IR MRAT Seiag v 09 § & 39 3R
2 5 370 dolipd ual ¥, afe &1 afkad= gam & aF 39 gar
3o femfarest @1 & 7 o g R e §a & QR E=ATAROT Tarve
1 3R U TR gRB, ol R aikar Hifos w0 # &, 9
IR & {35 9 39985 Ustiged Uct % IS B1g UiRacd= &1 dl 39T T
Frfafed o0 R IFSRER 71 §6 & IR BRI Taive) & &

oroRyT afd<aT gfsam ur. fo.
gfe : &

13 T/dT TR PHIHeTa, el . 52 I 56
T IThT S feThI Tared of

3R et ], AT AT

Has - 400 072.
feer® Hed & IR
hews: LAY v
Sl I G [ERGAER)
feid © 08.06.2011 31ezeT U9 Uy e

encashment. These particulars will be printed on the cheque portion
of Dividend warrants, besides the name of the shareholders so as
to avoid fraudulent encashment of warrants. The above-mentioned
details should be furnished by the first / sole shareholder directly
to the Registrar & Transfer Agent, quoting the folio number before
09.07.2011 at the address mentioned below.

8. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND, IF ANY

The shareholders who have not encashed their Dividend Warrants
/ received dividend for the financial year 1996-97, 1997-98, 1998-
99, 1999-2000, 2006-07, 2007-08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 are
requested to contact the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Bank for issue of the duplicate dividend warrant.

As per the Section 10B of the Banking Companies (Acquisitions
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, the amount of dividend
remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from
the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account is required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) established by the Central Govt. under Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956 and thereafter no claim for payment shall lie
in respect thereof either to the Bank or to the IEPF.

9. CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Shareholders whose holding are in Electronic form are requested
to intimate changes, if any, in their registered address to their
Depository and not to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents and
Shareholders who are holding the shares in Physical form are
requested to intimate changes, if any, in their registered address,
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Bank at the
following address:

Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited
Unit: Dena Bank,

13 A/B Samhita Complex, Gala no.-52 to 56,
Near Saki Naka Telephone Exchange,
Andheri Kurla Road, Saki Naka,

Mumbai 400 072

By Order of the Board of Directors

¥

A7)

Place : Mumbai
Date : 08.06.2011

(D. L. Rawal)
Chairman & Managing Director
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fira SroRaRSY,

3T 31 AT 2011 HT Je UF qAT 31 AT 2011 BT FANT I & 7T
@4 T4 B 0T & A1 d @ aIe RUIe 30! U¥dd B g0
T 8 & €. 3RY H I 3D I8 iad BT g G & &
5 3ueh FTRAR T2 ¥ §6 a¥ & SR 7 1 A IS BT HRITR
HfHsT OR =T | A <&,

Ty

fociar af 2010-11 fawiad srefeawemst qem 3R / faemene
IRfERRSIT GRT TR SHMT P UIY BIsax oo & fafim
nfqat & arer gfig &1 af 3@ gaft 3f¥as srfaaemtt 7 af
SR GUR ST &, 7 &I DAl H g8 Il a9 Feayqul FuHdr
TP BT ST R [IHRT R & o8 TeRT a1 ganm 2. aer af ot
7 g% afe 3 axqaft, $eM 3iR 3 3Tl 3t & drar 7 afg
¥ 379w g1 Wi gg o foar 2. favawRr # ¥Rar sreferawensit
T HoTqd 3l ST & Sk =0d: Tudh Bl A, 31 fafa aam
I et faer & BRoT g8, qunft, I &F Hival 7 g afa I a8
rferawITe Yot woif & gara # &

foeira af 2010-11 & SRW HRAT rfTaRT 7 8.6% B T
gfg oot @ & e gead: v A gfe Fafa & g gfig qen faema
TR, JYHMT & HRUT gs. aenfy, sitenfie stk Jar & # gfg &0
&I, IE foRiva: gOR) SRl & GRM 3 3MUR & & YHIa aam
faer & Wi B9 89 & BRUT g8, WRdra Reid d& o Aifesw Hifa
¥ gor Wil & Fifia & R aa fear mar & 59 9fe & foe
TRAdT JHTEad an, srearater § S8 gfg dgfera o @ @
AN &

Sfm a

Y &R Y MR W IR - @ IR7 § 20% F 3116 o gha g8 o i
R R1d §6 BT ST WR 1. A 2011 BT TRG 7 21.38%
o 3fg g8 el smr IR # afis 15.84% gF. 39 wavawy
97 gf 3R ST gfg & s SRt & . s ¥ A gfis
IR e ¥ gfg & a9 gamd RIgeT B Uedd gF U gar
I @1 FRifa &= e Jifes ifa & dodl @ o= 7 @
EE I 7 ST &7 FUEUT §eM & e ST AR B R H Iha
@ 3R T & T B R A Tgrs, oy wfasy & wegw @i @
T FITAT &

o 1 e

# 6 v a3t & aR # Fam argm {5 2010-11 & SR 3B
da = 3ree fre gwtan 2.

d® BT P BRIGR AT 2010 o 3.87,066.36 TRIS b TR I TGdY,
25.62% @I i &l B gP, AT 2011 BT 2109372.99 FBRIS B
T HITE q UET 1. aY & AR a6 F 21.00 TR RIS BRIGR
TfHrsr BT HIfTAT IR I feram 2.

AT 2011 BT GoeT STHT JMTAT TG  64,209.62 FRIS qH Ugd TN
Sates AT 2010 H a8 ¥ 51,344.28 FIS &f Th 25.05% B I
gt &,

AT 2011 BT S B P 3 T 45,163.37 RIS B U T STaTch
AT 2010 BT 8 T 35,721.41 BRIS & P 26.42% DT i AT
2. foia af 2010-11 & SR BRI # 24.15% & g g5 FGTD
fUeer af o o7 gfig 23.01% . T9T TT F ST A T 4424 FRS

#rafe st

Dear Shareholders,

| have great pleasure in presenting to you the Annual Report of
the Bank along with the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2011 and
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2011. At the
outset, | am pleased to inform you that with your unstinted support,
the Bank was able to cross the Business Mix of ¥1 Lac Crore during
the year.

The Backdrop:

The Financial Year 2010-11 had been a year of multi speed
recovery with the growth in the advanced economy as well as the
emerging / developing economies outpacing the initial expectations.
Although the Global Economies have shown improvement during
the year, the increase in oil prices and significant sovereign default
risks continue to threaten growth sustenance. The increase in oil
prices have raised concerns on escalation of global inflation due to
increase in commodity, fuel and other industrial input prices. The
emerging market economies world over have shown strong growth,
mainly on account of huge domestic demand, good exports and
higher foreign investments. However, these economies are also
under inflationary pressure due to the increase in oil prices.

The Indian economy has registered a moderate growth rate of
8.6% during 2011 mainly on account of growth in Agriculture,
resurgence in Exports and huge domestic consumption. However
the growth in the industrial and service sector has decelerated
particularly in the second half mainly on account of high base effect
and moderation in investment demand. With Reserve Bank of India
monetary stance, concentrating on containing the inflation albeit
ensuring liquidity available for growth, the GDP growth is estimated
to moderate in the short term.

Banking Sector:

Year on Year, the non food credit growth has been above 20%, the
projected level of Reserve Bank of India. As on March, 2011 credit
growth was 21.38% whereas the deposit growth was 15.84%. This
resulted in wide gap between credit growth and deposit growth.
Recognizing the structural imbalance between deposit growth and
credit growth as well as the underlying signals of the anti-inflationary
monetary policy stance, banks raised their deposit rates to improve
deposit mobilization while raising the lending rates, which could be
expected to moderate the aggregate demand, going forward.

Performance of the Bank:

| would like to touch upon some areas where your Bank has
performed well during 2010-11.

Business Mix of the Bank has increased from ¥87,066.36 crore as
of March 2010, to a new height of ¥1,09,372.99 crore as of March
2011, registering a growth of 25.62%.The Bank has crossed the
landmark business mix of ¥ 1 Lac crore during the year.

Total Deposits have grown to the level of ¥64,209.62 crore as of
March 2011 as compared to ¥51,344.28 crore as of March 2010,
registering a growth of 25.05%.

Total Advances of the Bank stood at ¥ 45,163.37 crore as of
March 2011 as compared to ¥ 35,721.41 Crore as of March 2010,
registering a growth of 26.42%.

CASA increased by 24.15% during the Financial year 2010-11 as

compared to 23.01% in the previous year. In absolute terms CASA
increased by I 4424 Crore.
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0T foR & weayol &, Sifed fause | SR <d §F,
e s, Rea 3k oy & <. e #0712 6136 TS 2 i
fueer af ¥ 14.05% 31ferd €, tHEq.eas. o1 T 6784 TRl @
S 20.12% @ gfig g8 STafe By & & o7 T 6389 RIS |}
3R 399 A1 2011 BT 32.38% B! Ihg o &,

a¥ & foTu et 3T # T 968.38 TRIT (21.06%) B IfG 8 AT I&
% 5567.37 PRIS <& SIaih [UBel a¥ & SR 31f5Td 3 T 4598.99
BT A,

d% &F ST 3T H 25.51% B ITG g5 3R IE T 5033.53 TS B
TR W UgT TTs.

Siafes d o HacT et 3T (T9.378.378.) # 60.30% T Wewayu!
3fg g% 3R 98 21763.37 TRIT & R a UgT T Jaic TUeel ay
P R T 31100.03 AR5 .

e STEMRA 3T ATE 2010 & % 309.58 TRIS b R H T 65.67
RIS (21.21%) Jha & AT AT 2011 BT % 375.25 RIS aP Ugd
iES

3 I8 G0 R gU RN At & b 3ufwh & uRkumm e qer
I & TRl gRT P T FoR gat ¥ §6 &1 FHaa oy
T 511.25 BRIS § dedR a9 2010-11 & R T 611.63 BRIS b
Ugd T, I8 AT g der faded < arer dar fag aaiat &
fore qof tem et T fedra S faden & arer fogmm sHanRat
& fore <o & 1/5th & fere graen= qen sifae fomer & SR 3=gel
AT | 2.206.42 RIS O Ihg b & &. TE a9 b AR 19.63% Y
gfg aefarg.

T3 I8 °19UT Rl gE g Al @ fF I & Frawres weer 7 freer
Iy & o0 20% 9T & THeT, RAMIT TR 22% B cTHIeT B
fopifer & .

3R Joraar

d% 7 af 2010-11 & SR oY, Sfdsw AT F AT T H srgayd
TSl 819 & ddele, 3R TUraa a9 3@ 3R eA.e. yeead
# yeie e dreRr €. vA..E. ya e # db o1 g e
1T &1 H TSt gU TA.UT.U. & 399, |FHEiaT HueHT & gRT a¥e,
TR 3T & 37dqid BRars 3nfE & fov v gart & HRT
H9a 3T, $HD Bevady Idba Il 3R @Al & 3T H B!
JER 3. TL.U1E. BeH & fTe 3 gRT fove 8 4d 3umai & et e
BT TR AT 0 IET FHT 8 FahT.

FHY ¥ § §6 & goct TA.ULT. | 2.200.25 BRIS B 3G §%, TE 31
AT 2010 BT T 641.99 HUS T ded 31 AR 2011 BT T 842.24
TRIS &1 1. 36 BT HeT TA.G1.T. U 31.03.2011 BT AT ghk
P T 1.86% &I AT STTeh 31.03.2010 HT 1.80% 2.

d% @ f99a TRdIE. U 31.03.2011 @ 1.22% & b
31.03.2010 BT T 1.21% oIT. TAY w9 A facT ea.0rE. & 7121.42
TS B 3N 8. a8 31.03.2010 BI T 427.53 FRIT A TedR
31.03.2011 BT % 548.95 HRIS & T4

YTTET $Havsl U (faddbyul age @M afed) 74.62% & 37id
TE 70% dT RIS 3TeThdT I 1! 31ed 2.

a¥ & ARM FHedr FueHT & gRT e yart B e & far
T TR el H AT I SUPIRAT & AW § vAaNe. #
et W Ry e e . see W@ S1e e Gt § e & foe
Foery aRgelt 31fa KT J2. &g Frtaat T Y dhal § agelt
TofaRT Tom e 3Tl &1 e afia sidRTa W fhar .

The thrust areas for credit expansion, with emphasis on risk
dispersal continued to be on MSME, Retail and Agriculture sectors.
Retail loans stood at ¥ 6,136 crore, up by 14.05%, MSME loans
stood at % 6,784 crore showing an increase of 20.12% while loans
to agriculture sector stood at ¥ 6,389 crore, registering a growth of
32.38% as of March 2011.

Total income of the Bank for the year has increased by 3968.38
Crore. (21.06%) and stood at ¥ 5567.37 Crore. as compared to an
Income of ¥4598.99 Crore earned during the previous year.

Interest income of the Bank has increased by 25.51% and reached
a level of ¥ 5033.53 Crore.

Whereas, the Bank’s net interest income (NIlI) has increased
substantially by 60.30% and stood at ¥ 1763.37 Crore as compared

to ¥1100.03 Crore posted during the previous year.

Fee based Income has increased by ¥ 65.67 crore (21.21%)
from ¥ 309.58 crore as of March 2010 to ¥ 375.25 crore as of
March 2011.

| am privileged to announce that as a result of the above and the
strenuous efforts by all the employees of the Bank, the Net Profit
of the Bank has increased from ¥ 511.25 crore to ¥ 611.63 crore
during the year 2010-11, after providing for the full pension liability
for the retired employees who opted for second pension option
and 1/5 th of liability for existing employees who opted for second
pension option and enhancement of gratuity limit aggregating to
% 206.42 crore during the last quarter. This represents an increase
of 19.63% during the year.

| am happy to announce that the Board of Directors of the Bank
have recommended an enhanced dividend of 22% as against 20%
for the previous year.

Asset Quality:

The Bank repeated its commendable performance in maintaining
asset quality and NPA management during the year 2010-11
also, irrespective of the unprecedented slippages experienced by
the banking industry in general. The Bank’s performance in NPA
management is directly attributed to the concerted efforts made for
upgradation of recently slipped NPAs, recovery through compromise
settlements, action under SARFAESI Act etc which resulted in
improving cash recovery and upgradation to a considerable extent.
The proactive steps taken by the Bank in NPA reduction ensured
that level of NPAs is restricted to the minimum possible.

The Gross NPA, in absolute terms, increased by ¥ 200.25 Crore
from % 641.99 Crore as on 31st March 2010 to ¥ 842.24 Crore as on
31st March 2011. Gross NPA ratio of the Bank increased marginally
to 1.86% as on 31.03.2011 from 1.80% as on 31.03.2010.

The Net NPA ratio of the Bank stood at 1.22% as on 31.03.2011
as against 1.21% as on 31.03.2010. Net NPAs, in absolute terms
increased by ¥121.42 Crore from ¥ 427.53 Crore as on 31st March
2010 to ¥ 548.95 Crore as on 31st March 2011.

Provision Coverage Ratio (including prudential write off) stood at
74.62% i.e. well above the regulatory requirement of 70%.

Special attention was given to recovery in NPAs during the year
by designating recovery facilitators at all major centres to augment
recovery efforts through negotiated settlements. Special recovery
drives were continued for recovery in written off accounts. Recovery
Camps and Lok Adalats were organized at Regional Offices and
major centres on regular intervals.
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a¥ 2010-11 & RM §F Bl ABE N 2.191.05 P15 @ AR
WAl BT 3999 171,12 BRI AT, 9 & SR §b 7 316 db P
Falfres FBe I 2134.58 FRIS Gof dI SaTth U8 I & AR
TE T125.54 PRIS T

a¥ & AR do 7 fafirg &t § 1526 agen FafeRt & smars faar
fS 21340 JuRGaralt = 4w foran. a¥ & SR &7 oo fofeRt
& HTEIT 3 319,52 FRIS & goct 2032 WAt &1 WueH faar mar 3R
T 34.11 BRIS & 1242 Wl BT 3700 fpar 72,

e g5i yaferar aFeEs

3§ & SRE §6 T YRT TWHR BT AT 3MUR R 210/- 3ifpa
T & Gl T 539 TRIS & 4.65 TRIS FaAICT IR 2115.75 (3105.75
& frfrom afea) & gea w sneafed fou. 3ud® smacd & ae § &
YR TRDR T AARTRAT 51.19% I TgH< 58.01% & TS 2.

71 2011 B gl F FREH (W) R U (7 RCIR),
9% 3T & THET, 13.41% &T, STl AR 2010 BT T& 12.77%
o,

31.03.2011 &1 8 P o Fulq TeHx T 3,366.43 TRIS & T
Safh 31.03.2010 BT g T 2,201.64 BRI &Y, 3TH T 1,164.79 PRIS
(52.91%) B TG E8.

Aead 3R gyt a=e

2010-11 & QR JY&IT I DI T TeM W & doled &l
3R & 7 9 AR 68 TF AT Wiell €. A 2011 TH dB D A
IRIT3AT T TT 1291 BT TS, §cb ol T IMETE 1. 9).09. & i
& ™ & &,

6 7 IR ¥ 0 B e foe € 5 6 &t suffa s
dd T0g o a1 7 dfd Fawit 7 dfud . 98 B g IRES,
foer, uf¥aw sme, fafewn, fermae gewr, afiemrg, sifeer sik
ITREE # €. 6 7 o Wiaw & fae vy el / el o 9 ugae
o & S dfesm Jrar & dfaa Jar o it § & qerr seIRied aga
FYeTa aret forar # €.

31.03.2011 BT TEDI DI JfIeT b elE I & 496 TLEA. I Tori
391 TEI.EH. 319 9 & 31X 105 T.21.EA. 3fhaEe I, 2 Ul
3 & e & uRenfera fove 5 Jad & it BIe amed (faxira
FEIGRE & 3iaid) qen ey Rifara afwat & foe gioass &
RGP E R

d% @ s & TEDT  Fuh H I § 3R PP W e
TTEdD AT & SATT H BIST UTTATHIAT b THET TBE DI Joll &. 9P
T d% & ufereror dhal aem ufafted aText gfereror Temil & Areaq
I yT3Teror SRIcHHT, BrienanRt, TFEART 3nfe & gRT T3 TR &
HHAIRAT BT ST P ITTT IR AT dhied T,
g;{%ﬂ?ﬂ%#%%aﬁﬁgﬁﬁaﬁw, ;‘rpﬁﬁmé%wﬁﬁéﬂ
ddhI, SITYH Udd-d, Yolldl, [dYUT, (}LCHI dddldh, UdTT TdDhI,
TS JHfIRaa=oT, 3nfe wew@yqut aat § gfreor ge= fearn. o
% AR 10 BRIUTEDT BT FTeT0T HrEdwaAT § 9N o= $ e faer
AT T

6 T PRITR & Fed TR qT 73 MU Wiel b fae, SHeniar
3T QX & & fae a¥ & SR fafirs aa=wmi ik sfvrat #

564 IfEIRAT (100 TRAreTe aiftreTRal |fe) dor 250 fafet
B HAl & foTe PRATg 3TRH B €. 564 H 3 fgaei 7a1, 9@ vd B

The cash recovery during the year 2010-11 was ¥ 191.05 Crore
and upgradation in the accounts was % 171.12 Crore. The Bank
recorded an all time high recovery in written off accounts during the
year at ¥134.58 Crore as against ¥ 125.54 Crore recorded during
the previous year.

The Bank has conducted 1526 recovery camps in various Regions
during the year, which were attended by 21340 borrowers. A total
of 2032 accounts were settled for T 19.52 Crore and 1242 accounts

were upgraded for ¥ 34.11 Crore during the year through such
recovery camps.

New Capital Adequacy Norms:

During the year, the Bank allotted 4.65 Crore Equity Shares of face
value of ¥ 10/- at a price of ¥ 115.75 (including premium of ¥105.75)
aggregating ¥ 539 crore, to the Government of India on preferential
basis. With the above allotment, Government of India’s holding in
the Bank stands enhanced to 58.01% from 51.19%.

The Capital to Risk (Weighted) Asset Ratio (CRAR) stood at
13.41% as of March 2011, compared to 12.77% as of March 2010,
against the requirement of 9%.

The Net Worth of the Bank improved to % 3,366.43 crore as on
31.03.2011 from ¥ 2,201.64 crore as on 31.03.2010, registering a
growth of ¥ 1,164.79 Crore (52.91%).

Network and Delivery Channels:

There was focus on increasing the number of delivery channels
and the Bank has opened 68 new branches during 2010-11. The
total number of branches of the Bank stood at 1291 as of March
2011. All the branches of the Bank are covered under CBS.

The Bank has consciously included centres where Bank’s presence
was negligible or hither to uncovered area. These centres are mainly
in Jharkhand, Bihar, West Bengal, Sikkim, Himachal Pradesh, Tamil
Nadu, Orissa and Uttarakhand. The Bank has also identified areas

/ centres, mostly falling in the category of under banked areas as
well as under Minority dominated districts for opening branches.

As at 31st March 2011, the Bank had an installation base of 496
ATMs comprising of 391 on-site ATMs and 105 Off-site ATMs for
the convenience of customers. Two of the ATMs can be operated
by thumb impression which is convenient for small customers
(under financial inclusion) and semi-literate persons.

Human Resource Development:

Human resources forms your Bank’s interface with its customers
and efficient customer service across the counters is the key to
success against tough competition in the industry. The Bank
continued to focus on skill upgradation of employees at all levels
through training programmes, workshops, seminars etc, both
through the Bank’s training set up and reputed external training
set-ups.

During the year, the Bank had provided training to 6343 employees
in thrust areas of Credit, Rural Banking, Retail Banking, Risk
Management, Treasury, Marketing, Information Technology,
Management Development, Customer Orientation, etc. During the
year, 10 executives were sent abroad for attending training.

The Bank, to meet its requirements of personnel for increasing
business levels and opening of new branches, has initiated
recruitment of 564 officers (incl. 100 POs) under various scales
and disciplines and 250 clerks during the year. Out of 564, 112
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P &F T 112 fIus feRT $Hug TR & Ao I 9dt fhr
EIRGES

STFIcTS & HIETH  WUIEROT

ArS 2011 BT §& BT T 1291 IRAU 3R TG HRITR .99,
& 3efa o T g

§F T T IEnRt & UED! B v sexme dfhT Jar e g
PAGT IRV B 8. T99 UED SeIc b AIETd & 30 Wral o
T UT IR A & o (o8 3T 3T AT H ST Ut
2. T 373~ Pride & Idqd d P Ued o § e for gexae
& T I 3T TIE PR 3R STUTET TR BT A PR Ahd &.
d% 7 THER.OH. e glowT IRY @ € e Areem ¥ Ied
JgI AT & AT I A1 faRia o-a 8 IR e UTe aRar
2. UTE® Irafer sl & aRkudadr fafér & aR & qorr %1 &Y feea
B IRIE P IR § Idra-T ITeT PR 2.

IERIEELICHER IR

¥ 2010-11 & SR S 7 299 AT & A& P THeT faxITa THGET
I AT & 37id 310 Tiat 1 enfer fovam &

T qaee Arer § SfhT 9T 3uder aRM & 3T, I
T, 3fAMEd JeRge giaer & T T1e @, AN 0T, J§7
gfgems qem ger T 3eare o enfie &

BRI Y A BIAT

¥ 2010-11 & R faxiiag GG AT & 3idid Uga foe e
gt F 137479 ORT & @18 & THET b 7 136548 BR 2MiHcT fopw &
Y TR U T QAT WieH & e T89d T &9 & BROT emiHe
T2t fopu 51 .

R @

A1 2011 6 Toxirg FHER ST & Siaia el 1,53,193 e
WId Tl 7T Sai 2010-11 & folw a1fies @& 90,000 WAt T o,
I, /TG 2011 BT 9 H 1S @Al DI et AT 9,01,140 2.
1R @ # siafifea siaxgoe gioen

d% 7 92046 A @Al # 3TE. Fiaem ye= B § G 2010-11 B
SR TE Yfaem 81,000 IS WIAT H Y& BT Y. AT 2011 TP et
2,37,622 ¥IE @Al # 3faf-ied 3.1, giaem yae o 7.
oM pfee o

oI THIae= ATsT & 3idTd J 2011 T .1540.20 BRIS &
1.87 TIRG BTSSRI B BT @& U1, b THET db 7 2.2107.56
HRIS B 1.87 &G T fpar shise &6 TR fopw.

T ITRA Pfsc o

TR FAGe ST & 3iTd AT 2011 db 9 7 % 23.05 PRIS
& 13,000 ST SR Shise P1s IR fHe.
PARe M f5mes)

ITHIOT TERISHIR Y¥Teqor S (3TREEY)

I = arior g & fafie fpareamt & fae 2.150.00 @ &F
YT & AT ST AT fod Ui (S1.3TR ELUE.) & A o U
TAIATIET B AT BT 2. S1.3RELTP. = 3T 379+ 30T {57elr o
11 TTHTOT TaRTSTIR UTSTeT0T eI (IRRIET) RITuq foe & 5= o &
6 3TRICT 5T ¥ 31X 5 3RS BTG 59 | €. a¥ 2010-

11 & SR 39 3RS 7 358 UT3meror Hrdepa smanfaia fooe, 5w
11727 Jaa! ®I yreror fear mam.

specialist officers in the areas of Forex, Credit & Agriculture are
being recruited through Campus interview.

Transformation through Technology:

As of March 2011, all the 1291 branches of the bank and the entire
business have been brought under CBS.

The Bank has launched “Dena | Connect” — the internet Banking
Service for the customers of all branches. This enables the
customers to access their account information through internet
which under normal circumstances would have required them to
visit the branch. Under Dena | Connect, the customer of the Bank
can make payment of Direct Taxes and Indirect Taxes through
internet without visiting the branch.

The Bank has started SMS Alert facility through which customers
get alerts on occurrence of any financial transactions or through
delivery channels. Customers also receive alerts for due dates of
Term Deposits as well as Loan installments due date.

Financial Inclusion Plan:

During the year 2010-11, the Bank has covered 310 villages under
Financial Inclusion Plan against the set target of 299 villages.

The Financial Inclusion plan apart from providing banking outlets,
also includes extension of facilities like No Frills Accounts, Inbuilt
Overdraft facility in the No Frills Accounts, Entrepreneurship Credit,
Remittance facilities and Micro-Insurance products.

Coverage of Households

During the year 2010-11, the Bank has covered 136548 households
against the set target of 137479 households, in the villages identified
under the Financial Inclusion Plan. Remaining households could
not be covered mainly on account of migration or unwillingness to
open the accounts.

No Frills Accounts:

Total 1,53,193 No Frills Accounts have been opened in the FIP
Villages by March 2011 against the annual target of 90,000
accounts during 2010-11. However, the total number of No Frill
Accounts in the Bank stood at 9,01,140 as of March, 2011.

Inbuilt OD facility in the No Frills Accounts:

OD facility has been extended by the Bank in case of 92,046 No
Frills Accounts against the target of 81,000 No Frills Accounts
during 2010-11. The total number of inbuilt OD facility extended in
the No Frills Accounts is 2,37,622 as of March 2011.

Dena Kisan Credit Cards:

Under Financial Inclusion Plan. against projected target of issuing
1.87 lac cards for ¥ 1540.20 crore for March 2011, the Bank has
achievedissuance of 1.87 lac Dena Kisan Credit Cards amounting to
32,107.56 crore.

Dena General Credit Cards:

As of March 2011, the Bank has issued 13,000 Dena General Credit
Cards amounting to ¥ 23.05 Crore, under Financial Inclusion Plan.

Corporate Social Responsibilities
Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs) :

The Bank has set up a Society known as Dena Rural Development
Foundation (DRDF) with a corpus of ¥ 150.00 lacs to take up various
initiatives in Rural Development. DRDF in turn has established 11
Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs) in its lead
districts, 6 RSETIs in the State of Gujarat and 5 RSETIs in the
state of Chhattisgarh. These RSETIs have organised 358 training
programmes and have imparted training to 11727 youth for various
activities during the year 2010-11.
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iferTait @t e o1 graS:

PURCT TMITSH [SFHCERT & U $H &7 § db ¥ 310+ JaT1 &7 arel
TTiat 7 FRerd Ipat o At & FRTeT & UTde & fle &7 der
3181 OTeTET ot TR . 39 ATSTT &b 3Taiid S TRIdT X7 I
T & TRaRT B Tga dF TS Sifeidr3il BT T 2000/~ AT T1500/-
yfday & Brghd Yo BT 8. 3 aifcidil &7 T 86 & A
o & siavia iat & U Tha | 741 der 7 g e fgda 3w
P IR W {HaT F7aT 2. 39 AT P 3dqd 8 = 31d db 2104
IR BT BEGHT TaT o 2.

1T AVSTL:

HRara Rard da of wifees A gar woifa o frifia s ) diea
&, Aoz 3rafer § i ufohar T <& & FHTeT &, 3o 2011-
12 & SR fTHMN &= T 8% I8 & UG &. e faem
¥ gfg &1 I8 AN T8 AFGHR T T & b 9 & SR A=

a1 i B AT 1 & fofe wRara R 3@ ot Atfed Aifa #
HOR AT fhT ST & g aReelT Raferdl ®r & # & 8P, 3@
BT ARG YA 3R R gomert # faadeie 3R Fqferd ghedron
9T 8. getToa ST 3R e Sifrat & seeie st wag
gU UTaeT & o 3t & d6 & feres i) garg agm.

da AT &3l H SIRET WA 31T Ui @ favaR & W) e
drfed I JT HEwyol &7 SR tRea.eHE., Red dor pfy )
T . STHT3T @ AT BT HH B & (070 S BT ST ITera
@ g¢i, ICC N STel T WAl H Il qo iR &1sT / e e
3T T W €T SR L.

i Fae & fole 9RA TRPR GRT BT T Ugd & AR I
TR V 3R TR VI gl | 25% 18 2ATET0 ETe bl JATST T

aifes 31feres I 31ftres At @ dfd AT gem @ 1 A,

3ATHR:

# 3% & I TTEd], TIRURD! qUT FHTIAD! BT § BF It
# 3% Ayl ATE & foTe 3101 eFgaTe aeh R g T Hid=T
T 9 3P Fad T UF eI DI STET BT &,

# R TRER T YRAra Rad § 3 U FHaifad Feng, Feaayqo
Tfee vd wwe & foe A 3R s =T &

d% IRT RBR & i T 539 FRIE B Yoil Y B & fore faery
IdTE Ih Bl & Tola< 8 31.03.2011 BT eI < A1h &
31 EIOR | IY.3TR.T.3TR. §C G Tl

# fo<ira St/ St ik wfafafeat & ufa oft § & 396 g fee
TC e 3R IS & e evgaTe aeh e &,

TH e & T TRT R v T 7gayqel anes & gfa O #
3MHR &<h dxal &, fomos Feam & fomm §& gy oF 18 ymifar dea
T2t 2. # 3 B TR PRIER e dor guta § sy FRaR
DT DI TR Il &

LAY

o I

3).Td.aa
37ee] U9 Uy e

Sponsoring Education of Girl Child:

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility, the Bank has continued
with the Nobel scheme viz. Dena Laxmi Shiksha Protsahan Yojana,
to sponsor education of Girl students in the villages served by the
Bank. Under the scheme the Bank has been providing scholarships
of ¥ 2000/- and %1500/- per annum to identified girl student
belonging to Below Poverty Line (BPL) family. Such students are
selected from each of the schools based on first and second rank
secured in 7th Standard from the villages under the command area
of the Bank. The Bank has so far provided scholarships to 2104 girl
students under the scheme.

The Road Ahead:

With the policy stance of Reserve Bank of India concentrating on
containing inflation, the growth process is likely to moderate in the
medium term and hence, the GDP growth outlook for 2011-12 is
expected to be around 8%. The expectation on maintaining the
momentum in economic growth is based on the assumptions of a
normal monsoon and stabilization of the food prices during the year.

In view of the tight liquidity conditions resulting from the hardening
of the Monetary Policy stance of the Reserve Bank of India with
the intention of reigning in the run away inflation, the Bank will
be required to have a prudent and balanced approach in credit
delivery and monitoring system. The regulatory measures of
enhanced provisioning requirements on certain categories of non
performing advances and restructured advances will have impact
on the Bank’s performance.

The Bank will continue with its strategy to remain focused on
expanding its outreach by opening branches in new areas,
concentrate on thrust areas such as MSME, Retail and Agriculture.
To bring down the cost of deposit, the Bank will continue to pay
focused attention for increasing CASA Deposits, sustained efforts
in recovery in written off accounts and increasing non interest / fee
based income.

In line with the Government of India initiatives on Financial Inclusion,
the Bank will endeavor to open 25 per cent of new branches in
areas which are located in Tier V and Tier VI centers so as to
provide Banking access to more and more people.
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T =,

1. 31 AT, 2011 P FAG [ a8 & o] & ol -IRIT&d o
foraRoT oI AT yaTe faaRor & Ty § & arfies e uRga dxar

2. faira foreare= @) faf¥reae

2.1 31 A, 2011 @ 99 fod o & ERE dF @1 pa A
BRITR (ST + 3H) 31,00,000 PRIS BT AGIRAH TR HR T &.
d% & T (AT BRIGR § < 22,306.30 FRIS DI IIE& §g (o1
J€ 31 U 2010 & T 87066.69 TRIS & TR H 25.62% Jfa P T
31 AT, 2011 PT AR 21,09,372.99 TRIE & TR ddb Ugd T4,

2.2 A FARIET §  212,865.34 aIg & 3ftg g5 ot b 31
AT, 2010 B I51,344.28 BRI dF T F §6h 31 A, 2011 B
% 64,209.62 BRIS I UET TS SiTeh 25.05% T G2l &

2.3 9% & YA H  9,441.96 TRIS DI I1& gs, Torat 9 & oA
31T 31 AT, 2010 BT %35,721.41 TS I Teb< 31 A, 2011
BT T 45,163.37 TRIS A6 UET T3, i1 fh 26.42% I JIea 2T &.

2.4 q&H, 7Y U HEIW 3UH (THUNEHS ) ARG W 1,136.32 RIS
@ i g3 ST fadidh 31 AT, 2010 DY 2. 5,647.37 TRIS I TedR
31 71 2011 I .6,783.69 FRIS B UZT Ty Sl 20.12% Jik
I

2.5 Rea Ar@ # 2.755.68 TRIS Bl Ihg g8 IANb feAid 31 AT
2010 @I % 5,379.91 #RIg I 6B 31 A 2011 ®I 2.6,135.59
R ah UET TS b 14.05% Fhg g2l &.

2.6 3% & TAULC @Al H I YA B 3 TR e 2.
a¥ 2010 - 11 & ARM FBE Il T 191.05 318 o 3R @rar &
IFTT %171.12 RIS IT. 96 7 9¢¢ WA STt T Wl H§ 31F P D
Falfrds Gl 2134.58 TRIS & STah IS a¥ & AR 2.125.54

TS TR € o

To, The Members

1. The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report along with the Audited Financial Statement of Accounts and
the Cash Flow statement of the Bank for the year ended March 31,
2011.

2. Performance Highlights

2.1 Aggregate Business Mix (Deposits + Advances) of the Bank
crossed the Milestone Mark of ¥1,00,000 Crore during the financial
year ended 31st March, 2011. The total Business Mix of the Bank
increased by ¥ 22,306.30 Crore to % 1,09,372.99 Crore as on 31
March, 2011 from % 87,066.69 Crore as on 31st March 2010,
registering a growth of 25.62% .

2.2 Total Deposit of the Bank increased by ¥ 12,865.34 Crore from
¥ 51,344.28 Crore as on 31st March, 2010 to ¥ 64,209.62 Crore as
on 31st March, 2011, registering a growth of 25.05%.

2.3 Advances of the Bank increased by ¥ 9,441.96 Crore from
% 35,721.41 Crore as on 31st March, 2010 to ¥ 45,163.37 Crore as
on 31st March, 2011, registering a growth of 26.42%.

2.4 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) Credit posted a
growth of ¥ 1,136.32 Crore from % 5,647.37 Crore as on 31st March,
2010 to % 6,783.69 Crore as on 31st March, 2011, registering a
growth of 20.12%.

2.5 Retail Credit posted a growth of ¥ 755.68 from % 5,379.91 Crore
as on 31st March, 2010 to ¥ 6,135.59 Crore as on 31st March,
2011, registering a growth of 14.05%.

2.6 Recovery efforts in NPA Accounts of the Bank yielded good
results. Cash recovery during the year 2010-11 stood at 3191.05

Crore and upgradation to the tune of ¥ 171.12 Crore. The Bank
recorded an all time high recovery in written off accounts during the

year at ¥ 134.58 Crore as against ¥ 125.54 Crore recorded during
the previous year.

(T PIS H) (Amtin  Crore)

feraRoT Particulars ATk, 2010 B R2Afer As of March 2010 ATk, 2011 3 RRAfeT As of March 2011
STHTE Deposits 51,344.28 64,209.62
31T Advances 35,721.41 45,163.37
9997 Investments 15,760.14 18,860.22
TR &7 Priority Sector 11,718.00 15,150.00
@ﬁ[Agriculture 4,826.22 6,389.38
RCH Retall 5,379.91 6,135.59
E'I[E'?-TUTT_s; MSME 5,647.36 6,783.69
et U U T Gross NPA 641.99 842.24
596 U9 0T U Net NPA 427.53 548.95
o AT H et 0T O T H % 1.80 1.86
% of Gross NPA to Gross Advances

facr i & Faa e A e T % 1.21 1.22
% of Net NPA to Net Advances

qjﬁ gIfedr 3-4Td Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.77 13.41
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3. 31 &1 fagersor

3.1 3% &7 uRame @ e 9§ & 7840.58 TS H 3383.21
TRIS (45.59%) B & Tof B gY, I B [T 1223.79 FRIS dB
Ugd T

3.2 a¥ & fore frae o9 2611.63 A1 A% UgT T, i feer
¥ & faeT @ 2 511.25 FISH 2100.38 RIS (19.63%) BF ITeg
gorfar .

a¥ 2010-2011 & foiv &b & Taxira e &1 IRier 4 UhR &

3. Income Analysis

3.1 The Operating Profit of the Bank increased to ¥1223.79 Crore
for the year from % 840.58 Crore in the previous year registering an
increase of ¥ 383.21 Crore (45.59%).

3.2 The Net Profit increased to ¥ 611.63 Crore for the year from
% 511.25 Crore in the previous year recording an increase of

¥ 100.38 Crore (19.63%).

The financial performance of the Bank for the year 2010-2011 is

summarized below

( TS H )J(Amt in % Crore)

fera=or 7, 2010 3 Reifer 7, 2011 3 Reifey
Particulars As of March 2010 As of March 2011
afR=Ier T are Operating Profit 840.58 1223.79

151 31T Interest Income 4,010.36 508358

T5T AT Interest Expenditure 2,910.33 3,270.16

96 SITST 37T Net Interest Income 1,100.03 1,763.37

R SITST 3T Non Interest Income 588.63 533.84

YTGET UF STaT AT 329.32 325.20
Provisions and contingencies

D tlm'q; ¢4 Profit before Tax 686.79 898.59

@RI & T YIger= Provision for Taxes 175.54 286.96

99eT T Net Profit 511.25 611.63

4. v forfra oo 4. Key Financial Indicators
gmggwﬁ?cﬁu Wﬁﬁﬁe% Some of the Key Financial ratios are presented below:
( TS H )J(Amt in % Crore)

fera=or e, 2010 @1 Reafer A, 2011 @t Reafer
Particulars As on March 2010 As on March 2011
TacT =1sT AT Net Interest Margin 2.61 A7

3NINTAT TR GTIaTH Return on Assets 1.01 1.00

CTATT 3T 3AJUTd Cost to Income Ratio 50.22 46.73

T | & 3l A 3R .T3TR. CRAR under Basel || 12.77 13.41

T U T HaRaT 3UTd(3.) 78.61 74.62

qRaa Ra1d d& & 731 feenfeen & R

NPA Coverage Ratio (Prov) As per new RBI

guidelines

SHRITSTAT &l &N Cost of Deposit 6.21 5.76

ffért o @I Cost of Funds 6.31 5.87

33T o= ufdwe Yield on Advance 10.32 10.24

fférdt o= gfawa Yield on Fund 8.47 8.62

Eﬁ‘r’a??f W gTqwet Return on Equity 28,555 26.71

UTaeIaR 3151 Earning Per Share 17.83 21.26

FEI YT Book Value 84.04 123.85
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5. @ 2010-11 &% SR d =1 68 -5 AT Went 3R IF B et
SIRAT3NT T TT 1291 AP §¢ TN & . §b o T ARATE I §F o
&P AT PRI &.

6. 3B % PHa Ul TH B AT Teax 496 & T, for 105
JiTeTSe U e v oY onfie & . db & UTed TS ead § 70,000
TS TAT, YR ¥ 4.70 oG 3 318 TR Teemat (v 3) e fager
T 1 Tofaa & a1fee verent 3R 26 TafeaT vas. &1 3uam o=
Tqhd 2.

7. AT

e wsa @ af 2010-11 & faw 2 2.20 Ufd IR 3raTd 22%
3iferer amTer o RIwIReT dRa gU U=ar 81 & &, AT &% Bl
A b GRT (T STRIT. ATHIRT & BRUT HeT YA df ST aredt
MY, (ETHTeT ) Al ) T 85.53 HRIS &N

8. faerHufkrvd Wt sR T AR

8.1 9 @I et Gufd 31.3.2010 & T 2,201.64 PRIS P wR I
Feax feTd 31.3.2011 B T 3,366.43 TRIT & WR dd Ugd T3, 311
5 21,164.79 RIS (52.91%) BT gfta 2T &

8.2 7 2011 BT Y31 BT SR (HIR) SR AT (T 3R TITR)
13.41% &, STatch AT 2010 H T& 12.77% .

8.3 9 & R, IF 7 AT MR W WRT TWHR BT T 115.75
( 105.75 & Mfraw afed) & geg ) T 10/~ 3iftpd goa & gt
3 530 RIS & 4.65 PRIS Sfaacl ITRT BT 3T fhar 8. IWRIh
3MeeT & PRUT §b H R TROR DI &MRAT 51.19% I Fed<

58.01% Bs ©.

8.4 99T Il & 3iaifd §& @ TR | Y37 §6ahR 9.77 % & T8 Sifch
Ard, 2010 ¥ 8.16 % .

5. During the year 2010-11, the Bank opened 68 new Branches and
Branch network of the Bank increased to 1291. All the branches of

the Bank are covered under CBS.

6. The ATM Network of the Bank increased to 496, it includes 105
offsite ATMs. Bank’s customers have access to 70,000 ATMs in the
shared network, 4.70 Lacs plus Merchant Establishments (MEs)
in India. World wide, our customers have access to more than 1
million ATMs and 26 million MEs.

7. Dividend

The Board of Directors are pleased to recommend dividend of
% 2.20 per share i.e., 22 % for 2010-11. The tax on dividend will be
paid by the Bank. The total outflow on account of dividend will be
¥ 85.53 Crore ( including dividend tax ).

8. Net Worth and CRAR

8.1 Net Worth of the Bank improved to ¥ 3,366.43 crore as on
31.038.2011 from %2,201.64 crore as on 31.03.2010, registering a
growth of ¥ 1,164.79 Crore (52.91%).

8.2 Capital to Risk (Weighted) Asset Ratio (CRAR) as of March
2011 works out to 13.41% as compared to 12.77% as of March
2010.

8.3 During the year, the Bank allotted 4.65 Crore Equity Shares
of face value of ¥10/- at a price of ¥115.75 (including premium of
%105.75) aggregating ¥539 crore to the Government of India on
preferential basis. With the above allotment, Government of India
holding in the Bank stands enhanced to 58.01% from 51.19%.

8.4 The Tier | capital of the Bank under Basel Il is improved to
9.77% as against 8.16% as of March 2010.

% Basel | S9c Basel Il
ard March A March A March Al March
2010 2011 2010 2011
SR | Y37 Tier- | Capital 6.80 8.04 8.16 9.77
SR |1 YT Tier -l Capital 3.85 3.00 4.61 3.64
% Total 10.65 11.04 27 13.41
9. Frters Hea & aRadT 9. Changes in Board of Directors

9.1 31 A, 2011 ®I 29 Heer # 3reger vd yaer feere aor
HIUTAS feeid, A1 gt difce Heeie qer =1 3¥R B8 3
ot onfiyer o

e UP YR TRBR &I AMHar FHe2rd

e U YRAY Re1d db &1 A1t fewrd

o U USRI HHARI fees
e O IR IRG! gRI A T Feerd

9.2 sft ©ig fpeiR, wRag Ra1d § e Feere, s St o
(EuehHl BT rfenrEuT ud 3idRon) srfefam, 197071980 dfds duer
(3THAT T JATERTEVT TS 3TAROT) GIRT TN, BT &IRT 9 BT 3T &RT

9.1 The Board of Directors of the Bank, as on 31st March 2011,
comprised of Chairman & Managing Director and Executive
Director, both being whole-time Directors and six other directors
as under:

. One Government of India Nominee Director

o One Reserve Bank of India Nominee Director
. One Officer Employee Director and

o Three Shareholders’ elected Directors

9.2 Shri Chandra Kishore, Reserve Bank of India Nominee
Director, appointed under Clause (c) of Sub-section (3) of
Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer
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(3) & W (I qA I IadHa db (e 31 fafaer graem) arsem
1970/1980 & WS 3 BT IULRI(1) P 1 ufsd foxira < fafer
(Feier) srtéfram, 2006 & 3fdta feAid 27 wRakr, 2007 ¥ g
fope T 91, fertids 29 FATs, 2010 F §F & ewd e 2. Havid
Hsel 8 TG fhR gRT 8 & fFewd dsa § fevie & ¥ § 396
BB & AR [ T AEZ@YUT TG b 618 3! FRTEHT PR
&

9.3 9RA WER, faa #area, foxira e fawm & yra sifeRgaen
. 0%..9/2/2007-81.37.31% femia 30 e, 2010 ( gfafarfy dam)
& 3SR, s . 9).foerix @1 51 9% fFeik & ®IH R I apa
¥ @& 3k fafaer graem) dsFr 19701980 & @s 3 @F
3ULRT(1) & T UTSd ST HUT (SUHHAT BT TR T 37T
rtIfTa 1970/1980 BT &IRT 9 BT 3T &IRT (3), WS (M) & 7= I
& e veet o fewre & oo § Tifid fear mar 2.

9.4 1. THAY FHAR MaE, ewie i1 6 I door @umar &
TeRIgUT Ud 3ieRon) 3rfEfam, 1970 P ORT 9 HI 3T &RT (3) P TS
(TT) & ME 04 TRa<T, 2009 ¥ Fgeh foor T &, 3@ HRIB
gof 89 TR 03 WRaI, 2011 & §& & e =8 8. Fees wea
ST AT PR T GRT 96 & Meed Hed H Mg & Y H
FH BB B AR e T AEaYUT TN & 178 3D TRTEAT
FPRATE.

10. FReP! & FTReRI*a o1 faa=or

feerd 31 w1 2011 @1 FEE A & fow IS e R @R §

frefafed & gfe s &

) afYE dwEr IR &) # Aeayut faaeH & ddw ¥ agfaa
TCIHROT & AT A HFDT BT g fosar mar &

i) 3R U oET At & 99 fear ud et FReR any fear
T 03 Fvfg vd 3gAM e S Agfud vd faaemyof € aife
forier @ & 31 b §ep T el 3R Tl FRerfef gl R b
T4 37afT & feTu o @ @ a1 81 & Fefa @ 9.

iy IR eaTetsar va 3= SfratHaansil &l b Td T T
2 ¥Rd ¥ ol R a1 faf&r & graeni & ER gafe et
Reret & @3@E & foe wqiud vd aia cerE o 7.

iv) 3= ae o, FRaR PRITR dTel TR & 3R R dIR
fomam o,

11. 3R
11.1 Feup #ea db & 3 TG UTEd!, IORURD! T
SHTITDT BT 9 DI T # I9b He@qUl ARG & felg 3raT

AT &Th Rl & aUT HiTs § 370 Idd Tud= vd TEdIT B
ST HRAT &

11.2 YRd PR JIT AR Rd §6 F U FHAITad JaTE,
HEwdqUT ANTee B qHeiT & fee i fHewre Heer alfdd STHR
H FRAT &

of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 (as amended vide Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer Undertakings) and Financial
Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act, 2006 read with Sub-clause (1)
of Clause 3 of Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Scheme 1970/1980 w.e.f. February 27, 2007, ceased
to be a Director of the Bank w.e.f. July 29, 2010. The Board of
Directors place on record their appreciation for valuable guidance
provided by Shri Chandra Kishore, during his tenure as Director on
the Board of the Bank.

9.3 In terms of Notification No. F.N0.9/2/2007-B.0O.l. dated 30th
July, 2010 received from Government of India, Ministry of Finance,
Department of Financial Services, Shri B. P. Vijayendra has been
nominated as Director on the Board of the Bank under Clause (c),
Sub-Section (3) of Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 read with sub-clause
(1) of clause 3 of Nationalised Banks (Management & Miscellaneous
Provisions) Scheme, 1970/1980, in place of Shri Chandra Kishore.

9.4 Dr. Kamlesh Kumar Goel, Director, appointed under Clause
(h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 9 of the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 w.e.f. February
4, 2009, ceased to be a Director of the Bank from February 3, 2011
on completion of his tenure. The Board of Directors place on record
their appreciation for valuable guidance provided by Dr. Goel,
during his tenure as Director on the Board of the Bank.

10. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors, in preparation of the annual accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2011, confirm the following:

i)  Thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures.

ii)  That they have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Bank at the end of the financial year
and of the profit or loss of the Bank during the period.

iii) That they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of applicable laws governing banks in India
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

iv) That they have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis.
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11.1 The Board of Directors expresses its patronage and sincere
thanks to the Bank’s valued customers, shareholders and well
wishers for their valuable contribution towards the progress of
the Bank and seek their continued support and co-operation
in future.

11.2 The Board of Directors acknowledges with gratitude, the timely
advice, valuable guidance and support received from Government
of India and Reserve Bank of India.
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11.3 fed A8 YR TER BF T 539 RIS Yl Ja T=A &
faoIy g=ae Udhe BT g, foae 96 31 A, 2011 &1 feia
ST I 318 IO - | W.3R.U.R. 991U 9 THT.

11.4 fFee Fsa 37 foxira Teemstt aem 9gant dof & ufg @
FoaIsTdT SOh AT &, foai= dcb T T vd wmef= fear .

11.5 & & PRIER # YT g0fa & e wrw et & q49) W=y
R fEu M0 we@yet aneE & gfd Ff e Hed aifds iR o
BT €, Feoreor @Rd SRR faerT der §6 o uid § 399
A AT DI 3R TG 2.

a9 dsa & foiw 3R 37 3R &

W e

S [ERGAIER)
&I : 01.06.2011 3rezeT U9 Uy Fevie

11.3 The Board of Directors express special thanks to Government
of India for infusing capital ¥ 539 crore and thus enabling bank
to maintain a Tier | CRAR, as on 31st March, 2011, above the
prescribed benchmark.

11.4 The Board of Directors are also thankful to the Financial
Institutions / Banks and Correspondents for their cooperation and
support to the Bank.

11.5 The Board of Directors wish to place on record, the deep
appreciation of the valuable contribution made by the staff, at all
levels, for the progress achieved in Bank’s business. The Directors
look forward to their continued cooperation in faster business
development and progress of the Bank.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

¥

7]

(D. L. Rawal)
Chairman & Managing Director

Place : Mumbai
Date : 01.06.2011
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1. Ry 3 alkgea

2008-09 P df¥ad 3D Hal df BrIT H fasid e =it
# 3 2009-10 T 3N T & w7 < M. Fafy, a8 fefa
af 2010-11 % ERM IR I, e o Frrafia 78 & wilfe o
2010 B AR fomTer # BHASIR us WY 3iiR ARy fommer § g
O: T OS], HEF G4 3R IR STHIGT § AT & JROTmHa=
I BT DT H WRT 3G W vd 377 90t B e § g el
& HRUT GERHITT B [T g¢l. 3P HRUT 3T¥ad srfaaawen of
IR &R BT BT kG H 4T GRT T IET. TR SRIPT H PURE
Yot @ va Reet fashr # R 3T, IR &7 U S W AT aaa
S JEL. S # UTpiad [auaT & HROT gE R M qiRomr
1 A ST 99 &, U R fer I 81 ST W, Af-Hfor
R EHA T 3 3rfeaw # GUR 8 &1 A . Iie A
TR Ha11 BT THA Folt I Uferentia d= & fofa aar & ar
UITeram T UR TET9 3T &7 3FAM & 91 g% ORe, 7T B BRUT
feg @ 3R g8 TR srfrawRmsi 3 e gfg ast o 2. Ffy,
3 SfTawRIT3T TR YR BT 619 &1 g3 & , Fifeh Jeane &t
3R O 7T & TSRy @, i va a3t df diAal H 7o 31 Gs-

AR srfawen, fom dae gd safer & amr 9% & faems &
TSt & &1, 2010-11 & foe ek wiferdg Ao & qd 3 gAE &
AR 3T 8.6% &R W Fhg D HHE . TR HHRLT B BRUT
BT 7 faer e & anrer fear | 38 31k Far &3 & Smia fiRae
Ratg of 7. sitenfie 3are Jasis (3ms.3mE.aY.) # siferar &
& & qIaolE BT faml, T faaror v ) a¥ell # GUR aof
fopar . $o vd Uvdl & 3T e & HROT ST U v aTes)
T # 31 7 ghg &R TR @Y.

i Faw & T BRI § HY &7 # 3 h §& SRS
& w0 H SR <. fuee af § 9@ & a1e, Adrvsd aut g arer 7
UHI & & HROT dY 2010-11 & SRM HY 30 ¥ 3T g5, gd
3 & 3SR, 39 2010-11 & AR Goet @ e § et
aY BT o H 10.4 FTerd SEraRT 8. & Hd & Hag H g3Ts
& siaifd 31t & ve afel o gert Reifa & dRor g, &, qw
e foeted & 3aamed # fuser af & gar § SereRT 89 & 3TAN
2. Tafy B # a¥ R 99 31 Y36 s 3R AT Y eI T
<ET, SR @ JeT H Ui i WrenE & SYaerdr 3 W i)
TR BT a1 T Tl g3,

gor 3¢ a¥ & R 3t 3dme 7 10.4 Ufaerd @ i asf
B e a-mRast 2011 & SR FHY ¥ § 7.8 & Ig Y&
fafaioT IR @@= &3 H gU d8aR Mwie 3 JHT g3, 3ireR gfa
R o7 af & IR # 16.6% I 3R TR 2010 T® 2.7% Td iR
TS, 3eT - BRAXI 2010-11 & &R a¥ 2009-10 P AT 37aTer HF
e ¥ @, fafvmior qor fosten &t § 3fg &= HHeT 6.5%, 8.1%
TAT 5.4% &I, 7T Y4 UF IR 3MhIdT § JAHRadd 7 3R
T DY DHIAAT TR STTd STl SiTTch Uab T ST & TTTh 3T
@5 AT Bl 0T arra 7 i gs. ey, fafmfor o oa.amg, &=
I, BURE faen!, 70T faaRor For FHafd snie gaeis a8 aeild 8
o amieies fopamdeny gge 2.

a1 &7, foaeT ade TR 3@ ¥ ggw 9 g, T TR, fed,

1) Macro-economic Scenario

In the aftermath of the Global Economic slump of 2008-2009, the
recovery momentum witnessed in 2009-2010 in the advanced
economies, though sustained during 2010-11, was not consistent
as it weakened in the second quarter of 2010 before bouncing back
in the third quarter. The sharp increase in oil prices consequent
to the turmoil in the Middle East and North Africa fueled the
inflation concerns with elevated food and other commaodity prices,
continue to threaten the maintenance of growth rate in global
economy. While the corporate capital spending and retail sales has
improved in US, uncertainty persists in EURO zone and Japan.
The macroeconomic consequences resulting from the natural
disaster in Japan are yet to be estimated. The expenditure on
reconstruction is expected to boost the economy once normalcy
is restored. The petroleum prices are likely to be under pressure if
Japan decides to replace nuclear energy with thermal energy. The
Emerging Market Economies world over have registered strong
growth, mainly driven by huge domestic demand. However, these
economies continue to remain under inflationary pressures as the
output gaps have narrowed resulting in sharp increases in food,
energy and commodity prices.

Indian economy which had registered a GDP growth of near 9
% in the pre crisis period is, as per advance estimates of Central
Statistical Organization for 2010-2011, expected to grow at the
rate of 8.6%. Agriculture, benefited from the normal monsoon,
contributed to the growth, Industry and Services recorded marginal
deceleration. In spite of volatility in the Index of Industrial Production
(IIP), improved corporate sales, credit off take and tax collections
were reported. The buoyancy in private consumption and external
demands had balancing effect due to high fuel and commodity
prices.

Growth of Agriculture sector continues to be a critical factor
in the overall performance of the economy. After the draught in
the preceding year, the Agriculture production rebounded during
2010-11 with satisfactory monsoon and reservoir positions. As per
the Advance Estimates, total kharif food grain production during
2010-11 is estimated to be 10.4 per cent higher than the previous
year. With regard to the rabi crop, greater area under sowing and
improved reservoir positions, production of wheat, rabi pulses and
oilseeds is expected to be higher than the previous year. Although
the year on year growth in agriculture has been strong and monsoon
also has been near normal, the stagnation in per capita availability
of food grains, vis a vis population, has not eased the pressure on
food inflation.

The industrial production registered a growth of 10.4 per cent during
the first half year which was moderated to an overall 7.8 per cent
during April-February 2010-11. This has been mainly on account
of the performance of the manufacturing and mining sectors. The
volatile growth rate witnessed ranging between 16.6 percent at the
beginning of the fiscal to 2.7 per cent in November 2010. Growth
during April- February, 2010-11 over the corresponding period of
2009-10 in mining, manufacturing and electricity sectors have been
6.5%, 8.1% and 5.4% respectively. Uncertainties in Middle East
and North Africa exert pressure in international oil prices, which
is a downside risk as it push-up the input cost of many industries.
Nevertheless, the indicators such as manufacturing PMI, tax
collections, corporate sales, credit off-take and exports indicate
that economic activity was strong.

Services sector, which has the dominant share in GDP, has
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TeRe, IRkaed, YeRoT vd Sar aon fa<iem, i, Rad o=ee va
BHRITRI Ja3iT gRT T a1 IG. 9§ 2010-11 & SR Jar &7 &
g8 af Five w0 § R af IRy @ . fafvm vge gaaier fomm
oS aTee 3ared, It BIF S-deH, TR BHiT 9T 9y & R
TR, AT FRTG chHaat iR ot o @ 7 gfg #§ FRaxar
IR

a¥ 2010-11 & ARM HERWITT fIar &7 TRg HROT & &1 i
QT Sl § ghe dm 9y & 37d db S B HIad § ghg b BROT
Y. 1 JeTTs, 2010 | JbI GRT AMMVIAD UM TR ST &X IR &
J Tag P T8 difep i favae ) 3ifere uReet €.

2. MR Ra1d d srfa apaa

AR Red d& =7 3rpeR 2009 # Hhewwa fawarka Aifes Aif
F TR T g fhar on. a9 ¥ 399 Afd 3R R A 3R IR
BT 100 3R f6g31T I TAT R FHIAISH 11T P 3iaid uT T
fRa=f XY &F & FHHEn: 200 TF 250 IR fagat & Fewn & FHB
gRoTRa=Y, JouTelt § T aRerar Rt s & S & 3R
geet & Hifew T § a7 3w dRaw sifAfedar & daet & wRa
fafere gfg @ &R BT & # I3 ge fovar .

ARAT sfaRr # gfg & & a8 giud &l ¢ fd Afa &
garRmifd & At 3@ R g fear s anfee . 59 ardreRor #
aRara Rard d& of difss M v &1 35eea & &:

- TS &R T U1 UG T ST T AR BT Aierd dx AR
AR STTAMT BT R a1 3.

- e Feerdr &1 U= Arete fastad a St faxira Rerar & | 7eg
AT 7 HERWmITT 3FAMT BT ReR I A,

- AT & g I8 ghvaa o= & e fear v 6 o'
e w7 dr e ger R @ iR T & 4 garg 7 aren
T

2.5 ST R ot ygfa

TR Rerd d6 difge Tifd o TRR I 99 & g §
et IET Sl Aabel IRl IS H gs dieid g o ufatdfad grar
2. qenft, a=erar feafe & @ 5 wRdra Rerd §6 @1 aRerdr @R
3UTT TR DI T BT 8. a9 & R HIgd T BT AHEFITHIT
3T, TREAT H HHI & BROT ddT & arg giawqer gel, fo=y 51 v
IR & X ¥ 3fg g8, Rord 9@ 7 301 vd gl IR aRare &
AT I oI AT H YTITHG aReAdT Yar o I srefeaaern § a=etdm
FH B & NNGH Pl TIN & 08 3TaeTD AT, 5T aRdfdd
srferaw W ufige THIG U Hdhar o

IR Roid § & difaes i 3urar vd Yar vd Rawt 301 =1  gfg
& YGTR | 3IGIad avToad dai (TF.3.ar.) = 71 2010-3axT
2011 & 2R fafira uRuaadmsii § 25-250 3MeR foga & TR &
ST i # gfg o 8. s 1, 2010 ;¥ ST W1 eI IR & YOl &b
R W 3R & YOI 3RY HF T €. RIad anviiodd dor =
3T 3R ST D FHIET BF 3R 37 s 2010 Td FHaT 2011
& &1 25 -100 3R fog a6 gfg B

maintained its momentum led by trade, hotel, restaurant, transport,
storage and communication and financing, insurance, real estate
and business services. The service sector growth during 2010-11
has shown gradual acceleration through out the year. The strong
growth of various lead indicators, include commercial vehicles
production, cell phone connections, air cargo and passengers
handled at domestic and international terminals during the year
have shown continuation in the growth.

Inflation continued to remain the major concern throughout the year
2010-11, largely driven by food items, fuel generalized as the year
progressed. Interest rates on commercial credit by Banks were
linked to Base Rate with effect from July 1, 2010 so as to reflect
greater transmission of policy rates.

2. Reserve Bank of India Policy Stance

Reserve Bank of India initiated to exit from the crisis driven
expansionary monetary policy as early as October 2009. Since
then, it has cumulatively raised the CRR by 100 bps, and the repo
and reverse repo rates under the Liquidity Adjustment facility by
200 and 250 bps, respectively. As a result the overall liquidity in the
system has transited from a surplus to a deficit mode. This monetary
policy response was keeping in view India specific growth-inflation
dynamics in the broader context of global uncertainty.

The Indian Economy growth inflation dynamics indicate that the
policy has to concentrate on containing the escalation in inflation.
In this scenario, the Reserve Bank of India stance of the monetary
policy is intended to :

Maintain an interest rate environment that moderates inflation and
anchors inflation expectations.

Foster an environment of price stability that is conducive to sustaining
growth in the medium term coupled with financial stability.

Manage liquidity to ensure that it remains broadly in balance with
neither a large surplus diluting monetary transmission nor a large
deficit choking off fund flows.

2.5 Movement of Interest Rates

Reserve Bank of India in its intent of maintaining non disruptive
normalization of the monetary policy has been successful as it is
reflected in the return of the robust growth in the GDP. However,
the liquidity conditions remained tight warranting liquidity easing
measures by the Reserve Bank. The normalization of monetary
policy during the year, the tightness in liquidity prompted
competition among banks, leading to higher deposit and lending
rates. The Reserve Bank injected large primary liquidity through
repo and open market operations. This was necessary to avoid the
risk of liquidity stress adversely impacting the real economy.

In response to the monetary policy measures of Reserve Bank
of India and increase in repo and reverse repo rates, scheduled
commercial Banks (SCBs) raised deposit rates in the range of 25-
250 basis points during March 2010 — January 2011 across various
maturities. With effect from July 1, 2010 the Benchmark Prime
Lending Rate system was replaced by the Base Rate system. The
schedule commercial Banks reviewed and increased their Base
Rates by 25 -100 basis points between July 2010 and January
2011.
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3. & FeivT ) et

Y R T YR R WRIKR TG H 20% BT Jha §s i HRAT
Re1d §F & AT ®R & A4s 2. A1 2011 & IRF 7 Ihg
21.38% &I STafes s3I ¥ afig 15.84% &Y. 39D Belea®y ARG
gf vd s gfg & 9RY 3feR amar. 51 3t vd W gfig & dg
ST 3RIGAT T GERwId FRIed Hifsd Afa o & et
Hdl BT UEATd GE adT 7 IUR &I PI ek ge ST [IguT H
IR T & 3T ST &1 T HT Terdm & ToTsy iaw # Hebet #i
0T 3 @ BT HHIGT 2.

4. ¥5 FTERIER e

4.1 foreer A1 aut & §& & e PRIGR FfHsT FFAuaR & -

3. Banking Industry Trends

Year on Year, the non food credit growth has been 20%, which is
above the projected level of Reserve Bank of India. As on March
2011 credit growth was 21.38% whereas the deposit growth was
15.84%. This resulted in wide gap between Credit Growth and
Deposit growth. Recognizing the structural imbalance between
deposit growth and credit growth as well as the underlying signals
of the anti-inflationary monetary policy stance, banks raised their
deposit rates to improve deposit mobilization while raising the
lending rates, which could be expected to moderate the aggregate
demand, going forward.

4. Business Performance of the Bank

4.1 The composition of Total Business Mix of the Bank for the last
two years is as under:

(@IS #) (Amt in Crs.)

forazor 31 el 2010 @t Reafer 31 At 2011 3t Reafer
Particulars As at March 31,2010 As at March 31, 2011
et STHT ¥t Total Deposits 51,344.28 64,209.62
et 3103 Total Advances 35,721.41 45,163.37
WW?&W Total Business Mix 87,066.69 1,09,372.99

4.2 96 & IS PRIGR I 2010 H 787,066.36 RIS I IGHT
AT 2011 H %1,09,372.99 FRIS DI 75 HdTs ad Ugd T 311 b
25.62% @I Ihg c2Nar &, § 7 a9 & SR 2 1 7RI BRIS & BRIAR
BT HITTHR TR B ferar 2.

4.3 e ST AT 2010-11 & 37 H  64,209.62 FRIT B WK I
Tga TS 511 o et a¥ & TR T 51,344.28 BRI H 25.05% B afg
gerfe €.

4.4 3% & BT ST A 2011 & 37T ¥ R 45,163.37 PRI ad Ugd
e S o5 fueer af & 2 35,721.41 I3 & TR N 26.42% D Ihs
Terta &

5. ST HUEYT

5.1 fo a¥ 2010-11 3 2R faf¥e auf & a7 3 7 7.12,864.17
TR B 3fG g8, o af 2009-10 q&T 2010-11 & fore ST <fraat
B gemTs Reifa e gaR &

4.2 Business Mix of the Bank has increased from ¥ 87,066.36 crore
as of March 2010, to a new Height of ¥1,09,372.99 crore as of
March 2011, registering a growth of 25.62%. Bank has crossed the
landmark business of ¥ 1 Lac crore during the year.

4.3 Total Deposits have grown to the level of ¥64,209.62 crore as
of March 2011 as compared to ¥ 51,344.28 crore as of March 2010,
registering a growth of 25.05%.

4.4 Total Advances of the Bank stood at ¥ 45,163.37 crore as of
March 2011 as compared to ¥ 35,721.41 Crore as of March 2010,
registering a growth of 26.42%.

5. Deposits Mobilisation

5.1 The incremental growth in different segments of Deposit
was to the extent of ¥12,864.17 Crore during the FY 2010-11. A
comparative position of Deposits for the FY 2009-10 and 2010-11
is as under:

@ TS H) (Amt Z in Crs)

AUEs At 2010 At 2010

PARAMETERS March 2010 | March 2011
4507 5419
UGS (9.07%) (8.74%)
. 13813 17325
SR (27.82%) (27.94%)
& 31337 39241
e (63.11%) (63.31%)
DT STHT X ST Aggregate Deposits 49657 61985
37X S STAT I Inter Bank Deposits 1687 2225
T STHT X ST Total Deposits 51344 64210
DT 5TH 30§ TT.9./a. T (%) CASA to Total Deposits 35.68% 35.42%

(@Td W ST TE 3iTdhs PHeT ST TR § Yfreid ST AT BT Hpd
IR 8)

(Figures in bracket indicate percentage deposits to aggregate
deposits)
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5.2 F9 2010-11 & AR Pl ST AMRRAT H TTeL, @I FId GIer
ST a7 37eT fieer o 5 35.68% & TR W VST UCAHT 35.42% &Y
T, el aY & 23.01% & G 8 aY & R aTe], Wil FId @I
STHTSAT 7 24.15% B I1G Gs.

6. W i va .

gfeeHt <o # srfeaRen § g gUR & R a9 2010-11 o
HUCIRRUT ST & srfawen # gU gge Ao ¥ fafus &t &
0T &F 7 g6t ¢ foew enfae € 3y, Rea, oroama s, gerga
gfaemt sfe. faer & @i gge @ & BRoT, dfds yomenr &
et @ w1 @1 gerar firer 3R a¥ 2010-11 & SRM dfdm &7 &
g H 21.38% @ 3G Es.

3% 1 f9adyol IRg gaes W 3T A & SR 3O TS
G MR &1 fowr fear 8 d% & I & 91 2010 &
%35,721.41 IR & WR H  9,441.59 TS DI Il §s (oI d
e AT 2011 B I45,163.37 IR B WR dd Ugd T JMd
26.43% fg X <@ . af & Rm shfaw fafaehezor & orifa
¥ 3R qaYd giaensti , ea.ea.oH s, HY vd Rea & & siarfa
TS FOT &7 R & died [T T

Share of CASA Deposits to Total Deposits during 2010-11
marginally declined to 35.42% from 35.68% in the previous year.
During the year, CASA increased by 24.15 % as compared to 23.01
% in the previous year.

6. Credit Deployment and Delivery

2010-11 witnessed a year of consolidation in line with recovery
of economy in western countries. Robust economic revival has
translated in to surging credit demand from various segments
viz. Agriculture, Retail, MSME, Infrastructure etc. With investment
demand remaining strong, demand for funds from the banking
system has received a fillip and credit growth from banking sector
surged to 21.38 % during 2010-11.

The Bank expanded its quality asset base in line with its policy on
prudent credit management. The advances of the bank increased by
%9441.59 crore from ¥ 35721.41 crore as on 31.03.10 to ¥ 45163.37
crore as on 31.03.11, registering a growth of 26.43%. During the
year, focused attention was given for accelerated lending under
Infrastructure, MSME, Agriculture and Retail sectors, strategically
with policy of risk diversification.

15000
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0

INFRASTRUCTURE ~ MSME

—=— 2009 -10
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RETAIL AGRICULTURE

d% 0T & &FaR Rl & AR qAHd JIaem, THEA.0H S,
1Y 31TE BT T < §U TUeeT ¥ & 28.41% DI JoT H I B
T Ty 7ot 7 31.15% 31 g5, Aoy glawmsit, trea.oa s, Rea
3R BT ol & HHLM: 40.09%, 20.12%, 14.05% TAT 32.39% I
3fg 8. Ree vd wRe wdfaum & siava d& & fafim wor Jeet
& e fauu & ATeom & 9 W gTg g5, 99 & AR a8 qed &
2 HITHNT H IS TR BT 9T TR &G BURT Hraferd &
"HOT A der wRnfud foar mar &, 9 we &1 3qe I & b a8
U4 U HIURC 391 & 98 Yo B JOMHSD URATSHIAT BT THE,
HedTd TUT FEHIHIT & A7 e foar S, g oar # fafere
FIquTaT &5 AT A 3T YA YT 39T ©.

d 7 2y MUeH & A1 U6 & R R THI Ji9eT Je d= &
Jecea ¥ fafdm faf¥re o7 f9oRoT eRam el & SiR7 uq@ el
7o, T3 faeell, §as, IH, PIAIHM Ud JEHSEE H BURE BRIAR
SIRATE (T & &) o 3itenfiies fod eRae (375 v ), vH.es.ey.
£ 31m & foe diga g dog, Rea 3amet & fae Rea s
YIRITU @el 2.

As per sectoral deployment of the Bank, lending to industry grew
by 31.15% compared to 28.41% in the previous year, led by
infrastructure, MSME, agriculture etc. The growth in Infrastructure,
MSME, Retail and Agriculture advance has been 40.09%, 20.12%,
14.05% and 32.39% respectively. The growth in credit was achieved
through intense marketing of various loan products of the bank
both under retail and corporate segments. During the year, bank
established ‘Debt Syndication Cell” at Corporate Office to leverage
vast opportunity in large value wholesale segment. The aim of the
cell is to syndicate high value quality projects of large and reputed
corporate houses, appraisal and syndication with participation. The
syndication cell has been equipped with all required infrastructure
facilities with specialized skills.

In order to provide single window facility with speedy disposal,
the bank opened various specialized credit outlets viz. Corporate
Business Branches (CBBs) & Industrial Finance Branches (IFBs)
at major centers viz. New Delhi, Mumbai, Chennai, Kolkata &
Ahmedabad, centralized processing centre for MSME advances,
Retail Asset Branches for retail products.
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Herya gforensii & fere wor

2010-11 & $Hard gorc # Hifdd Fergd Jiaemsii oI rafes fed
fear mr 8. 2011-12 # gaya Jiaemsit & fbe & fae 2.2,140
faferas & amae fosar mar & St 2010-11 F 23.3% 3UH &

37, FwToT & afcr s Ofcagar & 9 96 7 gerd glaenst &
foeirom & |fgaar 3 s fomar €. 2010-11 & ARM d& 7 gayd
TR &7 BT 34.65% BT ITGRNd 0T U fbar 8. qerya giaen
& T I & HIT 31.3.2010 & X 8,162.73 TRIS I FedX 31.03.11
BT 2. 11,434.89 TS BT T 3R 59 UBR a¥ &= a8 &F 3fg 40.09%
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Infrastructure Lending

In Union Budget 2011-12, physical infrastructure has been accorded
prime importance. An allocation of ¥ 2140 billion has been made for
infrastructural development in 2011-12, which is 23.3% higher than
in 2010-11.

With it's commitment towards nation building, the bank has been
actively participating in infrastructure financing. During 2010-11,
bank deployed 34.65% of the incremental credit to infrastructure
sector. The bank’s exposure to infrastructure sector increased from
3¥8162.73 crore as on 31.03.10 to ¥11434.89 crore as on 31.03.11,
thereby showing a YoY growth of 40.09%. The sectoral deployment
under infrastructure credit has been as under:
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JeM & olT TR 37a%ae 3UTT B 3T 2.
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eI feeneell & 3FR) & TR I d6dH< A 2011 BT % 6,389

XI5 B T, ST 32% B g it &, o & Ao e
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7.3 faere oYy wra Dt & 3ianfa yifer

d% 7 a¥ 2010-11 & AR X 1750 BRIS & @& B g [Ty
RUT AT & ST 116.31% 163 T11d ot Bl §U < 2035.413R18
faaRka foe. BT B K0T yaTE 2.1625.74 TRIS a1 &, 3T 46545
e feamt @ oW ugad gC yIe Y & fdia yem fear
T,

Credit Monitoring & Asset Quality

The Bank has put in place robust monitoring system for ensuring
good quality of assets.

7. Advances to Priority Sector:

7.1 The Bank has been consistently fulfilling its social obligations
in respect of priority sector lending. The Bank has adopted multi
pronged strategies during the year, to augment credit flow to this
sector. Priority Sector Advances of the Bank have thus increased
from the level of 11,718 Crore as of March, 2010 to 15,150
Crore as of March, 2011, registering a growth of 29.29%. The
ratio of priority sector advances to Adjusted Net Bank Credit stood
at 42.41% as of March, 2011 against the regulatory guidelines
of 40%.

7.2 Lending to Agriculture

In line with the Government’s Farm Credit Package, the Bank has
been continuously taking necessary measures to step up the flow
of credit to agriculture.

During the year, the outstanding under agriculture credit increased
from the level of ¥ 4,826 Crore as of March, 2010 (as per revised
guidelines of RBI) to ¥ 6,389 Crore as of March 2011, registering a
growth of 32%. The outstanding exposure under agriculture credit
represented 16.20% of the Adjusted Net Bank Credit.

7.3 Progress under Special Agricultural Credit Plan

The Bank has disbursed ¥2035.41 crore during the year 2010-
11 under Special Agriculture Credit Plan as against the target of
%1750.00 Crore thus registering 116.31% achievement. The flow of
credit to agriculture amounting to ¥1625.74 Crore was channelised
under direct agriculture benefiting 46545 new farmers.
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7.4 . rfeam dpfecaE

Y & SR §b T % 363.17 BRIS P 39942 U fha™ e &S (b
T ) SR fopu 2, F5 9 o & 3id o d gRT SR fobe T fova
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7.6 RA TRPR B 2% SATST IS DI & q&d foami B et
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pd Dl &
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@ e H AT BT THIAT FOT FATE TR A db T
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7.10 SHSR I Y 0
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AT &. PHSIR T DT S BT 310IH THANSIT et Sb TG BT
7.53% .

7.4 Dena Kisan Credit Cards

The Bank has issued 39942 fresh Kisan Credit Cards (KCCs)
involving credit assistance of ¥363.17 Crore during the year, taking
the total number of KCCs to 187165 involving an outstanding credit
of ¥2107.54 Crore, as at the end of the year.

7.5 Progress under Micro Irrigation Systems (MIS):

In order to promote Micro irrigation system, the Bank has financed
2941 farmers aggregating to 343.91 Crore for installation of Micro
Irrigation System in collaboration with M/s Gujarat Green Revolution
Company Ltd.

7.6 Relief to Farmers under Govt. of India’s 2% interest
Subvention Scheme:

Under the Interest subvention Scheme of GOI, the Bank has
provided ¥20.85 Crore under 2% interest subvention and 34.40
Crore under 1 % additional interest subvention for the crop loans
disbursed during 2009-10.

Similarly, Bank has credited ¥14.06 Crore under 1.5 % interest
subvention and ¥4.37 Crore under 2% additional interest subvention
for the crop loans disbursed during 2010-11.

7.7 Formation of Farmers’ Clubs :

The Bank facilitated formation of 117 new farmers clubs during the
year, taking the total number of farmers clubs to 1640 at the end
of the year. It is noteworthy to mention that Dena Singhali Farmers
Club promoted by our Mahuda branch of Kheda district in the state
of Gujarat has received the National Award at the Hands of Hon’ble
Union Finance Minister as the best performing Farmers Clubs in
the state of Guijarat.

7.8 Financing to Self Help Groups (SHGs) :

The cumulative number of SHGs credit linked by the bank increased
to 22364 involving ¥89.05 Crore as of March 2011 against 19461
SHGs involving ¥73.95 Crore as of March, 2010. During the year
4796 new SHGs have been credit linked by the Bank.

7.9 Credit Flow to Women :

The aggregate credit flow to women has increased from a level of
%1,579.35 Crore as of March 2010 to a level of ¥ 2,042.65 Crore as
of March, 2011, registering a growth of 29.34%. The outstanding
credit flow to women constituted 5.72% of the Adjusted Net Bank
Credit as against a target of 5% set by the Govt. of India. With
a view to create awareness on women empowerment, the Bank
organized a number of events on the International Women'’s Day.

7.10 Advances to weaker section

Consistent with the growth in priority sector advances, the advances
to the weaker section increased from a level of ¥2,049.54 Crore as
of March 2010 to ¥2,689.85 Crore as of March 2011, registering a
growth of 31.24 %. The Bank advances to Weaker Section stood at

7.53% of the Adjusted Net Bank Credit.
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7.11 g sfer / St o 31m

TITHGRAT & & 3iAid 31.ST/3.ST.ST. BT ARMT BT HeT TR AT,
2010 # ¥ 615.88 BRI AT 51 AR, 2011 H F¢hR T 753.15 HRIS &l
T, S 22.29% @7 g GTAT &, 37T / 3¥sTat & 310t &7 fewm
gTIfHaT &5 & T BT 4.97% ©.

7.12 .58 .en.e 5. AT & St MREY JRaT :

7Y Td &H JATHAT B HUIREd Job 0T UG T o [T 36 g
vd geH Tl & e ane MRS MY I (.S SreAeaE) o
TRET ATSHT & i TEHTRIAT PR &l 2. JaTHaT BT HR HH BT
& foe &% TREY e BT 50% A 987 IR IET €. auid H % 235.66
TRIS B 4550 AHET BT 3 AT o ded MRl JR&T Y& df T &.

7.13 qof el arior 3TarT farmt DSt (31157 37R. 0e1.Uh.09)

TToT &t § Rerael soal o fadureer &) & 358w ¥ §6
TSITIIT. A5 BT HraTadT R T 8. I & aRH 96 7
1766 TMeNfal BT T Tipd o 3R Teteme= af & kM &
OIS & 3 §b 7 50.46% ddb @& YT .

7.14 g St A

§p ROURURS Foil IO HA0T H da@g™d § HRAT
TATBRONY Fa1T fahT Tatr feifHes (31T 3R S 81 U) & 1 Toa e
¥ Ted e, el qun aftrfsas Fack &1 1S B FH & R’

& ga &R IET 2. D151 & 3iaiTd 504 @At dr 31.95 BRI
&1 fora yer fovar .

7.15 3109 AID] & HeI0T P ToT8 Fer F30 BT 15 Gt dRichH

RS TSI BT db B 3 50.11% Jhg &1 PRI T A
2010 & 2.932.89 RIS T dedx AT 2011 BT ¥1400.37 BRIS & T
2 o o5 artiedr &3 & 31T &1 9.24% 2.

7.16 TSR RTINS SRIGT

RA TRGR F TTHIOT TG T &3l H o a1 df AT & AT
F AR 3rawR giotd a7 & fow f&Aid 01.04.2008 F gmdyor
ISR Gt BIIHH (3R § S UT) T T Har AR AT (A

TH 31 d18) BT THATHR e HAT ISR ol BrRIghH (A 09 § i
aY) T T DS B YR D &,

d WIS INEH TAT WRIGNR Fold &I IRBR gRT YAt
ATST3T BT AT & Srafao" & T 8. d6 7 WA S
3fa 458 ETHITAT BT T 17.84 BRIS, GAT TUTSTA A UTH TRISTIR
TISHT & 3 3835 THTGT B ¥ 21.85 HRIT U9 Ul Sidr
IR TRISHTR TS (T 3 U 37K dT5) & dad 1152 et &
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IS & 3T % 25000/- T DY FARGITFT JITeT Ta= IR & &
AT 2011 T db ¥ 12568 ST 371 I B8 SIRY 5 &

7.11 Advances to SC / ST Communities

The aggregate level of advances to SC/ST Communities, within the
priority sector increased from a level of ¥615.88 Crore as of March,
2010 to ¥ 753.15 Crore as of March, 2011, registering a growth of
22.29%. The share of advances to SC/ST is 4.97% of the priority
sector credit.

7.12 Coverage under CGTMSE scheme:

The Bank has been participating under the guarantee scheme of
the Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Small and Micro Enterprises
(CGTMSE) to provide collateral free loans to small and micro-
enterprises. In order to mitigate the burden on entrepreneurs, the
Bank is also bearing 50% of the Guarantee fees. The total number
of cases covered under the scheme stood at 4550 with a guarantee

cover of ¥ 235.66 Crore, as at the end of the year.

7.13 Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance Scheme (GJRHFS):

In order to promote financing of dwelling units in rural areas, the
Bank has been implementing GJRHFS. Bank has granted loan to
1766 beneficiaries during the year and achieved the target to the
extent of 50.46 % under the scheme.

7.14 Dena Surya Urja Scheme:

The Bank is financing installation of solar water heating systems
for domestic, industrial and commercial sectors at soft rates of
interest under tie up arrangement with Indian Renewable Energy
Development Agency Limited (IREDA) under the Ministry of New
and Renewable Energy (MNRE) Resources. Under the scheme,
an aggregate loan amount of ¥1.95 crore has been extended to
504 beneficiaries.

7.15 Prime Minister’s 15 point Programme for the welfare of
Minorities:

The credit flow to minority communities has increased from the level
of ¥932.89 crore as of March 2010 to ¥1400.37 crore as of March
2011, registering a growth of 50.11% which constitutes 9.24% of
Priority Sector Advances.

7.16 Government Sponsored Schemes

The Govt. of India has introduced Prime Minister's Employment
Generation Programme (PMEGP) by merging Rural Employment
Generation Programme (REGP) and Prime Minister's Rozgar
Yojana (PMRY) for generation of employment opportunities through
establishment of micro enterprises in rural as well as in urban areas
effective from 01.04.2008.

The Bank is actively implementing government sponsored
schemes aimed at eradication of poverty and for generating self
employment. The Bank has sanctioned loans to 458 beneficiaries
under PMEGP amounting to 317.84 Crore and 3835 beneficiaries
under Swarnajayanti Gram Swarojgar Yojana amounting to ¥21.85
Crore and also granted loans to 1152 beneficiaries under Swarna
Jayanti Shahari Rozgar Yojana (SJSRY) to the tune of 36.62 Crore.

7.17 Dena General Credit Card (DGCC) Scheme:
The Bank is providing overdraft facility upto ¥25,000/- under this

scheme to borrowers of small means under rural and semi-urban
areas. The Bank has issued 12568 DGC Cards as of March 2011.
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7.18 Dena Bhoomiheen Kisan Credit Card:

The Bank has introduced a special scheme for tenant farmers, oral
lessees, share croppers, landless labourers etc. wherein credit
facility up to ¥25,000/- is granted for various agricultural and allied
purposes with a provision of consumption also. Under the scheme,
2560 Bhoomiheen Kisan Credit Cards have been issued during the
year.

7.19 Credit Counseling Centers/Financial Literacy:

RBI has directed the Banks to open Credit Counseling centers in
the respective Lead districts in order to increase the outreach to
the remote places and ensure banking services to the uncovered
population in the district with the coordination among Bank’s
branches to ensure 100% financial inclusion. Accordingly, in
pursuance with the guidelines of RBI to set up credit counselling
centres, Bank rolled out its 1st Credit Counselling centre at
Himatnagar (Dist. Sabarkantha) in Gandhinagar Region on
08.08.2007. Bank has opened Credit Counselling centres at
Palanpur, Mehsana, Bhuj, Himmatnagar and Gandhinagar in the
state of Gujarat and Silvassa in the UT of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.
The said centers are christened as Dena Mitras.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

7.20 Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs) :

Dena Bank has set up a Society known as Dena Rural
Development Foundation (DRDF) with a corpus of %¥1.50 crore
to take up various initiatives in Rural Development. DRDF in turn
has established 11 Rural Self Employment Training Institutes
(RSETIs) in its lead districts viz. (i) Ahmedabad, (ii) Kutch , (iii)
Mehsana, (iv) Banaskantha (v) Sabarkantha (vi) Patan in the
state of Gujarat and (vii) Durg, (viii) Dhamtari (ix) Mahasamund (x)
Raipur (xi) Rajnandgaon in the state of Chhattisgarh, where bank
is shouldering the responsibility of lead bank. These RSETIs have
organised 358 training programmes and have imparted training to
11727 youth for various activities during the year 2010-11.

7.21 Sponsoring Education of Girl Child :

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility, the Bank had
introduced a Nobel scheme viz. Dena Laxmi Shiksha Protsahan
Yojana to sponsor education of Girl students in the villages served
by the Bank. The scheme aims at providing a scholarship of
32000/- and %¥1500/- per annum to identified girl student belonging
to Below Poverty Line (BPL) family, to be selected from each of the
schools based on first and second rank respectively secured in 7th
Standard, from the villages under the command area of the Bank.
The Bank has so far provided scholarships to 2104 girl students
under the scheme.

7.22 State Level Bankers’ Committee (SLBC) Responsibilities

The Bank has been successfully discharging its responsibilities as
a Convener of SLBC for the State of Gujarat and also as Convener
of UTLBC for the Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli. The
SLBC has played catalytic role for the development of banking in
the State of Gujarat and Dadra & Nagar Haveli through constant
monitoring of various Priority Sector and developmental schemes.
The Bank has also been monitoring the credit flow to MSME,
auto, housing sectors under the stimulus package announced by
Government of India.
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7.23 Lead Bank Scheme

The Bank is successfully discharging its lead bank responsibility in
13 districts; of which 7 districts are located in Gujarat, 5 districts in
Chhattisgarh and one in Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

7.24 Regional Rural Banks sponsored by the Bank

The Bank has sponsored two RRBs namely Dena Gujarat Gramin
Bank (DGGB) in the State of Gujarat and Durg Rajnandgaon
Gramin Bank (DRGB) in the State of Chhattisgarh. Both the RRBs
sponsored by Dena Bank have a network of 257 branches spread
over 10 districts of Gujarat and Chhattisgargh. The total business
mix of these RRBs stood at ¥4051.51 Crore as of March 2011.
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2011, both the RRBs
together have earned net profit of ¥21.75 Crore (unaudited).

Core Banking Solution at Regional Rural Banks

In terms of the RBI / Government of India directives, Bank has
initiated the process of implementation of CBS in Bank’s both
Regional Rural Banks ( RRBs ) i.e. Dena Gujarat Gramin Bank

(DGGB) and Durg Rajnandgaon Gramin Bank ( DRGB ). As on 31st
March, 2011, 64 branches of both the RRBs have been successfully
brought under CBS platform and the remaining branches will be
migrated during the next three months.

7.25 Financial Inclusion Plan

The Bank has prepared a Financial Inclusion Plan (FIP) which
envisages road map for provision of banking services through
banking outlet in 770 villages allocated to the Bank by various
SLBCs under Lead Bank Scheme.

Under FIP, the Bank has covered 310 villages against target of 299
villages during 2010-11.

The plan apart, from provision of banking outlets, also includes
extension of facilities like “No Frills Accounts”, Inbuilt Overdraft
facility in the No Frills Accounts, Entrepreneurship Credit,
Remittance facilities and Micro-Insurance products.

7.25.1 Progress in coverage of villages:

Against the target of 4 villages to be covered by Branch / Satellite
Office model (SO), the Bank has covered 7 villages by opening of
Branches / Satellite offices.

Against the target of 295 villages to be covered by Business
Correspondent (BC) model, the Bank has engaged CSPs in 303
villages. Hand Held Devices (HHDs) have been supplied in all the
FI villages targeted during the year 2010-11.

7.25.2 Coverage of Households: During the F/Y 2010-11,
Bank has covered 136548 households against the set target of
137479 households, in the villages identified under the Financial
Inclusion Plan. Remaining households could not be covered as
mainly on account of non availability or unwillingness to open the
accounts.

7.25.3 No Frills Accounts: Total 1,53,193 No Frills accounts have
been opened in the Fl Villages by March 2011 against the annual
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target of 90000 accounts during 2010-11. However, the Bank as a
whole, the number of No Frills accounts is 9,01,140 as of March 2011.

7.25.4 Inbuilt OD facility in the No Frills Accounts: OD facility has
been extended by the Bank in case of 92,046 No Frills Accounts
against the target of 81,000 accounts during 2010-11. The total
number of inbuilt OD facility extended in the No Frills Accounts is
2,37,622 as of March, 2011.

7.25.5 Dena Kisan Credit Cards: As of March 2011, Bank has
achieved the target of issuing 1.87 lacs Dena Kisan Credit Cards
amounting to ¥2,107.56 crore, against projection of issuing 1.87
cards for ¥1540.20 crore under Financial Inclusion Plan.

7.25.6 Dena General Credit Cards: As of March 2011, Bank has
issued 13,000 Dena General Credit Cards amounting to 323.05
Crore, under Financial Inclusion Plan.

7.25.7 Training to Customer Service Points (CSPs): Training has
been provided to all CSPs. However, Bank shall provide training
to CSPs on continuous basis through pool of officers identified for
training. Bank also plans to organize 2-3 days intensive training
program.

7.25.8 FIP for Regional Rural Banks (RRBs): Dena Bank has
sponsored two RRBs namely Dena Gujarat Gramin Bank (DGGB)
in the State of Gujarat and Durg Rajnandgaon Gramin Bank
(DRGB) in the State of Chhattisgarh.

DGGB has been allocated 245 villages and DRGB has been
allocated 26 villages. In all, both the RRBs have been allocated
271 villages having population above 2000.

It was envisaged to cover 13 villages by DGGB and 10 villages
by DRGB by March 2011 and remaining 245 villages of both the
Banks to be covered by March 2012.

RRBs Branches have opened accounts of all households in
the villages proposed under FIP. The DGGB has opened 6807
accounts in 13 Financial Inclusion villages upto March 2011 and
DRGB has opened 4197 accounts in 10 FIP villages through
mobile van module.

7.25.9 FIP for the State of Gujarat:

A total of 3502 villages having population above 2000 were
allotted to Banks. It was envisaged to cover 1007 villages during
2010-11.

The Banks covered 1312 villages in Gujarat State out of which
918 were covered through BC model. Dena Bank has covered 214
villages against target of covering 188 villages in FIP for the year
2010-11. Banks have opened 3.51 lac accounts under Financial
Inclusion. (Dena Bank has opened 0.85 lac accounts).
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7.25.10 FIP for the Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar
Haveli:

30 villages having population above 2000 were allotted to Banks.
A total of 18 villages were proposed to be covered during 2010-11.

Banks have covered 13 villages upto March 2011 out of which 10
are through BC Model. Dena Bank has covered all the 8 villages
as proposed in FIP. Banks have opened 0.18 lac accounts in the
Union Territory of Dadra and Nagar Haveli.

8. Advances to MSME Sector

Bank organised MSME camps at 10 centers in 7 regions
namely Kochi, Raipur, New Delhi, Gurgaon, Faridabad, Kolkata,
Jamshedpur, Pune and Bhopal in order to market MSME advances
and giving necessary support to the Regions and branches in
decision making process and arriving at ‘ in principal concurrence’
in taking the proposals forward for sanction. Out of total 211
customers participated in various camps, 151 customers with credit
requirement of 3233 Crore for fund based limit and % 36 Crore for
Non Fund based limit were given in-principle approval subject to
final assessment and completion of usual formalities.

Regular training programmes were conducted for improving skills
in MSME sector.

During the year, the numbers of MSME designated branches were
increased from 68 to 95.

The Centralized Processing Centers (CPCs) setup at 17 centers for
speedy disposal of Proposals.

The incentive scheme for passing the certificate course run by 1IBF
on “SME finance for Bankers” has been introduced where incentive
of ¥5000 in addition to one time reimbursement of ¥1700 towards
examination fees and cost of books incurred by the officials paid to
the IIBF is available to encourage the Bank staff to acquire sound
knowledge in SME finance.

Strategies for boosting MSME finance:
Holding of MSME camps on on-going basis.

Identification of more MSME designated branches based on cluster
approach.

Enteringin to tie-up arrangement with reputed vehicle manufacturing
companies viz. Tata motors, TVS Motors etc to extend finance to
Small Road Transport Operators categorized under Micro and
Small services sector.

Financing to reputed NBFCs for on lending to MSME
sector.

Introduction of web based processing of proposal to cut down the
processing time & speed up the decision making.

Interest rate concession of 1% for Micro and 0.5% for Small &
Medium Enterprises are proposed to continue.
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All these measures resulted in growth of MSME Credit by 25.44 %.
In absolute terms, the SME advances increased from 34,938 Crore
as of March 2010 to 6,194 Crore as March 2011.

Credit to Micro Enterprises grew by 20.63% whereas credit to
Small Enterprises grew by 31.03%. In absolute terms, the Micro
Enterprises advances increased from 32,656 Crore as of March
201010 ¥3,204 Crore as of March 2011. Similarly, Small Enterprises
advances increased from 32,282 Crore as of March 2010 to 32,990
Crore as of March 2011.

9. Restructuring of Debts

Restructuring of debts is undertaken in case of the borrowers who
are not in a position to repay the dues of the Bank because of
market conditions, problems faced by them or because of any other
genuine purpose. During the year 221 accounts were restructured
having aggregate outstanding of ¥83.40 Crore.

In case of large borrowers who are enjoying limits ¥10crore and
above under consortium / multiple banking arrangements the limits
can be restructured under Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR)
Mechanism.

As on 31.03.2011, the total amount outstanding were to the tune of
%1213.14 Crore in 5162 accounts restructured.

10. Retail Credit

10.1 Retail Credit has been identified as one of the growth engines
for increasing credit portfolio of the Bank. The Bank has 10 Retail
Banking Schemes catering to various needs of a customer. The
schemes are modified from time to time keeping in view the
market scenario, customer requirements and feed-back from field
functionaries. Concerted efforts were made to popularise the retail
banking schemes through wide publicity.

Giving emphasis on increasing housing loan, the Bank has
approved 404 housing projects / builders. It will also ensure quality
of assets under housing loan.

During the financial year, the outstanding amount under direct
retail credit registered a growth of 15.77% showing an increase
of ¥611.63 Crore to reach the level of ¥4,488.88 Crore. The total
retail credit has increased from ¥5,379.91 Crore as of March 2010
to ¥6,135.59 Crore as of March 2011 registering growth of ¥755.68
Crore (14.05%)

10.2 Retail Asset Branches:

In order to take advantage of the potential available for enlarging
Bank’s retail lending portfolio and also to ensure better quality,
uniformity and speed in appraisal and sanctions, 12 Retalil
Asset Branches (RABs) viz. at Hyderabad, Bangalore, Chennai,
Lucknow, Pune, Surat, Bhopal, Bhandup (Mumbai), Juhu Vile Parle
(Mumbai), Kolkata, Ahmedabad and New Delhi are operationalised.
The Retail Asset Branches carry out all the functions relating to
retail advances and expected to ensure quantitative and qualitative
growth of retail business and also cut down multiplicity of functions
and efforts at branches. Besides, in order to maintain asset quality,
Regional Managers have been empowered to link the selected
branches at RAB centre, as they may deem fit, with the RAB at that
centre. Such linked branch will generate lead and all the functions
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till first disbursement shall be carried out by RAB and thereafter by
the lead generating branch.

10.3 Refinement of Schemes :

The Bank further refined its various retail schemes like Dena
Niwas Housing Finance, Dena Trade Finance, Dena Mortgage,
Dena Auto Finance schemes so as to make these schemes more
customer friendly.

10.4 Introduction of new schemes:

To enable our field functionaries to get one more retail product and
encash the available business potential, a new retail product namely
“Dena Doctor +” specially for medical practitioners for purchase of
medical equipments, set-up clinic / X-Ray Lab / pathological lab,
expansion / renovation / modernisation of existing clinic etc. was
introduced and operationalised.

10.5 Housing Finance:

Fresh disbursements to the tune of ¥595.35 Crore were made
during the year towards housing loan, enabling net increase
in outstanding credit from ¥3594.13 crore as of March 2010 to
%4015.98 Crore as of March 2011, registering a growth of 11.74%.

10.6 Mortgage Loan:

The outstanding under Mortgage Loan Scheme, increased from
%376.35 Crore. to ¥493.18 Crore as at the end of the year i.e. an
increase of ¥116.83 Crore (31.04%).

10.7 Education Loan:

Fresh disbursements to the tune of ¥34.75 Crore were made
during the year towards education loan. There is net increase in
outstanding credit from ¥289.38 Crore to ¥316.03 Crore as at the
end of the year i.e. an increase of ¥26.65 Crore (9.21%).

10.8 Trade Finance Scheme:

Outstanding under the Trade Finance Scheme, increased from
3246.59 Crore to 3461.46 Crore as at the end of the year i.e. an
increase of 3214.86 Crore (87.13%).

11. Investment

The Reserve Bank of India has over the past one year increased
the reverse repo to 5.75 and the repo rate 6.75 per cent. The
Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) has been raised to 6.0 per cent. RBI
has consciously tightened liquidity in the market. Hence, bank’s
borrowing from RBI have increased at the repo window. Due to
tight liquidity conditions and high inflationary pressure, the yields
remained on the higher side through out the year. The benchmark
yields were in the range of 7.40 percent to 8.20 percent.

Aggregate gross domestic investments of the Bank grew by
19.67% to reach ¥18,860.22 Crore as on 31.03.2011 from the level
of ¥15,760.14 Crore as on 31.03.2010.

The SLR securities have increased from %¥13,371.18 Crore to
%15,304.91 Crore i.e. an increase of 14.46% in line with the



o a1 S
“DENA BANK

Annual Report 2010 - 2011 | 33

gae faemR famst vd fageiwor MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

%\ﬁg% @I 3FE 85 SI.CIUET. %.50,626 TRIS H Teax < 62,897 PRIS

R TH.0A.3R. yfayfat % 2,388.96 TRIS F T6a< 2. 3555.31 BRIS
TP UgT T 37T 48.81% DI 3 g8, WIS 2011 H 2.335 TRIS B
3TR.3MTS 51.0% / IR.CTSI.UF / TH.OG.0H.S / TA.UH.3RS | fager
TAT STHT JHIOTYS # 21,110 TRIS B a9 & HROT IR THLA3TR.
yfeafaat & gfg & &R® & €. 3.3 81 .ews faer yrerfiresar &
HOTH HH BT IR B & [T 3701 & T TR 419 & 3R
el g,

d& WeRT gferafaal o femht # afsa amier &= @ §6
31T TSI 3§ g & fore SRR ufayfdt, HAa WER &
3ushHt 3R ®raRe aret # fHaer ) faoy o fea.

ISTHTY URETET I 31T 31 A1 2010 & T 1,140 PUS T SGHI
¥ 2010-11 & o0 2.1,246 T3 & T 371 fF 9 &X ¥ 3maR )
9.30% @ gfg cifdl 8. & o Fawr faar gom Fanfaa siemt
& 3R Faer faf¥e uRudadnsii # 3@ e 8. sreamafer oRuaadmsii

o yfofaat # fraer & uRommRasy ew.ed. / va. k.o e
D TN 3rater 4.71% & gedx 2.42% & TS,

T & SR Iod HUF arel e & BHROT a9 R gfawd 31 7
2010 P 6.87% T Feb< 31.03.2011 BT TAT aY P SR 7.06%
B ITATE.

12. iR R
12.1 faza anf¥fe Rt

2010-11 & 3ifaw fommdY 3 snafoe dfvas oRad= dwr . 3wRa
RIS 0T Hhe I Gae], RS a7 W & K0T Hdbe
T B B T8 Bs Tafera= IR Ue [ T, SgfHraar § ge-ge
foRTer yee™T & BRUT R 3R # fafdg ®R & foRig yae ge sik
Foremsy fivsr 7 TomTTcres T ufRacd= g3 3R Hea qa # arerifr e,

G TR IRV UHid & YU AR 3P 1€ g5 JAH &
BRUT ST & 3FIAM SREd &1 T . A ST geTe 30T HR
3R w3 § Feayut & 3R 3T 3R fova srfarew R dd 99
b Q.

IR wifes it 3 vger & Srafafyr aa o &9 & IR F Taa=
a1 oY forsy emaR diHar # 3fg SIRT @, G eE.SieR 126 U
R Pl &R W I D diad faea 3nidies gfg o feam & fore wata
& 3R 3o 3R FEraRt B9 B FUTEHT . 3 $' 7R # e
g T SR 150 ¥ 3P 89 R d%ad 3N gfg o1 ae7 aadmr
GUASGECINS

12.2 I aRgear:
ﬁ@ﬁ@@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁwﬁmwgwq%mé

3rheT 2010- BRART 2011 & SR Fafd § 37ard & 317erd
T 3T AT & SR IR °IeT BB TF & T 3, TH
37aTeT &b IR ol I 3T AT & ST = WRd &b 37T BT IGTIT

& Stafe Ueiferom 3ae, o @ arer 3 fafd ®f gerr &,

faq af 2010-11 & IR afa &1 Foi g7 e av & g
TH SfeR 158,497 Ao (% 7,53,384 TRI8) & AH&T g TH SR

increase in DTL. The DTL has increased from 50,626 Crore to
362,897 Crore.

NON SLR Securities have increased from 32,388.96 Crore to
%¥3555.31 Crore i.e. an increase of 48.81%. The increase in Non
SLR Securities is mainly due to increase in investment in RIDF /
RHDF / MSME / MSRE amounting to ¥ 335 Crore and Certificates
of Deposits amounting to ¥1,110 Crore invested in March 2011.
The RIDF investment is mandatory investment to bridge the
shortfall in Priority Sector Lending and is not subject to mark to
market.

Bank continued to be an active participant in Government
Securities auction. Bank concentrated in investment in Govt.
Securities, PSU and Corporate Bonds to augment its income from
Treasury.

The income from Treasury operations increased from 1,140
Crore for the year ended 31st March 2010 to 31,246 Crore for
the year ended 31st March 2011 i.e. increase of 9.30% on YoY
basis. The investments have been maintained in various maturity
mixes consistent with risk perceptions and investment policies of
the bank. The Modified duration of the AFS/ HFT portfolio declined
from 4.71% to 2.42% by investment in securities of short duration.

The yield on investments increased from 6.87% for 31st March 2010
to 7.06 % during the year ended 31.03.2011 due to investment in
high coupon bearing securities.

12. International Operations

12.1 World Economy:

The last quarter of 2010-11 saw the world change dramatically.
The evolving European debt crisis saw Portugal joining Ireland
and Greece in receiving major bail out plans worth billions of EUR.
Seemingly isolated Tunisian protests grew to varying levels of
upheaval throughout the Arab world resulting in changes in political
regime in Egypt and unrest across Middle East.

Further, an earthquake of unprecedented nature and
subsequent tsunami have left Japan’s outlook under a cloud of
uncertainty. Each of these situations is significant in its scope
and magnitude, and will have a long lasting impact on the world
economy.

The International Monetary Fund earlier warned of long-term oil
scarcity that could lead to persistently higher prices. At USD126
per barrel, oil prices are high enough to threaten world economic
growth, and expected to move higher. Prices over USD150 over the
next few months could lead to major set backs in global economic
growth.

12.2 National scene:

India’s foreign trade saw considerable improvement in the last few
months. Exports growth exceeded imports growth during April 2010
- February 2011 and trade deficit narrowed substantially during the
above period. Further, during the said period non-oil commodities
swelled India’s imports, while commodities including petroleum
products, textiles and autos had accelerated exports.

Cumulative value of exports during the financial year 2010 -
2011 were valued at $245,900 million (311,06,550 Crore) as
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245,900 ffeiaT (% 11,06,550 BRIS) AT STeh fUBer a¥ BF ST 31afer
@F gerr # STer § 37.50 ufcerd @ gfg ewfer 8. o ugel aR 2
Siatep f~arar 7 200 faferaeT a1 IR &< fera.

3 3raftr & foe smard free av & g v SfeR 258,746 fhfaaT
(%.12,28,944 TRIE) & eI .U EIeR 350,300 Tafera (2.15,93,865
PRIS) I ST STeR | 35.38 YTerd ol i a2nid &.

ararg Ratd d& 7 fafa # gfig & fov 3fas ain sikk fafma e
@I AT AE@YUT HRPT B 09 H TEAH BF . BRART 2011 T 13.30
yfcrerd gfg & |1 HRA & IR &7 BT 3 35590 ©. 590 7

qd H e 3rera vd fafie 30 uigioa fauarsii & dRoT fawa

MR # g1 & # ge nfafaféril & BRoT 39 § 358 T BT 2.
12.3 8§ &7 SR SfHT FRISR:

d% @ @mR! facen fofma =muR smad e o & gemr #
37500 FRIS (47.82%) &1 3G Gof HXA gL a1 fodt a¥ & SR
%. 23,000 FRIE IR IR {101 8. Y& Hraferd & ASThTy eear 3R
do faeeh fafma ik §@ & g oo oRarest o dedr &
d% H 3 & § gAR WD BT J4T0 JaH T &g 3IRaeT IRd &
TR W 38 UIfErgsa faosar 2mam R €. d6 3o 9 o & off
Sgd Aha &.

d% T T e AR B [ TS WD B! Sagadmdl &
3R 4l UhR & UR a1 31e YaH AT 8. TEDI BT I
faeen fafma omest & foae ufruefars fafma & gam o s
. frataet @1 gfoeias = = vud 3k foe gar # o frafa
0T yare fisar ST € aifes 9 siaRiia Aot # wuef o 5. §6
urs fafam! BT 3R 2! IR e B8 AT 8 JaT &l 2.

wRarg Rerd d grr Fata faa & foe arfva s = ggmdar faa
¥ 2010-11 & SR T 3 FFafadt &1 I of T8 & I I8 arg
o Y & e mar g

do srfarit Jamsit wR Y 3T e dfed @R @ & 3R sifar
T4 YRAT g & AThAT DI SMaeaHarit ® g0 B & 8 T
g8 ol # AT wa @ &

& Efgar e, ot i 7 e 3tk g T § uaRwer

e, AT & AT DU JER0T IR 3 sferaxt Aregwi
sfaTraar & s7sic gob UoT Jfaen & 37 @ &

13.3711R ToTaRT 3R agel YO :

d% = I B9 3§ 38T gRT 3 Ha [ T 31yaqd st
& TMG9[E a9 2010-11 & AR SR VTG TAT BA.ULeye e H
yerar frenes far. va. o vydem # 8@ &1 e, ga & & o3
Ul U 8T Wl & 3999 & [T THIa! YT, SHsiiar uaral &> #egH
& aqget, IR sifefaw anfe & siarfd dRarE & A I Adha
T H IR 3T 3R BI! AT H WAl BT 399 3. TF U1 T P
TH B & foe 6 gRT 3oRI T |icha 3urat & a7 gifvad fear
T 2 o U.0Y. 0T TR AT g 8.

THY B H, Fobel TAUIT 31 AT, 2010 & % 641.99 ARIS I T 200.25
PRIS Tehx 31 AT 2011 BT T 842.24 FRIS &l TIT. S BT Tdbel BT

against $158,497 million (X7,53,384 Crore), registering a growth
of 37.50 per cent in Dollar terms over the same period last year.
It is the first time that exports have crossed the $200
Billion mark.

Imports for the same period stood at $350,300 million (315,93,865
Crore) as against $258,746 million (312,28,944 Crore), registering
a growth of 35.38 per cent in Dollar terms.

RBI had identified global demand and the exchange rate as the
two most important drivers of export growth. The outlook for India’s
trade sector looks bright with a growth of 13.30 per cent as of
February 2011. This needs to be moderated on account of the
recent developments in world trade in the wake of political unrest in
the Middle East and various other natural calamities.

12.3 International Banking Business of the Bank:

Merchant Foreign Exchange Business Turnover of the Bank
crossed 323,000.00 Crore during the current financial year
registering a growth of ¥7,500.00 Crore (47.82%) over the previous
year. Treasury Branch at Head Office handles Inter bank foreign
exchange and money market operations of the Bank. The Bank
is having 38 Authorised Dealer branches spread across India for
delivery of services under this segment to our customers. The Bank
is also very active in the inter bank markets.

The Bank offers a wide variety of Trade Finance products to suit
every customer’s requirement for carrying out current account
transactions. Customers are also provided competitive exchange
rates for their foreign exchange transactions. Export credit is
extended to exporters in Rupee as well as in foreign currency,
at competitive rates so that they can compete in the international
markets. The Bank also extends Gold Card Scheme to eligible
exporters on liberal terms.

The Interest Rate Subvention for export finance announced by RBI
was extended to all eligible exporters during FY 2010-11 and the
benefit was passed on to them upfront.

The Bank is also giving its focused attention to NRI services and has
opened NRI Cells at select branches to cater to the requirements of
NRIs and Persons of Indian Origin.

Hassle free remittance facilities are offered to NRIs through
delivery channels such as Dena IndiaRemit, Western Union Money
Transfer and through a Rupee Drawing Arrangement with UAE
Exchange Centre, Abu Dhabi.

13. Asset Quality & Recovery Management

The Bank repeated its commendable performance in maintaining
asset quality and NPA management during the year 2010-11
also, irrespective of the unprecedented slippages experienced
by the banking industry in general. The Bank’s performance in
NPA management is directly attributed to the concerted efforts
made for upgradation of recently slipped NPAs, recovery through
compromise settlements, action under SARFAESI Act etc which
resulted in improving cash recovery and upgradations to a
considerable extent. The proactive steps taken by the Bank in NPA
reduction ensured that level of NPAs is restricted to the minimum
possible.

The Gross NPA, in absolute terms, increased by %¥200.25 Crore
from %641.99 Crore as on 31st March 2010 to ¥842.24 Crore as on



a1 S
1 DENA BANK

Annual Report 2010 - 2011 | 35

gae faemR famst vd fageiwor MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Ul € 3T 31.03.2010 & 1.80% ¥ &ITST T&HR 31.3.2011 BT 1.86%
2 T 2. d &1 frae TAdE 31 3 2011 BT 1.22% o7 57 P 31 3
2010 T I8 1.21% 7. TAY ¥ ¥ {93 07 OV T 121.42 RIS TedR
31 9T, 2010 & T 427.53 PRIS b WR I 31 AT 2011 HI % 548.95
TR & TAT . YIaU HaxaT U (faddyul dee @rr s/ )
74.62% & 31T 70% 1 fafammes nagadsar 3 3ifers &

31st March 2011. Gross NPA ratio of the Bank increased marginally
to 1.86% as on 31.03.2011 from 1.80% as on 31.03.2010. The Net
NPA ratio of the Bank stood at 1.22% as on 31.03.2011 as against
1.21% as on 31.03.2010. Net NPAs, in absolute terms increased
by ¥121.42 Crore from 3¥427.53 Crore as on 31st March 2010 to
3¥548.95 Crore as on 31st March 2011. Provision Coverage Ratio
(including prudential write off) stood at 74.62% i.e. well above the

regulatory requirement of 70%.
& PIST H in crores)

A March 2010 | 3=t March 2011
The 3TTIH Gross Advances 35721.41 45163.37
TaheT TAUIT Gross NPAs 641.99 842.24
e A ¥ FoHeT AT % 1.80 % 1.86 %
Gross NPA to Gross Advance %
f+act 3173\ Net Advances 35462.44 44833.21
9 TUIT Net NPAs 42753 548.95
foraer 3t & frae edie 121 % 1.22%
Net NPA to Net Advances
yTaE A st 3urd (fgaayof e 4 enfhe) 78.61 % 74.62
Provision Coverage ratio (including Prudential write off)

Toe g 2010 - 11 H 2191.05 BRI & 3R @il § 370 oY
3171.12 TR0 gC. 9@ 7 ¢ @ ford T @Gl # fUed o
% ERE DI T TYA 2.125.54 TRIS B g1 § 9 I & aRH
%134.58 TS B TN DI JATh 37T AP O T B I &.

The cash recovery during the year 2010-11 was at ¥ 191.05 Crore
and upgradation in the accounts was ¥171.12 Crore. The Bank
recorded an all time high recovery in written off accounts during the
year at ¥ 134.58 Crore as against ¥ 125.54 Crore recorded during
the previous year.

® PRSI 7 in crores) (X in Crore)

Href March 2010 | |1l March 2011

Recovery in Write Off

U fAUST Fresh Slippages 629.93 758.69
Jbhc a'ﬂﬁf Cash Recovery 195.43 191.05
39394 Upgradation 228.42 17112
Jec @I ST T @it # aget 125.54 134.58

19.2 37 ToTER § YUR & fere uge

Y & AR, FESaT MUeRT gRT a6l Tt @ g6 & foe T
UgE el # JEIRAT &1 THT dxeh o 0 T Bl I W foery
& feam T gee @ S T @il § 3 & o faery awge
I garr e, & srafaar 3R ugE Ha § ager $u 3R
e 3retert FHafid siavieT W Smafad @ T 3T v O T anen
AEI H aeN YO df HRA B b 0T GEd fhd T
sl & foe afremr Frisd Fafia smaR w smarfea fa
T, &g BTl B UH.UY.T. ST BaT gIRT R R SR R T
BN B B H g AN B FHIET BT T5. BIC TIUT FIRSASA
R 9T &1 Team 7T d1 §6 7 (% 2.00 AT A o IHIT aTet) BIS
JTRGBATST & foTe foRIy eharit Fwsitar Hue arsT &7 o6 v
3R FeaR 3 feid 31.3.2011 T TR T 7T

d% = af @f sifaw fomdr & 2.25.00 @ 96 & BIC T W
forRy T @l # a_gell b feTe e axgett S aerd . f5d
THeRaY, 3 =1 STHAM 370 & AR 9979 @Al H X 37.98 TRIS

B TG B

19.2 Initiatives on Improvement in Asset Quality

Special attention was given to recovery in NPAs during the year by
designating recovery facilitator's at all major centres to augment
recovery efforts through negotiated settlements. Special recovery
drives were introduced for recovery in written off accounts. Recovery
Camps and Lok Adalats were organized at Regional Offices and
major centres on regular intervals. Training programmes were
conducted for identified officers for handling recovery management
at high NPA branches on a regular basis. The progress made
in reduction of NPAs was reviewed on a regular basis by NPA
Recovery Cells at Regional Offices. Attention was also paid to the
small NPA borrowers and the Bank had extended Special One
Time Settlement scheme for Small Borrowers (outstanding up to
% 2 lacs) by another year i.e. up to 31st March 2011.

Bank also launched an intensive recovery campaign for recoveries
in small NPA a/cs with outstanding upto %25.00 lacs in the last
quarter of the year. As a result Bank was able to recover % 37.98
Crore covering 9979 accounts during the campaign period.
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d% 7 a¥ & R fafim &a 7 1526 agen IRt & smaire foar
Forf 21340 3uREAT3T AT forar. o & R §9 agen fafert &
AqTETH T 19.52 FRIS & 2032 TAUIT Wrat T FuerT foar mar v
%.34.11 PRI B 1242 WAt BT 3997 fHaT T,

AT 2011 BT TAT 99 P SR Sb B Th IR FHATT FueH
AT & 3T ThaRI qHsiar MueH & fow 2.93.13 TR ®F
FHSAIT M7 B PoeT 4145 Wl R TqaR foeam ma, 573 2100.88
TRIT B Tha Il g5 o4 qd aut § SrIAIEd v R Fwsian
URdTg 4T 2THeT €, Sidies AR 2010 BT THIE aY &b IR 4246 Tl
W fqar foar mar o f5= Tusitar fer 2.91.41 &8 & o 3R
FTH THE I 2.83.31 FRIS DI §% .

14. faftre Same / gamn aftrer aiftfram

14.1 dot / forir wvemait ik snfe gafsfafor dufsat 1 eedie
o1 faea

yRaa Red §6 gRT f&aid 23.04.2003 T2T 13.07.2005 BT SR
fope e feenfe=ll & 3rgaReT #, 96 7 a9 2010-11 & SR 6 TF
Ul € a1 AAdar SR W .28.70 BRI b (018 AT YAHTOT BT
H I &,

14.2 TRGTEI sifaferom, 2002 & 37efi= avgen :

forirar snfar wferegfoason 3R gie ve ufaefar fea ad=, 2002
(TREBTER) ST & 3fdvid o 07 € @l § a¥gel & e 8 =
% 357.89 @RI P M ATl UIF Wil § 1160 Afed iRy fddr, af
2010-11 & SR db 2244 @Al @4 9 @ W onfyer &, 5
Tfew freer af SIRY f5dr ™ o) § 2 181.99 FRIE B R agA
B H A% <&

14.3 Al 3TETeTd & HTEAH | TYel! :

fafere Srame miftrerT srfeif~am & sidqifa nfad eiid sraTerd & Area™
& faarel & g wmree 3R 30 gHddarsh I agen A & fag
I BT el 3Tl B TIRT BT & 68 TAT BT &
forRT g1 qd vd J&ba & a6 3dfq 9% TR Ud IR a8 aRR
STl I HUe &g T S 9. a9 2010 -11 & aR™ dab = (et
aut # fuce e AW A enfie) 3847 Wl H % 4.36 AR aYA
o

144 =1 qyel sAftrexor / fafde =amarea § TR el &
AT ¥ TN

31.03.2011 @1 §9R d& § 2.1385.39 TRIS @ I & 2393 ardr
aR @Ta fafim ot axget siftra<on fafea =arareat # dfea &
TAT 2.869.99 IRIS W F 1819 et @t fafira or axgenr
sftra=ot Rafaer =marerdt # dfaa €. 9@ = 3w arer aRR o
femigsa @rdl § af & R %.65.78 FRIG B N TG @,

14.5 sitenfie 3iR facitar gafiator §id ame (@remewamr):

fcere Hed gRT srgHITed Il AT & 39K, SI3TEUHaTR At
BN THTT B b [T T3 oot drafea # vh Aisd SfUdRT o
UE BT TS 2. 9§ & SR, THeid, SIBMSTHaR gRT 9ay e
ST/ T 3TR 97 T Ui 9 ST & PRUT 7 AT of ger f&ar mm

Bank conducted 1526 recovery camps in various Regions during
the year, which were attended by 21340 borrowers. A total of 2032

accounts were settled for ¥ 19.52 Crore and 1242 accounts were

upgraded for ¥34.11 Crore during the year through such recovery
camps.

A total of 4145 accounts were considered under compromise
settlement for an amount of ¥ 93.13 Crore under bank’'s OTS
scheme during the year ended March 2011 against which a cash
recovery of ¥ 109.88 Crore including OTS approved in previous
year/s was effected as against 4246 accounts with compromise
amount of ¥91.41 Crore with cash recovery of ¥83.31 Crore effected
during the year ended March 2010.

14. Legal Services/ RTI Act

14.1 Sale of NPA amongst Banks / Fls and ARC:

In Terms of the RBI Guidelines issued on 23.04.2003 and
13.07.2005, the Bank has during 2010-11, sold 6 NPA accounts to
ARC for 328.70 Crore on cash basis.

14.2 Recovery under SARFAESI Act, 2002:

For expediting recovery in NPA accounts under the Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of
Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI) during the year 1160
Notices were issued in the eligible accounts involving an amount of
¥357.89 Crore. The Bank was successful in recovering an amount
of ¥181.99 Crore in 2244 accounts (including those where notices
were issued during previous years) during the year 2010-2011.

14.3 Recovery through Lok Adalats:

For an early resolution of disputes and recoveries from its defaulters
through Lok Adalats constituted under Legal Services Authorities
Act. The Bank endeavors to arrange maximum Lok Adalats wherein
both pre and post litigation i.e. suit filed and non suit filed accounts
can be placed for settlement. The Bank has recovered ¥4.36 Crore
during 2010-11 (inclusive of recovery made in the cases settled
during previous years), in 3847 accounts.

14.4 Recovery through Suits in the Debt Recovery Tribunal /
Civil Court:

As of March 2011, the Bank is having 2393 Suit Filed accounts in
various DRT / Civil Courts involving an amount of ¥1385.39 Crore
and 1819 Decreed accounts in various DRTs / Civil courts involving
an amount ¥869.99 Crore. During the year, the Bank has recovered
of ¥65.78 Crore in the above suit filed and Decreed accounts.

14.5 BIFR Cases:

In terms of Recovery Policy approved by the Board, a Nodal Officer
stationed at New Delhi, has been identified for co-coordinating the
BIFR Cases. During the year, 7 cases were removed on account of
closure of accounts due to compromised, rejection / abatement of

reference by BIFR/ asset sold to ARCs. The Bank has recovered
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2. d% 7 2 30.27 TS B IGH IYA DI a¥ B AR 2.4.25 FRIS
BN ST BT 1 AT AT / T SST TT. 9 &b 37 H SIS Th3TR /
UU3TISUBR3TR & THET X 21.91 BRIS & 24 U dfdd 2.

14.6 o1 & fUSR F1 3fafam :

I & ISR & fafTam 2005 & dEd YR & AR A
g e R fqaR &R &g 96 7 150 A gaT AUSRT Tl
BT TD G BRI B T fovan &, & 7 59 A o=
ISR /| HAT A o BRI & Fofal & Raars smier &
foeH & foe Srives s @1 s TieR! & w9 § Fgd
foan 2. feenfdent & s/uem # d% 7 gRafefar sfteRT @1 O
g fear &.

ay & AR I B JAT PR FfAFEH & T8 788 A
T U T WS & 3FFIR 794 3mdeEt (fUeer af & 29 3maed
Y enfHen) &1 Fuer fovar war. af & SR ande wiftreRY 31 198
3UYET UT G o & AMesT & 3R 180 3Mrat (fUeet a¥ & 07
319 o7 =ntien) &1 FHuer foar mar.

15. TROR! PRITR

WHR I HaUd o-eAl B B 8g 2006 I JI= S
ORI HRITR TTHRT HRIRT €. 3T TTe IR , g TRPR & [ew
3CTEH TIeh U HaT % B asgell, § Y vd Hifas Ars & Areom
¥ fafte 50 RBRT 16 ol a1fvifsad a= o agen, &s vd Isa
TREGR TLHINAT BT UL YA, 37 HACRT & @Il BT IGRETT
fores foTe EART &% ATHd 2, ToRT, FeRTg U4 Baire isat §
&% T 150 TRERT & ATHIY BRIGR FHEHT, B TRBR B 3R
J O1.97.0%, IR RS §3d TS0, 3TR.§1.311S a1UsT / §Id §1Us
HRIGR FHEHT, IR, R T FERTG TRBRI o 18 I
HRIGR HAT 37TE TH TR & IRBRT BRIAR [ehATheTd e
& g9 39 It § fafie WReRT sRIER fammant & fae miter
TS R & TITRA & o1 & 37151 e UTIIdR YTat &l §31T &.

af & SR § 7 TeRTE § TeRTE fam %, Hara fam s vd geg
I PR B 3 YA DI FIaT BT ABEAIED DA (BT &.

&b, T TUT b ®U H 31RgeT YR TR U= FHT IeEr3it § qr ay.o,
IR AR qord ArsT 3R 9.R & / 2d a8 Irs=r b hardor
W P B IET &

d% 1 R H A1EER J[STHIY UF HERTE, H T3 5Ty & fag
it g o @ fod JoRTa Ud WERTY WRBR @ 3R ¥ 13
UHR B I5Ted Il MHE &. J& T 379 % Ig HRIGR el ot
T &, TR 159 & e AgeR ey o faftaq fawr, wiemor
foram mar 2 3R 97 Frafeas & foe daR 2.

§ 7 TMERT v TR gJell, WY YNNG & U9 3R UG TRPR
OIS FRI DY TN B (¢T8 FFATG U [T &. 319 db §9RT db
IR TSI TRDR b (e7e fohel UhR &b IaTed T e U TR gdell
g 2ntad &7 & o aiforsg ot & age B & o witgd
TET 8.

d F 31 313K, gUT & MR, & fore §-afds & fore srgees uma
5O & AT 379 3T Pt DI Bl uichar ¥ 2.

sum of ¥30.27 Crore. 1 new case / reference was added during the
year involving an amount of ¥4.25 Crore. At the end of the year,
24 cases involving ¥21.91 Crore are pending before BIFR/AAIFR.

14.6 Right to Information Act:

Bank has designated State Public Information Officers & Central
Public Information Officers for dealing with requests received from
Citizen’s of India under RTI Act, 2005. Bank has also designated
the Executive Director as Appellate Authority to dispose the appeals
received against the decision of SPIO/CPIO. In compliance of the

Guidelines Bank has also appointed Transparency Officer.

During the Year the Bank has received 788 requests under RTI
Act, and disposed off 794 requests (inclusive 29 requests carried
forward from previous year) as per the norms. The Appellate
Authority has received 198 Appeals and disposed off 180 Appeals
(inclusive 7 Appeals carried forward from previous year) as per
norms during the year.

15. Government Business

The Government Business Department is functional at Head
Office since 2006 and is dealing exclusively in Government related
Transactions. All types of Government business activities such
as collection of Direct taxes, Central Excise & Service Taxes
for the Central Government, collection of commercial taxes for
various state Governments through e-payment as well as physical
mode, doing Pension payment of Central and State Government
pensioners, maintaining accounts of those ministries for which
our Bank is accredited, handling Treasury Business of Central
and State Governments in the states of Gujarat, Maharastra and
Chhatisgarh, handling PPF, Senior Citizen Savings Schemes, RBI
Bonds / Savings Bond on behalf of Central Government, as well
as doing Franking business for Rajasthan, Gujarat & Maharastra
Government. We are trying to get authorization of various
Government Business activities in those states too where we are
not accredited to do the same as on date.

During the year, Bank has implemented the facility of E-payment of
Maharastra Sales Tax, CST and VAT in Maharastra successfully.

As a new endeavor Bank is working on centralization of PPF,
Senior Citizen Savings Scheme and RBI / Savings Bonds scheme
in all the branches through out the country.

Bank has received authorization for the Cyber Treasury in Gujarat
and Virtual Treasury in Maharastra which includes collection of 13
types of Revenue collection on behalf of Gujarat and Maharastra
Government, most of them have remained untouched hitherto by
our Bank. Cyber Treasury Module for the state of Gujarat is duly
developed, tested and ready for implementation.

Bank has also obtained approval for collection of commercial
taxes from DADRA & NAGAR HAVELI, the Union territory & UP
Government. Hitherto, our Bank was not authorized to collect any
type of revenue for UP Government and commercial taxes for the
UT of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

Bank has received approval for e-franking from IGR, Pune for
Maharastra and now is in process of implementing the same.
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ITH T TR T $Had dh B UED! DI (AT IR A B
Jigem ye™ &R &, afed d& B 37T A FeTd €.

faumT, I v R SOR Uit@ERal I U ged YOTel! (U9 56
T9) IR B IR IET 8. 59 YOTTel! & aad= § 63 el ¥ [ STarer
B B T SHDT AR 19 3 IRETeH U2 Td CL3AT & 90 7
faaRa ifer @t g ufagfd gRreea s

& oF 99 I8¢ Ud $gT W U GIEE IucTe SHRAT T 2.

oAl a7 3 fadl TTferdRI I Tt 3ol of gTerfiadr &
3R WR 2y e far mar .

¥ & SR TRBRT BRITR I 37 % 6.53 BRI I % 9.04 FRIS db
§¢ TN & Sfe af & AR 38% gl qfer & PoRE ¥ dEaR
TSTIY, HERTEY, § aef37el IAThIY, IR JeeT U WK gaett § qrforsg
TR D TN B YMUBR YT 84 I 3D HAaaT R SARI 3T
3R 31t g

16. @ drmr

37 & ITeT oY et

d% 7T 999 & ¥ § 30 Tedi B fafiE ydR @ foxira A
e PR U TR 3T & JelH B 36aed I 377 U&l 3Tal T,
a7 vd =ggare et & faaror & fraraar & e 8.

RT3 B8 TGl BT faa=or

d =T 31U QAREIST & HIEAH I Rl el b (qaR0T & oig 14
U Rl el Bl SN TS Hui-ar (€ eH HN) I Ao

fauorT Toais fhar .

& 3erel o1 faeRor

d% 7 | TTREE # UED P THI ST IS I PR &G
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d af 1998 F 3T UTEd! BI Y1 SSTR et 3 femfoiest Jam
UGS PR IET . T HaY H TP Y@ YT b I H db - 1 db
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SET3T F AU U R el & PHANRAT A 597 Gael § STl
A &g W 9RT § §6 & 160 3 317 siftraiRar o gferféd fasar

T & 3R 319 9 faftradq gfora feuforet sar siftart €

All the above endeavors will not only facilitate the Banks’ customers
to pay various revenues but also add to the income of the Bank.

Department is Working on ‘Single Window System’ [SWS] with
Railway and Tele- Communication authorities. This system will
ensure smooth functioning and quick reimbursement of the amount
disbursed as pension & TOC on it instead of 63 centers at present.

Pension Portal was made available at the Bank’s web site and
Intranet.

Complaints received from the pensioners or any other authority are
taken on priority and resolved at the earliest.

Income from Government Business is increased from 36.53 Cr.
to ¥9.04 Cr. and registered a growth of 38% during the year. The
authorization of Cyber Treasure, in Gujarat, Virtual Treasury in
Maharastra, Collection of Commercial Taxes in U.P and Dadra and
Nagar Haveli will further increase our income after implementation
of the same.

16. Bancassurance
Sale of Third Party Products

The Bank has taken up the activity of distribution of third party
products viz. Insurance and Mutual Funds, with a view to provide a
wide range of financial services to its customers as a value addition,
as also to augment its non-interest income.

Distribution of Mutual Fund products

The Bank has strategic marketing alliance with Asset Management
companies of 14 major Mutual Funds for distribution of their mutual
fund products through the Bank’s branches.

Distribution of insurance products

The Bank has an existing Bancassurance tie up with the Life
Insurance Corporation of India for distribution of their life insurance
products, which enables our customers to avail of their entire range
of life insurance products at all branches.

The Bank has also tied up with the Export Credit Guarantee
Corporation [ECGC] as a result of which our exporter clients can
avail of their export insurance policies at the Bank’s branches itself.

The Bank’s Board has given approval for tie up with the United
India Insurance Co. Ltd. which would enable the Bank to offer
general insurance products also to the customers. The tie up would
be operationalized in the first quarter of the financial year 2011-12.

17. Depository Participant Services

Bank has been extending Depository Services to its customers
since 1998 from Capital Market Branch. As a major initiative in this
regard Bank has purchased a new Back Office software. With the
Back office software in place Bank has now extended the services
from 90 Branches. In order to create awareness among the staff
more than 160 officers of the Bank all over India have been trained
and are duly certified Depository Services officers.
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TS SATST 3T | 24.26 % BF I 3.

e MR 310 H TG T 65.67 TS (21.21%) I forasT ag Ard
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ST HT HRUT GIRT UL [dohed BT dra=aa JdT UZCr A1

7 gfg & BRoT HHARAT B T & 34.52 % DI gha o
18.3 FHgET fagearsor
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a¥ & AR d& 7 e @ ford e SiE § agfaat ) SR &
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TST TN T BH BT W b BT ST i & B 12, Fec @Mt
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e 9 & &

Bank is in the process of implementing of On-line trading and ASBA
facilities for the customers of the Bank and is expected to generate
Non interest income for the Bank.

18. Income and Expenses

18.1 Income

Total income of the Bank for the year has increased by 3968.38
Crore. (21.06%) and stood at ¥5567.37 Crs. as compared to an
Income of ¥4598.99 Crore earned during the previous year.

Interest income of the Bank has increased by 25.51% to record a
level of ¥5033.53 Crore.

Growth in interest income of the Bank was achieved mainly due to
an increase in the interest income from advances i.e. by 26.95%.
The achievement could be attributed to the strategies adopted by
the Bank by concentrating on high yielding credit viz. SME, Retail
& Agriculture, etc. and re-pricing of bulk corporate loans. Interest
income from investments showed an increase of 24.26%.

Fee based Income has increased by %65.67 crore (21.21%) from
3309.58 crore as of March 2010 to ¥375.25 crore as of March 2011.

18.2 Expenses

Total expenses has registered an increase of 15.57% over the
previous year. This was mainly on account of increase in Staff
Expenses 34.52% due to implementation of second pension of
option and increase in Gratuity limits.

18.3 Profitability Analysis

Bank’s net interest income (NII) has increased substantially by
60.30% and stood at ¥1763.37 Crore as compared to ¥1100.03
Crore posted during the previous year.

The Bank has continued to give thrust on recoveries in written off
advances during the year, which resulted in recovery of 3134.58
Crore under this segment. During the previous year, the recovery
under this segment was ¥125.54 Crore.

18.4 Operating Profit

Operating profit of the Bank has registered an increase of 45.59%
and stood at ¥1223.79 Crore as compared to ¥840.58 Crore posted
during the previous year. This growth is after providing for second
pension option and increase in gratuity limits.

18.5 Net Profit

With the Bank’s focus on containing interest costs, looking for
opportunities of high yielding advances and a major thrust on
recovery in written off accounts, the Bank has successful in posting
19.63% rise in Net Profit during the year. The Net Profit of the Bank
stood at 3611.63 Crore as against ¥511.25 Crore posted during the
previous year.

A comparison of income, expenses and provisions & contingencies
with the previous year is given hereunder:
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® FRIS | T in crore) (3 in crore)

fda=or Particulars fda.Fyo9-10 | fda.Fy10-11
SI15T 3T Interest Income 4010.36 5033.53
R &TST 3T Non Interest Income 588.63 533.84
el AT Total Income 4598.99 5567.37
TaT AT Interest Expenses 2910.33 3270.16
aR=erTa T Operating Expenses 848.08 1073.42
el T Total Expenses 3758.41 4343.58
IR @ Operating Profit 840.58 1223.79
YTIEN U9 3B HHATE Provisions & Contingencies 329.33 612.15
f3ae @my Net Profit 511.25 611.63

19. fouor uger:

ag 2010 -11 & SR U, SATCI-Id Td 3M3CER Hifsar & Aregw
I gAR 9 b faf¥rg 3l vd Ars13T &7 ad TR fear T3,
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CIRR | ITERT H {0 TR B BIIH I &b 37eldT, IR || Td SR
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oo mar.

d 7 37 Far=y Tre o {6 gag § ufvaw vd dgd el ®
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TERTE U9 ToRTd &3t # fasten & faat & ¥ #fem grr s aar
dfen ot foar mn. 36 & foemm 479 g 3R fied 7o W
fosmom 9t 7 geffa fedr mr.

T T Ge & aR # O geaRYy faemeE, g qer it

foaRoT & HIETW & AU® YR fhar T4,
20. sifEw yae=

20.1 3 7 IRTIEG SNGH Y€ JUTer 3R gHIaT grar wnfud
forar 2, foa R anfed shiftew ydeq &) e afufa grr fFRer
G ST €. 3NN TTdT (3TTehT), TG SNNGH Tee (T3TRUH)
vg ufRaer e SRaw Uaer (M3TRUAR) IR Taeq Rk afafgar
PAID i1 TSE JOTelT b {3 3 . d = uRaATed sirfad
ged! W &M died B & foe a9 Foae srafaar gor gem
BT & TgHrT 7 SiRad geerm! B € gge T o 2 3R 396 fae
316707 B TR B 2.

20.2 96 - IRIC-Il AFEST & 3T TF F0T 3R TSR STRIAT BT
JHTEHR! TRIh I JARIT TR D e I SEH ASTed 3701
et BT FRARAT & MR U= Fenfer iR srra= a1 @1 8. d6
B FH FHCHIE UThATIT &g BRIGRT MRl ST &5 T5

19. Marketing Initiatives

During the year 2010-11, a wide publicity was given to different
products & schemes of our Bank through press, electronic and
Outdoor media.

Pan India Advertisements were released in Major Newspapers
on launch of new Products, Landmark achievements of the Bank
during the year and other Advertisements to build the Corporate
Image of the Bank. In the last quarter New TV Commercials were
made and released on major Television Channels taking a mix
of popular Entertainment, News and Movie & regional language
channels.

Bank’s visibility was increased in Tier Il & Tier Ill cities through
advertising on Hoardings and Glow signs in these cities besides
maintaining the level in Tier | Cities.

The Bank has also utlised other innovative mediums such as Full
Train Branding, of the Local Train on the Western & Central lines
in Mumbai, Display Panels on Shatabdi & EMU trains in Delhi,
Punjab, Haryana, UP & Karnataka etc.

A major branding exercise was done by complete Branding of the
Electricity Bills in Maharashtra & Gujarat Regions. Advertisement
of the Bank appeared on the Front & Back Advertising Panels.

Wide publicity was also given to the opening of new branches,
through News Paper Ads, Hoardings, and Leaflet distribution.

20. Risk Management

20.1 The Bank has put in place structured risk management
systems & architecture that is overseen by a Committee of Directors
on Integrated Risk Management. Management level Committees
on Asset Liability (ALCO), Credit Risk Management (CRMC) and
Operational Risk Management (ORMC) constitute the core level
of focused risk management architecture. The Bank has also
identified Risk Managers at all controlling offices and at Head office
departments to focus on operational risk factors and arranged for
their training.

20.2 The Bank is continuously revising and updating its risk related
Policies in line with the Basel Il norms, changes in operating
environment and with a view to manage credit and market risks
in an effective manner. Business Continuity Plans have been
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formulated for all critical processes of the Bank. The Bank has
also set up Disaster Recovery Centre (DRC) for its Core Banking
Operations. For ensuring professional efficiency, series of DRC
were made use during the year.

20.3 Mid-Office of the Bank was strengthened and its functions
were made broad based further for an effective monitoring of market
risk. Further, at Mid-office, a software has been implemented for
operational efficiency. A system of verification of the credit rating of
borrowers was also introduced and credit monitoring system was
further streamlined for focused attention on improvement in asset
quality.

20.4 The Bank has introduced and implemented ten internal Credit
Rating models including 4 internal Credit Rating models for retail
advances. Model I, Il and Il are general models applicable as per
size of exposure. Specific Model is applicable for infrastructure and
project size over 100 Crore. The Bank continued with the system
of comprehensive risk profiling of the Bank in line with regulatory
guidelines that will facilitate integrated risk management.

21 Human Resource Management

21.1 Bank believes that internal people capability is directly related
to competitive strength of the Bank. People within the organisation
hold the key to the organisation’s success and value creation. Bank
succeeds if people within are capable - it is their capabilities that
translate the vision and strategy into execution, bring about more
satisfied customers and higher levels of financial performance.
Further, in the vibrant banking scenario, it is very much necessary
to update knowledge and skill of employees to improve the
efficiency standards of performance by imparting necessary
training and retraining. Keeping this in view, Bank had focused on
enhancement and sharpening of the skills of its staff by providing
continuous learning opportunities.

During the year, the Bank had provided training to 6343 employees
in thrust areas of Credit, Rural Banking, Retail Banking, Risk
Management, Treasury, Marketing, Information Technology,
Management Development, Customer Orientation, etc. The Bank
had also conducted pre-examination training for SC/ST candidates
appearing for Promotion Tests & Bank’s Probationary Officers’
examinations as well as clerical recruitment. Pre-promotion training
to SC/ST candidates for 10 days and to General candidates for 4
days were also given. Initiatives for imparting/grooming selective
batch officers for intensive credit training have been started.

The Bank also utilizes external training resources from reputed
management institutes and training institutions in India and abroad,
with a view to providing specialized training in newer areas of skill
development as also to provide wider exposure to executives and
officers. During the year, 10 executives / officers were sent abroad
for attending training/conference.

The staff strength of the Bank declined from 10,525 as of 31st Mar,
2010to0 9,958 at the end of the FY 2010-11 due to natural wastages
viz. retirement, death etc. The total strength comprises of 3,979
Officers, 3,921 Clerks and 2,053 Subordinate staff, including 2,051
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women employees. The representation of Scheduled Castes,
Scheduled Tribes employees in the Bank was in conformity with
the prescribed level.

The Bank, to meet its requirements of personnel for increasing
business levels and opening of new branches, has initiated
recruitment of 564 officers (incl. 100 POs) under various scales
and disciplines and 250 clerks during the year. Out of 564, 112
specialist officers in the areas of Forex, Credit & Agriculture are
being recruited through Campus interview.

21.2 Grievances Redressal Mechanism for SC / ST / OBC
Employees : -

The Bank has nominated a Top Executive in the rank of
General Manager to function as Chief Liaison Officer to oversee
implementation of Reservation Policy for Scheduled Caste and
Scheduled Tribes and OBCs. The quarterly meetings with All
India Dena Bank SC/ST/OBC Employees’ Federation were
held at periodic intervals at Head Office to redress problems /
grievances.

21.3 Industrial Relations: -

The Industrial Relations during the year remained congenial for
growth and development. As a part of the Industrial Relations
initiative, a grievance redressal mechanism is in place in the Bank
to address the grievances of individual employees.

22. IT Initiatives
22.1 Core Banking Solution (CBS)-‘DENA GARIMA’

The Bank had embarked upon a process of transformation through
technology with a view to enhance customer satisfaction and to
leverage business growth. The Bank has engaged the services
of M/s Wipro, a leading service provider in IT enabled services,
for providing an end-to-end solution for Core Banking Operations
of the Bank. It is backed by ‘Finacle’ software support from M/s
Infosys Technologies Ltd. The Core Banking system bundles a host
of customer friendly services like Internet Banking, Phone Banking,
Mobile Banking and Cash Management Services etc. besides
software system for Integrated Treasury operations. A number of
third party software solutions are also being integrated mainly with
a view to address Regulatory concerns.

The Project was kicked off with migration of existing operations at
bank’s Mahim Branch in Mumbai on 12th March 07.

As of March 2011, all the 1291 branches of the bank and the entire
business has been brought under CBS. This covers 829 centres
and 28 states/union territories.

Other IT Initiatives

22.2 Networking:

Recognizing the significance of communication infrastructures in
the Bank’s drive towards transformation through technology, the
bank has connected all its branches and administrative offices
through DENANET - its Wide Area Network using various
connectivity media. “DENANET” is continuously being monitored
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& §- YA, () FeRTE faot ax (qea aftfa &) &1 sitemea
I 3T

d 3 e giaem gw o & f50 wreem F $F geAm ool )

TTED! BT THTATY fHerdr 2.

9IRAT U4 fIdROT ATETT - U CT UH, STic i & wread 9 food T
o el & faw Idma-.

3R ¢T3l T 37dd / STdd o=l b [el¢ Idra-T a2 370 s H
Tt & %1 § O § U & STHT & a6 W96 (TTEh) T 4 UdTaT.

el SRt (Rudgar ¥ 7 faT ugen) o < faf¥r | 3o o S
318 & feTe IATa-T et B FATTRS AT,

on 24X7 basis for ensuring more than 99% up time.

ATM Installations:

A total of 496 ATMs have been installed as on 31st March 2011
all over the country. Out of these ATMs, 391 are Onsite and 105
are Offsite covering more than 260 centers. Two of the ATMs
can be operated by thumb impression which is convenient for
small customers (under financial inclusion) and semi-literate
farmers.

The Bank has ATM sharing arrangement with CASHTREE, VISA,
CASHNET & NFS tie ups, enabling more than 70,000 ATM access
points & more than 4.70 lacs Merchant Establishments (MEs) in
India and more than 1 million ATMs and 26 Million MEs abroad,
to Bank’s customers. As of March 2011, Debit / ATM Card base is
around 12.51 lacs. The Bank also provides Dena International Gold
Debit Card with Visa affiliation to HNI customers.

The Bank provides number of value added services through the
ATMs viz. Mobile Pre-paid Top-ups and Post Paid Bill Payment etc.

Debit Card customers can also make online payment for purchases
of goods and services using Debit cards on Internet.

Network based Services & Applications:

With a view to channelise this infrastructure for customer
satisfaction and maximize the ROl made in creation thereof, Bank
has introduced the following network based products and services:

CBS application, Other applications viz ALM / AML, Online Balance
sheet etc.

ATM / Debit Cards, Data Transfer & Remote Support, RBI Payment
systems like RTGS & NEFT etc, Corporate E-MAIL, Intranet, IP
Telephony, Video Conferencing, Internet Banking.

The Bank has launched “ Dena i Connect” — the internet Banking
Service for the customers of all branches. This enables the
customers to access their account information through Internet in
the form of a) Balance Inquiry b) Mini Statement (Last 9 transactions)
c) Detailed Statement of Account d) Cheque Book inquiry €) Fund
Transfer (Intra Bank / Inter Bank), f) Outward cheque status inquiry
g) E-payment of Direct Taxes and Indirect Taxes h) Online payment
of Maharashtra Sales Tax (VAT) etc. through Dena i Connect.

Bank has started Alert facility through which customers get SMS on
occurrence of certain events.

Alerts for financial transactions done through Branch & Delivery
Channels - ATM, Internet Banking.

Alerts for RTGS Inward / Outward Transactions and also alert
to sender (customer) after NEFT credit to the account of the
beneficiary in other Bank.

Alerts for Due date of Term Deposits ( 7 days before maturity ),
Loan EMI due Informative messages to customers.
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3% Pt dg9ERE I DI 3T JeNRe § forH e & 3G
foeryam #Alge & o 6 o ddas, hagecs, Al s
AN YUl gcdTfe. dader MRaR 3merR R qn fafaes
feenfrdel & SruTe &g JTHTEE BT 3T Td TRl a8 &
g

DTS g

d& & UTed JaT & foe 9T TedeH & 9 sfde 9g ey &
STRI BT TP T f9aRer et 2. 3 @ I e oS B1S
U9 g 3fae BIS (PlEex & AH) TR R Tl &, e TeIed
A W 8 SIRT B BT S gad 2. g7 <l et & fae
gexae W g 3ua & fae v drar gRT Jeanfud * Jar 3uder &
3R 9Ra 3R fager & fer cfifaer (@ 3 v Siet arm &1 A
yefRfa & & 3remar, 9Ra § aHT FH weed 3R R fava & 18
g < 1 TEITH 3 30T WA o & TTEd! dI JIgeT Ja &
e Semer wHtaae Rag (o7 v v9), IRMC Ud &9 ¢F & A1
T3S e & 2. sfde &1 55000 ¥ 31fEre ufafeT a=eat &
I 3T HRT & AT T HEaql TTEd I TG HIad gam
2. P18 IMUR ¥ X a9 34% JIek 2T gE 12.51 @RI A UG T T
2. W 3N oa il W sfac B1E BT 3UaNT edT 317 8T & a0 3
o efHedl R sfae o8 & 5T & Arend ¥ iR aRkadT dHeE
B w H G v # % 88.80 ¢RI B 37T WY HHS 2 S s
a¥ o I H 95% Jg aunicll 7. db STae HS 3MUR $T Je &g
RR g &R w8,

% ®1 thisc BIE 31.12.2008 I § A fear T & 3R 396 a1 &7
TR (1344 PIE) T W&, BTS P I HI-FUSS hisc HIS SIRT
fa T € oifch a8 1 319 GRIer B8 & ou H AiiHa &9 § IR
forar 5 <ar 8. 981 I& ¥ vd fec B FRIER H ATH-3rr
Ferfar dd uga & feTe 98 YA R SITaeaddiai ®f S g2 b o
T BT HiSC BIS SR B b &7 § JATT el [ &.

23, TTee AT

TE® Aghe § IR a & v §6 3 TTed! o 30amsht o1 gof
TR §g D YA e, a¥ & ARM, §6 7 TEdD dqie # GUR
& foe fafig yamg sIRY <9,

23.1 ZTRET3T &Y 317 T 33 9001:2000 YHIOH

31.03.2011 b gAR b BT 362 EU 37T T 30 THONGRT &. a9
2011-12 & AR 100 fAR<h MG 37$ TF 37 YAON & 3idifd
oS STe.

23.2 TTE! o Rreradl &1 faror

TTEd] d! IR BT g MRV B Y b Iad FrIfiaar el
2. 9 & UTEd W U7, Tl 3127aT S ool JaTTse b HILTH I TUh
TR AHA & qUT 30 TE/IBaTe/RIerad afs ®is &1, ar & Fad
2. 3% & cTereh AT 1800-225740 & Wreaw ¥ iaraal / el
BT USIaxoT fepam ST aasdT &

23.3 TTED HaT B! BATAY Ud HF FTereerar e & Jae
TRy gfafa

TEd 9T R U6 R JfHfa &1 o9 fear w7 foes o

Bank’s Web sites - Bank has its website with netizen friendly
features like Branch Locators, Calculators, Two-click navigation
system etc. The webmaster arranges to keep the website updated
and dynamic on an ongoing basis and also comply with the
regulatory guidelines.

Card Management:

Issuance of Debit cum ATM cards with VISA Affiliation is one of
the prime delivery channel for customer Service of the Bank. All
the branches of the Bank can issue Gold cards & instant Debit
Cards (across the counter) with major thrust of issuance being
at ATM branches. Both these cards are backed by “Verified by
Visa” service for secured use on Internet and also has the tie up
arrangements with National Financial Switch ( NFS ), Euronet
and Cashtree thereby facilitating the customer to access his/her
account from almost all ATMs in India and more than 18 lac ATMs
all over the world, apart from the Point of Sales (POS) terminals
in India and abroad where the logo VISA is displayed. The Debit
Card has proved to be an important customer friendly product with
current average number of transactions exceeding 55,000 per day.
The card base has shown Y-on-Y increase of 34% reaching a mark
of 12.51 lacs. The use of Debit Card on POS terminal is picking up
and the Bank has also earned an income of % 88.80 lacs in the year
under review as Interchange commission through the use of the
Debit cards on POS terminals which has shown an increase of 95%
over the previous year. The Bank is taking efforts on continuous
basis to improve the Debit card base.

Bank’s Credit card was discontinued from 31.12.2008, thereafter
co-branded Credit card with SBI Cards were issued in small
number (1344 cards ) but the same is also now restricted to
issuance as secured card only. Looking to the high default rates
and requirements of high volumes for reaching break-even in the
Credit Card business, the Bank has consciously not entered the
segment of issuing Credit Cards on it's own.

23. Customer Service

The Bank has concentrated on internalizing customer expectations
and aspirations more intensely. During the year, the Bank has
continued the various measures to improve customer satisfaction.

23.1 ISO 9001:2000 Certification of Branches

Our Bank has 362 ISO certified Branches as of March 2011. During
the year 2011-12, 100 additional branches will be covered for ISO
Certification.

23.2 Redressal of Customer Grievances

The Bank is according top priority to resolve customers’ complaints
/ grievances expeditiously. The customers of the Bank can
correspond directly, through letters, e-mails or through the web-site
of the Bank and post their queries / grievances / suggestions, if any.
The complaints / suggestions can be registered through Toll Free
Number 1800-225740 of the Bank.

23.3 Standing Committee on Procedures & Performance Audit of
Customer Service

Standing Committee on Customer Service is headed by the
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31eT8T U9 U§ 9 €, 39 31eTaT SdriuTeis M2, Hel ya e
(JIATeM, ST Bd UeTR, ATset SUdRI), 7eT e (.
F.3.9.), FeT yaed (aeeh gar vd @atH), et gded () At
H e &, Ifitd & a1 UTed IRl 9e & v ) doat & o
T I A TTEDT B Ta9ry W F 3t fvar smar €, faxira af 2010-
11 % SR 39 UHR & IR 8 AT 8.

23.4 396 AARTD a6 7 3T wWR R 4 Fe9d dsa o D
AT AT BT TG a1 8, ST UTed IaT i TuTadT 96 Ta ed
e & TR ¥ GUR & 399 & Gae § ToE <ot &, TS LT
T TR R TEDT B RIeBrad! & MaRoT & o 78 # 76 dob
BT 3RS BT 2. TP ST BT / 2MRAT ohHer: TqATe / 7g
T U IR e e Smafsrd axd 2.

TTED! &G 9P B Tfciaegall I AR Heer

Hara FaeR (e 3R 7F®) @1 gfdfdfad &= & JAaw AFes
& THY 9T b BRI B id b fow ¥Rag Red dd =
WRATT T PIE v AFD a1 B W B 2. §b 3 " TEh! &
e dt oF ufaganit & @1 " 3oEmT & J2 98 390 IueH
2q QUTa: UfieG &

EART S URATT fch T B U AFD dIs &l I & Ud db df

3R I AU & TR Bl Uh INY BRIUED 9b Bl XY DI
IguTeH TR % wu # fgen fomar mar &,

24, 3G edd vd faerR
24.1 9IRAT AeadH

a¥ & ARM gAR fded 7usd 4 100 7 dal # e foRaR &g
3rgATe yeH foan 2. foi SR 3 ¥ 6 & 3fanfa (@5 Sat s
50000 d® &) 29 g T aMiHer &,

a¥ 2010-11 & AR, §F = 68 AT TAE @rell &, foremy fafdm
el F ot It B AT 1291 81 TS/, I fererer # 1 srgu
BRI va faxira qHae Aot & SaTd [oRTd s & T
AT (ATeUg) Td feerarir § 2 gt erame enfHa &,

d% 7 FwsIgEIaeR U0 dhal @ enthe far & SRt d@ o ufrfa
TG & 3R 31T 8T 9 AT e AL T g I AU § ARES,
foeR, ufeew dme, Mfdew, feama e, afiemrg, s ud
FREES § [ &, 3 9 U &1 / el & 9T I8aH @I & Silh
3T T ST et I dfad & TAT SeaIEID ! DY T ares
5T 2.

31 AT 2011 BT S P TR BT &FAR =0T 39 UK &

Chairman and Managing Director. Besides Executive Director,
General Manager (Resource , Planning, Nodal Officer ), General
Manager (IT & IRM), General Manager (Forex & Treasury),
General Manager (Credit) are the members of the Committee. The
committee also has two customers as permanent members and
two / three customers are invited for the quarterly meetings. Four
such meetings were organized during the Financial year 2010-11.

23.4 In addition to above, the Bank has formed Customer Service
Committee of the Board at the apex level to advise measures for
enhancing the quality of customer service and improving the level
of customer satisfaction. Every Branch holds a customer meet in a
month for redressal of customer complaint at the grass root level.
Each Regional Office / Branch hold a customer meets once in a
quarter / month respectively.

Code of Bank’s Commitments to the Customers

RBI has constituted Banking Codes and Standards Board of India
for measuring the performance of banks against a bench mark
reflecting the Best Practices (Codes & Standards). The Bank has
adopted “Code of Bank’s Commitments to the Customers” and is
fully committed to its adherence.

The Bank is a member of BCSBI and a top executive in the rank of
General Manager is appointed as the “Code Compliance Officer”
on behalf of the Bank.

24. Branch Network and Expansion
24.1 Branch Network
During the year, our Board of Directors have approved Branch

Expansion Plan for 100 new centres including 29 centres under
Tier 3 to 6 (Centres having Population upto 50000 )

During the year 2010-11, Bank has opened 68 new branches
taking the tally to 1291 in various Regions including 1 Satellite
Office at Lihoda and 2 Full fledged Branches at Bhetashi (Talpad)
and Kilvani in the State of Gujarat under Financial Inclusion Plan.

Bank has consciously included centres where Bank’s presence was
negligible or hither to uncovered area. These centres are mainly in
Jharkhand, Bihar, West Bengal, Sikkim, Himachal Pradesh,Tamil

Nadu, Orissa and Uttarakhand. Bank has also identified areas /
centres, mostly falling in the category of under Banked areas as
well as under Minority dominated districts.

The sector-wise breakup of the branch network of the Bank as on
31st March 2011 is as under:

ax TS B HET Gl T gfererd

Sector No of Branches Percent to Total
AT Rural 457+ 35
37ef9TERT Semi Urban 255 20
9TE’I Urban 255 20
HEFTRIT Metro 324 25
% Total 1291 100

* IS SIRATC & onfhe €.

* including Satellite Branches
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25. foRieror va 3riafke aamRian

T 4R H thell g8 db @f Tafae STt & Pt U= e =T
T IEIT IE 2 d | 3RS YoTel Uge § & Hiele €. S,
ST BT T T BT B [TUIIT BT cIRaToRTen & Taer §
AR RSTd a6 & TRmi-ieeil BT SruTe B &g FRI&wT faHm
T G IR AARe FRIeH! doI aesl T-al oiaidRT B BT
TAT 31,31 TR0, / E1.3778.UH.U. 376l U AT T crauRieqdor
e & grT fafayr yoR &7 cremRient Sanfed oxar & o
ETRT SRIVOTC v SrRITATRT ST Jeil I 3gure JHRad ar
IR Ffeat, Al BTS &, BT T W ST [T T Hb. JATHIHD cTeam
URI&T & 37T, 59 9T SRR &7, Sad menfa 3aiRa =RIeoT,
AT oTeaT URTETT, TS e e W&, T JUTel SrRaToRIedT, J15Ted
cTETaRIe, Sitfa aRaTRier & 5. 39 fohardant & foe 3uge
THAS JOR e 3 8 3R a8 Hsel gRI gAlted il &
39R foe s &

AR R 96 & feenfeel & srged iR aRe-Il & siafd
emstt & e # d% 7 e & foe feTid 01.04.2007
I Yo & fore shifiem smenfRa 3rdfRe aRamRIam(GIREITET)
DI ST . IMETINT BT FRIGTT BRIdTeT HATBIRAT DI FRH
IR 3TARS oram WIem d= & fee Fgfaa grreror fear mar
2. 9¥ & RM d& 7 3raRke WX R yf¥ted FRieret & arer-amer
FFIHAT GATTG JTaT eI_aT WRIEThT o HTEH I 566 SRAT3AT DY STTREH

SR 3R IR B,

yoTen! vd 0T @1 3R Aol a4 & fae d 7 FRmr 37 @
fpa o fear 2. fafte st & et oear oiem & Aresm
I gae drafaa & FHReor fowm Rt Frer @ S & et
o BRIt &1 aEn ¥ 3FueH fHr W R Ry e
Sfed 3G ghedIoT I g1 wwean # emanit & fremor few
JUR §37 &. 6 @ Ranema carr v faframe gea fHafRon
B JUR / Heg A &g FRiemor Ruret § qarg 78 sifraftadnsit
F FRR Imis IR TR 6 & 3MIR TR FHGR HEH 3310
e g

e & 9 / crarRien fAgurr # 399 g saRa FRiadr
T A oTETIRIETd! & feTe TTRTerT |t Simiifora food T, $9h
fafRes, & Frafaa TR R FHad aamRias & A fome
FHIET ST I TR DI T

I # PR ST YUTelr P S Td T ITRABA BT $F YOTel b
3fex forr 3T R, § = IRamsit & PRISR fpareamat o Ry
TR T WRIET TR JoTel! 3% & 2.

26. Heid>ll

d% & BURC BT W YHIE! Fdddl TR & [T THE HeT
USed WR & YR bl TR & i e vd yee Favrd
B RIS a=aT 2. W8T yded v 7 Fadt USRI B aRS vd
3aT ftreRat & T & e faer €. fawmr o e va
& € - Fiavn, FMRE vd Fadbar drit &1 whaer S aR®
vd &g Upia & & faumr & st § erarafeat oF Rafén vd
R enfe &,

25. Inspection and Internal Audit

The Bank has an in-built system of effective control and supervision
of the functioning of its various branches scattered all over the
country. In compliance with guidelines of RBI on audit of Branches,
Regional Offices and Departments at Head Office, the Inspection
& Internal Audit Department is conducting various types of audits
through internal inspectors, external Chartered Accountants firms
and CISA/ DISA qualified IS Auditors from time to time and ensures
strict adherence to the Bank’s laid down systems and procedures
and timely plugging of loopholes, if any. Risk Based Internal Audit,
Concurrent Audit, Management Audit, Information Systems Audit,
Revenue Audit and Propriety Audit apart from Snap Audit as and
when required are conducted. These activities are well documented
and guided by the policies approved by Board.

In line with directives of RBI and to comply with requirement
under BASEL Il accord, Bank has adopted Risk Based Internal
Audit (RBIA) for inspection w.e.f. 1st April, 2007. The officials
inspecting the branches have been given adequate training for
conducting RBIA. During the year the Bank has carried out RBIA
of 566 Branches by internally trained inspectors as well as by the

experienced empanelled external auditors.

To further strengthen adherence to the systems and control,
the Bank has geared up monitoring mechanism. Monitoring is
done through concurrent audit at various branches by Inspection
department at Corporate Office. The strategic approach with
special emphasis on strict adherence to systems and procedures
has enabled improvement in the inspection ratings of large number
of branches. The effective steps taken are monitored on an
ongoing basis for timely rectification of irregularities pointed out in
the inspection reports to help / improve the operational efficiency
and regulatory rating of the Bank.

To upgrade the knowledge / audit skills training sessions are
conducted for internal inspectors and concurrent auditors. Further,
quarterly review meetings are arranged with the concurrent auditors
at Regional Office level.

With the onset of Core Banking System in the organization and all
the branches being brought under its umbrella, Bank has introduced
an off-site surveillance system for monitoring of business activities
of the branches.

26. Vigilance

The Bank has an effective set of Vigilance at its Corporate Office
headed by General Manager & Chief Vigilance Officer reporting
to Chairman & Managing Director. General Manager & Chief
Vigilance Officer is supported by a team of senior and experienced
Officers. The role and function of Dept. are control, monitoring
and supervision of Vigilance functions which are preventive and
Punitive in nature. The function of the Department also includes
reporting and monitoring and reporting of Frauds.
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9T WX W aRe Fadbar afafaat &1 me7 fear mr & 3
AT S UgIE BN dlfeh IR Td &I BRI WX W
yunterdl vd Ugfaat o S fam ST b, 2IaT yaedt v e
e & sifEeiar & fov FaR® Tadbdar va sidRke iz o
ol & & Tawdi R SRe a’- & e Aadsdr Sraasdr
HITLNAT AN B TS 5w FaRe TGadsan, sraRke fHa=or o1
ASIgd T, 3UTA Al &, Hfad aramaxor & g 3nfe )
& gRT 9T {6 o7 <R fafire amet ) a9t & .

HET YDl I SrETes! Siad gaed |l drikd € 5 oF 1
eraETatedl &1 faaRTHS Jedid Bl &, YOTel va agid § far
T IeTeT, TG PIg &, BT URIETIT BN Ud e@reisar & daer o
RIBATH & IUAT & Fa Il Jab & FIRIET0T HRIHT § HHaARAT
@ gfed ararefsal vd fodr smare faRer 3uri & aR § |od 9
o ST & 9 ¥ g8 arerafeal R R @ & foe feers
Hee %R o At nfed .

d o Fadsar st o1 wder v FIREY s Hae gRT af ST
& 3 Frafia sfaRml R dfad sreTeTs ve areTgs! Amar o

Ve AR &,

§b URT IRBR, hald ST AN Td URAT Rod db T Tadhed
At R T 3rgeen / feenfder o1 srures gifad a=ar 2.

IS BRATs Y B I T8 HHART DI 31T -1ad Td
g3 Ao fvig & dra siaR foar s €.

27. [STHINT ST / 3Tk Y12

8 3 3eiry faxiia a¥ & SR T f@=<r & drafaad & foe
319 GO T STRY I, 99 o &R S Pl &1 I TP, DI
St TmTen=T vd § - Ael o wreny & f&al & drafaae o) e <@,

JRIOR

FHeTe a¥ & ARM HRA Retd d& gRT a¥ 2009-10 & faw
amanfaid e uthdr gfaaifiar ot feanfyes ot # §& @1 s 7'
UrAdT <A1 ST & fole aqe RIPR 9T g3T. 96 I & urAdT
" ST DY T 31T fosm dwgfases 31T gfear grT
IS & I 3G B AN F G groor GRT YRIG [T T
a¥ 2009-10 & AR HERTE 53§ Ferd 8@ o eranstt g srafaar
T TaramT T & o BraftaT & o meRTE 59 TWRg de)
afafer (1sTm), gor & 3R F smafora ufaifiar # enR dF @
AT REBR YT 3. IS &l & Bra~aa= # 3o B &
e eAR T8I &F FRTET B TR ASTHIN Har-aad |rafd
(§F), TSERT ¥ FAT RIBR, TR T+ &7 DI WG eTam o
FIHH., TOTGHEM I TIH [RIBR TUT ANTYR &7 B JIaR! 2rEm
B AILHLE. AR I Jad JREOR T g3,

gfeTaror:

d% 7 3= Frafaal qur et § T & g @ gerar o
% 350y & faRy uftreror SRIGHT &I 3RS SR @ a¥ &

SR d 7 et srftresRat & faw g dfds gfererr drispH
T fE=sl ATFEaTR TTSTeIvT HIichH T 3T fohar, TTSTeToT uTe

Preventive Vigilance Committees has been formed at the
Branches level to identify problems area so as to tone up systems
and procedure at the Branch level and Regional Office level. To
sensitize and improve the faculty of Vigilance awareness work
shop on Preventive Vigilance and strengthening of Internal Control
were held for the Branch Managers and Second line Officers of
the Branches in which various pressing issues facing the Bank in
the areas of preventive vigilance, strengthening of internal controls,
bringing of compliance culture, creation of ethical climate etc. were
discussed.

Fraud Risk Management Committee of General Managers is in
place which critically evaluates the frauds occurred, examine the
breaches made in the system and procedure if any and suggests
risk mitigation techniques in respect of the frauds. Employees are
also sensitized about the fraud taken place and the preventive
measures to be taken at the training establishment of the Bank.
The Bank has a Board Level Committee for Monitoring of large
value frauds.

The vigilance function in the Bank is supervised and monitored
by the Board of Directors who review the pending disciplinary and
fraud cases at regular intervals.

Bank ensures strict implementation of instructions/guidelines on
Vigilance functioning received from Government of India, Central
Vigilance Commission and Reserve Bank of India.

A distinction is made between the bonafide and malafide decision
of the employee before initiating disciplinary action.

27. Implementation of Official Language/ In-house publications

The Bank continued vigorous efforts for implementation of official
language Hindi during the financial year under review. During
the year Bank’s focus was on implementation of Hindi Softwares
through word processors, Core Banking solution and E-mail.

Awards:

During the year under review Bank was awarded IVth prize by
Reserve Bank of India for it's house journal “Dena Jyoti” in bilingual
category for the year 2009-10. Bank’s house journal “Dena
Jyoti” was also awarded “Bronze Trophy” by the “Association of
Business communicators of India” for best article in English. Bank
received lllrd prize in the competition organized by Maharashtra
State Level Bankers’ Committee (Rajbhasha), Pune for excellent
performance in implementation of official language Hindi in its
offices and Branches situated in the Maharashtra State during
2009-10. Our Baroda Regional Office was awarded llird Prize by
the TOLIC(Banks) Vadodara for the year 2009-10. Our Earnakulam
Branch in Chennai Region was awarded Ist prize and Itwari, Nagpur

branch was awarded IlIrd prize by respective TOLICs for excellent
work in implementation of Official Language.

Training :

The Bank continued to conduct special Training Programs to
promote the use of Hindi in its offices and branches. During the
year Bank has organized General Banking and Hindi Software
Training Program for Official Language Officers, who in turn will
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TSTHT 3R fafie eafaar vd et § SRd srfteiar
Ud T et BT Gi¥1eror yar R,

TN of & SR 96 &l Priwmemst qor fe<r IedR
gfSTeror SrRIGHT BT 3maTs fovar T 5= 855 siftraiRal va 672
3T HHANRAT HI TTLTeT0T feam T, $9d5 37eTaT, BraTai= BRI
&=l # PR & HHANAT B TGRS FHE0T e o & foe
121 S¥ TTT&T0T BIIchHT BT ST TchaT T,

fe=<) SieaeR

TH-d! aRacr @ T a8 & gL, 36 7 fafim gemts
Hraferdl vd emREmst § gA # @ 517 @ A9 SReRt § ndia
ATedIR T JHdps & Aread ¥ fewiive o damed glaem
YaH TRAT SR 3T da6 3 Arares et # fewdr wream & gfaen
P foe 3T § o 31 2 Tape #f5ie divedoR § SRl B 9
THYET dF, 3R STET Bal 3TN ST Ul TS 395 R H ATredoR
faomar @1 Jfaa fear mar. JivedaR § FeNe & G- 3T ay oY
STRY T, §F Gfaemsit &r 3wt ggH & foe 8138 .3ms & g
3R 3 HHTRY ufdneror el ¥ fEr Aredor gf¥remr srdea
3mafsid fedr . d gy Teenfua wei vélen. § fewmfys gamr
g afifert sraiRT

TarT ST afAfa & gTeuuT vd gied 30 afatg 3 e
13.09.2010 BT §& & DGR oMET (TH &) FAT femaids 22-12-
2010 DI ST IMET (AGS &) H I fe<r & Hrar=aa_T &
Taer 7 3 ARAN b (T S THeT S T dob AR
a3 35 2Rar # T fE=r & FrafaoE & R ¥ AR §
® FHrIuad! & A foar-fawet fosar stk 399 g8 umfa & ar &
Tar @ o,

TR # fe=Y STy :

3T STIAT 3R Ul § 30T fafis ATt & UoiR B & g,
a oo N . . a o [V v oAl
2R faf¥e Irsmsi & Uucle U9 UaR I gl § GIR dRdb

qied PRaTs Ts.

AT Wi et # S MG / BT HRA TRDR DI ISTHIT Tl
& BRI & TR § IR B & fa8 amar ya 7= 1 & 3R
EARI UTedh AaT H IR & 078 $7 AUT0T BT 43 A1eH 1 &
o gomeRa €.

feramedt & ufdrer

PIARC AU § I fewal & Yo B e & foe qen
EAR YT e ®f Adi=aw faua vg fafim fmarsedt & ar &
STHGR! ¢ & foae, Tty af & R d& = 3o 78 afer
" ST & A 3ie fafie dfd faval w faovies & wu A
o vu # gl fea. foomis & fava O - foxita gmmaem,
RTTHTYT, |Adhal Ba 3T orad JaeH. Uiadl # o, JHhR G
nfafaftrar fewfie oo & yeifdd & s & arfe d6 &1 Ta®
HHARY ST ATHIfad 81 TP

impart the training to officers and staff members working at various
offices and branches.

During the year under review 96 Hindi Workshops and Hindi
Software training programs were conducted in which 855 officers
& 672 other employees were trained. In addition to these 121 Desk
Training Programs were also conducted to impart practical training
to the employees for doing the official work in Hindi.

Hindi Software:

Keeping pace with the technological changes, bank continued
the implementation of bilingual word processing facilities on all
computers in use at various administrative offices and branches
through Akruti software and Unicode. Hindi Software training
programs were conducted to promote the use of these facilities
at DIIT Mumbai and other Staff Training Centres. All the ATMs
installed by the Bank have been provided with bilingual access
facilities.

Visit of Parliamentary Committee:

The Drafting and Evidence Sub-Committee of the Committee of
Parliament on Official Language has reviewed the performance
in implementation of Official Language at the Bank’s Coimbatore
Branch (Chennai Region) on 13-9-2010 and Jhansi Branch
(Lucknow Region) on 22-12-2010. During the Review Meetings
the Committee discussed with the Executives of our Bank the
implementation of Official language Hindi in the said branches and
expressed satisfaction on the progress.

Use of Hindi in Publicity

In order to popularize our various schemes among public at large
and customers, pamphlets and publicity material of our various
schemes were prepared and printed in Hindi.

Bank Branches / offices in all the three linguistic regions are
constantly making efforts for improving level of implementation
of official Language Policy of Government of India and striving

to make it as a prime medium of communication to improve our
customer service.

Bilingual House Journal

In order to maximize the role of Official Language Hindi in corporate
communication and educating our staff members about various
activities and current subjects, during the year under review Bank
published all issues of its quarterly house journal “Dena Jyoti”
as Special Issue on various banking subjects in bilingual form.
The subjects of special issues were Financial inclusion, Official
Language, Vigilance and Asset quality management. Articles,

news and events are published in bilingual to have its reach to
every staff of the bank.
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28. 31G¥R wd gHifera

T JUT, TR & W AT S B T 2011-12 & folg
ST THTHT 8.5% B! Fhal BR e 3TE Bl & FTaaw & far
3THT 2. 3T B 3areT I I AT WK & IR T AerexT § F
TR B ghg P TR U 1. T, I D HIFar & JHT &
HRUT EWDHITT TP T S §s & Sil1 U TddT BT (a9 &1 g3
. 3TIIaRIT T s TSl &R BT AHAT B Ty ST Jam
& TSI BH & .

37 3aRRI 3R AR & 789 FRd gL 9% 7 TP Jraaa
T TR B & B BT TS, Yeb ImenRa 3 # i, 'ie
wR & 30M R e, e 3 FRE gRT 3R quied # 9o,
aferat & gRT Fftrat & deaR g, ot aee s o @t
T I A 7, 31 W e Hied Bl 7. 96 ol fawar ¢ fhb
391 UM & 98 Gl & YIS BT HH BT gL I gL aTRI
T YRT TATH YT BHRATT.

29. HIA! GHIGATE

Aty "R Re1d & &F Alfed Al 7 il =T & s
e gig & Fgem R &M T IR @ §, 2011-12 S
qd 3HN H el Rl 3G H 8.5% ¥ 31UF hag & &I 3gAA
T AT €. T STHA THR WA & B THIGHT q2T 3T
QT Yol TR HHIfId IH1G & 3R R 2. faxira 3a &1 ufa agra
YTET STaTAhar3 Aied a1e Il 5 3t fafrws aRads &
AT B b feTT TR g1 &, ey, facira e & 73
AR UT &1 Fifch 09T 31T db SThT ami & dafad & o
T AT < & AR YT 1. AT B H 2011-12 P A
TEA 3D 3iR age gArargof o &

e dea & foe 3R 39ar 3R I

Noan QAN .~
s

(31.ue1.3Tae)

3reze] U9 Uy e

28. Opportunities and Threats

GDP Growth of about 8.5% projected for 2011-12 coupled with
expectation of normal monsoon, good kharif output, etc. augur well
for the economy. Higher demand level out of good agriculture output
will provide opportunities for higher growth levels in all sectors.
However, the spectre of inflation still continues to be a threat with
the still incomplete pass through effect of oil prices, being a cause
for worry. The economy may continue to face northward moving
interest rates that will squeeze the margins for banking industry.

Recognizing these opportunities and threats, the Bank has
evolved a well thought out policy that focuses on CASA deposits,
augmentation of Fee based Income, focus on small ticket advances,
improvement in asset quality through close credit monitoring, better
recycling of funds through recoveries, including recovery in write off
accounts, etc. The Bank is confident that this strategy will enable
it to take advantage of emerging opportunities while minimizing
impact of threats.

29. Outlook

While monetary policy of RBI continues to focus on the balancing
of inflation control with economic growth, the outlook for 2011-12
is an optimistic one with GDP growth projected at 8.5% plus. The
optimism is fueled by prediction of normal monsoon and its likely
effect on food prices. The financial industry will also have to brace
itself to face more regulatory changes like Basel Il norms including
counter cyclical provisioning requirements. However, financial
inclusion holds promise as this will open up hitherto unbanked
segments to banking. Overall, the outlook for 2011-12 is very

promising, yet at the same time, very challenging.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

g
J ”

(D. L. Rawal)

Chairman & Managing Director
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1. e dfear R d9 @ i

o 59 a1 7 Tazar <@ar € 6 s 9 w9 o 9vd 8+ & foe
g 379eT® ¢ b I8 3T HFd & BURe TdER Pl 3UT. I
d% ®T 3O FRIGR HIAT F A § 3R 307 Hawdi & gfer
ST B T B H FEINT &l & 3R g8 =arreniRar, arafRir,
T2TThhRUT, ITRANIT 3R Afadhdr iR 967 &7 & [Neid & Anteei=
o 8. b & draRe ifiemes Aifd a7 gor wxar € 6 3uce
AT BT ITANT 9 IRE ¥ [T JAE e 98 Brf Horeren # GaR
@ 3R 3 eIt & ST B ) &’ & fav FR& afg
R 3R T 3T AU o STHIGATSN, UG, UTEdI,
SYfibaiall qem HHAIRAT & fed B 6T T

I &1 PraRe e e, ufchar aur e fefafad or

gffead o & foe ufaes &

o IRYRDI & YT 6 & [T ATUYE BRIT-TTET F1C TG,
« TEH B JA H YUR & U FET U BT
. fofr & R a0 W, N Faa oga T T

e dd BRIGR e & fov TRer 37} uRee® HraRe e
I

Afear TOR Y AHAH

T 3 1 A IR @ JABAM & fae Jar (wfear R e
fafram, 1992 @ smemsit & Iy AfcaT IUR & IFIH &
o & § amaoT wfgar 9me e 3R Siedr fHefRa o
2. T s, aRe gded TR & HHART U9 d6 & 37 HHARI,
oo 6 & @ Jea Haeeid ga-T dd T8 &, 59 B
¥ 3ithentaa €, §% 7 S TH.%.51 BT 3UeH SUBR! & w9 §
g fosar & o d &t ufafoal & =R a=a & foe et
feiRa &= vd smR dfear & srteod & e Geer £
THTemeN= a¥ & R 3 e @1 faftrad srgaeE gan &

TR wiear

e dser 7 3me feere! qerr FEmE e & fov YR do T
ERT aRa@nferd 37eR AR |fedr &F srHe ya foar 8. g §
3T S1AT & Y - Y SHFCRT v Afad Jafhd 3meRvT, Wavy
ufeegerf, orefsfar va fafer aer fafsemt snfe & uft afqegar enfira
2. 3R et d& dF 39 TIsc R 3Ty BRI T &,

d% 7 wie vawdsl & O Hued gaiag wwsidr & @8 49 §
freiRa eiiRe st W o wr feenfe=tt &1 s/ faar
2, fora snufara gediasor i fer e €

2. friwe Hsa

d& & fewre dsa &1 Tod deert Ao arfafm 1949 3k
JPPRTI HUAT (3UHAT BT 371 3R 37aRon) fEfTam 1970 o
G IIgHd a6 (Y€ vd fafder graenm) arsm 1970 & grgerm=t &
a1 3rf¥end dar 2.

feied 31-3-2011 @1 Fders #ser § 8 Fdwrs enfhe €, foe &
qofdmioe e srafq TReR aRT Mg sreaer vd yay Hewe

1. Bank’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Bank believes that for any organization to succeed it is necessary
that it adopts highest standard of corporate behavior. This assists
the Bank in efficient conduct of its business and in meeting its
obligation to its stakeholders and is guided by a strong emphasis
on trusteeship, transparency, empowerment, accountability and
integrity. Bank’s corporate governance policy endeavors to ensure
that the available resources are utilised in such a manner that it
improves efficiency and sustains growth to meet aspirations of its
shareholders and safeguard the interest of its other stakeholders
such as depositors, creditors, customers, suppliers and employees.

Banks Corporate Governance structure, systems and processes
are committed to ensure the following :

. Sustain profitable performance to enhance shareholders
value.

U Innovate to improve the services to the customers.
o Satisfy the spirit of the Law and not just letter of the law.

. Have a simple and transparent corporate structure driven
solely by business needs.

Prevention of Insider Trading

Dena Bank has instituted a comprehensive code of conduct
for prevention of insider trading namely, “Dena Bank Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading” in accordance with the
requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992. All the Directors, Employees at senior management level
and other Employees of the Bank who could have access to the
unpublished price sensitive information of the Bank are governed
by the code. Bank has appointed Shri S K Jain as compliance officer
who is responsible for setting forth procedures and implementation
of the code of conduct for trading in Bank’s securities. During the
year under review there has been due compliance with the said
code.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has approved a Model Code of Conduct
circulated by the Indian Banks’ Association for its Directors and
General Managers. The code covers amongst other things the
Company’s commitment to honest and ethical personal conduct, fair
competition, transparency and compliance of laws and Regulations
etc. The code of conduct is posted on the website of the Bank.

Bank has complied with the guidelines on Corporate Governance
stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreements executed with the
stock exchanges, the disclosure requirements of which are given
below:

2. Board of Directors

The constitution of Board of Directors of the Bank is governed by
the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970
& Nationalized Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions)
Scheme, 1970.

As of 31.08.2011, the composition of the Board consists of 8
Directors including two whole time Directors viz., the Chairman
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oI HIuTed 9. 9o 6 IR-eriues e e & 6 k-
FHIAUAD DT H I U TRAR! 22 YR IRBR BT ATHT,
T YR Ra1d d o1 utafter e, ves siftreRT et o
gfafater e 3R d fFeee! 31 e TRER B 3T, TTRURE]
gRT g9 fomar srar 2. fesid 31.3.2011 @Y TF BEIR HHARS
eI | o Tal oRaTeR e v YRd IR gRT g fodr
S aTel i et & ue Rep £

3T Y & SR <12 2Th HecT df 14 dodb =fatad fafear &

SRS & -

& Managing Director and the Executive Director appointed by
Government of India and 6 non-executive Directors. Out of 6 non-
executive Directors, one Official Director represents Government
of India Nominee, one Director represents Reserve Bank of India,
one Director represents Officer Employees of the Bank and three
Shareholder Directors elected by the Shareholders other than
the Central Government. The post of one Workmen Director, one
Chartered Accountant Director and three Directors to be appointed
by Government of India are lying vacant on the Board as of
31.03.2011.

During the year under review, 14 meetings of the Board of Directors
were held on the following dates:

27.04.2010 18.05.2010 25.06.2010 16.07.2010 26.07.2010 16.08.2010
21.09.2010 15.10.2010 26.10.2010 16.11.2010 20.12.2010 27.01.2011
01.03.2011 30.03.2011

2.2 el & faaxor: 2.2 Particulars of Directors

3T aY &b 3iaifd o9 Hee & Feeie! & 3mavad faavor agur
HST B do®I H D! U & [GaR0T IeT &, @ va TH &
g

3. Fve) o) afufeat

ARag Red §6 gRT o feenf+eet & srgeu 3R duRe
Jtfireae 3nfe & Anteelt gt & R §6 7 3 feers #ea
oI faf¥e afafaar &1 T oo & forer <R A fear mar -

3.1 Feee dsa o) ysu= afufa

d® 3 ICaea d6 (ydeq vd fafaw graem) areEn 1970 &
TaeHT & SR YSEH Arata o Mo fovar 2. afafa & g st
¥ 3regey vd yay feed & faawrei sfteR & sifes & ara
URATAl dF TAIGIeT, 0T FHE IR/ Fee @I fore & UTa, Je/
3T TR AT, YT U4 JMod I & 3FIAGT & Uwad 3R
ORI UF 377 3FFATea afcHfaar , Sl / HURE & AT /
fedaRt / afst # fraer, grieR! |fed, TRt & sifemrgor aern favr
R o9 ® y¥aid, T e qr gees |fhta & fees #8d grRr
U BIs 31T HIFeT Qe &.

Tfafd & Te=dh o TRTET AT FHIETENS a9y & SR 3BT dobT
T 3utefa o1 faaror uRkfee @ va T § fear war 2.
3.2 9 A o1 erar usierm afdifer

fder® weel 7 9Rara Ratd 3@ & el & SR 37HeR, 1995
¥ freere Hea of orar wieT At & M6+ fdHar. YR TRER gRT
UF YT U ¥ 19/20/2007-81311-31T8 e 18WRaxT , 2008 GRT &
TIY I & TR T 2008 H AHIT BT G [T 7T,

oiaT WRien Ifafa & oraf § orEr wieT il BT Tdetor BT, sh
& faxira SRl fere o e ST, T9adr / 37 fFR1eoT / oar
QRIET & Tyepul @ THIem BT, agihT AdT auT
IR AR & JUlaGal dR & WE 49 & ded fafafde sm= ae
m $mwﬁﬁé. ﬁwﬂﬁ@%ﬂﬁqﬁ /aﬁjﬂ?@

HEA & AT &g A¥dd 39 R T9i od
R e 2. /

Teore dea & o Wre afafg § feve g & uia 9
gfwferd €.

The necessary particulars of Board of Directors and status of
attendance in the Board meetings during the year under review are
given in the Annexure A, B and C

3. Committees of Directors

In accordance with the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India
and the guidelines on Corporate Governance etc., the Bank has
constituted various Committees of the Board of Directors, the
details of which are given below:

3.1 Management Committee of the Board

The Board had constituted Management Committee as per
provisions of Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Scheme, 1970. The main functions of the Committee
include sanctioning of credit proposals, Loan Compromise / Write-
off proposals, Filing of suits / appeals, proposals for approval of
capital and revenue expenses, investments in Government and
other approved securities / shares/ Bonds and debentures of
companies / Corporates, including underwriting, proposals for
acquisition and hiring of premises, donations etc. which are beyond
the discretionary powers of the Chairman & Managing Director and
any other matter referred to the Management Committee by the
Board.

The composition of the members of the committee and details of
attendance at its meetings during the year under review are given
in Annexure B and C.

3.2 Audit Committee of the Board

The Board had constituted Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors in October 1995 in accordance with the guidelines of the
Reserve Bank of India. The Committee was re-constituted in May
2008, as advised by Government of India vide communication No.
F. No.19/20/2007-BO-| dated February 18, 2008.

The functions of Audit Committee include overseeing the audit
functions, review of Bank’s financial performance, review critical
findings of concurrent/other inspections / audits, compliance with
accounting standards and all other matters specified under Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges.
The Committee discusses and considers the Quarterly / Annual
Accounts before recommending the same to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of five
members of Board of Directors.
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Tfafq & Tedl ®F IR T4 dodi # 396! Juffa @1 faavor
afikfere @ v 7 ¥ fear mar 2.

3.3 R o uilRsfie afafa

TS &7 & 3oH & ddi B Yoferias FHewer & aRksths
HRT IR gRT (R fope 31 . 9RA TSR gRT B Freme
JICHTE SR ATt IR &I T3 & 3R 358ea & fofe 9Rd |RBR
& feel & sgaR d& 7 fdes 7usa & - wiksifas |fafa &
o fomar £,

Tfafad & Teal & 9T Ud dodl # 396 3ufRta & fgavor
uRfere @ v w# fear mar 2.

3.4 3IRYRS / FFave RBreraa afifa

d% ¥ BURe e W Ja & et & sER # 9aR
FISIRT & 1Y §U JAIEGdl GRR & WS 49 & MU & e
YRRYRD! / 99T & AT oI - 3R / it & 37T, e
Raré =1 foemn, amaier / sret 7 e snfe fremaar & farer &g
MR IR / a9 Breraa afufa o 1o fear 2.

Tfafa & geal & G vd dodl § 3960 3ulerta o faaror
oikfSTe @ vd 7 H fear war 2 2RYRGT & Brhadl & 3iies
frueR &

A T334, HeT I8 (OaT U f1.9.3), i Uaeist & T ab
& 3guTeH fERY &

FHETeT a¥ % dRE 96 @1 et & 18 Faew / ygars /
Tormrad uTe g8 3R | 18 faet / ygars / frwmadr & fHawr
@ Hgfc % 3R e faar mar 3k 31.03.2011 B SRR
J pie Y Frerad / oz srfolta =& o,

3.5 Ffea FfeH yagd R Feemet o afif

d& o T Shiew yeem nfafaferat o wdiaenr = & fae wmfed
S gee R et & afufa nfod o 78 &1 96 Fat §
SiReaw Fae sraaRomsi |feq w9 Shifed dedt drif ) R
@1, STEn geaie 3R Siew & aRavm & srd-fafer aa
&, Sifen Rerfa 8g a7 wR feiRa o<, sifew gdem =

geee & 9T 3R SRaH &H AR Bl dh-Id 3 FHTaw© 2.

Tfafad & Teal & 93T Ud dodl # 396! 3ulta &1 faaver
uRRfere @ v o # fear mar 2.

3.6 S5 IPH aelt AraErafsal R AR 3= gq afafa

TSI IHH arel arErefsal R FIRE 3@ 7 et o ve 3w
Iafa &1 7o fovar mar &1 % A 39 U U "eAw gedl &
ar afufaq g8t 36w aren earafsal @ Tvem BRar & ik o
eNETatsar garT 7 &, 396 e fHars 3um fear s €.

o o

Tfafa & gedl & G td dodl § 3960 3uferta o faaro

oRfeTe @ v v H fear war 2.
3.7 3R 3iaxor afHfer

RS AR 3AROT HAT&T AT GRT TR §1ract ART / F(0S|
& 3RUT 37TaT UHUT & 3TIHIGT Bd 37 3RAIHd B, FRATde THIT

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.3. Remuneration Committee of Directors

Remuneration of whole time Directors of PSU Banks is decided
by the Government of India. Performance incentive scheme
is introduced by the Government of India and for that purpose
as per Government of India directives; Bank has constituted
“Remuneration Committee” of Board of Directors.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.4 Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee

The Board had, in compliance of the SEBI guidelines on Corporate
Governance and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into
with the Stock Exchanges, constituted a Shareholders’ / Investors’
Grievance Committee for redressal of the grievance of shareholders
/ investors on matters like transfer of shares / bonds, non-receipt of
annual report, non-receipt of dividends etc.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

Shri S. K. Jain, General Manager (Accounts & IRC) is the
Compliance Officer of the Bank for Stock Exchanges.

During the year under review the Bank received 18 requests
/ enquiries / complaints from the investors and all 18 requests /
enquiries / complaints had been resolved to the satisfaction of the
investors & no complaint / correspondence from Shareholder was
pending as of 31.03.2011.

3.5 Committee of Directors on Integrated Risk Management

The Committee of Directors on Integrated Risk Management is
constituted to oversee all risk management activities of the Bank,
including identifying underlying risks perceptions, prescribing risk
assessment and quantification methodologies, fixing tolerance
level for risk exposures, guiding the line management on risk
management and mitigation techniques etc.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.6 Committee for monitoring Large Value Frauds

A sub-committee of the Board for monitoring Large Value Frauds
is constituted to review the large value frauds, whenever such
incidences take place in the Bank and the preventive measures
taken to avoid recurrence.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.7 Share Transfer Committee

The Share Transfer Committee is constituted for the purpose of
approval / rejection / transfer / transmission of Equity Shares /
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U3 SR &R & 3GeeT I IR 3RvT JfAfT & Mo fmar mn
I g9 I & ORYTRAT B ¥W6U, NN gRE JAT aAqT
37eRUT XeE Toow S 3nfe o7 oY e R &

Tfafa & geal & G vd dodl § 3960 Juferta o faaro

oRRf¥re @ vd 7 H fear mr 7.

3.8 UTES Aar At

TRarg Rod § & feenteet & srRor §, 9fHfa §& & e
AT B JoTaT 3R UEDT Hf Rbraar & e # gearer g
B o e BT &, I8 e a1 H GUR 3 o1 aresy Fat afed
e Ut R 4 foaR e 2.

Tfafa & Tel & AT Td dodi § 396! 3ufita & faaro

ufkfere @ vd 7 # fear mar €.
3.9 YA ad-ie afafe

[T T dd i g-aTal GIaesit &7 STdHan YA JHread
T, IB & A adb-Id HeE R fqaR &, Aifa gt &
Fae § T ab-d U B fHeer e qer . ar.es. uRarsn
3E & PRI W FIRM! BT &9 # [ad gE T ab-1d &
e Wea & frewet o afafa nfea & & snavadmd Tegd o
TRIY. Wee - e 26 3R 2005 B SRS 30T do& H G
b R Taei o At Tiod o

Tfafd & Tedi ®F IXTHT Td dobi | 396! 3utefa &1 faaxo

oRf¥re @ wd v H fear war 2.

3.10 3gUTeT |t

IRAG Re@ d6 9 0T uF  HE&L ST,
IR1.6/11.01.005/2006-07 f&=Td 20 3TE, 2007 GRT Jbi H 3T
B & fore feenfder i €. 3 feemiidell & 3mgR wR d6 7 3
I AT SR § e sgAeT Mevid e o fedid 27
feRiaR, 2007 BT AT o H o 2. AT & YTaemi & SRR,
FFIUTE R [e=T! T |THIT BT o [daT . 29 FHaRT , 2009
@I Atk BT geRTe foar .

[ (e 0o

Tfafd & Tedi ©F ITAT Td dobi | 396! 3uteifa &1 faaxo

uRkfere @ v 1w # fear mar 2.
3.11 A |fHfe.

uRag Rad d6 T 309 U IRer. SISIeiel. N EveE.
47/29.39.001/2007-08 & 1 dax , 2007 gRT gda f=affa
feeet, o Tafea & fow sw AT wRa €, & Arwdr ud
sitfaer & feafa & feRker &= &g St v=ara gfear & &g
et & At afffd (T T / TR Sriues e nfed
T B IR ¥ gfua fear 2. & feenfadel & smeR w, #ed gRT
fEaR 29, 2007 T AT 3T dob H AHIDT THHTT BT ToT
Toar o,

Tfafq & Tedl o IR T4 dodbi # 396! 3uffa @1 faavor
aRkfere @ vd 7 ¥ fear mar 2.

Bonds, issue of Duplicate Certificates, recommended by the In-
house Share Transfer Scrutiny Committee. The Committee also
takes note of shareholding pattern, top holders list and Transfer
rejections etc.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.8 Customer Service Committee

Formed in line with RBI guidelines, the Committee reviews the
customer services in the Bank as also the progress in attending
to customer complaints and grievances. It also considers new
measures for improvement in customer service, including external
issues.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.9 Information Technology Committee.

With a view to facilitate optimum utilization of the existing IT
infrastructure, envision the IT mission of the Bank, to direct IT
department on policy matters and monitor the implementation
of CBS project etc., a need was felt to constitute committee of
Directors of the Board for IT. The Board at its meeting held on 26th
August, 2005, constituted Committee of Directors on Information
Technology.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.10 Compliance Committee.

Reserve Bank of India, vide their communication no. DBS.CO.PP.
BC.6/11.01.005/2006-07 dated April 20, 2007 has laid down
guidelines for Compliance function in Banks. Based on these
guidelines, the Bank had formulated its Compliance Policy which
was approved by Board at its meeting held on December 27,
2007. In accordance with the provisions of the Policy, a committee
of Directors on Compliance was constituted. The committee was
reconstituted on January 29, 2009.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.11 Nomination Committee.

The Reserve Bank of India, vide their communication DBOD.No.BC.
NO.47/29.39.001/2007-08 dated November 1, 2007 has notified to
constitute a Nomination Committee of Directors (all independent /
non-executive directors) to undertake a process of due diligence to
determine the “Fit and proper” status of existing elected Directors,
who file their nominations for election. Based on these guidelines,
the Bank had formulated its Nomination Committee was constituted
by Board at its meeting held on December 29, 2007.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.
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4 FRIUTET®! P AfHferd :

3% & [CF-UldcT & BRIGATT & Jaro 19 J FAeH & 108 db
T 3ME JtaRe Afafadr o 9 Mo foar . 358 sidRe afift
ST IPR S -

4.1 FraerHaeht ARt 3R o1 SR aRene & Jeftra s
@t sriaRas afafer:

d% 7 fow dder amer iR g aeR ke & d9g #
BIIUTTDT B AR TTHIT BT Mo [T 2. 3 THfg fHaer va
Tfer ygem Sael Tl oi=-37 WHe! o THIET HRaT & R 3agad

I DI sTeaerdT 9o & 3Teae Ud Uae fHaer 31 3@ srguifd
T HRIUED v ®Rd 2. T oy & aRM it o e

IR W dod AT §3.
4.2 3nfa e gee |t

36 7 anfed <aar gdem afufa @eer i an.) &1 17 fear 2.
HRIUTES Maeid 3R 3@ srgurefa # | # enfid aRedd
RIS D B reTerdl § afafg & Hral § 3 ararl b aqr-rer
ISR SNGH YSH, aRAdT SIEH Jae, 3adt v Saamsil dF
15T & Fde-aar WX FIRFT @1 Ud 83757 &1 311G & f=eriRor
ftaferd 2.

PITHD AENSD Td T BT P 3T SRIUGS AfHtd &
3T e €. THemeT a¥ & SR d6 H§ TUA.UH. o
# gt daer foar-fawet vd witem & &g |fufa & 22 o6
3mNfaa & TS,

4.3 3RS TR 3iaRor e afifer

d 7 37 AR B 3TAR0T BT IFAGH B B (I8 I P PRIUTID!
DI AaRe AR x0T Adrer Afufd &1 7o fhar €, s 6 &
RISGR Td TR 3iAR0T Uaic] gRT ATTed e ST €. |fHfd Tha-
THY IR THNTSIHRVT df Teel # g5 TTT b Ffe 3iR I o 2RI
& Yedl § g8 uc-g¢ o o 3aftid Bu I e SRl . W ed
() , TS HeNaesd (Mo dudb $He), TS HeT Ta8d
(FseT AraaTerd) dor yaersd (M9 dud &e) / Ul afaa afard
P ST I, HEIS D (CTET) 36 ATald & el Ig. AT a9 b
SR afafd &1 19 dod FuF g3,

4.4 IRTR Faeh AHE ) SRiuee) o stiaRks afufa

T & I3 1 I & URIRT o197 Teedpd / AT TRERT
&1 31feRrevT, uger AdraT 3R Ueerda uRwRT 3nfe & arw dter
J Haferd 8 &,

HEVESd (WolHN), HEWdYd (AFd SHeH Jaed Ud HHd
JOI ), HeT yaed (i qaae 3R yrafdsdr & vd &3

a - . - . . 0O ON
JTHIUT §), HETIS €I (cTa) T HETIaed (JF=ATe HIE0T) AT
& T . AT a9 & AR AT DI 26 66 Gs.

5. Feerel & TR#fe

3reeT vd gae Feeis 3R drdureis fevid dr 9Rd TReR &

4. Committees of Executives

For proper and efficient functioning of day-to-day functions of the
Bank, the Bank has also formed various in-house Committees.
Some of the in-house Committees are as under:

4.1 In-house Committee of Executives on Investments and
Money Market Operations

The Bank had constituted an In-house Committee of Executives
for Investment and Money Market Operations. The said Committee
reviews all the deals / transactions and the matters relating
to investments & funds management transactions and gives
necessary guidelines. These meetings take place everyday.

The Committee is chaired by the Chairman & Managing Director
and in his absence by the Executive Director. During the year under
review, the Committee has been meeting daily.

4.2 Assets Liability Management Committee

The Bank had constituted Assets Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) with Chairman and Managing Director as Chairman of the
Committee and in his absence Executive Director. The functions
of the Committee inter-alia include overseeing market risk
management, Liquidity Risk Management, interest rate sensitivity
of assets and liabilities and fixation of interest rates etc.

The functional General Managers and other executives from Head
Office are other members of the Committee. During the year under
review, the Committee met on 22 occasions to discuss and review
ALM functions in the Bank.

4.3 In-House Share Transfer Scrutiny Committee

The Bank had constituted an In-House Share Transfer Scrutiny
Committee of the executives of the Bank for approving /
recommending shares transfer, which are processed by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Bank. The Committee
also periodically reviews the progress of the demat position and
movement in share prices of the Bank. General Manager (Accounts),
Asst. General Manager (IRC), Assistant General Manager (Board
Secretariat) and Manager (IRC)/ Company Secretary were the
members of the Committee. General Manager (Accounts) was
the Chairman of the Committee. During the year under review, the
Committee met on 19 occasions.

4.4 Internal Committee of Executives on Premises

The main functions of the Committee are to review and recommend
the proposals of acquisition of leased/ ownership premises, renewal
of lease and surrender of leased premises etc.

General Manager (Treasury), General Manager (HRM & GAD),
General Manager (FI, PS & RRB), General Manager (Accounts)
and General Manager (RM) were the members of the Committee.
During the year under review, the Committee met on 26
occasions.

5. Remuneration of Directors

The Chairman & Managing Director and the Executive Directors
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A feenfrden & IR daas / wiRsiie & Al o T
o d & e deer ve 3 afufaat & dodt 7 sufed @
& fore 3% fovl UaR & dob I dF ST T B T, WRA
WREBR & feenfden & SR RBRI He9E BT BIgd 3T a4t
IR RIS el B 6 & FMeee dse B Td® Job § Wi
o & fawe 25000/ 3R 3T Tfafqal & TS dob & 9T oN &
e 22500/~ BT YA S e & FY H 31aT fovar T,

TH IR BRIUTS Feemd  dod! # IR e &g 3fcaad
J&® 3Ieb P JHATAT FART, AT, TER G &b ARG T DI AT
yfcgfcl df MY, IR HRIUES Haemdl & wRAHS 3 Haferd 7eT,
TG Iagd 96 (e vd fafger graen) arsHn 1970 7 Sfeaiad
YTEEN GIRT QMM &,

a¥ 2010-11 & T Hafera gedt @1 g foe e wiksifas &
fqa=oT 2010-11 HF TIfE RAE DY ST - 18 orar 9MT & T &
fewforat » # fear mar 21

6. STIRUT 9 & dob

UBell i TS AHFT TH3T U9 fUSel e STRITSROT A
U BT RT A fear mar & e St v & R 9YIE, IR
ARTGST ATRITTETeT Scei YTITeT0T HeTaaTerd, o1.a1.Ul.St. aTsHT,
faeraret (af¥aw) §a% -400 056 # FU= g5

were paid salary / remuneration as per extant guidelines of the
Government of India and are not paid sitting fees for attending the
Board and other Committee meetings of the Bank. All other Non-
Executive Directors except Government Director were paid sitting
fees of %5,000/- for attending each Board Meeting and %2,500/-
each for attending any other Committee meeting respectively as
per guidelines of the Government of India.

All the Non-Executive Directors are also reimbursed the actual
expenses incurred by them towards conveyance, traveling,
halting etc., for attending the meetings in addition to sitting fees
as mentioned above. All matters relating to remuneration of Non-
Executive Directors were governed by the provisions contained in
the Nationalized Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions)
Scheme, 1970.

The details of remuneration paid to related parties for the year
2010-11 are given in Schedule- 18 “NOTES FORMING PART OF
THE ACCOUNTS?” of the annual report for 2010-2011.

6. General Body Meetings

The details of last three Annual General Meetings and last three
Extra Ordinary General Meetings are given below. The Venue
of all meetings was Auditorium, Sir Sorabji Pochkhanawala
Bankers’ Training College, J.V.P.D. Scheme, Vile Parle (West),
Mumbai-400 056:

5% T &IRT Details of the Meeting

IR 3R 99 Date & Time

diegdl arfie I 4T *

Fourteenth Annual General Meeting”

YHAR, 16 JeATg 2010 3RFE 3.00 Tof
Friday, 16th July, 2010 at 3.00 p.m.

JREdl aIfYd AT T *

Thirteenth Annual General Meeting*

AR, 11 s 2009 3TRTE 3.00 T
Saturday, 11th July, 2009 at 3.00 p.m.

TREAT A AT T

Twelfth Annual General Meeting

IR, 12 JATE 2008 3MURTE 3.00 TaF
Saturday, 12th July, 2008 at 3.00 p.m.

URdTd, STRT BT T 3de & feTe)

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

of India)

(To create, offer, issue and allot Equity Shares on Preferential basis to Government

STRATERUT AT FHT (VRT TRBR BT AR MR W $faact 2Rt T go, | AHaR, 21 AW, 2011, Yaig 11.00 FoF

Monday, 21 March, 2011 at 11.00 a.m.

STRATEIRUT HHRI 4T (A1 YRURS a2 &1 AT )

Extra Ordinary General Meeting(Election of Three Shareholder Directors

HHaR, 9 AT 2009 Y&t~ 11.00 &
Monday, 9" March, 2009 at 11.00 a.m.

TRRT B IR-Fdd B

of Shares from DSE & ASE)

Extra Ordinary General Meeting(Election of Three Shareholder Directors & Delisting

IR ARG (A ARRYRS a2l &1 JA19 05 81005, T LOHS. F | THAR, 16 AId 2006 A= 11.00 a1

Thursday, 16" March, 2006 at 11.00 a.m.

freet aTftfes T & Y S1.vet. J19a 31eTeT ve gaes 9, A T
P. T PRIUTAD e2d, & T fpR Wk, §6 & Tfaar e,
8. THHAY HHAR MIA HRA TRBR & I (eerd, 9. 37 T,
AT 7. ATed @1 IR URS 216 3uteera 9.

3o e T dowt § B faery Faer uiRkd T8 f6d T o,

g6 Ade - Uee fad af & <R 96 7 fFar g6 Adeq &1
3RS & fopa.

The Last AGM was attended by Shri D. L. Rawal- Chairman
& Managing Director, Shri A. K. Dutt- Executive Director, Shri
Chandra Kishore — RBI Nominee Director, Dr. Kamlesh Kumar
Goel - Government of India Nominee, Shri |. M. Almeida- Officer
Employee Director, Dr. Pritam Singh — Shareholder Director and
Shri Rohit Khanna— Shareholder Director.

No special resolutions were put through in the above said Annual
General Meetings.

Postal Ballot — Bank has not conducted any postal ballot during the
last financial year.
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7.9%e ;
7.1 4t e de anfie Saer &1 UdbeT

31 A1d, 2011 &I T foxT a¥ # § 3R 396 Fevd & ag
foril IBR & HE@quT | T ger & a-ad, 3T 9o a1 daer
B DTS U g T g%, forwr amue w0 9 d6 & fedi & @
To]Ia |Tfa .

7.2 3% gRT 3U1e A [ S & Fafed drg 7Her HrT # e
3T & T IR SIS / e a1 {3 wifaftes mftre)or gr
el a1 aut & AR goi aoRt & Fafed fasit o ame § d6
R ¥ UBR BT JAFT/ e &} T T,

7.3 TURIRNTeT e (Nfear =R e fafraw 1992 & fafram
12 (1) & FROT H 9 = Afear AR I b & e SR
wHrifafr vd smaror Afear o1 sraf-aoe fovar & der d& o ufyfaat
H JAR® FMUR BT B & 07T BURE Udhe &g DAy Y

FeiRa o .

7.4 1§ GRT T Ui oil & A1 e T Galage Y1 & @
47 (IT) Y STV, 37 aTalT & WTI-RA1eT 3=, UyoT, 39 faesr,
T T Sdac! WART o 3MaT Y& & TG H TGP0 & U
HEM & 37eX U9IaR HUT Ifad F T B HeH & [ole THIOIS
T =T BT, 39 JHI0TIH Bl STRY 819 & 30 fad & iy ah.va 3.
vd TT.eH S, BT 3y R &

7.5 a1 & uRUT G STEUSHINI/UBITSEICRI/RII3TS3TR-16
feAi® fexieR 31, 2002 & AR, ST §F DI oA R / Fbarl
$fact gon & ey difas wu # qer fEmfsed & o w@ i o
SToacT AR YTt &1 TS B & 35T ¥ AGRNId dour
g o B gRT AR Y31 ot wieT & fHem(gd  afaara et
TRYE o A9 & ST ST o) fomeT e o) fosan ST1dr /. 597 dee
T SRY JHOOF §Y.09.S U9 U9.09.8 & 3ufyd fhar mar & Siet I
& Sfdact IR JAEE &,

7.6 ¥ gRT 3FUTeH @ T AR-31f+raref srremsit & ot fyeR &

7. Disclosures:

7.1 Disclosure of Material Transactions and Pecuniary Relationship

There have been no significant related party transactions, pecuniary
transactions or relationship between the Bank and its Directors for
the year ended March 31, 2011 that may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Bank at large.

7.2 There were no cases of non-compliance by the Bank and no
penalties / strictures were enforced on the bank by Stock Exchange/
SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to the
capital markets during the last three years.

7.3 Pursuant to Regulation 12(1) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 as amended, the Bank has implemented
a Code of Internal Procedure and conducts for prevention of insider
trading and also laid down the procedure for Corporate Disclosures
for prevention of insider trading in the securities of the Bank.

7.4 As required under clause 47 (c) of the listing agreements
entered into by Dena Bank with stock exchanges, a certificate is
obtained every six months from a practicing Company Secretary,
with regard to inter-alia, effecting transfer, transmission, sub-
division, consolidation, renewal and exchange of equity shares
within one month of the lodgment. The certificate is forwarded to
BSE and NSE, where the equity shares are listed, within 30 days
of issuance.

7.5 In terms of SEBI's circular No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16 dated
December 31, 2002 a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit
(Previously called Secretarial Audit) is conducted on a quarterly
basis by a firm of practicing company secretary, for the purpose of,
inter-alia, reconciliation of total admitted equity share capital with
the depositories and in the physical form with the total issued / paid
up equity capital of Dena Bank. Certificate issued in this behalf are
forwarded to BSE and NSE, where the equity shares of the Bank
are listed.

7.6 The Clause of Non-mandatory requirements complied by the
Bank is as follows:

e

Requirements

9 I
SI. No.

ST

Compliance

1

BT &GI8 TR AT HaD] BT ST HRABIA A a9 I TP
e BT, S 7 gi-read o o ag s, 3 wadd Feed &
w0 7 Fgeh fopam o1 3@ €, 3avdd AradTe U 3T Ha @ ©
ST G5 o ToTe Uil &AM T S, dueT bF gfte H, U wadH
e & 2T & d5uer B gHIaT T § aneE o § 3
& g &,

Independent Directors may have a tenure not exceeding, in the
aggregate, a period of nine years, on the Board of a company.
The company may ensure that the person who is being appointed
as an independent director has the requisite qualifications and
experience, which would be of use to the company and which,
in the opinion of the company, would enable him to contribute
effectively to the company in his capacity as an independent
director.

§F & 98 R wada eId! BT HrdbIer At aut I 3ifEd T&t
2 uRdra Red d% & feaie 1 Fdax 2007 & feenfadent &
39R, & & a5 ®I AMIGT AHd gRT INT T8 Fgad
Rerfa @1 fezor foar mar 8, 39 UeR a8 & 99 wady
e ara vd 3wt €.

The tenure of Independent Directors on the Board of the
Bank is not exceeding in the aggregate, a period of nine
years. As per Reserve Bank of India Guidelines dated 1st
November 2007, Fit and proper status was determined by the
Nomination Committee of the Board of the Bank and thus all
the independent directors on the Board are well qualified and
experienced.
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ST X

package for Executive Directors.

2 e BRTES Mot & fau Fide aRsfae Tdsr W & | a8 an] T8l 8 £, it dRiues Mawid HRd IRER §RT
! it =Aifer fHeaffa o & foe ow wiksiie il o | feaffa {5 T sraR a7 o e €, @l IR TWSR

J T feemfden & SRR drdfere smenfRa greares fer

R faaR &= & forr uiRsifie afafa ek 2,

The board may set up a remuneration committee to formulate | Not applicable, as Executive Directors draw salary as fixed
company’s remuneration policy on specific remuneration by the Government of India. However, a Remuneration

Committee is in place to consider Performance Based
Incentives in terms of guidelines received from Government
of India.

statements.

3 HU fomr o1t faeia faaxforat & sorawer & 3R 3R &

d& 7 3 30ET BT 3UIeH fhar 2.

Company may move towards a regime of unqualified financial | The Bank has complied with this requirement.

4 FadsdT gad At

Whistle Blower Policy

d% & T T Fabal Jad At AW UH AT B SFAGT
oo & f5raes siaia v yomett enfirer oo et 2 o v aefay
e ZaeR, afe 5 81, aRdide a1 dlewe dramesT ar
3TRROT A7 AT & 3o & ey § I qaddl ASERT /
UFe T BT h RUTE B ThdT 8. 39 a7 § 39 FHIRT &
30sT & S S T U W & |, 3 3T BT U HRAT
2. 39 URUF & AT ¥ 96 § 9 BT 9fad w0 I giaa
T mar &.

The Board of the Bank has approved a policy known as
Whistle Blower Policy, under this also a mechanism has
been incorporated as to how an employee can report to the
CVO/ management about unethical behavior if any, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of conduct or ethics. This
mechanism also provides adequate safeguards against
victimization of employee who avail of this mechanism. This
has appropriately communicated within the Bank by circular.

8. foiar afkony wd wowor & |re=
I 3% 37T @ DI 3TITRAT BT Haed adT 2.

§b & faamEr / srcaiyd / At aRome feifkd T9a T & 39
NP LTl H YK (DU S & T8l dob b AR Yl ¢ 5D
7T 81 fHTET / STgaTties / a1ities uRuTT Hifaferds 3eTsit & 33
3N H BrEAErIE v, AR16T § Alhdd / TaeIh(&3T HTHT)
qorr f&=t & FauRa & yopiterd foow o1ra €. § smw arfiie afkomat
B BTSN UlT TRYRDT DT AT IUTeT BRI 2. URUIH &b T1f-1T
YRR GTRAT &I G20 3R IR AT 9@ B dadRe 3 www.
denabank.com. TR T U3 fHhe T3 & I8 56 & IR § S

U< fasifta vd 30 wecayof fgavor Y yefeia a=ar 21
yae foar fawet ve fageyor arfffes Raré &7 wm 2.
9. IRYURS & fere o

3% v s Ao da €, foeT yem srfaa ga & &
1291 RAT3A & Teddh b AT 9 ool ufRIfe T HRd 7 2.

8. Financial Results and Means of Communication:

The Bank recognizes the need for keeping its members and
stakeholders informed of the events of their interests.

The Quarterly / Half Yearly / Annual results of the Bank were
submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Bank
are listed, within the stipulated time frame. Further, the quarterly
results / half-yearly / annual results were also published in Financial
Express in English, Lokmat / Navshakti in Marathi (Regional
Language) and Navbharat in Hindi as per the statutory requirement.
The Bank also furnished the physical copy of the annual results to
the Shareholders.The results as well as shareholding pattern and
share prices were also displayed on the website of the Bank i.e.
www.denabank.com. It also displayed official press releases and
other important details about the Bank.

Management Discussion and Analysis forming part of the Annual
Report.

9. Shareholder information

The Bank is a Scheduled Commercial Bank having its Head Office
at Mumbai. The Bank has its presence all over India with a network
of 1291 branches.
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d % Sfac 9o, §ag IR TR faafies (@I0es), AR I
R aoTR farfies (oews), # gaes &

The Equity shares of the Bank are listed on Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE).

sﬂ’éﬁ I fipT BTS RIS o The stock scrip codes are as follows:
I vaTdisT Stock Exchange PIs Code
3cthT Alpha ?{ﬁﬁ'd? Numeric
& v $ BSE 3T 5 DENA BANK 532121
U7 TF 5 NSE 29T §b DENA BANK .

31T 3 2011-12 & foTe A1 i UaRisl df I Gaagd e
BT YA B fear mar &,

3% 7 IHOHI W 99 U7 (SRR | 0 CRR 11 o) & wq H

Annual Listing fee for next financial year 2011-12 has been paid to
both the stock exchanges.

The Bank has issued Non-Convertible Bonds in the nature of
Promissory Notes (Tier-I and Tier-Il Capital) from time to time. The
relevant details thereof are as under:

forta &1 faa=or T (B9 RIS H) e ot fafyr gRusaara fafyr | sndeasmged S

Particulars of the Issue Size % In Cr) Date of Allotment Date of Maturity ISIN No.
6.20% = Rl EIT_S’(QI'@ET VII) 150 31.03.2004 30.04.2013 INEO77A09021
6.20% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series VII)
7.30% = R EI'i's’(‘{f@FIT VIIT) 210 31.03.2005 30.04.2014 INEO77A09039
7.30% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series VIII)
9.25% 1= Era=-I1 aTs (e IX) 106 25.03.2008 24.05.2018 INEO77A09062
9.25% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series IX)
11.20% {7 TR SSE@@e X) 300 30.09.2008 30.04.2019 INEO77A09070
11.20% Lower Tier-1l Bonds (Series X)
9.50% T+ CHaR-I1 ais(Zetm XI) 200 29.01.2009 29.01.2019 INEO77A09088
9.50% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series XI)
9.20% 3T SIIR-II @ﬂ"s’({f@?ﬂ 1) 300 30.09.2006 30.09.2021 INEO77A09047
9.20% Upper Tier-Il Bonds (Series I)
10.05% SHIATT TS(FET ) 125 31.12.2007 JHTITE Perpetual INE077A09054
10.05% Perpetual Bonds (Series 1)
9.00% SHIITGT §ie(Z=ae Il) 125 28.05.2009 JHIITET Perpetual INEO77A09096
9.00% Perpetual Bonds (Series Il)

T T G5 AYH Widh UaRiot 3N gfean fafies W oies € v
d% 7 Il TaRiaT dI 3T fadd a9 2011-12 & e a1fies Jaaear
e T Y o fear &,

IR 96 & aiet B T fET B Rafa (31-03-2011 P):Credit

Rating position of the Bonds of our Bank (As on 31.03.2011 G2l ):

All these Bonds are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
and the Bank has paid the Annual listing fee for next financial year
2011-12 to the Stock Exchange.

Credit Rating position of the Bonds of our Bank
(As on 31.03.2011):

qisi & UBR watt e Ratings
Types of Bonds Agency
157 TR Lower Tier-II fosfaer CRISIL AA+/ Stable
AT CARE CARE AA+
fthar FITCH A+ (Ind)
3T EIOR || U 3SUTSIang fopfer CRISIL AA/ Stable
Upper Tier-Il & IPDI 53 FITCH A (Ind)
SIS fopfTeT CRISIL AA/ Stable
IPDI PIR CARE CARE AA-
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9.1 ITRI BT B RSN BT

6 & IRT BT TIATT 37MAID FI F BN Wy H fosan
ST 8. SIRIGAT §b & B ¥, §6 7 AR & JHNSHHROT B
foe TeaEiee. 3R METHe. & I Uh BRR fhar 2. Jdr
feemfdel & ol & 3R, 36 & RER 3R AR 3FeRoT 37 HabdT
Al 4P & IRYURDT I 3ARVT / THATSHDHROT / JABTISDBROT B
gfgere R &

feqT® 31.03.2011 d §b & 1,96,480 IRYURS & o9
d% ¥ 36,354 YTRYRS 370 IR HNTeN FU H GROT f5w gU &
3R 1,60,126 YTRYR®! 1 3T IR EHC FU H IW g . A
33,33,89,074 ITRT H I 19,33,85,874 IR (58.01%) HRA IRPR
ERT elagid ¥ # I U ¢, ¥T 14,00,03,200 AR (41.99%)
Star / foia gt / sifeRh ROt ganfe & U £ fedie
31.03.2011 &I, 33,33,89,074 BRI § I 32,37,91,637 (97.12%)
SR gIaC - wawq § U9 9IY 95,97,437 (2.88%) TR BT
e 7 faemam &,

9.2 TR 3iaR0T Ugfer 3 gt o et o1 fHaror

§ 7 IO IRy Aiawret (3fvsan) usde fafies & §6 & IR
31aRUT Uaic (3TR.UUS &1.) & w0 & rf dfur € 31 9rax / §7us 3iaxor
/ UYOT, ETHTRT / SATST A 3R e daet s T Aer )
BRATE TR IR T AT 3cRVT Taic GRT 3B BrATed § b
ST 8. ITRGR UF R 3iR0T Uoie Hawrdl & 3RIe IR HRars
FRA B TIE, 3¢ 9P P DAUAD] DI HARD IR 37AR0T Farer
fhfa & ey aar & 3R 98 afufd d6 & IRt $ 37aRoT / gyor
3T BT TG TR IFD! IIE 3 oL AR 3AR0T AHIT BT 310!
wegfa o 2.

IR YR 31U 37R0T faeivd (Shdet BHTs BT H enfkd g & Arer
) 31k feorrra dfed 3ra B8 yord § & ISR vd IR 3iavon
vaic & FAfafed o0 ) 95 Iad € 3R 399 Iefd R o,
afe 1% &1, 39 d & FHIwe duds &g &1 T fow 7w o W) a5
B &.

9.1 Dematerialisation of Shares

The shares of the Bank are traded compulsorily in dematerialised
mode. The Bank, as an issuer, has entered into agreements
with NSDL and CDSL for dematerialization of shares. In terms
of SEBI guidelines, the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the
Bank is also extending the facility of transfer/ dematerialization /
rematerialisation etc., to shareholders of the Bank.

As on 31.03.2011, the Bank had 1,96,480 shareholders out of
which 36,354 shareholders of the Bank had been holding their
shares in physical form and 1,60,126 shareholders hold shares
in demat mode. Out of 33,33,89,074 shares, 19,33,85,874 shares
(58.01%) are held by Government of India in electronic form and
the remaining 14,00,03,200 shares (41.99%) are held by the
Public/ Flls/ NRls/ Insurance Companies etc. As on 31.03.2011
out of 33,33,89,074 shares, 32,37,91,637 (97.12%) shares are in
electronic mode and remaining 95,97,437 (2.88%) shares are in
physical mode.

9.2 Share Transfer Systems and Redressal of Investor Grievances.

The Bank has engaged M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Private
Limited as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (R & T) of the Bank
and the Share/ Bond transfers / transmission, Dividend / Interest
payments and all other investors’ related matters are attended
to and processed by Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at their
office. The R & T, after processing the requests of investors, put
the same to the In-house Share Transfer Scrutiny Committee of
the Executives of the Bank which approves and recommends the
transfer / transmission etc. of shares of the Bank to the Share
Transfer Committee for ratification.

Shareholders may lodge their transfer deeds (only in case of holding
in physical form) and any other document, including complaints at
the following address of Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the
Bank and also refer correspondence, if any, at the Bank’s Investor
Relations Centre at the address given below.

oo

T reRYT Tidwet (3fam) ursde fa
gHM . 52 3 56, e 3. - 1304,
SATDFIDT CAlD TaeTisT & TN,

e - 400 072.

Unit: Dena Bank, Samhita
Complex, Gala No.-52 to 56,
Bldg. No. 13 A-B, Near Sakinaka
Telephone Exchange,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Sakinaka,
Mumbai - 400 072.

eI Tel: 67720300/400/353/385
SelithaT Telefax: 28375646

%-ﬁ?{ E-Mail: sharepro@shareproservices.com.

[HCS M/s. Sharepro Services (I) Pvt Ltd

T 3, U Braferd, 99Ie 9ud e, Dena Bank, Head Office,
3]T A, ST HURE Few, H-10,
ataT (gd),

&% - 400 051.

Investor Relation Centre, C-10,
G Block, Bandra-Kurla complex,
Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 051.

SEIBI Tel: 26545318/19/20
CTN-UhaT Tele-fax: 26545317
é-ﬁﬁ E-Mail: irc@denabank.co.in
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HRara gfayfa vd fafma a8 (@) 7 gdiag sl o 9
Q& & fos et & Rt & Haror &g 9 fafvre §-9a amg 8
fafega &R, deg9R, d% 3 Frerdl & faro &g e fafere §-
e 311'5‘?[ investorgrievance@denabank.co.in erifRa & %
IIREYRBI I IR ¢ {5 7 fomit ff axe o Rorwrrat & wmer o
397 giaen &7 3w AR

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has advised the
listed companies to designate an exclusive e-mail ID for Redressal
of Investor Complaints. Accordingly, the Bank has provided a
dedicated and exclusive e-mail id investorgrievance @denabank.
co.in for the Grievance Redressal. Shareholders are requested to
avalil of this facility in case of any grievance.

9.3 Financial Calendar:

9.3 farirar eivex (3remh)

foir o

Financial Year

1 31 2010 & 31 AT, 2011 T
1t April, 2010 to 31st March, 2011

ol W AR B vd A, afc dr5 81, B AT DA B foE Heel B dob

Board Meeting for considering the Accounts and recommendation of dividend, if any

29/04/2011 (J[HAR Friday)

Date of Fifteenth Annual General Meeting

T 4 BN B AR 09 JTiE, 2011 § 18 JaTiE, 2011 T
Dates of Book Closures 09th July, 2011 to 18th July, 2011
TRETRT B 9Tad = B sifere fafdr 13 s 2011

Last date for receipt of proxy form 13 July 2011

Uegdl aTfics AR THT I dRIE 18 s 2011

18th July, 2011

e o femfeat & fore IR eremRiféra aRomt @1 sifiere & o &g s dea
B dob

Board Meeting for taking on record the Un-audited results for first 3 quarters

e faEr & 31T 7e @ 3ifay I
Last week of the succeeding month of the
relevant quarter

Yggd! aifties AT THT &7 W
Venue of Fifteenth Annual General Meeting

TUTE, TR ARTESH Graar=raret Ja FiereroT
TEIfaaTerd, HUR 3T & T, Siardrel ara,
faeraret (af¥am),

Ha5 400 056.

Auditorium, Sir Sorabji Pochkhanawala

Bankers' Training College, Near Cooper Hospital,
J.V.P.D. Scheme, Vile Parle (West),
Mumbai- 400 056

9.4 af 2010-11 & eRM vA.Ea.g./d.eas. & Areaw ¥ @A/a
e IR &) Fiad 3R 7=

9.4 Shares Price and Volume of Shares traded on NSE & BSE
during the year 2010-11:

AT WIS LTSt (T.09.8.) Heg WP vadet (81.89.5)
National Stock Exchange (NSE) Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)
arafer e | e [ERAImERR| Iwme | FEe | @de/e Rt
Period High Low P amEn High Low P
N N Total Volume of N N Total Volume of
shares traded shares traded
ke April 2010 89.85 76.90 51436911 89.60 77.20 12165571
u—é May 2010 94.65 80.50 82690326 94.95 80.50 21457807
S June 2010 96.40 85.50 62660306 96.40 85.65 16783443
@ETBC July 2010 102.00 91.00 56097216 102.00 91.00 16122918
3T August 2010 112.45 98.10 65059520 112.40 98.20 13470701
ISR September 2010 116.60 103.20 44443653 116.50 102.85 7932058
3Tthax October 2010 144.35 107.30 102586384 144.30 107.25 23296892
Fga= November 2010 151.00 112.50 55329073 151.00 113.00 14004591
f&aR December 2010 143.60 105.15 54082367 143.50 106.60 12114990
SR January, 2011 118.55 96.15 40650742 118.50 96.30 10100469
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BRI February, 2011 107.00  |86.25 41620202 106.95 86.20 8803155
AT March, 2011 106.35  |93.25 26953370 106.30 94.40 5959971
gy & R TdTd Highest during the year 35 3151.00 3 3151.00

¥ & SR AT Lowest during the year 3 376.90 3 377.20

9.5 fa=1isp 31 AT, 2011 Y NIRRT BT WHT
&5 % S IR S AR AR W AN IR AR A Geag €. S Y
S ORI IISTRY Y 31 A1, 2011 ﬁwﬁ@mwwm The Equity shares of the Bank are listed on BSE and NSE. The

R : ] Bank has paid the Annual Listing Fees to these Stock Exchanges
gie 2. 31 7, 2011 1 et %g 9 P A P for the year ended 31 March 2011. The shareholding pattern of the

9.5 Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2011:

AT SR 2 - Bank as on March 31, 2011 is as follows:
%.49. Srofy e IoRT B FE=r TR GTRaT &1 %
SI. No. Category No. of Shares held % of Shareholding
1 HRd FXDR Government of India 193385874 58.01
2 d& vd foxia S 248860 0.07
Banks & Financial Institutions
3 RT3 B8 / {.. ¢ Mutual Funds/ UTI 9612826 2.88
4 9T HUIT Insurance Companies 21231683 6.37
5 Tt 1 Bodies Corporate 12047744 3.61
6 31,9 9T.NRI/ 3 1 & OCBs 1429025 0.43
7 farir st/ g sifawes uRaR / = e 49869409 14.96
Resident Individuals/ HUF/ Trust, etc.
8 facelt dvemma fHaers 45563653 13.67
Foreign Institutional Investors
Pl TOTAL 333389074 100.00

9.6 (®) fami® 31-03-2011 P Yadis 3R Yacia wg B AAvft & Haftra aftpat 3t SrorenRar yaf¥fa s arer faazor

(A) Statement showing shareholding of persons belonging to the category "Promoter and Promoter Group as on 31-03-2011

.9 IRURS HT T enfRe PeRT 3w HoT ARAT T %
SI.No. Name of Share holder Number of Shares held % of total holding
1 YRT & TI'EQU‘FCT President of India 19,33,85,874 58.01
Pl TOTAL 19,33,85,874 58.01

(@) famie 31.03.2011 B AR} B FeT T & v gfererad A 3ifts AorenRar ik 'srar 3 ot ¥ Hefera aafipal o rorenRaryelRfa
A arer faaRor

B) Statement showing shareholding of persons belonging to the category "Public" and holding more than 1% of the total number of
shares as on 31-03-2011

%.9.5/ | IR aRa! @t syofy RIS EET | IR D AT S
No. |Category of the Shareholders Number of Shares | YfeRd & U H IR
held Shares as percentage
of total no. of shares
1 | 9RART e arar 21131916 6.34
Life Insurance Corporation of India
I O U Acacia Partners, LP 8400000 252
3T BIUR AT TSl HUAT HS 8000000 2.40
Oppenheimer International Small Co. Fund
4 |9 we s (mRes) ffiies Sanlam Asset Management (Ireland) Ltd. 3473307 1.04
P Total 41005223 12.30
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9.7 fetia 31 AT, 2011 B LroRENRAT HT faaRor Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2011

fora=or (2R 31 we=m) SITRERSG Shareholders FroRenRarShareholding
Description (No of Shares) H&ar Number HADT % H&ar Number HADI %
% to total % to total
Upto 500 ddh 1,83,066 SR A7 2,84,50,076 8.53
501-1000 8390 4.27 6774199 2.03
1001-2000 2769 1.41 4278303 1.28
2001-3000 85 0.37 1894759 0.57
3001-4000 385 0.20 1382707 0.42
4001-5000 267 0.14 1276289 0.38
5001-10000 426 0.22 3228672 0.97
Above 10000 3 31816 442 0.22 286104069 85.82
Pl Total 1,96,480 100.00 33,33,89,074 100.00

9.8 W e ft Hvawaw AR & SaR-=g1a # A1 J 1 9% F AR FT e frargar welkia ¢,
Performance of Dena Bank Share in comparison with the movement of S & P CNX Nifty is shown here below

Share Price Movement (NSE)

6500 — — 160
6000 —-\./P—._/-—l\./'\-\./.— 140
_. 5500 |
& 5000 (g8
L 4500 {100 _
Z 4000 - Hso ™
E 3500 [~ s
3000 —
2500 — 5140
T o e O s e e
1323955385 ¢8¢8
[ —=— PR NIFTY —8— &-1da Dena Bank |
9.9. ¥R ¥R & forg == Shareholders information:
o = ferferRad aut & forg amvier sifda fasam The Bank had declared Dividend for the following years:
ok af TATTEN(%) B af TS (%)
Sl Year Dividend (%) SI.No. Year Dividend (%)
1 1996-1997 12% 8 2003-2004 2= Nil
2 1997-1998 15% 9 2004-2005 2= Nil
3 1998-1999 16% 10 2005-2006 T Nil
4 1999-2000 6% 11 2006-2007 8%
5 2000-2001 Nil 12 2007-2008 10%
6 2001-2002 Nil 13 2008-2009 12%
7 2002-2003 Nil 14 2009-2010 20%

HRT TRBR F 31T 31FRIET ferids 3Rpax 16, 2006 & gIRT ST
BT (3UHHT T ITTET v FRonTII 1970/1980 B g
renfera fosar & 31k femias 16 3rpex 2006 3 dfdT HwAY (SugsHl
1 3rfenreor vd 3iaRon) o foxira wer faftr (@ener) sittifrom

2006 ATH® TIT B &1 fear 2.
39GH STfm B aRT 10(@) (2) T (3) B 3R, 96 BI IRJTH

The Government of India vide its notification dated October 16,
2006 has further amended the Banking Companies (Acquisitions
& Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/ 1980, and enacted the new
law called the Banking Companies (Acquisitions and Transfer of
Undertakings) and Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act,
2006 w.e.f. 16th October, 2006.

As per section 10(B) (2) & (3) of the aforesaid Act, the Bank has
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siferfraw & yRY 89 ¥ qd O fomety o emaier a5F raw <ifer, gof
B0 W 1 3R D9 H, ST & ANy E 31 16 3TpaR, 2006
¥ BE 7S & HIaR ST 9 BT 3G ATHIE W (@) 919 oy
T H 3RT BRAT 8. 96 7 IHYTH 3T BT qIe a1 & AR
I 31eT amre @ # siafa o fEar 8.

qegaR, f5 SOREURST BT a9 1999-2000 3R I 2006-2010 F
foe ameter ot €Y 830 & 9 B et & foe 96 & Havs
g g a1 TS IR 1. |afd¥eT (3f5an) ursde fa. I 9wd )
Thd 8. § 7 aF 2000-2001 I 2005-2006 I & 10 PTg WY ATHTLT
g =&t fosar €.

9.10. 378 IR 3.37. TH. Jfaet 3ucier & 98T FHawidt & seragi e
FHTLNES HaT & ATeaH & amHieT faaRa =t & fofe srmdsafsit gRT
T d @t o fIaRult &1 37am o &g Fer 7 39 9l gaas
AT & fore sifvard & fean 81 530709 gfaen Suaes 7 89 &
Rerf & d& o foraa W Hawe! &1 amwre faaror & foe d§6
@ o1 e, afe suerer &, g .

9.11. U IR UR® Toh IR BT €7 § ¢ 3R foFgi 86 &1
arftreer fazon sifrcer fyavor # ge uRad= §& & gfaa 7& f&ar
&, 7 3 faaRuT §6 & IR TR allcs THIeT aRC & eNETes! yddb
THEIDROT I TAT 5T . I U TRIA B BT UTHMAT aTrids
A o 37emT I 3ucTer HRIAT TAT 2.

9.12 HUAT I8 = ¢ o5 f59 IR aRBT & IR HIreT w9 F &
3 3= d afteer faevor 3R wa # ge uRad=, afe @15 & ar,
IRERDI & AT DI 3T PR & [ b &b d2D T
&g a1 79 AR U1 AE9w (Gfeam ursde fafics, a8 @1 9ot
qhd &, U ITRYURS 5! IoR ekl e (Saagi-m) T § §
3§ @At & faaRoT, YORERSD 3MMTe & U T AT T I 3T
T P e 3= TeurfsTest Teumt & Jwd &R

TmaT TE frd 1§ & $fdact ARt & AdY H GAaEd BRR B
QUs 5 U(11) % idTd INFEAER §6 = 3NaTdd HEH 3014 £

to transfer the whole or part of any dividend declared before the
commencement of the above said Act, unpaid dividend to a special
account called “Unpaid Dividend Account of Dena Bank (year)”
within six months from the commencement of the Act. i.e. 16"
October, 2006. Bank has complied with the above requirement and
transferred the same to “Unpaid Dividend Account “

Accordingly, the shareholders who have not received the dividend
for upto year 1999-2000 and year 2006-2010 may please contact
Investor Relations Centre of the Bank or M/s. Sharepro Services
(India) Private Limited for assistance. Bank had not declared any
dividend during the years 2000-2001 to 2005-06.

9.10 SEBI has made it mandatory for all listed companies to use the
Bank account details furnished by the Depositories for distributing
dividends through National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS) to
the investors where ECS facility is available. In the absence of NECS
facility the Bank shall print the Bank Account details, if available, on
payment instrument for distribution of dividends to the investors.

9.11 The shareholders having physical shares, who have not
provided the Bank Mandate details/ change in Bank Mandate
details may furnish the same to avoid fraudulent encashment of
the dividend warrants. Performa for furnishing the Bank Mandate is
provided separately in the Annual Report.

9.12 It may please be noted that the shareholders who are holding
the shares in physical form may send their Bank Mandate details
& change in address, if any, to the Investor Relations Centre of the
Bank or M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited, Mumbai
for updating record of the shareholders. The shareholders who are
holding the shares in demat (electronic) form may approach their
Depository Participant for necessary updating of the particulars of
Bank account, address of shareholder etc.

Bank has initiated necessary steps as required under cluse 5A (l)
of the Listing Agreement, with regard to Unclaimed Equity Shares
of the Bank.
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10. 31eTe] U wae 29T HRiUTA® A9 gRT {0

e Fea

I S

g

B TegRT 31 A4, 2011 @l I fawiar a¥ & forg fiwher fa=on qen
qhe! FaTg fIaxon ot et Ud STa Sqaiad ST d favaT & SeR
R SO Nl & b -

i.. = fIeRol § e wU A PIS Tord faavor 781 & 31erer 79 § Pl
HIRTe 27 BT &1 T & Ferar S U= 1S faaRer 781 & S TR
PR Bl;

i, A faRoT U 11 e & T BT B Yeb el @ THS B IR BRel
g, W & 3 9 & s ol § sere forg g yafer aaie
TR, ey fAfre 7 fafmi & Srgarer % TR .

iii. TR WaRW BRI g fI¥ar & STgER a¥ 2010-2011 & SR §&
GRT U1 PIE -3 T8 a1 T S HOeyel, e 3ferat S

e ded / MR ReTd db Pl R & TS 2.

iV. B AdRe FEwi ol It PR T Seh! 91T & 6l ST
PR BRI . B S P AcAReb FAG0T JUTTelt B THTdTHRT BT
YT e 2 U & SiaRes (=T somelt & waved @ aRerer
J TR S B, RPN &9 o/ €, & IR § oiar T¥efel 9
AT TNeTT AR BT T T 2 AT B 3 BT by R & forw
AT PHeH Sem &

V. gngﬂmﬁfﬁm%ﬁf
1. o &% R HiaRes R0 Tomelt # 1S Fecaqol aRadH 8 gu d;

2. U IY P IRM IEih Al H Pls Heaqel qRac el g4 & (N
IG> R S sy aRommT & sebe ax R T e;

3. e fea / R Red d &1 @1 T RAIE @l Bissy, Heem
SrorT Rl e Rered) et wfieT $a @Y iaRe FreT
oTelt & B, % U fohell AEAQUl Bel-hUC F PBIS ISRV TE W &
Ry 29 o1aa 78 A MY E. 59 H IS MR IR gE R A
# 3570h T el STawes ST W AR 9 9 fhy o ¥2 €.

i P e Thon S22~
(TT.H.39) (@) (1.0 31aeT)

eI U§ed () DIRIUleld (agidd  37e0eT v9 ya e fFees
feTe: 28.04.2011 I g8

10. CERTIFICATION BY CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR,
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR :

The Board of Directors
Dena Bank,
Mumbai

We hereby certify that for the financial year, ending 31st March,
2011 on the basis of the review of the financial statements and the
cash flow statement and to the best of our knowledge and belief
that :-

These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement
or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Bank’s
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations, as disclosed in the financial results
of the Bank.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions
entered into by the Bank during the year 2010-11 which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Bank’s code of conduct, except
as reported to Board / RBI.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal
controls. We have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control
systems of the bank and we have disclosed to the auditors and
the Audit Committee, those deficiencies, of which we are aware, in
the design or operation of the internal control systems and that we
have taken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies.

We further certify that :

1. there have been no significant changes in internal control
system during the year;

2. there have been no significant changes in accounting policies
during this year, except as disclosed in the financial results of
the Bank.

3. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which
we have become aware and the involvement therein, of
the management or an employee having a significant role
in the Bank’s internal control system except as reported to
Board / RBIl. Whenever any frauds were detected necessary
disciplinary action was taken against the concerned employee.
Further necessary preventive measures are also being taken
on ongoing basis.

f >

7

. I ¥
| A ‘.{' ',’\' y/

(S. K. Jain) (A. K. Dutt) (D. L. Rawal)
General Manager Executive Director Chairman &
(Accounts) Managing Director
Date: 28.04.2011 Place:Mumbai
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PURE R R G KI&D 1 BT JHoT U7
Jar ¥,
e Tea
1 9, YU BRI
1 PRE Fex, [-10, ‘S ifep,
igT-Gel Hieeied, 9151 (3d)
H&s - 400 051,

S 9 GRT AL Theb TaRTeiet [fcS (09, Has el Gafeiet
(fo=E) & ST b T GGG FRR (I - WG R AT SN
F T 49 ¥ gor AeiRT 31 A, 2011 BT AT a9 b forw 1 S T
PTANT VLA 3 2t b FITA bt &A i1 Bl &,

PHRAE, PUNC AR B W B gae GARET =1 & forg
dp N1 TR TS BRI AR BT B T AT . g T @
AETIRIET B 3R 7 8§ % fawiig fdav o= daea ot sif¥eafa 2.

& JFIT el 8 o AT I H SiR AR Fatem SR 3R & e
TR & TR T S 1 STYTT GAdG PRR & SIGad
SfeiRad Es 49 # Ten MeiRa B AR I el BT IFgaTerT
a8, S T% & 9 MR TRBR / IR Rerd §a gR1 oIy feremfcen
J IR TR B.

W I8 e FEA & b dep b AR G k0T A Nehell FRT FeiT STl
d & e I e a1s @t Rierd w A1' I 31 T dfad
TE 8.

&9 I8 W FHE aTEa & b T SIguTer | ot deb 3 T e &% ®9

F 3Mmearg & 3R 7 € S BRI 3R THEHBT BT, RNy Yo i
J § T BB fHAT 2.

Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

To

The Board of Directors,

Dena Bank,

Head office, Dena Corporate Centre
C-10, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance by Dena Bank for the year ended March 31, 2011, as
stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements (as modified from
time to time) entered into with National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

The compliance of the conditions of corporate governance is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
the procedures and implementation there of, in terms of aforesaid
Clause 49. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statement of the Bank.

We certify that, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Bank has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
above-mentioned Clause 49 of the listing agreements, so far as they
are not inconsistent with the guidelines issued by the Government
of India/ Reserve Bank of India.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period
exceeding one month against the Bank as certified by Registrar &
Transfer Agents of the Bank.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

PAAMEACWSHS  FAA. $. GRS, FANNFEANEES. Fd & &. ST W08 Hd A S, T Pl T W SO oS

TS TETBR TS TETBR ECURGRCIGARS
For M/s. Gokhale & For B. KKhare For Gandhi For P K Chopra For Avanish K Rastogi & For S. C. Bapna &
Sathe & Co. Minocha & Co. & Co. Associates Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FEAR T AT GLILEECH 3T FedTeT &. T AIgeaRi eTaTeT Tt o9, §oeT
Kedar Mehendale Santosh Parab Ajay Katyal K.S. Ponnuswami Yashpal Sharma S. C. Bapna
WMER Partner YATER Partner YATIER Partner YATER Partner YATIER Partner YIMER Partner

(@FH. M.No. 116065)  (TH. H. M.No. 047942)
w1 §a3, femra: 28 snkd, 2011

(@FH. M.No. 087915)
Place: Mumbai, Date: 28th April, 2011

(@H. 5. M.No. 070276)

(T . M.No. 404939) (@ . M.No. 071765)
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& 31.03.2011 B H2cr o1 wfufea & T ot Rafd COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD as on 31.03.2011

319 & Annexure B

Tfifer COMMITTEE

3regar CHAIRMAN

I MEMBERS

geer afata

Management Committee

21 8. ve. 1ael
Shri D. L. RAWAL

Y T.p.ad Shri AK. Dutt,
Y 941 fasrig Shri B.P. Vijayendra,
ST 37T .0H.31cgST Shri |. M. Almeida,

gf AT T Dr. Sunil Gupta
I rfEd WHT Shri Rohit Khanna

TR WRreT |t

Audit Committee

€T e e

Dr. Sunil Gupta

S T.95.a Shri A.K. Dutt,

21 d9H < Dr. Tarsem Chand,

S .47 fas/ig Shri B.P. Vijayendra,
S JfEe WET Shri Rohit Khanna

TR |HfT

Remuneration Committee

31 d99 T< Dr. Tarsem Chand

Y aY.U1 fasiig Shri B.P. Vijayendra,
8 Uiaw 98 Dr. Pritam Singh,

=) WJIG!T Dr. Sunil Gupta

IRRYRDT / 9wt & reraa e gfifa

Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee

¥ Jfea =

Shri Rohit Khanna

S U.3p.aT Shri AK. Dutt,

ST 37TS . TH.31CZET Shri |.M. Almeida

T~ SRGH T FiHfa

Committee on Integrated Risk Management

2 81, UeT. aet
Shri D. L. Rawal

S U.3p.ad Shri AK. Dutt,

STV 31TS .TH.31HST Shri |.M. Almeida,
s Uiaw 98 Dr. Pritam Singh

Customer Service Committee

Shri D. L. Rawal

I8 gou aret enErafsat o FRE |fifa Y 81, U 19cT S T.5.& Shri A.K. Dutt,
Shri D. L. Rawal 8f a9\ Ta Dr. T Chand
Committee Monitoring Large Value Frauds : e v 3 ' ar‘sem . i)
g Uiaw 98 Dr. Pritam Singh,
ST Af&d =T Shri Rohit Khana
R 3ieRoT At Y 1. v, 9 Y T.35.39 Shri. AK. Dutt,
Share Transfer Committee Shri D. L. Rawal Cii &d W= Shri Rohit Khanna
T Jar Jrafd Y ST ve. AT Y ©.3p.ad Shri AK. Dutt,

21 dRYH T< Dr. Tarsem Chand,

STV 31TS.TH.31HST Shri |.M. Almeida,
s Wiaw 98 Dr. Pritam Singh

o= g |fafa

Information Technology Committee

ST ST, TeT. 1aeT
Shri D. L. Rawal

S T.3h.ad Shri AK. Dutt,
8T Uiaw 98 Dr. Pritam Singh
S Af&d @=T Shri Rohit Khanna

R IR RSIEIR]

Compliance Committee

8T it T

Dr. Sunil Gupta

S U.3p.& Shri AK. Dutt,
27 a9 °e Dr. Tarsem Chand

TR FrHd

Nomination Committee

g a9y da
Dr. Tarsem Chand

ST 31TS.TH.37eH ST Shri .M. Almeida
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f*Rere & faazor DIRECTORS' PROFILE

1. 3} 1. eeT.]1aer 7 ST §b P 37eTeT U9 U e 9 BT HRIUR 1
STERT, 2009 T TE9T .

AT G BT HRIR UG e 9 I 3R g, Rea dfdm
B 3T & e T 3menRa 3uR Tl 3TRH T H 376! 5@
T Q). I UT AeFe 96 BF 3Hd Ferd dHuf-ar § gaer
fers den fAeers & Tu A A yer foar.

@A 7 RGO Red 86 gR1 g &g IHior §F &
fERUTE TE & Afafd & ¥e, T 2 aRg dd & HOT R &Tof
R & srfafa & foe YR 36 F9 gr1 g afifa & Jew,
eI AR TN TR I HAE gRT RN e’y TRIah o
IEH 0T UaH B3 & 7T BRied & 66, IRA 8 9 gRI
Tiea Rea, BT aor og I 3 9T & Jewa, wRag Red
o, feeet grT nfed tamH s, W sfeRund afafd & g qor
¥ 2008-09 & o BT HRITR qoIT focirar FHaeH W 375 &1 8. &HF
T & Fawa & B9 H A 370! AAT e B

J P & BT 0T JaTE U 378 81U BF 30 Qi & darsis o 3R
YR §b G = 39 gedIoT - U Bl TR B (1 &,

aue # 9 By fox o o7, & feers dea 8 feers € sik faxirg
AL R I & Teeg Y &

S 9e fasm & 3= é’w A & 3ﬂ?5|5uv| sRecge 3iT®
dod & T3S 315 &
2.&&9.&5.@@@%%@%35@%%, 2010 T Fgeh e
0. ST § H YaRY ¥ Ugdl, S & 1978 ¥ SEEEE o H faiye
Uel IR HERd 8. SARERE b § 30 Sridid b ek 47 o
IS U, BURe draay, ol a@Fr qen s S
TAT ARG, TRI [THAT, YT HRATET H U 2.

Y o $.e9.90. Tofies o fewre aer o<t oo, e & aMe
faa Y 2.

s?ra?rfaamfiwdwm JLJII(;J sjve WW%@W ﬁ?é%a:f
sReeye 3 ddt & afdwrs e ??rtfﬁrs‘aﬁé’r

32 AL %ﬁamw%mﬁ%@mﬁw%m
& 9 & T AT ¥od 3 Heotie, Aidaves giafier, g uae.

o igsT giHardel, g.&. & TR ¥Hel gRT AT eeRiey
STATHE BIR BIURE TardTerd TR gfdreror o ure fopar 2.

3. 31. RAATES TP B 2D HSA § URd TRDBR BT Ular-rered o
g adu 7 9 fa<ira are fqumT, YR ReR, 78 et # fFewe
£ 9 faem & SaeR €. 30 a Qiea 8 ud veer st it o
€

St .de J ST 3TN, W TRRGR0T HA1ed 72T R HaR fawmr #
M o fFHar & 396 YRT TRER H S gaem, faxira Faam
vd uRDTSHT Jeaie &t § faT a8,

4. A . h foeris §6 & v dsa # 9raa Red §6 @
yfaffég oxd & 3% T A 9 &7 B 3T 3y § 3R
g 7 dfc wiaereT faum, wRda Rerd d6 o 90 #a1 udgd
& 9 srfore § FaerR € iR gfem dReege 3w dad &

1. Mr. D. L. Rawal took charge of Dena Bank as Chairman &
Managing Director on 1st January, 2009.

Mr. Rawal’s career began from Punjab National Bank. He was
instrumental in introducing Rule-Based Lending System for Retail
Banking and Agricultural Advances. He has also headed host of
subsidiaries of Punjab National Bank in his capacity as Managing
Director and Director.

Mr. Rawal has served as member in Committee of Empowered
Group on Regional Rural Banks appointed by RBI, Committee
appointed by IBA for deregulation of interest rates on loans upto
% 2 lakhs, Task Force to provide Micro-Credit to the Urban Poor
set up in the Ministry of Urban Employment & Poverty Alleviation,
Committee on Retail, Agriculture & SSI Advances constituted by
IBA, Empowered Committee on SMEs constituted by RBI, Delhi
and IBA Committee on Agro Business & Financial Inclusion for the
year 2008-09.

He was Convener in IBA Sub-Committee on Flow of Credit to
Agriculture Sector and his approach paper has been accepted by IBA.

Presently he is on the Board of Agricultural Finance Corporation
Ltd. as Director and also a member of Committee on Financial
Inclusion.

Mr. Rawal is a graduate in Science with Hons. and Certified
Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB).

2. Mr. A. K. Dutt was appointed as Executive Director on 1st March,
2010. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Dutt was working at Allahabad
Bank since 1978 in various capacities. During his time with
Allahabad Bank, Shri Dutt was posted in Personnel Administration,
Corporate Office, various Regional and Zonal Offices and General
Manager, Credit Dept., Head Office.

Mr. Dutt was a Director on EMC Ltd. and Hon. Secretary of Banker’s
Club, Kolkata.

Mr. Dutt is a Post graduate in Science (Gold Medalist) and a
Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB). He
also holds MBA Degree and Diploma in Computer Applications.
Mr. Dutt has attended Training on Leadership Development for
Corporate Excellence organized by Kellog School of Management,
Nortwestern University, USA and Summer School at Cambridge
University, U.K.

3. Dr. Tarsem Chand represents Government of India on the Board
of Directors of the Bank. He is presently Director, Department of
Financial Services, Government of India, New Delhi. He has Post
Graduate degree in Science. He also holds a Ph.D and LL.B.
degree.

Dr. Chand has worked with Planning Commission, Ministry of Food
Processing Industries and Department of Telecommunications.
He has a vast experience in Government of India in Personnel
Management, Finance Control and Project Appraisal Areas.

4. Shri B. P. Vijayendra represents Reserve Bank of India on the
Board of the Bank. He has nearly three decades of central banking
experience and is presently Chief General Manager, Department
of Banking Supervision, Reserve Bank of India. He holds a Post
Graduate Degree in Economics and is a Certified Associate of
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Ifewrgs sfae (@ vang.ans an) € 9 fafie afufaar stk ord
I, foRIY wu ¥ ¢l 9@ dre & e & fae 39 'R’
[T 3 Fas €. T S B9 H ATAT IR G ¢ 3R A < b A1
T gATECs fohme, Wi, st 3R Ragsrers & 4 amn a= 9o
£ 7 we 3@ 31T ek afed fafim daf & feers dea # ara
Rard d & ifaar .
5. 311 31T UH. TSI TRBR gRT AU TTHRI HHART Fe2dh &
w0 Fgeh €. 3 aifvifoae o § HaeR &, AT 3erissT 7 1976
# §% ¥ JIRY & adw= §, 7 31Rad YR &1 86 SMUBRI w9,
Ha% e & 7eT Afua 3R sed 9RAra & § TUeR! Feg
& 9 WET |iud ¢ I 3G RAT 96 JTUBRI HIHee & 39
TeT atda o € 31} s1fae WRdAT I amd d6 fUeR! TRNY &
iYgTh HeT |ied .
6. g=isht 2. iaw f¥ig v SraReRs feerss €. &1 e afofsas
I H HAHRR, $eaMT giHaicl | geae ¥ tAare 3R
gde # Mea g €.
et Rig STme ydee % € 3R 3 3 .an vn., oS siiR eHan
3., TEMd & Ud Feers €. o § 9 3ng . va.ang., feeeh & wer
191 €. 3819 <21 & AT 70 ARIH1 & Meed Hed & Favd &
B H BIURET ST H GRS GTHaT BT AlHaT I Y AT 3R q=T
foar. g ma%amé‘rﬁgﬁ?ﬁ 'In Search of Change Maestros' afea
7 e gfafted g ud 50 I 4 31fs srgse™ ual & oEd
& < D 3P YA BT 3T THT o AT &F 57§ 2003 H
DT HRA B IGUTT = THTSTEAD "I=I8T RIBR A TR TohaT.
FDT B 3T U TOIHS Ja& RIBRI 3 AT T, I F TS
U RIGR & THdIC 31aTS (1979 T 2002), B 74T (1984),
3PS NMURS 3 3ME 318 T, dNER 3ETS (1993), WRAA
yde IHell B PG Qe 37aTS (1998), e AT e
offc TiTex 37T 2005, TUH U315 .UH.U. had ATERAT 31dTS - Taer
Torer # Stefors Fqa.

A= # | 9 9Rarg Rerd @, 397 crar, uedamer, @Ry gisr e,
S 3R, 3nfE & e deat § fews €.

7. 1. GAIeT [ U IRRYRSD G20 2. d aNvIsy eel H H1ddb
J U6 AMEIae el TEIER & 3R 318 3 8T, U0.31ME 3.

T3S, 1318 3775, U031 . v .e. . 3R iva 8 IR 3%
BT & il T .

J U Wfeha ATt BIadal, oad U aT 8. 3! Ia-T0 R
Td 9YRE FEEIR AT/ GRS H 6 & W9 § UHIeId g8 ©. d fafiE
Ul Ud AT AT & FMeeid Hed # 2.9 &% UahNadRad
Fufert & e &

8. #M e TAT v IRYURS ewrs 2. A1 @ et fowataemea
@aa‘mﬁﬁmﬁmdo%‘aﬁswaéc%aﬁ‘s‘m

316 3f5a1 & el e &, 0Ffas yae, faia o & et
7 g fooims € silk dfdm, fag, fafer va duRe amet & 3907 fagw

fAgoTdT vd 3rwa T &
&9 vd HRER, oa@mRien, wReeiadr, faeeh ger a9 wd
et e & & o 39@r 24 O I 31fE &7 IV & 9 B

THITtIERAd dHut-ar & e £,

Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB). He has been associated
with various Committees and Working Groups, notably the High
Level Committee to Review Lead Bank Scheme. He is widely
travelled, having visited United Kingdom, France, Canada and
Switzerland among other countries. He was Reserve Bank of India
Nominee on the Boards of several banks including State Bank of
Indore.

5. Shri I. M. Almeida is appointed as Government nominated
Officer Employee Director. He holds a Post graduate in Commerce.
Shri Almeida joined the Bank in 1976. Currently, he is General
Secretary of All India Dena Bank Officers Association, Mumbai
Unit and also General Secretary of All India Dena Bank Officers
Federation. He is also Deputy General Secretary of All India Bank
Officers Confederation and Joint General Secretary of All India
Nationalized Bank Officers Federation.

6. Padmashri Dr. Pritam Singh is a Shareholder Director. Dr.
Singh has post graduate degree in Commerce, M.B.A. from Indiana
University U.S.A. and a Ph.D. in Management.

Dr. Singh is a renown management guru and was a former Director
of IIM Lucknow and MDI, Gurgaon. Presently he is Director
General of IMI Delhi. He has actively initiated and enabled the
transformation process in the corporate world as member of the
Board of nearly 70 institutions of the country. He is author of seven
academically reputed books including his latest book ‘In Search of
Change Maestros’ and over 50 research papers. His distinguished
services were acknowledged by the country when President of India
conferred on him the prestigious “Padma Shri” in the year 2003. He
has also been conferred with many other prestigious management
awards notable among these are ESCORT Award (1979 & 2002),
FORE Award (1984), Best Motivating Professor IIM Bangalore
Award (1993), Best Director Award of Indian Management Schools
(1998), Mirbis Moscow Global Thought Leader Award 2005,
The First AIMA Kewal Nohria award- Academic Leadership in
Management Education.

Presently he is a Director on the Boards of RBI, Dish TV,
Parswanath, Hero Honda Motors, ICRA etc.

7. Dr. Sunil Gupta is a Shareholder Director. He is a Commerce
graduate and has done doctorate on the topic “Study of Internal
Audit System”.

He is a Practicing Chartered Accountant and Fellow member
of ICWA, FICCI, Cll, ASSOCHAM and PHD Chamber of
Commerce.

He is an active social worker, writer & orator. His works have been
|E_))ublished in the shape of books as well as articles in leading News
apers/ Magazines. He is also on the boards of various companies

and social organizations. He is a Director of several closely held
Companies.

8. Shri Rohit Khanna is a Shareholder Director. He has a
Graduate in Commerce with Hons. from Delhi University and is
a Fellow member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
His expertise lies in the areas of strategy Management, Financial
structuring and special skills and experience in Banking, Finance,
Law and Corporate affairs.

He has more than 24 years of experience in areas of Finance and
Business, Audit, Consultancy, Foreign Direct Investments and
Foreign Collaborations. He is a Director of several closely held

Companies.
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SIS LCE S).ee.Ee
feqiep - 28.04.2011 31eeT Ud uae s

DECLARATION

Declaration of the Chairman and Managing Director pursuant to clause 49 (I) (D) of the Listing agreement
with Stock Exchanges.

It is to declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Bank have affirmed
their compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year Ended on 31t March 2011 in accordance
with clause 49 (I) (D) of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges. The said Code of
Conduct has been posted on the Bank’s website.

For Dena Bank

27

o7
Place : Mumbai D. L. Rawal

Date : 28.04.2011 Chairman and Managing Director
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Disclosures under Pillar 3 in terms of New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel Il) of Reserve Bank of India as on 31st
March 2011

l.  Scope of application :

THEIHROT BT T &7 §b IR ﬂ'ﬂlfﬁ?ﬂ 2. a. The framework of disclosures applies to Dena Bank.
g Je o ﬁ's; TS HUT el 2. b. Bank has no Subsidiaries.
7. d o Tl ST U § e 6 g c. Bank does not have any investment in an insurance entity.
g d% o fHEfafed R sl § 20% a1 399 s d.  Bank is having 20% or more stake in the following domestic
SoRETRET . entities.
FHE |HU BT AW i 3 d
SI. No. [Name of Entity Extent of Ownership
1 gif XeiaTia FmoT §a Durg Rajnandgaon Gramin Bank 35.00%
2 T TERTA THIOT §a Dena Gujarat Gramin Bank 35.00%

2. gai giem

®. 96 D IR | YN # gbar siaact gail, TarHe R 0T
foraa (3m5.4Y.81.3115.) a2 fafdm yeR & sRfarfoat (q: qeaid
R B Bred) eMHe . AR 11 Gl § : Hedid TRT&TdT
FiEat, I g1 IRfér vd #Fe sl & foe yraem, 3o
SRR 11 g3t 3R 1 SRR 11 45T enfiet & smfayd gaas ang
T I ST [+ UBR &

Il. Capital structure :

a) The Tier 1 capital of the Bank consists of paid up equity capital,
Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI) and various types of
reserves (excluding Revaluation Reserves). Tier 2 capital consists
of Revaluation Reserves, General Loss Reserve and Provisions
on Standard Assets, Upper Tier 2 Capital and Lower Tier 2 capital.
The terms of unsecured redeemable debts are as under:

Foa R 11 gt Upper Tier 2 Capital:
G 215 5 gRudaar ot aRia el R FASH)
Series Interest Rate Date of Maturity Amount (% in Crore)
| 9.20% 30.09.2021 300.00
= &= 11 g5 Lower Tier 2 Capital:
e eTER gRueaar &) akg N P H)
Series Interest Rate Date of Maturity Amount (Z in Crore)
VII 6.20% 30.04.2013 150.00
VIII 7.30% 30.04.2014 210.00
IX 9.25% 24.05.2018 106.00
X 11.20% 30.04.2019 300.00
XI 9.50% 29.01.2019 200.00
. ¥ &R | Goh P ver &: RICER)!
b. The Tier 1 capital of the bank is as under: (X in Crore)
T SR | g3i Total Tier | Capital 3605.57
39 I Out of which
YT YT Paid up capital 333.39
3m$ Y S 37 IPDI 250.00
Jicaa STREd ®F Breax amRfar et 3125.79
Reserves Excluding the Revaluation reserve
% Petferai Total Deductions 103.61

TT. 3% B SR 1| G3T B T IBH 21343.84 FRIT (IR 11 Gl F dwerar o fad I67) &

c. The Total amount of Tier 2 capital of the bank (net of deduction from tier 2 capital) is ¥1343.84 Crore.

g. 3o TR 1| g5T § enfhet a= & fere o1 gt foraa €

d. The debt capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Upper Tier Il Capital are:
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TIPS H
% in crore
ERSISCARI ¥ Total amount outstanding 300.00
Fdq 9 & ERME ﬁ?ﬂé‘ 11‘5‘ Of which raised during the current year R Nil
q\S{ﬁ P BT H MU & T uT IH Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital 300.00
g o S g % enfhe v & foe arr witor ot o foraa &
e. Subordinated debt capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Lower Tier Il capital.
RPAFH)
(X in crore)
@WW&’T Total amount outstanding 966.00
g a¥ B AR o:ldlé Hs‘ Of which raised during the current year 0.00
Ej\\—r‘ﬁ P BT | MU & T8 uT IF Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital 792.00

. Y3 qaTdr o MO & e a1 T dot § 9@ df ereRenRar & e 10.86 FRIE AR 11 gET ¥ geT fod 1§

f. For computation of Capital Adequacy, a deduction of ¥10.86 crore has been made from Tier Il Capital towards banks stake in

the 2 Gramin banks.
®. P U Gl F onihe &

g. The total eligible capital comprises of:

R PUTH)

(X in Crore)
ERR | Tier | 3605.57
IR I Tier Il 1343.84
Rl 4949.41
i ‘I\Eﬁ : : lll. Capital Adequacy :

&. T ST g

& & Fo1 SNEH Gee B BRI FKOT SEH JaeH W Heers dsa
gRT 3rgATed ifa & aRefva ufwams’t & saR & §% oF o
TifT & o1 FRGT yeeT & gl & MR W &84T shrsdl o
gRaTeTHD e feer & i €. § 3 o e, Jurfsas udem
qT SREH ge™ & aR # WY Dot IR @ . g7 Nt & affe
3TEMR R TVET &7 S &

o 31k BT H 210.00 TG T 3HTeIH P KON & folw s For
SREE T YUTIeTr T 39T % I&T 2. - Jomelr uiq uer # o
ST aTel STREH @1 T BT Ut favg gad &1 B 3 XaT & 3R
Trafya vu & zon ) fofa o 3 Aqeg axar 2. T gomer For
Siea® udwr wd e awiar e

d% I Th Jg¢ T RM! JUel & 31 9 & ol H AR(HB
IATGT Fhdl DI I PR &b [T IR F 75 &, PIURE S
3 50 T 31X 399 31781 o T H=cb K0T Wiai R FFRMT Iaar
2, &9 prafay 10 og 3R 399 318 2 50 dRg dd B K0T
@rdl W R 3@ € 3R o 99 w1t ) R 7@ € 5
YUTTET! o5 GRT ST Wl B Uga R 9T 37 R qRd IR &
3UTT B H eI fHeral 8. Uh SR fhar 9 W & Sifed & 29
T gz {6 ST IR 39 IR FRET & 713 der &) S 2.

A. Credit Risk management :

The credit risk management function of the Bank revolves around
the processes defined by a Board approved policy on credit risk
management. Loan policy of the Bank provides operational level
guidelines to field units based on the principles of credit risk
management. The Bank has also formulated policies on Credit
Rating, Collaterals Management and Risk Mitigation. These
policies are reviewed on annual basis.

The Bank has been using a comprehensive credit risk rating
system for all exposures of over % 10 lakhs internally that serves as
a single point indicator of the extent of risk taken in counter-party
and for taking credit decisions in a consistent manner. The rating
system indicates ‘entry’ and ‘exit’ points for exposures.

The Bank has a well laid down credit monitoring system designed
to capture early warning signals in its exposures. While Corporate
Office directly monitors all standard exposures of ¥ 50 lakh and
above, Regional Offices monitor exposures of ¥ 10 lakh and
above up to % 50 lakh and the rest of the accounts are monitored
by the Branches. The system facilitates identification of stressed
accounts early and to trigger prompt corrective action. Once an

account is identified as stressed account, the level of monitoring is
escalated.
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b o1 T 37AR0T YOI @ T MR Wt ou & e
AT &. § T 31 &1 (TP W &) q&A1 U E (TP W SEH) B
3AH & T s e &1 fasrT ax 3@t & 3R does Shiew &
Uga & fae Y U eiam IR #R @1 8.

et Hsa o Tui~ad FRaw geeT TfAfd (317.3MR.09.3.) K0T
ST Uae & AW # 318 3R vH AT/ s Hed g1 srgAed
Tt 3R 3 AT & HraTao & v 3T TRIT 70T Saq
gae afafaE e .) S orf i) O R 3@ 2

§ 7 3 5 PRI 3R 39 31f¥E & Iag H SRIH TIUT JuTTer &
3TTHT AT & 20 H FURHIA 0T eIRaT GRI&T YOTE! (0T FHIeT 4
[0 3R TH]) IR & &

Ipiamdr TEeRI gRT sifew ot o9 & uger wads shifaw
eI T & T BRIUTas Heeie 3R 399 3 mitsiRar &
SITUSRT & ST 31 aTeT TH 0T U=Tal I g At & ATead
3 U TohaT STTaT &, 3 Mt # STRGH Jaer faHmT, o7 uiRared
e arfe & ufafafer e €. 3o R &3 drifay TR |, &ag
yaed iR TEEe® & UBR & v 37 aTet T 30 oRF 3R
1ftres & o1 URaTdl o Hale & &l IRg aiHfa gRT o ST &
TSt 2x07, yrerfirasar &, o, fafer qem Fveror faem & siftraRy
e 8t € arfes 3l @ SR Tura JiHread o 3T |,

. 151K S T aXeldT Sl Rad Jae =

TSR ST Ud TR STEH &f gaes e Haet gRT 3rgAIed
i <zar yaem it qen faer AT & yeeEr & SR 6
& Hf~ad TP gRT foar ST €. & ifadl § aeiR ey
TOIT AR SR B Tga, A, FRET 31 38 &1 a3 & fove
graer fe T €. g it # ol ooy 3aret § fafza shfast
P IR ¥ 3eoid Ifed 9 & o fafvm Sifeat & e qor fafve
e vd sraRes S & Wi €. 3T & uRada w fratha v
F FARET @ S 2.

TRTAT b DU H eIHIT H Uhe 31Thd, d 3fth 31k fis anfte
onfHer 2. T anfth & &Rl SiNew uaed derm u.ee 9.3, & &
P 1Y SSH I AT IW@T TAT € dlfep ST TS Jomelr 7

I T T g1 GHfad of 51 b,

feere Hsa, 3MS.MR.EAN. I Tod A3, §6 & TR e
yded, 39! Uihar, Mame gRT SIRY Sifed yaed faem e
& BRaod, d¥ad B0 F ORI T dtel Ia9 SEH Jeee
fspanstt & foe fomeR ¢ ik ag ghfaa o=t @ 6 siake
Acs uforamsii, TR / Aot 3R Sies ydem faaayot s
&I 3T T ST 8. JSTTy df fe-ufafes @ fafaferat o
Fraer vd gar aoR uRaraHt o sifaRe |fafa grT e smeR w®

THTET T ST 2.

§b P d=ear Shes o1 fHaRr fafie 9o Sforat § 9w aikgdaar
& 3R TR a2 faf e aRerar 3ruTal & 3MUR 1R gRugad o=t
P 37ARTET fa2eivor & Areow & fhar ST € 3R 30T gee 39
foe frefRa foaayot St & siex fosar ST 2.

a1 Si=p

0o oS . ld o 0o Al

fafir TRerT aTdraReT & Siafa bR T e R &R
& foTE 35 daiIe 1Y Ga1d 3Tid, SFIHRVT / e faeryor 3nfe
fafi sfarmer w foodr s &
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The Bank is regularly carrying out credit rating migration
analysis at annual intervals. The Bank is also developing
framework for estimating LGD (Loss Given default) and EAD
(Exposure At Default) and also the framework for identifying
concentration risk.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) of the Board
of Directors oversees the functioning of the high level Credit Risk
Management Committee (CRMC), for implementing policies and
other strategies approved by IRMC / Board in matters of credit risk
management.

As an integral part of Risk Management System, the bank has put in
place a well-defined Credit Audit System [Loan Review Mechanism
(LRM)], in respect of all exposures of % 5 crore and above.

All loan proposals falling under the powers of Executive Director
& above are routed through a Credit Committee consisting of
representatives from Risk Management Department, Credit
Operations Department etc. for independent risk assessment
before taking a final decision by sanctioning authority.  Similarly,
at R.O. level, all the loan proposals with exposure of ¥ 30 lakhs
and above lakhs falling under the powers of the Regional Manager
and General Managers are screened by a R.O Credit Committee
consisting of officers from Credit, Priority Sector, Recovery, Legal

and Inspection functions for ensuring better asset quality.

B. Market Risk & Liquidity Risk Management :

The Market Risk and Liquidity Risk are managed by Integrated
Treasury of the Bank in line with the provisions of Board approved
Asset Liability Management Policy and Investment Policy. These
policies provide for identification, measurement, monitoring and
mitigation of Market Risk and Liquidity Risk. These policies provide
for various regulatory and internal limits besides defining the
risk appetite of the Bank including addressing the inherent risk
in various treasury products. Migration of ratings is tracked
regularly.

Structurally, the treasury comprises of Front Office, Back Office and
Mid Office. The function of Mid Office is kept independent by attaching
it with Risk Management function and ALCO so as to ensure its
independence and effectiveness of Risk Management system.

The Board, IRMC & ALCO are responsible for the market risk
management of the bank, procedures thereof, implementing risk
management guidelines issued by regulator, best risk management
practices followed globally and ensuring that internal parameters,
procedures, practices / policies and risk management prudential
limits are adhered to. Day-to-day activities of treasury are
reviewed by In-house Committee on Investment and Money Market
Operations on daily basis.

Liquidity risk of the Bank is assessed through gap analysis for
maturity mismatch based on residual maturity in different time
buckets as well as various liquidity ratios and management of the
same is done within the prudential limits fixed thereon.

Advanced techniques such as Stress testing, simulation, sensitivity
analysis etc. are conducted on regular intervals to draw the
contingency funding plan under different liquidity scenarios.
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d& 7 nfera gae uTd ae & fore foxga aRkares sifew gian
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3% 0T ® Yoo § T g1, BRIGR 377e & SREGH B g=1
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3fErT =l & qam ST A, d6 & U 9 UBR & Siant
T UG U I Ao a3 3R a1 FeiRa &= qar 376
THE 3UYTH Yol BT 3MaCH B & e Feerd #eet gRT srmifea
3raRkes 4T gafear feikor drars fd (3 & v e ) & @ife
o vd anfdfe 4ot &t & fore quta: wmfvaa shiew / 4ot Atsa
JIR T o1 9.

T Y31 qafeTar g & SRR SUIeH & (08 3 = 0T S ad &
o ®Rexetsss 3T, ulRae siiew & foe afe $fsdmex s
TJAT Y. 3TR. T. 3R, & TUMT & T8 AT SEH 2 W eveigss id
SR 3T BT 370 &,

gSt @I Jaeddhal Hamd Ve §, 96 & fohardemdl favrd:
e vd oo fefaal & sifew 3= aa € 9@ o da o
AT 3fele & STl & difep TRad-end anfie ferfaal qer
® el & FHT # Yol S gardar JHread df o Tb. 39
ufeear & §a ;

e I o A Y3 MavadHar qT

o uigw W yaTua S TG BT I PBA B [e8 Gail B
3TaegadT 93 B 57T b

d 3T YT AT D FEET qAT G AT 3 - 5 Iuf B
o 7eoy TR o A5HmE & MR ) &l & 3R 396 afie
BT T JHTET HRAT 2. IS b THIET & IR W 8 IR | AT R
Il B 4o §& & Feee Hedt @ AT I e & 3 B Gair
TaTEdr o fefa & guEieT d6 & e deer grT fouEr smaR
W B ST 2.

d BF STREA W 3R (3TR S&9.T) U8 =AW Yail STagadsd]
TAT IR 37 Tafedar feies 31.03.2011 & AR o7 YR &
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C. Operational Risk Management :

Bank has put in place an elaborate Operational Risk Management
Framework with a well-defined ORM Policy and necessary
mechanism to capture required information. The Operational
Risk Management function is overseen by the Operational Risk
Management Committee (ORMC). Bank is also in the process of
developing suitable platform for moving on to advanced approaches
viz. the Standardised Approach and Advanced Measurement
Approach (AMA)

Bank maintains capital to cushion the risk of unexpected losses in
value of exposure, businesses etc. so as to protect the depositors
and general creditors against such unexpected losses. Bank has a
Board approved Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
Policy (ICAAP Policy) to comprehensively evaluate and document
all risks and substantiate appropriate capital allocation so as to
evolve a fully integrated risk/capital model for both regulatory and
economic capital.

For compliance with the New Capital Adequacy Framework, the
Bank has adopted Standardised approach for Credit Risk, Basic
Indicator Approach for Operational Risk and Standardized and
Duration Approach for Market Risk for computing CRAR.

The capital requirement is a function of the regulatory requirements,
the risks arising from bank’s activities mainly due to economic and
market conditions. Capital planning of the bank is to ensure the
adequacy of capital at the times of changing economic conditions,
even at times of economic recession. In this process, the Bank
recognizes:

L Current capital requirement of the bank; and

®  (Capital requirements to sustain projected asset acquisition in
near future.

The Bank reviews its capital requirements and capital strategy
based on medium range plans for 3 — 5 years and reviewed
annually. On the basis of the annual review, the bank raises capital
in Tier-1 or Tier-2 with the approval of Board of Directors of the
Bank. The Capital Adequacy position of the bank is reviewed by the
Board of the Bank on quarterly basis.

The Bank’s Risk Weighted Assets (RWA), Minimum Capital
Requirement and Actual Capital Adequacy as on 31.03.2011 are
as under:

(i) | 7or SREw & fere gt smawmar ((CRER))
Capital requirement for Credit risk (X in crore)
0T SRGH & fordr Siias 9TiRd 3nRaar Risk Weight Assets for Credit Risk 32180.52
&Il(?ﬁ‘i-cl\mdawl S| Securitisation exposures 0.00
(i) |71 % daer ¥ SR SiiRa| & fere g5i smagaasar Capital requirement for Market risk in respect of:
o7 &= e & foe shfvem wika snfaar Risk Weight Assets for Interest Rate Risk 760.41
face a1 shfew (wavf afed) & foe sifes aika s 50.00
Risk Weight Assets for Foreign Exchange risk (including gold)
sfraet ey & foe shfam wika anfaar Risk Weight Assets for Equity Risk 258.15
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TSR SITEH o T8 et SITRGH HIRG 3R Total Risk Weight Assets for Market Risk 1068.56
U0 3. P fau siieq wika snfaar Risk Weight Assets for FFC 10.67
(iii) | afamer sfkaw & fere g5h smagadan Capital requirement for Operational Risk:
3R a® 3T & st uRares Sifen & foe sifen wika snfaa 2328.59
Risk Weight Assets for Operational Risk under Basic indicator approach
(iv) | PeT YT ud Ht.3TR.E.3TR. Total Capital & CRAR
0T, TTSTR T4 URETe SiaH & foe =gAas g1 Smaeadl 3321.76
Minimum Capital Requirement for Credit, Market & Operational Risk
T T Y31t Y adtad NI Actual Position of Total Eligible capital 4949.41
aT EXR | g3T Eligible Tier | Capital 3605.57
aTd E1OR 11§31 Eligible Tier 11 Capital 1343.84
3T 3R U 3TR CRAR 13.41 %
3R 8&Y T &5 3UTT # ¢ | G371 Tier | Capital to RWA 9.77 %
3R S&Y U & 30T # SRR 11 {30 Tier Il Capital to RWA 3.64 %

4, ZHOISNGH S G H GHI Uhed
$. do o U 3R S TNDIVT S fele d A FrTIoR 7:

i frreares sfaar (@ dt e) : IR Fwes snfa @ O v) 98 %o

1. T smafte o1 & wmer § wret 3R/ a1 gaed & fed 90
& & 31fEres sraftr ao aarar & 7,

2. Toe aaRgIoe / Fde o1 (3 8 / &Y A & He § @rer
sfafid s REar g,

3. &I 3R YA W faat & A # faa 9o feT & s1feres srafr
& foe e g &,

4. 3ICIETY Bl & [T Aed & 6w a1 39 W 15 &l B
whaw e sifaea e €,

5. crafafer waat & fav gaem & foea a1 39 R 15 o6 HaeT
ot & foe sifaca @ar 8,

DS Y 3N BT / A Y. @ TS arar AT T AT / 37ROl
IR ¥ PR aifte & & 39 sifafia @ar - wFn Smar
g O wmet § STet T uRarae @I § aarar T Iaiged AT /
3TERVT IBR F B &, Afch Jeua B TRIG B amaR 90 fe
@r 31afer a B Y R 577 T B 7 B a7 39 3rafer  few A
STeT TS &TST Bf IBH B I & T ST & 78 1T vafed =1 &
ar ag T sifrafid am ST €

o o o1 gfaen & d & g B M I R & S
2 afe 3@ yram §& grT feiRa fafsr & 7 fovar s, d§a &
R Frermes snfkadt &1 sm fFraaR a9 vt # affea fear
T &

IV. General disclosures in respect of Credit Risk :

a. The policy of the Bank for classifying bank's loan assets is
as under: :

NON PERFORMING ASSETS (NPA): A non-performing asset
(NPA) is a loan or an advance where;

1. interest and / or installment of principal remain overdue for a
period of more than 90 days in respect of a term loan,

2. the account remains ‘out of order’ in respect of an Overdraft/
Cash Credit (OD/CC),

3. the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in
the case of bills purchased and discounted,

4. the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue
for two crop seasons for short duration crops,

5. the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue
for one crop season for long duration crops.

An OD/CC account is treated as ‘out of order’ if the outstanding
balance remains continuously in excess of the sanctioned limit/
drawing power. In cases where the outstanding balance in the
principal operating account is less than the sanctioned limit/
drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 days as
on the date of Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the
interest debited during the same period, these accounts are treated
as ‘out of order’.

An amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if
it is not paid on the due date fixed by the bank. Non Performing
Assets of the Bank are further classified into three categories as
under:
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Sub-standard Assets:

A sub-standard asset would be one, which has remained NPA for a
period less than or equal to 12 months. All the recovery measures
are relevant in substandard assets also. If the entire overdues are
recovered by way of cash recovery, the account can be upgraded to
standard category immediately. Similarly, if an account is classified
as NPA due to technical reasons, the account shall be upgraded on
clearance of technical reasons.

Doubtful Assets:

An asset would be classified as doubtful if it remained in the sub
standard category for 12 months. In case of accounts, where
the realizable value of security available is less than 50% of
the balance outstanding / dues, these accounts would also be
classified as Doubtful. Substandard and Doubtful accounts, which
are subjected to restructuring/ rescheduling, can be upgraded to
standard category only after a period of one year after the date
when first payment of interest or of principal, whichever is earlier,
falls due, subject to satisfactory performance during the period.

Loss Assets:

A loss asset is one where loss has been identified by the bank
or internal or external auditors or the RBI inspection. In Loss
assets, realizable value of security available is not more than 10%
of balance outstanding/ dues. Since security back up will not be
available, the restructuring/ rehabilitation, if required, should be
considered with utmost care.

b. Strategies and Processes:

The bank has a well defined Loan Policy, Retail Lending Policy,
SME Policy, Loan Recovery Policy and Investment Policy covering
the important areas of credit risk management as under:

® Exposure ceilings to different sectors/ Industries of the
economy, different types of borrowers , group and Industry

®  Fair Practice Code in dispensation of credit

® Discretionary Lending Powers for different levels of authority
of the bank

®  Processes involved in dispensation of credit — pre sanction
inspection, rejection, appraisal, sanction, documentation,
monitoring, and recovery.

®  Fixation of pricing

c. The Credit Risk philosophy, architecture and systems of
the bank are as under:

Credit Risk Philosophy:

»  Profitable deployment of resources in line with Asset Liability
Management (ALM) requirements.

» To aim at a common approach in credit appraisal and
monitoring standards to meet genuine credit needs of existing
clients and to enlarge client base through client acquisition
besides facilitating quick and prompt credit decisions
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» To set up standard and uniform credit evaluation system
and procedures to monitor portfolio performance and set up
guideposts to augment income from non-fund exposures

»  Strengthen the credit delivery system and to clearly lay down
the preferred deployment area of credit, keeping in view the
socio-economic obligations, profitability, past experience of
asset impairment and with greater focus on retail banking.

» To address issues of credit concentration and to set up
prudential credit exposure norms.

»  To build and maintain a well diversified portfolio for an orderly
asset growth

»  Toset up a Credit Risk Management System with parameters
for risk identification, measurement, monitoring and mitigation

»  To provide for Loan Review Mechanism
»  To set up a risk based Loan Pricing Policy

»  To provide for dissemination of information to enable informed
credit decision making at all levels and to facilitate proper
training of field staff on credit appraisal and monitoring

»  To provide for adequate delegation of discretionary authority
at all levels.

»  Architecture and Systems of the Bank:

» A Sub-Committee of Directors has been constituted by
the Board to specifically oversee and co-ordinate Risk
Management functions in the Bank.

»  Credit Risk Management Committee has been set up to
formulate and implement various credit risk strategy including
lending policies and to monitor Bank’s Enterprise-wide Risk
Management function on a regular basis.

»  Formulating of policies on standards for credit proposals,
financial covenants, rating standards and benchmarks.

» Credit Risk Management cells deal with identification,
measurement, monitoring and controlling credit risk within the
prescribed limits.

»  Enforcement and compliance of the risk parameters and
prudential limits set by the Board/regulator etc.,

»  Laying down risk assessment systems, developing MIS, and
monitoring quality of loan portfolio, identification of problems,
and correction of deficiencies.

»  Evaluation of Portfolio, conducting comprehensive studies
on economy, industry, test the resilience on the loan portfolio
etc,,

»  Improving credit delivery system upon full compliance of laid
down norms and guidelines.

d. The Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting and / or
Measurement System:

The Bank has in place a robust credit risk rating system for its credit

exposures. An effective way to mitigate credit risks is to identify

potential risks in a particular asset, maintain a healthy asset quality
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and at the same time impart flexibility in pricing assets to meet the
required risk-return parameters as per the bank’s overall strategy
and credit policy.

The bank’s robust credit risk rating system is developed in-house
and is designed to assist the bank in determining the Probability of
Default and the severity of default, among its loan assets and thus
allow the bank to build systems and initiate measures to maintain
its asset quality.

e. The Quantitative Disclosures in respect of Credit Risk are as under:

RPRTS H)
(X In crore)
B9
S.No.
(i) | DeT 0T (ITTE BT Fae) 44828.04
TOTAL CREDIT (NET OF PROVISION)
(ii) It @1 Wimfere faazon
GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF ADVANCES
> fadeft OVERSEAS 0.00
> 2 DOMESTIC 44828.04
(i) | TREY oW BT ITER fa=or. fer amenfka g@mrr + Faw
INDUSTRY TYPE DISTRIBUTION OF DOMESTIC EXPOSURES Fund Based Outstanding + Investment
G 3R 3@ (BIIeT Afgd) MINING & QUARRYING (INC COAL) 13.89
TITeT Ud U IRON & STEEL 1852.49
37 €1qU U4 91g 3916, OTHER METALS & METAL PRODUCTS 115.61
T 3f5rafar ALL ENGINEERING 919.92
?q_s; T JET Cotton Textile 417.81
SIC I JATT JUTE TEXTILE TnoT
31 91 3ANT OTHER TEXTILE 779.06
T SUGAR 23.85
T TEA 0.75
W I¥TEF FOOD PROCESSING 298.60
W I (It Afgd) VEGETABLE OILS (INCLUDING VANASPATI) 171.93
HNIST Ud BIIST 341G PAPER & PAPER PRODUCTS 169.16
g8, @iNed U 3a0Te RUBBER, PLASTIC & PRODCTS 299.62
T, 1 I, e vd sitvena o 9 1135.27
CHEMICALS, DYES, PAINTS & PHARMACEUTICALS OF WHICH:
» @& FERTILIZERS 68.99
> U™ PETRO - CHEMICALS 392.73
> 3itwered wrwgfede DRUGS & PHARMACEUTICALS 365.90
e CEMENT 575.08
e UF 16X 301G LEATHER & LEATHER PRODUCTS 175.43
3 U5 IR GEMS & JEWELLERY 621.43
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%.9.

S.No.
fmAfor CONSTRUCTION 106.02
UITeTaM, HIIET TG U9 IRHAT] € 19.10
PETROLEUM, COAL PRODUCTS AND NUCLEAR FUELS
3TE, aTe Yot Ud TR UdoT 264.72
VEHICLES, VEHICLE PARTS & TRANSPORT EQUIPMENTS
HYR AFcddR COMPUTER SOFTWARE 27.10
gfvamer giaensit & foe, o & 12485.01
INFRASTRUCTURE OF WHICH:
> faga POWER 9134.87
> G ¥aR TELECOMMUNICSTIONS 997.92
> U8 9 UIE ROADS & PORTS 626.84

%.9.

S.No.
> 3F §ATGT JITa OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE 1725.38
U981 0% NBFC 3613.40
IR TRADING 1364.34

%.4.

S.No.
UY U9 qW1%p BEWERAGE & TOBACCO 4.36
d®S! Ud ddbs! 3G WOOD & WOOD PRODUCTS 67.52
377 JIT OTHER INDUSTRIES 1509.25

foga & @1 fear T gt o7 29134.87 RIS & SN HA HOT B
20.22% & AT 3 giTAIGT Giaesit B fear 1T o7 71725.38
TRIS T 3N el 0T & 3.82% ©.

Total credit exposure to Power sector is ¥ 9134.87 which constituted
20.22% of total credit and to ‘other infrastructure’ is ¥ 1725.38 crore
which constituted 3.82% of total credit

f. Disclosure in respect of Non-performing Advances and

T, IR-freares i ed faer & dead gee: Investments:
(@) AT TAdE: a. Gross NPA

Sioft Category IPISH

(% In Crore)

39 HIHd Sub Standard 416.64
Ifeer - 1 Doubtful - 1 186.52
IfeTer - 2 Doubtful - 2 139.57
IfeTer - 3 Doubtful - 3 31.13
21T Loss 68.38
P B9 Total NPA 842.24
(@) Forae e1.9).u B IBH 548.95 FAS .

(b) The amount of net NPA is ¥548.95 Crore.
M eAde s A TeR #

(c) The NPA ratios are as under:
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®  Ihel IMIAT H TaheT TA.UT.T. Gross NPAs to Gross Advances
o fger 31fiHT # 90T T9.U1.U. Net NPAs to Net Advances
(=) A TR ¥ AR Fea fFrryaR 2 :

(d) The movement of gross NPAs is as under:
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1.86%
1.22%

fora=or

Particulars

HHE.
SI. No.

TIPS H

Z In Crore

(i) ¥ & IRV H 31T A9 Opening Balance at the beginning of the year

641.99

(i) ¥ & R Tgﬁ;\' Addition during the year

758.69

(iii) ¥ & SR "eT Reduction during the year

558.44

(iv) e HITH 3%@ Closing Balance as at the end of the year (i + ii - iii )

842.24

(%) T.9).E. & YT ¥ 30K Ied 59 UBR &

(e) The movement of provision for NPA is as under:

SI. No.

HH . feraor

Particulars

TIPS

Z In Crore

(i) Y &b RY T 37 99 Opening Balance at the beginning of the year

205.18

(ii) ¥ & SR fHE T graem T Provision made during the year

281.25

(iii) Y & QIR ST 70 EE% WIdT. Write-off made during the year

196.27

(iv) ¥ & R ame fee e 311 UTae T Write-back of excess provisions made during the year 0.00

(v) ¥ & 3T T 5’%@'5[ Closing Balance as at the end of the year (i+ii-iii-iv)

290.16

@ IR Freaes el S 92 56.29 FAS 2.

(g) The amount of non-performing investments is ¥56.29 crore.

(®) X foreares fraei & fore foor e graersi o) I6w 724.86 FRIS 2.

(h) The amount of provisions held for non-performing investments is ¥24.86 crore.

(=) Frae R georr & fore grael A AR Tea s UBR @

(i) The movement of provisions for depreciation on investments is as under:

oaq. | faaxor

Sl. No. Particulars

IPSH

ZIn Crore

i) ¥ &b RY T 31T A9 Opening Balance at the beginning of the year 65.91

ii) ¥ & SR fHT U g1ge= Provision made during the year 47.61

¥ & SR 81T T az?‘, W Write-off made during the year 0.00

Ug ¢ v 3aRd U U U / U U ¢ & ata 99T &7 981 od aeid) Femaiofd . 22.21

Depreciation adjusted by reducing book value of Investment under AFS/ HFT category shifted to HTM

(v) gy & 3id # 3fd AT Closing Balance as at the end of the year (i+ii-iii-iv) 91.31

5. T SR : Weslges 31T & SFUR HiIHIT &1 ysHe :
WSETES 3T & AT §b, TR 0T & & fole ¥Ra Rord §d gy
FHIGT $ IR, (ISRl ARg ST i) SRy AUaR S, AR
3T v 317S v, fiheT $T8a vd a1 AR Br T WHR IR &
faeem 7ol & foe, wRdar Raid da & feenteet & 3R, §6 wss
U I3R, 7T U4 foses T TS WIBR el &

V. Credit risk: disclosures for portfolios subject to the
standardised Approach:

Under Standardized Approach, the bank accepts rating of all RBI
recognised ECRAs (External Credit Rating Agencies ) namely
CARE, CRISIL, Fitch India and ICRA for domestic credit exposures.
For overseas credit exposures the bank accepts rating of Standard
& Poor, Moody’s and Fitch as per RBI guidelines
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The bank encourages large corporate borrowers to solicit ratings
from ECAI and has used these ratings for calculating risk weighted
assets wherever such ratings are available.

The risk weighted assets after risk mitigation subject to Standardized

Approach (rated and unrated) in the following three major risk
buckets are as under:

(X in Crore)
T T SR arelt snfear
Exposures Risk weighted Assets

100% ¥ B9 At below 100% 28182.16 10664.39

100% T & TR At 100% 15150.74 15090.22

100% I 31f¥% At more than 100% 1830.47 2561.99
(i) IR Fifer smenRa ko1 f5mmt smmeRa/ sy W of enfie @ : @ ss )
(ii) Non fund based exposures including undrawn/unutilized limits: (Z in Crore)

SROT 3T SR arett snf¥aar
Exposures Risk weighted Assets

100% & B At below 100% 6504.05 929.43

100% T & T At 100% 7017.22 2119.36

100% I 31786 At more than 100% 787.74 397.10

VI. 0T S aH TeH T :

§ 30T ITRGANT BT TaT e For (T menRa vd iR-Fier smenfRa)
&1 gRam & fore Tt yoR & wiovfoar (foRr sufeds fayfa O e
STT AT &) W1 el & AT FesR oot Wi ferar (are ag Ireiies
yfcgfer & a7 wuidas ufafen) o S €

1. I niadr S Wi, T AR 3t
2. 3rac sniaat ST gfH, YaH, @ic v HeRl.
3. S P T STHT AT

4. UAUEE, S A, B, TWER! 918, WRArT Xod 9 &

5. IR ffYr smenRa laemsit R Toa Afor.
6. IJUT ST,
7. AT g & AR AR,

d% @1 yuRa gl & geaied & foe 96 & o9 geiRa
e .

FOT SIaH g & foe d% 3 3w FH.E.3 ¥ 6 7 Sfearaa
yfayfert @1 3uam fosar .

d% & 0T ST IR & UBR P TReR 39 TPR @ :

o o LN
®  h (HIHI TMRCI)

* FURC

VI. Credit Risk Mitigation :

Bank obtains various types of securities (which may also be termed
as collaterals) to secure the exposures (Fund based as well as non-
fund based) on its borrowers. Generally following types of securities
(whether as primary securities or collateral securities) are taken:

1.  Movable assets like stocks, movable machinery etc
2. Immoveable assets like land, building, plant & machinery
3. Bank’s own deposits

4. NSCs, IVPs, KVPs, Govt. Bonds, RBI Bonds, LIC policies,
etc.

5.  Cash Margin against Non-fund based facilities
6. Gold Jewellery
7. Shares as per approved list

The bank has well-laid down policy on valuation of securities
charged to the bank .

The Bank has applied securities mentioned at sr.no.3 to 6 above as
Credit Risk Mitigants.

The main types of guarantors against the credit risk of the bank are:
® |ndividuals (Personal guarantees)

®  Corporate
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®  Central Government
®  State Government
® ECGC
® CGFTS

CRM collaterals are mostly available in Loans Against Bank’s Own
Deposit and Loans against Government Securities, LIC Policies.
CRM securities are also taken in non fund based facilities like
Guarantees and Letters of Credit.

Eligible guarantors (as per Basel Il) available as CRM in respect of
Bank’s exposures are mainly Central/ State Government, ECGC,
CGFTS.

The total volatility adjusted Credit Risk Mitigants eligible for
deduction from the outstanding exposures as on 31.03.2011 are
¥ 3281.02 crore.

VII. Securitisation:

The Bank does not have any case of its assets securitised as on
31st March, 2011.

VIIl. Market risk in trading book :

The Bank defines market risk as potential loss that the Bank may
incur due to adverse developments in market prices. The following
risks are identified as Market risk:

> Interest Rate Risk
»  Currency Risk
> Price risk

To manage risk, Bank’s Board of Directors have laid down various
limits such as Aggregate Settlement limits, Stop loss limits and
Value at Risk limits. The risk limits, control the risks arising from
open market positions. The stop loss limit takes into account
realized and unrealized losses. Bank has put in place a proper
system for calculating capital charge on Market Risk on Trading
Portfolio as per RBI Guidelines, viz., Standardised Duration
Approach. The capital charge thus calculated is converted into Risk
Weighted Assets. The aggregated Risk Weighted Assets for credit
risk, market risk and operational risk are taken in to consideration

e aikener Siiad W e fear S &, for arriving at the CRAR.
&I 31 A 2011 BT STEIR STEH (XSS5 SYRIM 3WT & Capital charge on Market Risk (as per Standardised Duration
FER) W Yo J9R = ISR € Approach) as on 31st March 2011 is as under:
DA 9. SifRaw sioft N R FASH)
Sl. No. Risk Category Amount (% In crore)
I 15T &% (T+41) Interest Rate (a+b)
a [TEROT SISTR SRaT General market risk 68.44
(i) | Taer feIfa Net Position 68.44
(i) | BRSiea 3RaIgia Horizontal disallowance 0.00
(iii) | afEaer 3RATPHI Vertical disallowance 0.00
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(iv) | fa®ca Options 0.00

] $feradl iRaw Equity Risk 23.23

a. STETRUT STSTR SRGH General market risk 11.62

b. afere Sfad Specific risk 11.62

mn fereht faferrar sifew (Favf afz) 4.50

Foreign Exchange Risk (including Gold)

v weslgee e 31ud (1+11+11l) & siafd SR sifew & fere ger gsh yur 96.17

Total capital charge for market risks under Standardised duration approach (I + I1+1ll)

IX. afRemes sifaa

AR Re1d 96 o feenfeei & SR, 96 7 uRared sied &
e g5 @F smawadmansi & aRead & foe 36 gfswmer suma
o= . fosid 31 A 2011 @1 uRarem sifew & foe shifem
aTetr 37T 32328.59 FRIS 2T,

X. dfT a8t # srer o SRaw (318 AR IR A )
TST & RGH B &F gedivil 3 A9 vd FARH! & Sl €.

SRET R 31 (IRUReS 3iaxTe fageyon (sreamafd) :

29 3T & 3aTd dop B o &1eT 31 R &1eT &)X # aRRad T &
A yuTd & faeersor fasar S €.

(i) farfrsr aramaRont § SRew § s 315t &1 fagawor 71 yoR
fearmang :

1. 3T Pd SNGH ; AT T ST &b foe T dF 3R
0.50% UfRad=T HHT ST1T &. 97 JTeaRoT  &157 &X # 50 3R
3idt & IRTae & 3rTet a¥ & fow fHaer st 3ma W) % 67.08
RIS BT UTaigel THIG TS,

2. AR AM@RYT # 3MER SRed enthe fear smar & o &)
e 3R s & o, i dfawmr & foe =6, 50 smeR
3ih BF D ST &, 39 araraxvT # afe &met a=i § 50 TR
3T B fIRTGe 3mar & af §o F o =a1st 3T R 53.01
FRIS BT THRIHD THIT B

(i) FFerac) o1 3nf¥es e (3rafty siaRTe fagerwon) (Srafafen

®. $faact &1 anfie gea o1a x4 &g Siaact o denfe
31T T R b ToTu ST qT STam3ii b G2 rafer
@ U 3 ST . $feraet & anfie You & 3R & THTa

fareersoT 37afer SfaRTe ugha & el aRaremi & foae Fafid

SIRTET TR 100 3R 37eh! I & TR HH Hh [chdT STdT 2.

. ST X H 100 YR 3F HH fhU 5T H R 86
& e Huft R e RIS 3R ORel, TRae=r & foe
& 31.03.2011 @I T 371.53 HRIS 2.

§& 1 9Rdg Red a6 gR1 SIRT a9 11 feenf-eel @1 s
forar & form =gmam_ gsT_ STagadsd, Tdhed 3aeddal M ¢,
BRIGR & &RM deb 3 LT SARIH BI ~efRa B, 3qb gHd
BT AT, 3 BH B DI dd-Id FAH/OT ST DI HH B
& foTe sawas U &9 &’ & foe o 3R ufhar TR &
€. 3, vy et & FREY 3R 39 &0 & & dd R

MR U SR I

IX. Operational risk :

In line with RBI guidelines, Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator
Approach to compute the capital requirements for Operational
Risk. Risk Weight Asset for the Operational Risk as at 31st March
2011 is at ¥ 2328.59 crore.

X. Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) :

The interest rate risk is measured and monitored through two
approaches:

Earning at Risk (Traditional Gap Analysis)(Short Term):

The immediate impact of the changes in the interest rates on net
interest income of the bank is analyzed under this approach.

i. The Earning at Risk is analyzed under different scenarios
as under :

1.  Yield curve risk : A parallel downward shift of 0.50% is
assumed for assets as well as liabilities. In this scenario, a fall
in interest rates by 50 basis points will adversely impact NIl for
the next year by only ¥ 67.08 crore.

2. Basis risk is included in the second scenario where the rates
are shocked down by 50 bps for investments and deposits
and not for advances portfolio. In this scenario, if interest
rates fall by 50 basis points, the Bank’s NIl will be impacted
favourably by ¥ 53.01 crore.

ii Economic Value of Equity (Duration Gap Analysis) (Long term) :

a. Economic Value of Equity is done by calculating modified
duration of assets and the liabilities to arrive at the modified
duration of equity. Impact on the Economic Value of Equity
is analyzed for a 100 bps rate shock at regular intervals for
domestic operations through Duration Gap Method.

b. The net impact on Net Worth of the bank against 100 bps
downward movement in interest rates is ¥ 371.53 Crore as on
31.03.2011 for domestic operations.

The Bank has thus complied with the Basel Il guidelines issued
by the Reserve Bank of India including maintenance of minimum
capital requirements, disclosure requirements. In the course of its
business, Bank has set in place systems & procedures to identify
the risks involved, measure the impact thereof, adhere to mitigation
techniques / take necessary steps to mitigate such risks. Further,
monitoring of such risks and mitigation thereof is done on an on-
going basis.
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31 9T, 2011 Pt RAfer & 3HR = 95 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2011

(% 000 3T BIE fear & .7 000s Omitted)

AR Her wHfeifera 37 RUlE & 3FHR As per our separate report of even date attached
PAR.MEATWSHS HAAlL S WSS, AW FAIEvsd. Hd O &, TNUST WS Hd ST o, IFART

TS TETHR RECAGEEIGHES T AEER B vus TaRee
Tal TRATBIR TGl TRATBR
For M/s. Gokhale & For B. KKhare & Co.  For Gandhi Minocha For P K Chopra & Co. For Avanish K Rastogi &
Sathe Chartered Accountants & Co. Chartered Accountants Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FEAR T AT=A GLILRECH 31T FedTel &. T Argari TreTaTer gt
Kedar Mehendale Santosh Parab Ajay Katyal K.S. Ponnuswami Yashpal Sharma
YNGR Partner YAMER Partner YMER Partner UMER Partner YAER Partner

(THH. M.No. 116065)  (FH. H. M.No. 047942)  (TH.H. M.No. 087915) (TH. . M.No. 070276)  (TH H. M.No. 404939)

I §&, e 29 arter, 2011 Place: Mumbai, Date: 29th April, 2011

SR 31-03-2011 &t 31-03-2010 Bt
ffassgar fRafad ser
As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
Schedule 3. <
Y3i 31k T Capital And Liabilities
g3 CAPITAL 1 3333891 2868232
Rf&taar iR 31fEey Reserves And Surplus 2 33225353 23148657
RIS DEPOSITS & 642096190 513442759
38R BORROWINGS 4 16916597 15619155
3= CTATE AT UTGETT Other Liabilities And Provisions © 12812164 20786961
SIS TOTAL 708384195 575865764
anfeai ASSETS
AR Rad §6 & Foer 3R srfagy 6 47214119 43550318
Cash And Balances With Reserve Bank Of India
dot § srfcRry 3R AT U= qeIT 31eT I W U 7 6873986 7594891
Balances With Banks And Money At Call & Short Notice
997 Investments 8 187689137 156942274
31T Advances ©) 448280451 354624428
TR anfat Fixed Assets 10 4037440 4072764
37 3Tt Other Assets 11 14289062 9081089
SIS TOTAL 708384195 575865764
NS H I Contingent Liabilities 12 148333991 131747082
Hwevr & fae faa Bills For Collection 39624151 204817425
AEaqul a@ie- -iferdi Significant Accounting Policies 17
a1 URT & B9 # fewfOrat Notes forming Part of Accounts 18
Iuf<s i 3 3feeRaa srRgferai qam-u Y aifde 3T d.
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet
8. vd. Jad ud.ad g RAH T CIRIACE L 1. fan g 3. ﬂﬁ??@w
areme vd yay e eriuees fHeerds e e e
D.L. Rawal A.K. Dutt Dr. Tarsem Chand B.P. Vijayendra Dr. Pritam Singh Dr. Sunil Gupta
Chairman & Mg. Director  Executive Director Director Director Director Director
RUGEACE 31T U 31e9eT IR. v, e it wi &3
fcer®s fcer®s &I UeeH 34 AR EID HEIS D
Rohit Khanna I M Almeida R. M.Tiku G. C. Garg S. K. Jain
Director Director Chief Manager Dy. Gen. Manager General Manager

HA TH. ). I Evs

EEARGECIGHRS
For S. C. Bapna &
Associates
Chartered Accountants
o9 &t ST
S. C. Bapna
YIMCR Partner

(TH . M.No. 071765)
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31 9, 2010 PY FA I¥ & fole @17 vd &1+ &@r PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED, 31st MARCH, 2011
(% 000 3T BIE fear & .7 000s Omitted)

KRGl 31-03-2011 &I 31-03-2010 BT
T as b fele 9 a¥ & fou

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
SCH <.
| 3T INCOME
31fStd &TST Interest Earned 13 50335257 40103560
31T 31T Other Income 14 5338409 5886338
SIS TOTAL 55673666 45989898.00
Il & EXPENDITURE
T fomaT T TS Interest Expended 1® 32701641 29103337
BIEGIGERsI ) Operating Expenses 16 10734162 8480782
3USE Ud 371 {¥H® STV Provisions & Contingencies 6121565 3293248
SIS TOTAL 49557368 40877367
|11 @37 / E1sT PROFIT/LOSS
a9 & feTe f7ae @ Net Profit For The Year 6116298 5112531
3T AT T T9ae o / 81 Net Profit/Loss Brought Forward 0 0
s TOTAL 6116298 5112531
IV fafSS-APPROPRIATIONS
wtafere sTRf&faar #§ 3TaRoT Transfer To Statutory Reserve 1834890 1533759
ooy AT IRF&tTar § 3iaRT Transfer To Special Infra Reserve 220000 150000
g3TTa TRF&fTaT  3iAR0T Transfer To Capital Reserves 22781 164043
RT5Ted 3TRT&TaT H 37dRUT Transfer To Revenue Reserve 3183353 259859
PESIECRGIEIE) (CTTHT=T B \H%d) Proposed Dividend (Incl. Dividend Tax) 855274 671138
GGEEE T 3T o 57T 74 31fa2IY Balance Carried Over To Balance Sheet 0 0
3is TOTAL 6116298 5112531
9T IR 37514 (3) (T / & fHar g3m) (Earnings Per Share () (Basic/Diluted) 21.26 17.83
(@fer 2reR &1 3ifea qear 2.10/- ) (FV 210/- each share) 1
Aecaqf A= =iferat Significant Accounting Policies
AaT 9RT & BI A Notes forming Part of Accounts 18
Suden Wit  3ReTRee s o ol B o @) s i
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Profit and Loss Account
& ver. @@ ed.ad S . RAT T CIRRECE St daw faw st ﬂﬁ??@w
areme vd gay e eriuees feerds e R freers
D.L. Rawal A.K. Dutt Dr. Tarsem Chand B.P. Vijayendra Dr. Pritam Singh Dr. Sunil Gupta
Chairman & Mg. Director  Executive Director Director Director Director Director
RUGEACE 31 T 3TewET IR. . e it wi &3
fcer®s fcer®s & U§eH 34 AR ED HEIS D
Rohit Khanna I M Almeida R. M.Tiku G. C. Garg S. K. Jain
Director Director Chief Manager Dy. Gen. Manager General Manager

TARY Her wHfeifera 37 RUlE & 3FHR As per our separate report of even date attached
PARMEATWSHS HAElL S ERUWSS. AW FAIEusd. Hd O . TUST WS Hl ST o, IFART

FAST ETHR RECAGEEIGHES T TEER B vus TaRee
Tal TRATBIR TaT TRATBR
For M/s. Gokhale & For B. KKhare & Co.  For Gandhi Minocha For P K Chopra & Co. For Avanish K Rastogi &
Sathe Chartered Accountants & Co. Chartered Accountants Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FEAR T AT=A GLILRECH 31T FedTel . T gaRi TreTaTer gt
Kedar Mehendale Santosh Parab Ajay Katyal K.S. Ponnuswami Yashpal Sharma
YNGR Partner YMER Partner YANER Partner UAMER Partner YER Partner

(THH. M.No. 116065)  (FH. d. M.No. 047942)  (TH.H. M.No. 087915) (TH. . M.No. 070276)  (EH H. M.No. 404939)
I §&, femie: 29 arter, 2011 Place: Mumbai, Date: 29th April, 2011

HA TH. ). I e

EEARGECIGHRS
For S. C. Bapna &
Associates
Chartered Accountants
o9 &t ST
S. C. Bapna
YIMER Partner

(T . M.No. 071765)
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31 A1, 2011 & JeT UA & AT & TY A 3o SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2011

000 & BT f&ar & 2. '000s omitted

31.03.2011 &t 31.03.2010 &I
Rerfar & s/ FeIfar & SR
As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
z. ¥
ST - 1 gft
SCHEDULE-1 CAPITAL
| QTF‘?F@_CT Authorised
U 2. 10/- & e dTel 300,00,00,000 AR 30000000 30000000
300, 00, 00,000 Shares Of. 10/- Each
SRY, 3if¥e 3R g gt 3333891 2868232
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
I 2. 10/- & e aTet 33,33,89,074 (28,68,23,200) STerac! BRI @ Bt el Yait
33,33,89,074 (28, 68, 23,200) Equity Shares Of . 10/- Each Fully Paid Up
5T 37 19,33,85,874 (14,68,20,000) IR HRA IRBR P WIiHcd H &
Of which, 19,33,85,874 (14,68,20,000) shares are held by the Government of India
3 TOTAL 3333891 2868232
I - 2 IRfEferar sk siftey
SCHEDULE-2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
| 15ifaftre aRféafear STATUTORY RESERVE
37T Opening Balance 7442119 5908360
¥ & R gRkaef= Addition During The Year 1834890 1533759
SIS TOTAL -1 9277009 7442119
Il gai siRféferar CAPITAL RESERVE
37T Opening Balance 1105331 941288
¥ & SR gRkaef= Addition During The Year 22781 164043
SIS TOTAL- I 1128112 1105331
Il g waie sTRféfat REVALUATION RESERVE
31291y Opening Balance 2086393 2215854
¥ & R gRkaef= Addition During The Year 0 0
¥ & SR Selfaar Deduction During The Year -118969 129461
SIS TOTAL- Il 1967424 2086393
IV 2R Nff| SHARE PREMIUM
31221 Opening Balance 2560064 2560064
¥ & SR uRkaefT Addition During The Year 4924341 0
SIS TOTAL - IV 7484405 2560064
V  o%d 3TRTEIfaar Revenue Reserve
31291y Opening Balance 9354750 6761159
¥ & SR gRaef= Addition During The Year 3193653 2593591
SIS TOTAL-V 12548403 9354750
VI ¥y smeRya sRféaferar SPECIAL INFRA RESERVE
312721y Opening Balance 600000 450000
¥ & SR Selfaar Deduction During The Year 0 0
¥ & SR uRaef= Addition During The Year 220000 150000
SIS TOTAL - VI 820000 600000
SIS TOTAL (1 + 11 + 1l + IV + V +VI) 33225353 23148657
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31 H1e, 2011 & T UF & AT & TU H 3Fforai SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2011

%.000 T BT f&aT & 2. '000s omitted
31.03.2011 Pt 31.03.2010 &I
Rarfer® srgaR fefa & sgaR
As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

3. 3.
3Ryl - 3 Fore
SCHEDULE-3 DEPOSITS
A |  #HifHeT Demand Deposits
i §bT I From Banks 670530 1410687
i 37T & From Others 54186650 45068298
Il §oa o f48T Savings Bank Deposits 173246513 138130847
I <rafer e Term Deposits
i d® I From Banks 21376546 15457688
ii. 37T From Others 392615951 313375239
s TOTAL 642096190 513442759
B i ¥Rd# [ orami & sMRIE™IT Deposits Of Branches In India 642096190 513442759
i, YR ¥ X e emRamsit & R Deposits Of Branches Outside India 0 0
Siis TOTAL 642096190 513442759
IR - 4 3TN
SCHEDULE-4 BORROWINGS
| YRA H 3UR Borrowings In India
i YR Raid §6 Reserve Bank Of India 1000000 0
ii 37T §& Other Banks 0 0
iii. 3T IR 3R 3BT Other Institutions And Agencies 756597 10155
iv. dlS Bonds
®) a) AN R FOTRIA(3TEUSIANS)
Innovative Perpetual Debt Instrument (IPDI) 2500000 2500000
W) b) FWI IR || 78 Upper Tier li Bonds 3000000 3000000
M c) IR SO SATEE SR (RIaes) 0
Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) 0 0
) d)  9faeT IR - AT AT OR (3IR. T A.UT.E) 0 0
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) 0
8) e) UideT Tl SR IR (3TR.T.AY.04)
Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS)
) f) STEI'%WTﬁ'UTEEUT Subordinated Debts Unsecured @ 9660000 9660000
Il ¥Rd P IER ¥ 3UR Borrowings Outside India 0 449000
Sl TOTAL 16916597 15619155
@fSTm J SR 11 45T @1 urH f&T @ Out of which, eligible part of Tier Il capital
3TN - 5 3T aUdTE 3R graers
SCHEDULE-5 OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS 7920000 8640000
| ¥eu f3a Bills Payable 3684041 2248133
Il 3R BT TAIATSH (I(:-Idm) Inter Office Adjustments (Net) 0 3825106
Nl T SITST Interest Payable 2242341 2371535
V. A= sniar ?Tj; B HD TTTT Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 1666408 1555669
V 31T (U1 ?ﬁ:z!ﬁ) Others (Including Provisions) 5219374 10786518

30s TOTAL 12812164 20786961
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31 91, 2011 & eI 9 & HRT & Y H Jgar SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2011

%.000 @1 8IS feam € 2. '000s omitted

31.03.2011 @} 31.03.2010 &I
Rearfer & srgaR Ferfer & agaR
As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
z. 2.
3FRIEN 6 - WReirar Rard d # T 31z siferei
SCHEDULE 6: CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
| BT & o (S?Fff faeel e e afEfed %F) Cash In Hand (Including Foreign Currency Notes) 2413171 2306542
I 9Rara eid §o # 31fa2ig Balances With Reserve Bank Of India
i. T WM H In Current Accounts 44800948 41243776
ii. 3T A H (TeTPEH b dgd) In Other Accounts (Under LAF) 0 0
SIS TOTAL 47214119 43550318
ST - 7 ST # IR AT AT ve 3769 YT UR YT €
SCHEDULE 7 BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
| YRJH In India
i Sl # 312y Balances With Banks
a. ﬂ'l?j'\@ﬁ T In Current Accounts 541140 1255117
b. 37 STAT WTdT H In Other Deposit Accounts 907677 7626
i, | 3R e RLTAT WX YT &7 Money At Call And Short Notice 0
a. S & U With Banks 2000000 0
b. 3 TR B URT With Other Institutions 0
SIS TOTAL-| 3448817 1262743
Il YRd & dEX Outside India
i @I W@ H In Current Accounts 68804 5434363
ii. 37 STAT WIdl ¥ In Other Deposit Accounts 3356365 897785
iii. W 3R 37T YIAT TR YT € Money At Call And Short Notice 0 0
SIS TOTAL- I 3425169 6332148
NS TOTAL (1 + 1) 6873986 7594891

%.000 @1 8IS fear € 2. '000s omitted

31.03.2011 &t 31.03.2010 ®F
feafa & s Rerfa & s
As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
2. 2.
3 - 8 fafsram
SCHEDULE-8 INVESTMENTS
| qRa § o1 & fafem Investments In India In
i TRORI FiHfaat Government Securities* 152521948 133070786
i 37 3TgATed YTayfaar Other Approved Securities 373780 441789
i 2R Shares 1450854 1463488
iv  fSdTR 37 g8 Debentures And Bonds 5511068 5520461
v IR 3HR/3TET 9E 3 217225 217225
Subsidiaries And/Or Joint Ventures
vi 3 Others
a) 3TWYSH Venture Capital 145375 70472
b) I B8 DI FIIc Units Of Mutual Funds 139483 55000
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31 H1e, 2011 & T UF & AT & TU H 3Fforai SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2011

c) 3R3MZSITH STHARIT RIDF Deposit
d) aIuTTsd I Commercial Paper

e) TR &I yfayfe arac o=
Security Receipts Of ARCS

f)  STHT UHI0T UF Cert of Deposit

g) UHTHERS (ShfEw gai) faftr

MSME (Rlsk Capital) Fund

h) EHEHERS JHTad MSME Refinance

i)  3TR.UI.S.UH RHDF
3is TOTAL

Il YR & IR fafTem Investments Outside India

SIS TOTAL (I + 1)

Tl fafae Gross Investments

HCIU: 3TTETAVT & fow yTaer

Less: Provision For Depreciation

Fraet fafsrem Net Investments
R IRGRY f—l‘iﬂ SRl F%FT *Includes Encumbered Securities

12140345
0
175593

11104191
123675

2469200
1316400
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10182797

388567

I7YHYY

2639415

123675

1543600
27614262 845600 16228525
187689137 156942274
0 0
187689137 156942274
188602234 157601404
913097 659130
187689137 156942274
500000 140000

%.000 @1 8IS feam € 2. '000s omitted

31.03.2011 &Y

31.03.2010 &I

Rearfer & srgaR fefa & s

As at 31.03.2011

As at 31.03.2010

z. z.
IR - 9 3
SCHEDULE - 9 ADVANCES
® 0. @ 3R A e fad 9554849 10049117
A Bills Purchased And Discounted
i, T®e 3R, 3MaR 3e 3R AT wR gfosiey For 222124356 160172594
Cash Credits, Overdrafts And Loans Repayable On Demand
iii.  <afer T Term Loans 216601245 184402717
SIS TOTAL 448280450 354624428
T Q. T SNl gRT Uty 320393164 249281761
B. Secured By Tangible Assets*
i.  d% / TRORI ATl §IRT FRF&T Covered By Bank/Govt. Guarantees 45363229 33237356
iii. 3T§I'Fd‘3ﬁ Unsecured 82524057 72105311
S8 TOTAL 448280450 354624428
*F8T 70T R U e 31fimT | * Includes advances against book-debts
. C. I YRd ¥ 31779 Advances In India
i.  YTItHAT & Priority Sector 151244750 116034593
i, YR ORI T RN(CEISTIEIIREH - 2008 )3 Siaifd 251852 697360
Amount Receivable From Goi (Under ADWDRS-2008)
i~ ATdeid® &1 Public Sector 122142016 84444388
iv. doi Banks 4001042 2004473
v. 3T Others 170640790 151443614
S TOTAL 448280450 354624428
Il.  9Rd P I 3T ADVANCES OUTSIDE INDIA 0 0
SIS TOTAL 448280450 354624428
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%.000 3T BIS f&ar & 2. '000s omitted

31.03.2011 @'
feafa & s Rerfa & saR

As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

31.03.2010 &'

3. 3.
3 - 10 R sfa
SCHEDULE-10 FIXED ASSETS
A. 7 anf&Tal TANGIBLE ASSETS
I.  9R¥R PREMISES
. qdadf af o1 31 A1 @5t FRfer & TR e ) 4333235 4253567
(Id a9t # Bfaua tReRT & qH e & BRUT g § g afe)
At Cost As At 31st March of The Preceeding Year
Year (Includes increase in the value on account of revaluation of certain premises in
earlier years)
i. Y B AR Jeaid & BRUT IRag
Addition On Account Of Revaluation During The Year 0 0
i. ¥ P <R yRae= Additions During The Year 2048 79668
iv. dY & AR delfadr Deductions During The Year 0 0
v.  3Id- Ad&IUT Depreciation To Date -1555632 -1404523
vi. @I gt IR Work In Progress 1497 28,
SIS TOTAL - | 2781148 2930885
1. 3= feR snfaar (Bt 3ik fRrawrar afe)
Other Fixed Assets (Including Furniture And Fixtures)
i, gdadi a¥ @f 31 AT B R & IR i ) 3916876 3685415
At Cost As On 31st March of The Preceding Year
i. a¥ & G URge Additions During The Year 375464 375425
i. 99 & AR delfadr Deductions During The Year 175422 -143962
iv.  3TIdT UReNe Depreciation To Date -2923518 -2814350
SIS TOTAL- I 1193400 1102528
SIS TOTAL (I + 1) 3974548 4033413
B. 3wt 3R Intangible Assets
|. HT%%ITIT Computer Software
i qﬁaﬁaﬁcaﬁ 31 ATd B RIfeT & FTAR o R 375620 355733
At Cost As At 31st March Of The Preceeding Year
i. a¥ P <R gRae= Addition During The Year 52153 19887
ii. 99 & AR detfadi Deduction During The Curent Year 0 0
iv. 3TEdY TR Amortised To Date -364881 -336269
SIS TOTAL 62892 39351
W{Eﬁg GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 4037440 4072764
RIS - 11 31 STifRTan
SCHEDULE-11 OTHER ASSETS
i STAR-Prafad TARIS (&) Inter - Office Adjustments (Net) 1455570 0
Il W T3 Interest Accrued 4615262 3842981
. 3R o ¥ Fed FRFTT R HIeT 1 B (WE UTadT 05 I Tae Aied) 3415952 1894608
Tax Paid In Advance/Tax Deducted At Source (Incl Of Mat Entitlement & Net Of Provision)
IV. 3TRIfiT &% 3N (Y) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 766010 1766110
V. oI 9l 3R e Stationery And Stamps 31953 35799
grat & e oo g R-dfds s 98600 98600
Non Banking Assets Acquired In Satisfaction Of Claims
VII. 31T Others 3905715 1442991
SIS TOTAL 14289062 9081089
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31 AT, 2011 & FAIT a9 & fere e ud &1+ v & e fea segfera
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2011

7 000 @1 @IS f&ar €'7. '000s omitted

31.03.2011 @t 31.03.2010 @
fReafa & sraR Ferfa & 3R
As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
3. 3.
3N - 12 S RES e
SCHEDULE-12 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
I 9% & foog 03 a9 fog %01 & ©u § WieR =76 fvar mar & 24890255 20929044
Claims Against The Bank Not Acknowledged as debts
Il 37erd ded AR & BRUT &I 0 0
Liability On Account Of Partly Paid Shares
. S 3w fafma dfaersit & Rt afaa 71730409 65637517
Liability On Account Of Outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts
IV. TTEDT B 3R I & T8 gearyfedt
Guarantees Given On Behalf Of Constituents
a) YRA H In India 28619051 26737712
b) HRd I dTEX Outside India 0 0
V. gfauenr, g iR 3 qregdm 23094276 18442624
Acceptances, Endorsements And Other Obligations
VI, 37 b= we o fore da Tt o & sorery € 0 185
Other Items For Which The Bank Is Contingently Liable
S TOTAL 148333991 131747082
v & fere faa Bills For Collection 39624151 204817425
3 - 13 fsta samst
SCHEDULE 13 INTEREST EARNED
| sfmfeal ) srsEcer 38204298 30093315
Interest/Discount On Advances/Bills
Il fafemt R sma 11927259 9598731
Income On Investments
I ¥R Red §6 & sifaert sik 162747 202240
3 3R do it ) &mer
Interest On Balances With Reserve Bank Of India And Other Inter Bank Funds
V. 3 Others 40953 209274
s TOTAL 50335257 40103560
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31 AT, 2011 &1 FAI a9 & fere a7 ud &1f+ T & wafera segfera
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2011

%.000 T BIS f&am & 2. '000s omitted

31.03.2011 @t 31.03.2010 &I
Rearfa & s/ e & SR
As at 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
z. z.
SN - 14 370 3T
SCHEDULE 14 OTHER INCOME
I oM, fafsma 3R @@l Commission, Exchange And Brokerage 1428482 1275458
I fafwemT & fassa = @ Profit On Sale Of Investments 240199 1535140
Terst : fafaemt & fagsa R &1 Less: Loss On Sale Of Investments 0 240199 0 1535140
. yf vd 9a e 3 st & fama W ar / @1 () (3831) (5015)
Profit /(Loss) On Sale Of Land, Buildings And Other Assets (Net)
Iv.  foeeh fafma o-aa e (<) 523550 332643
Profit On Foreign Exchange Transactions (Net)
V. faceiaRa # Rera srsfimi/dsafaiRiges 3ot & amvrer snfe & wu 3§ sifsfd sma 278178 183269
Income Earned By Way Of Dividends Etc. From Subsidiaries / Companies And
/Or Joint Ventures Abroad/ In India
vI. fafaer 3 Miscellaneous Income 2871831 2564843
S TOTAL 5338409 5886338
3 - 15 = oo man sarst
SCHEDULE 15 INTEREST EXPENDED
I. 9897 ®R &S Interest On Deposits 31173754 27611989
Il 9RAT Reid ShiRiaR-86 3URT &) =1 80294 5006
Interest On Reserve Bank Of India/lnter Bank Borrowings
lll. 3% Others 1447593 1486342
SIS TOTAL 32701641 29103337
ST - 16 RaTeT T T
SCHEDULE 16 OPERATING EXPENSES
I PHARGT B Yrae 3R 396 e awn 6881958 5115855
Payments To And Provisions For Employees
Il foe=mam, @ 3R fsTel Rent, Taxes And Lighting 809150 730010
- geor 3R oA 117902 105269
Printing And Stationery
Iv.  fasme ek R 163526 108044
Advertisement And Publicity
V. d& & Tid U 3F&TIUT Depreciation On Bank's Property 305512 276088
vl. et o qﬁv T 31X T Directors Fees, Allowances And Expenses 10433 13295
VII. TTET WY& B BN 3R T (IIRAT & oIRaT-URIeTdT Tied) 93934 82426
Auditors Fees And Expenses (Including Branch Auditors)
Vill. fafér 99R Law Charges 48771 51718
IX. 8P @d, IR 3R el 3t 286245 241058
Postage, Telegrams, Telephones Etc
TRAT 3R 3TRET 165609 180358
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
XI. ST INSURANCE 563750 480566
XIl. 31 &I OTHER EXPENDITURE 1287372 1096095

SIS TOTAL 10734162 8480782
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T 2010-2011 & &Gl & HET & &9 A ST
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNT FOR 2010-2011

3TIE SCHEDULE - 17

Aeeaquf Aae= e

17.1 TGS ST IR

I o, WRAa Red 96 & feenfeel & ¥R, T9eR! HRIER
T AT B FHeaT B TR gE UTaeTad A & 3R

Wwwﬁ@wmw%ammﬁﬁmmﬁ
T IC & gC wifaftiss yrael v waidhd I caic TR

& T £

ARag Rod 96 & feenfden & o fafem=r o ae
SOt 7 37 i qﬁumawaﬁa?%—;zégwaﬁmu IR
%@umdﬁdlmpd o T & T ol W 3% ©: AUl # g
yIae & a1e e §ed W yae fosar mar &,

@, gea-freriRor

fafemat @ geo-feior R Rerd §@ & feenfa
e s # fesar s &:

i 3TTEMR
“GIRUeadr deb iR’

39 0T & 3Tl enfa fafemi o afgat § 39T 315t e o= 3my
o T T €. afE g i a1t R aret foar mar & | g el
G ugld & g & uiRetn fosar mar &

“feeh! & TeIu 3ueteer qorm "&muR & feie enfid

3 fafwem &1 9ok & v e axds 31eT I\ ST 8. Id
B STVl & fore geagryaRads &1 e foram @ 8. uds S &
foe fraa qeogr afc @18 &1, &1 g™ fear mar g, feeg faa
iferea= & Brs fear mr g,

i prifafer

e o i el o geaie frafid o # sited emra fafr 3 fesar
ST &. foaer & wmer 7 sfua I & IR ed, fost & fore
e 3R BMR & foe eRa afval afgd o1 A o Tre
TFUS & §I9TR UG a}i 37aT YRArg Roid 9@ &F gea-gar &
3meR R forar e 2.

&3l & 3R

STET Aotk 91d Juere | &1 3R R gfoa ufayfeat & amer § qea
&1 faRer YR yrathe fagsar € gRT o sma-qer aeiR 3R
HRAT UG Y & A1 Hgh OU F GId Jea/aRugads 3md )
TAT TR /T DI RN B8 B FC/BAIR & faer 3nfa
e U9 Uil & 2RRT o Hae S8 Jed & SMaR R o s 2.

aAr UTfﬁUT Jorf W g o1H|<||%|ul gfea fafre™ sik @a
e, aTfoTSa U7, TTHIOT ShRGaaR [T 10 & oo aferd anmd
R fepar T &,

SCHEDULE - 17
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accounts have been prepared by following the going concern
concept on historical cost basis, consistently, and are in conformity
with the applicable statutory provisions for the time being in force
including the RBI guidelines and generally accepted accounting
principles, save as otherwise stated.

1.2 INVESTMENTS

a) CLASSIFICATION:

Investments have been categorized as per guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India (i) Held to Maturity, (ii) Available for Sale (iii) Held for
Trading and are disclosed in the accounts under six classifications at
the value net of depreciation provision thereon.

b) VALUATION:

Investments are valued as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines in
the following manner:

i. BASIS:

Held to Maturity’

Investments held under this category are carried in books at their
acquisition cost. Premium, if any, paid on acquisition is amortized
using straight line method.

‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading’

These Investments are marked to market scrip wise. Depreciation/
Appreciation for each of six classifications is aggregated; net
depreciation, if any, for each classification is provided for, but net
appreciation is ignored.

iif METHODOLOGY:

All investments of bank are valued consistently on Average Cost
Method. Market value of quoted securities in case of Investments
included in the “Available for Sale’ and "Held for Trading’ categories
is taken based on market quotations of recognized stock exchange/s
or price list of Reserve Bank of India.

The value in case of unquoted securities and securities where
market quotes are not available, is determined based on Prices /
Yield to Maturity declared by Primary Dealers Association of India
jointly with Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association
of India and Net Asset Value in case of units of Mutual Funds / SRs
of ARCs / SCs and Net Book Value in case of Shares of Companies.

Treasury Bills, Commercial Papers, Rural Infrastructure Development
Funds and Investments including Share Capital Deposits in Regional
Rural Banks are valued at carrying cost.
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1. 3 freriRor v faaeyuf armes

¥o 7 9yRaa Rad 96 grr 99g 999 ) 99 a9t & snfa
atiteRor, 3 feriRor vd fafsemt & uraee & e § R feu e

fqaamyof ameet &1 sruTe foar &

faforer= o e WX SHITH, gerrel, Wigd s1afer & smsT 31t & oA-
T B aY | o g oikg | =/ 57T fohar T g

URUdradr do enia S0 & dad fafemt & 3 fafest o famr 9

T BT T ofed H foram S & 31 390 are 3mRfara gt @ #

fomar sirar 2, stafd faer & arfy &1 oy ve erfs @ &
gatfed foar srar 2.

17.3 313M

®) d& 7 3R anitaor 3 fefRor ik 31w & foe graema<or
® ddg # 9Rara Red 96 gRT 994 - wHa R HeaiRa faasama
ST T IRV (T & T TaTAR T ST BT A, ITHD,
Tferey g 3remesr aNd & B0 | qihd ThaT ST &.

@) 310 w0 T, WAt & fore gt & 9y gwfe e L e E @rat
& ddy # gHnied @t & 3fud ge § firmae & aeor § graen,
fafaer @ & (TS YEHaR0T - GHTiod @) |, 9T 51315 4137,
T rd/ 39579 &1 3R FHraTs &I do sifivia g e, anifeie
T U7 3R Jda @i § @ T

M) TS Nl W fIadsamTa graen 3R .9 e @t o famr &
AR TTaem= g o7 &F S H. 5§ 37 SIATE FAT JTae-
3= enfaa fee s &

) TAUIT WAl H B T8 a9l AV IHIAT §Ae § FHIANSIT df
ST & ud arferery fer afe &g &, a3 3T 91T ST &

F) 3T GAATOT SO (U.3TR A )/STayfad=or S (TF.4T.) B
St 7 foirar wutat & wmet # afe fagt qoa faa a8 9w @
1.4 31T 9T Yed-TTae ¥ B ¢ ar 39 @Y Ud g1 @ § sfae
fopam T €. af faot gea e a8t Jea 9 3o & a1 uag™ &
NI AT BT T DR B Tl 3BT ITATT 3 J. H./J 1.
$.ﬁéﬁnémﬁﬁamﬁ@ﬁaﬁaﬁa%ww§%§%m
STET.

o) S/ St &, 13, &. o1 9 72 foxira st & wet
# afe o gea faa a8t geg (@a.ardr) & &7 & dF 39 oy @i
@ # 2fde fisar mar & sk aft fawr geg e a8 gea & aifte
& 1 gTaem @ 31 fST B geamafdd SR P T IqHT ITANT
Y 8 3 o anfRadlt @ @ arelt &1 @ wRuTg &g fosar e,

17.4 379 3T 3R Jeagr

&) IRIR (FOD URIRT B BISH [t JAHcToa IBH TR T2ar
T 2) v R 3nfeaat & 3evivg vfaeiiae anra o fohar srar &,

®) aRER ¥ Sfauwa dufaat & Fefea g o 0 ama enfie @
fory a1em =2t T o e &,

;%awgtg@émaﬁ 01.04.2000 ¥ UgeT WRIT T &, t{?25%§r%a'a°
fafer & feag™ avmar S € Safe e

%qa?rmomoooa%rmmmaﬁaﬂméﬁw

INCOME RECOGNITION AND PRUDENTIAL NORMS:

Bank follows the prudential norms formulated by Reserve Bank of
India, from time to time, as to Asset Classification of all Investments,
Income Recognition and Provisioning on such Investments.

Commission, brokerage, broken period interest on investment
transactions are debited and /or credited to Profit and Loss Account
in the year of transaction.

Profit on sale of investments under the category “Held to Maturity”
is taken to Profit and Loss Account and thereafter appropriated to
“Capital Reserve Account” whereas loss on sale of Investments is
recognized in the Profit & Loss Account.

17.1 ADVANCES

a) Bank follows the prudential norms formulated by Reserve Bank
of India, from time to time, as to Asset Classification of Advances,
Income Recognition and provisioning thereon. Accordingly all
advances are being classified into Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful
and Loss Assets.

b) Advances are net of Provision for Non Performing Assets.
Provision in lieu of diminution in the fair value of restructured
accounts, balance in Sundries Account [interest capitalization —
restructured accounts] in respect of NPA accounts, DICGC Claims/
ECGC claims received and held pending adjustment; part payment
received and kept in Suspense Account.

c) Prudential provision on Standard Assets and excess provision
on sale of NPA accounts are included in ‘Other Liabilities and
Provisions—Others’ in Schedule 5 to the Balance Sheet.

d) Recoveries in Non Performing Advances are first appropriated
towards principal outstanding and surplus, if any, is recognized as
income.

e) In case of sale of financial assets to the Asset Reconstruction
Company (ARC) / Securitisation Company (SC) at a price below
the net book value (NBV), i.e. Book Value Less Provision held,
the shortfall is debited to the profit and loss account and in case
of sale at a value higher than the NBV, the excess provision is not
being reversed but is kept for utilization to meet the shortfall/loss on
account of sale of other financial assets to ARC/SC.

f) The shortfall, in case of financial assets sold to the Banks, Fls and/
or, NBFCs, where the sale is at a price below the net book value
(NBV), is debited to the profit and loss account, but in the case where
the sale value is higher than the NBV, the excess provision is not
reversed but being retained to meet the shortfall/loss on account of
sale of other non-performing financial asset.

17.4 FIXED ASSETS & DEPRECIATION

a) Premises (except certain premises which have been stated at
revalued amount) and other fixed assets are stated at historical cost.

b) Premises also include cost of land in some of the properties where
the same could not be segregated.

c) Depreciation is charged on Written Down Value (W.D.V.) method
at the rates prescribed under the Income Tax Rules, 1962 except
that the computer hardware purchased before 01.04.2000 are
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Heag f el Y fafer 9 33.33% ufaad &f &= | Jeagr e
ST 8. 219 IR 3TaR [MaH 1962 & 3iavia Maid &= IR 9¢ g2 4¢d
(B, 51.a1.) fafr 3 Jeaer e ST €.

g’) gecTend i @ amTd &1 uiRkeies, uee & 3raftr &g fear war

F) JHiied G W ARG [dar T 37a6rT JAd e

IRfafT orar w g fesar mar 2,
) fer snfvaat # ynfaelia &rf & Haftra 4o enfier .

B) HYEX AT Wat B I AT AT 7T & q9 3% Ui
ot & q1e uRReited foar mar &, f5=1 39 sniaat &1 e sifefe
STa HHT ST &,

17.5 IR-Sf$w anfaar

IR-STH 3t & 3eoivg anTa W fHar ST 8.

17.6 Trored frerfzor

®) I I AR W TG B arfoTisud Tomelr 37T T 2.

W) OG0T / §b TRICAT / TROR HRIGR/ AR I & 3G &
faaRoT R BT, @ fomr, IR B IO WSS, AT,
R el dF gdbrdl WX 3nd, fovrar sma aen fafim s @ )
44T IR ®F Il & 3R R foar s &

M) IR e ol vd 3fimT R @nsy ge / fHaer &1 fefRor yrda
Red d% & faamyot feer el & AR agen &F A a& fear
e &

") 9 @ st T At / fafenat § g8 agent o fafaer sma &
B0 H caifehd fohar 17 @ .

F) 22 3T 2008 BT 31K 35 91¢ URudd 376 / 31&TdT ST AT
& A § aRyaddr 3/afe b ae & e st &1 e sud d6 @)
W fepar 1 2.

) IRI, Sist 37t & 1 & T o o o & = fhar war 39
¥ 7 feame & forar e 2.

B) 3dd wiftadt § 5 auf F sifers o srafer ao ue W) crargd s
o o1 fafaersma & o0 & W S @ 2. 9 e & 9, Ife
et 1 $E 37T fhr MU § a1 3 YT o § T & Y § gHIRA
foam Sar &

31) 9TE R XETdT b et H aftre i T ety v g ovg # srer
ST &,

17.7 Wftes Aarf-ga s @d &1 fHefRor

Wfegd Faga deMT IR WY IGH BT A ared ay § enfHe
foar e 2.

17.8 faesh fafma

&) IHET arel faeen qer wiaemsi afed T geR & faaen gar
Tt d SIAEi BT G edied hels gRT auid # SR &i I
2T ST & TUT 39 UBR & G b Belkaoyd a1 el oTH U
&I T e ud i oral # @it T &

depreciated @ 25% p.a. on W.D.V. method and those purchased
on or after 01.04.2000 are depreciated @ 33.33% on Straight Line

Method.

d) Cost of leasehold land is amortized over the period of
lease.

e) Depreciation attributable to revalued portion is charged to the
Revaluation Reserve Account.

f) Fixed Assets include Capital Work-in-Progress.

g) Computer software expenses are considered as intangible assets
and are amortized over a period of five years, which is considered as
useful economic life of such assets.

17.5 NON BANKING ASSETS

Non Banking Assets are stated at cost.
17.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION
a) The Bank generally follows mercantile system of accounting.

b) Commission on letters of credit/ bank guarantees/ Government
Business / distribution of third party products, locker rent, interest
on refund of taxes, dividend, income on units of mutual funds,
rental income and service charges on various deposit accounts are
recognized on realization basis.

c) Interest/discount on non-performing loans advances/investments
is recognized to the extent realized as per the prudential guidelines
of RBI.

d) Recoveries in written off advances / investments are being
accounted for as ‘Miscellaneous Income’.

e) Interest on term deposits matured on or after 22th August 2008
but remained unpaid has been provided /accounted for at saving
bank rate.

f) Expenses on the issue of shares, bonds etc. are recognized in the
year of incurrence.

g) Unclaimed credit balances lying in Suspense Receipts for more
than five years are being considered as ‘Miscellaneous Income’.

Subsequent claims, if any paid to the parties are charged to expenses
in the year of payment.

h) Legal expenses in case of suit filed accounts are charged to Profit
and Loss account.

17.7 TREATMENT OF VRS EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on VRS is recognized in the year of payment.

17.8 FOREIGN EXCHANGE

a) All foreign currency assets and liabilities including outstanding
forward exchange contracts in foreign currency are valued at the
year-end on the rates issued by FEDAI and the resultant profit/loss
arising out of such revaluation is accounted for in the Profit & Loss
Account.
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qTEIATHT BT 9T G T H G 8g auT H Wel gRT IRKT &’J IR
THHcaifd fosar mar 2,

M 31 Ud T T GTUd Al B oo D farer o1 gaferd fafma
= R FerifRa foar mar 2.

17.9 T¥arY gfem

TFET, U9 T JaHgd 89 W <O AR AGGIdRIT ; aT
3T HHARI Jiaem | 35 A T 3 §RT IR T.OF 15[37R] o
DT DI ST FIAR b Hedid b IR @14 3R g1
WY BT JHIRT & 311t &, foemm aanat grT fgedia tem fadwe
feu S qer Fger AT 2 3.50 ARG F %10 T A6 §ET T B
BRI g8 <Ial, IRag Rad d6 & ooz A Siasns.g.an.
IR1.80/21.04.018/2010-11 f&Ad 09 WRERT 2011 & 3FAR o avf
2010-11 3 5 a9 # gReNTed or Se.

17.10 ST G HX

&) ITHM TR b [eT8 YT e FR B , =1Tad areonsii/ fafes
At 7T qd HefRul & 3R o) TUET &F T IR R a9 aR & )
BT JUDNT BT g foparr e &,

W) AT %, T5TT# 36 31afer & fow &% aer vd oaics 319 &
T & THT FATA BT PR YHT AMHT &, D Uga 37,0378,
ERT 3TRT ohgih-T AFCS 22 & I ufdd smefig & st &
<ia e i ufcrer @1 eom 7 @A B S

e - 18
AT U & B H FEwforf

18.1 ) AT 2011 I 3R IRAT or@l H gHIAT YTafedt BT uar o
foram o € 3R 37 T &Y aRom gftear gafa w2,

@) $O BT H FERD SAIRISRERT & e vd 3db ya
QA ¥ I & & yfd ) & <7 79 g, for gaen
I T T T, 3JTd Wi, YT fhe T eTHRI/TST ST,
THTITE FHTATSHT qer AT SRAm3T 3R FHTH # A1 o aretr
QIRET3T & dTe T ATEd Heodb oival el H U apra glafeat

% f51eh THTATS/RTHTE Y ulrEmu SR %

M 9Rara Rad doema o & T A o1 FEEie fear T g,
TV® AT H 38 yTafedl & FHrae & d1 a1 2.

") IR I (F@ v T H ) & Wil W sl JHG , TH1/
/RIS @ fad Y&+ dd IaT eT-T S99 T8 &.

18.2 WRdra Rad 96 & weifya feenfree & sFwR, @@l d
A 3Rl W o SR grae fee e d |

) BN TUT Y Ud AeAH 3T &7 & Jede 3T IR SHrT K0T B
0.25%.

Q) FIfoTToud TITAT YT (N3RS &5 BT THIAT F0T BT 1.00% .
M) CIolR X Bl & W AR FOT H G 0T BT 2.00%

b) Guarantees, letters of credit, acceptances, endorsements and
other obligations in foreign currency are also revalued at the year-
end on the rates issued by FEDAI for the purpose of Balance Sheet
exposure.

c) Income and Expenditure items are recognized at the exchange
rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

17.9 STAFF BENEFITS

Gratuity, Pension and Leave Encashment payable on retirement;
and other employee benefits are charged to Profit & Loss Account
as per actuarial valuation as required by AS 15 [R] issued by ICAI.
The liability on account of exercise of second pension option by the
existing employees, and enhancement in gratuity limit from .3.50
lacs to .10 lacs, will be amortized in five years starting from the
FY 2010-11 in terms of RBI circular no: DBOD.No. BP.BC.80/
21.04.018/2010-11 dated 09th February 2011.

17.10 TAXES ON INCOME

a) Current tax is provided using applicable tax rates on the
amount worked out on the basis of applicable tax laws, judicial
pronouncements / legal opinions and the past assessments.

b) Deferred tax, comprising of tax effect due to time difference
between taxable and as per accounts income for the period, is
recognized keeping in view the consideration of prudence in respect
of deferred tax assets read with Accounting Standard 22 issued by
ICAI.

SCHEDULE - 18
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

18.1 a) Initial matching of entries in respect of Inter Branch
transactions has been done up to March 2011 for the purpose of
reconciliation, which is an ongoing process.

b) Balancing of subsidiary ledgers/registers and reconciliation with
general ledgers are in progress at some branches. Outstanding
entries in some heads of account including demand drafts payable,
drafts paid ex-advice, suspense accounts, dividend/ interest
warrants, refund orders paid and clearing adjustments between
service branches and participating branches in clearing are in the
process of reconciliation/ adjustments.

c) Balances with Reserve Bank of India/ other banks have
been reconciled except certain entries under process of
reconciliation.
d) The consequential impact on the accounts of all as stated above
[in a, b & c.] is not ascertainable pending reconciliation / balancing
/ adjustment.

18.2 Provision on standard assets has been given effect in the
accounts according to revised RBI guidelines as under:

a) 0.25% of the outstanding in the direct advances to Agriculture and
SME Sector

b) 1.00% of the outstanding in Commercial Real Estate (CRE) Sector

c) 2.00% of the outstanding in Housing Loans @ teaser rates.
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o) 3= T IfUHT R aETT KT BT 0.40% ( 3T W 3fearEd
%, UF T Pl BISHR)

18.3 A 3T & 37eTaT 370 G 3Mheaal & fae il & graem
;ﬁuﬁaﬁ%maﬁm.mﬂﬁmﬁﬁmﬁmw

18.4 3TAT Y €11 GIRT ST T FHI0T U3 & SIRIR 289 1R 7= wRIfard

SIRAT3AT &b STTIAT & TTpRuT B Yraer=i Ifed gt fear mar

gl

18.5 9 - 59 aY P oTH 2.611.63 HRIS (T a¥ T 511.25 PIS) H I
183.49 RIS (T1d aY %. 153.38 PHRIS) df T3 T Fifafers smRfafaar
o, Teeed AN # X9 T fafemr o fomr 7 9 2.2.28 BI85 (Td 99
2.16.40 FX13) BT Yol aRfafaal § (wifafera smfafaar & &= sik
3RO BT e AdRd fovam & .8 = I 3if&f=am 1961 & aRT
36 (i) (viii) P 3TENT giotd faey sRfarfaar & 2. 22 a)is (e af
315 R18) 3iARd fhu 8. o =1 are] av &g UaTad aTHieT (AT
Tfed) ¥ 5.53 PRIS (T 9 2 67.11 PRIS) b YT % 318.33 PIS (1
Iy ¥ 259.36 BRIT) DI ¥ Ired R fafqal # siafRka foar 2.

18.6 T 9.86 RIS (T Y T 9.86 HRIS)d aldl P Uiawer & fEArEra
R dfdsm snfat () dottaxor eg affaa € .

18.7 9Rara Raid da & feenfdelt & 3M-R Udhes 39 UK &:

&. 43t a. Capital:

d) 0.40% of the outstanding in all other advances [i.e. except a, b &
c above.]

18.3 Provision on all assets other than standard assets has also
been given effect in the accounts in accordance with the IRAC norms
issued by RBI.

18.4 The classification of advances and provisioning there-against
in case of 289 Un-audited branches have been incorporated as
certified by the branch mangers.

18.5 The Bank has transferred %. 183.49 crore (Previous year %
153.38 crore) to Statutory Reserve out of profit of. 611.63 crore for
the year (Previous year %. 511.25 crore) & . 2.28 crore (Previous
year?. 16.40 crore) to Capital Reserve (Net of taxes and Transfer
to Statutory Reserve) from the profit on sale of investments held
under HTM Category. The Bank has transferred. 22.00 crore in
Special Reserve created u/s 36 (1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act,
1961 (Previous Year . 15 crore). The Bank has also transferred
. 318.33 crore to Revenue Reserve (Previous Year . 259.36 crore)
after proposed dividend (inclusive of dividend tax) of. ¥ 85.53 crore
(Previous Year . 67.11 crore).

18.6 Non-banking asset (land) acquired in satisfaction of claim
amounting to %. 9.86 crore (Previous Year %. 9.86 crore) is pending
for registration.

18.7 Disclosures in terms of RBI guidelines are as under:

72 Items f&s1i® 31.03.2011 f&=1i® 31.03.2010
& AR & AR

As on 31.03.2011 As on 31.03.2010

I - |l Basel I I - |l Basel I
i, I AR U AR (%) CRAR (%) 13.41 12.77
ii. T 3R U 3R - TR | qjﬁ (%) CRAR- Tier | capital (%) 9.77 8.16
iii. =7 3TR U 31K - TIER I E{_L?T(ﬁ (%) CRAR- Tier Il capital (%) 3.64 4.61
YR TROR BT AARETRAT BT TicT2rd. 58.01% @ 51.19%
Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of India
73 ltems FY2010-11 FY 2009-10
SR 11 31 & U H JeTg T3 70T 0T Bl AT (IHRIS H) 0.00 0.00
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier Il Capital (. in crore)
3T CRR 1| 918 & T | JCls T AT (X RIS H ) 0.00 0.00
Amount of Upper Tier Il Bonds raised (. In crore)
Tarel Tl ot forad of 7feT - SR | 45T 3 T A e W T (5. RIS H) 0.00 125.00
Amount of Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments - Tier | raised (. In crore)

@ 9 7 e 25.03.2011 BT URA IRBR BT AT TR TR
310/- & 4,65,65,874 SFdcT IR, Ui IR %.105.75 P NTHIH
SR fpe 2.

@Bank has issued 4,65,65,874 equaity shares of . 10/- each at a
premium of . 105.75 to GOI on preferential basis on 25.03.2011



DENA BANK

3 SCHEDULES
@ fafem b. Investments:

faftrer= wfasmr enfRar &) Soflar Refa saoer 2.

The category wise position of holding of SInvestment Portfolio is as under:

e Rard 2010 - 2011 [102

® RIS H ). in crores)

St Categories 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
faferer= &1 Iha {3 Gross Value of Investment

F. A. TR db STRd Held to Maturity 15698.75 13097.80
@, B. fag! & o0 3uaer Available for Sale 2598.96 2662.34
. C. R & 1w €mixd Held for Trading 562.51 0.00
el Total 18860.22 15760.14
HCTU : YeUeN Less: Depreciation 91.31 65.91
faferem= o1 foraet 9 Net value of Investment 18768.91 15694.23

§P T URT I TR aﬁ’é fafwem= =& f5am 2.Bank does not have any investment outside India.

fafrem o= W?@ YIger=i &7 U -6 Movement of Provision for Depreciation on Investments:

4 Eﬁff‘s’ﬁ) (X in crores)

@zt Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
31T 91 Opening Balance 65.91 65.24
S1S : a¥ & SR hdT TT UTTen= Add: Provision made during the year 47.61 26.12
39 - TN Sub-Total 118:52 91.36
HTIU : 9¥ & &R STl T8 EIE% WldLess: Write off during the year 0.00 0.00
YT : TICITH H 3R CUhEs / TAUHhe! S0 & ded [a-em & 3ifdd Jed ®f HF B &b FHrlfoTd

?fsqjﬁ—gepreciation adjusted by reducing book value of Investment under AFS/ HFT category shifted e £33
to HTM

3fer 99 Closing Balance 91.31 65.91

iii. Y/ geamafeda Iur AT REPO/Reverse REPO Transactions:
®. O fifer - s e (eeteew) Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF)

® PRIST ﬁ)(? in crores)

ii HIURE 0T Hﬂ‘l‘j\ﬁ‘lw Corporate Debt Securities

af & aR= ¥ & aR™ af & aRM 31.3.11 3

AN  sfean ey | e sima ey SHTT A

Minimum Maximum Daily average| Balance as on

outstanding outstanding outstanding 31.03. 11

during the year | during the year| during the year

RUT & 3T gdr T8 Uirfcrat Securities sold under repos 0.00 1200.00 98.90 0.00

i, WRORI yfayfaat Govt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii BIURE 0T Hﬂ‘l‘j\ﬂwi Corporate Debt Securities

gearafcld IuT & sfarfa @Riar 18 ufiyfoa. 0.00 1600.00 68.49 0.00

Securities purchased under reverse repos 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

i ORI yfayfaat Govt Securities
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iv. IR wifafte geffd srgara faer S mT Non SLR Investment Portfolio:

3. IR wifafre gafft smoa e ot sRisdat wxem.

a. Issuer Composition of Non SLR Investment:
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4 PRIST ff) (X. in crores)

o9 | Fat LG foft| fawschidsaaret| RF&raet| Ryghes
| |Issuer Amount| s ®T il o1 | ufergferai or|  afrgferai &1
SI. TR Extent of below TR R
No. Extent of investment grade Extent of Extent of
private securities unrated unlisted
placement securities securities
1 |\dstae & & 3umH PSUs 181.50 175.28 0.00 6.10
2 |fa<ira d=emme Fis 1651.27 1637.38 0.00 0.00
3 |d® Banks 1237.77 125.54 0.00 8.00
4 oIl BIURE Private Corporate 420.92 375.49 90.90 90.90
5 |TETa® Ut / WY 3aH 21.72 21.72 20.32 20.32
Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures
6 |37T Others 42.13 4213 413 18.02
7 |anTotal 3555.31 2377.54 115.35 143.34
8 |PH: YRR & fohaT 1T UTaET 75.97 = = s
Less: Provision held towards depreciation
9 |afcdl & AR THmT oA 3479.34 -- e -
Balance as per books

W, IR od-fremes iR -vaeesR fafsem Non-performing Non-SLR Investments:

(% PRSI | ) (. in crores)

&RT Particulars 1f¥T Amount
3122TY Opening balance 11.39
¥ & SR 1 3te 2010 ¥ gRaef Additions during the year since 1st April, 2010 44.90
39 TH 3Maty & AR delfaar 0.00
Reductions during the above period

‘s'f%fs‘mr Closing Balance 56.29
fd5aT TIT 35t TTAET Total provisions held 24.86

v. % 7 of & SRE "oRugaar 9@ "aika o & d8d @iipd
yfcrferat & fae  28.28 a8 (fUwe a¥ 2.33.35 HRIS) B AGIHA
AT 17.2 & AR aReNed far 2. 3 3B B @Y ve @ @
# yiRa fovar mam & e wafta ufryfodt & gea &1 39 I a6
&9 < fear mar g,

vi. .U%.09 a1 & wer.Er.oq aif # 991 & 37d=0T 3 HROT b 7 36.97
CNER *-LI\MEIH HI UHR ‘_‘@r}f [GRIEZIE

vii IRara Rotd §o gRT SR feenfden & sreR §% 7 af & 2R
yforgfoat o Sifvrat & SReea fovar & ufayfoat @1 fawr & foe
3UCTeT AU T "IRUFIdT I MR S0 H gRkad= & HRUT 2.22.21
RIS (el af 25.45 HRIS) b B A & U 3707 Rad| SGEI0T
&I g ufayfaat & siftea gear § S F=T gU W vd @i @ §
giRe fovar mar 2.

v. The Bank has amortized %. 28.28 crore during the year (Previous
year %. 33.35 crore) for securities classified under “Held to Maturity”
category, in terms of accounting policy 17.2 and the amount has
been charged to Profit and Loss Account by reducing value of the

respective securities to that extent.

vi Bank has not charged depreciation amounting to ¥6.97 crore due
to shifting of investment from AFS category to HTM category.

vii In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, the bank
has shifted securities within the categories during the year. The
consequential depreciation amounting to . 22.21 crore (previous
year . 25.45 crore) on account of shifting securities from “Available
for Sale” category to “Held to Maturity” category has been charged to
Profit & Loss Account by reducing book value of these
securities.
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vii 3¢ & SR, 36 71 ufayfedl R Nfem & oRened &F ugfa &
R @y ugfa & et Jar uglha #& oRad= fear . g9 aRads
P RO, & a¥ 2010-11 H v oRkenes & 57 T 32.64 IR
I gedx 328.28 HRUS B M. =99 faw a¥ 2010-11 & fow @ #
% 4.36 BYIS BT ITG &S &.

viii 6 T 395 gRT I & &4 TroT dt § % 21.72 BRI
(freer af ? 21.72 F8) o1 a9 fovar 2. f5w 9 7 20.32 =3
(et o 2 20.32 FR1g) &1 Faer e groT d&t & gd siiaxoT
2q YR Y1 SRR & BY H & . &3 7T don W foe e faaer
H 3 UH & Yed H g5 DI o1 MaiRor 8! fovam ma & aife g faer
ﬁﬂ;ﬁﬂﬁﬁé%%%@ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%aga& T @R Hediiohd foar
T g,

18.8 U Derivatives:

$) RIS IR / M1 & W
a) Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap

During the year, Bank has changed method of amortisation of
premium on securities from Constant Yield Method to Straight Line
Method. Due to this change, the amount of amortisation for the
financial year 2010-11 has reduced from %.32.64 cr. to 3.28.28 cr.
This has resulted in increase in the profit for the financial year 2010-
11 by 3.4.36 cr.

viii The Bank has investment of ¥21.72 crore (Previous year 321.72
crore) in two Regional Rural Banks (RRBs) sponsored by the Bank.
This includes Investment of ¥ 20.32 crore (Previous Year 320.32
crore) by way of Share Capital deposits, towards recapitalisation of
the RRBs. Diminution in value of Investment in one of the RRB has
not been recognized as the said investment has been valued at cost
in accordance with the RBI guidelines.

d& 7 9f & SRM I19eT & TR / 15T &% WU A & el foP &, 37 31T | ©18 fgaxor e fev e &

The Bank has not undertaken Forward Rate Agreement/Interest Rate Swap transanction during the year. Therefore no separate disclosure

is given.

w. fafra R sas R gas

b.  Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives:

d% 7 ¥ & SR fafrma ammiRa st &= oo orves 781 fooe 8. 31 31 3§ Brg faaxor 78 few me 8.

The Bank has not undertaken Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives transanction during the year. Therefore no separate disclosure is

given.

. eaE H SAREH ST BT Uae

c. Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives:

Qualitative disclosure

gHe
g’ J ¥ & SR BT U fCaig WY (31.372.09) ai=e=T Tl fovar.

Bank has not undertaken any overnight interest rate swap (OIS) transaction during the year.

i gRHANTHS YdHe Quantitative Disclosure

(&, ﬁ'ﬁg ﬁ) (% in crores)

Ha 9. |faa=or I FAd | S5 & Fead
Sr. No | Particulars Currency Interest rate
Derivatives derivatives
(i) CUCE! (mlf\c*qd HcT XHH) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) S NIL S NIL
®H) a) T ETET 3 9919 & fAU For hedging
) b) IR & fee For trading
(if) TER Rerfer &1 81 7 31 [1] T NIL 9= NIL
Marked to Market Positions [1]
®). a) AN Asset (+)
W) b)STAr_ Liability ()
(iii) 2RUT SR Credit Exposure [2] 91T NIL 91 NIL
(iv) TS TeTd o THIG o TG &a1sT &% & giRad=T (100* UI.dr.01) I NIL 9= NIL
Likely impact of one percentage change in interest rate (100*PV01)
®) a) ESIE) %’F&f'\q gdTd JJd UX on hedging derivatives
¥) b) INUR IUH WX on trading derivatives
(v) |39 & SR 100* 9T dY 01 BT ATIHaH 3R =g T NIL T NIL
Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during the year
®) a) foxig &1fF & 9919 W on hedging
) b) UMUK X on trading
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18.9 3T T[uraei Asset Quality:
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?. R fees s
a. Non Performing Assets:
® &)‘@'5’ ﬁ) (X in crores)
fa=or Particulars 2010-11|  2009-10
i.  forae s @) geen A foae 1R s snf¥aar (%) Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 1.22% 1.21%
ii. oI e snRaal # ge-s¢ Movement of Gross NPAs
317 91 Opening Balance 641.99 620.77
¥ & SR uRkaef= Additions during the year 758.69 629.93
¥ & SR BT Reductions during the year 558.44 608.71
gﬁrz‘m Closing Balance * 842.24 641.99
iii.  frraer R Freores sl § -9 Movement of Net NPAs
317 91 Opening Balance 427.53 313.38
¥ & SR uRkaef= Additions during the year 359.55 300.26
¥ & SR BT Reductions during the year 238.13 186.11
Sﬁf Y Closing Balance 548.95 427.53
iv. IR freares snfadl & fete yraem= # ge-s¢ Movement of Provision for NPAs
377 9 Opening Balance 205.18 292.25
315@ ¥ & SR foar 4T UTae= Add: Provisions made during the year 281.25 96.71
YeTe: ay & R AR UTaemT I §e¢ STAIg-R i B 196.27 183.78
Less: Write off / write back of excess provisions during the year
gﬁre‘m Closing balance # 290.16 205.18

# IIH U318 .E1.0T (TT.U1.T ) & UTae & ot 2 5.65 HRIs (Uwel 9y % 4.12 a18) 7 onfia €.

# Includes X 5.65 Cr (Previous Year %. 4.12 Cr.) towards provision of FITL (NPA).

@, qifSa ot 3niaai & faaxor

b. Details of Loan Assets subjected to Restructuring:

® &)‘@'5’ ﬁ) (X in crores)

WNNIR TawRm| THOAS HOT BT =
CDR Others
mechanism SME debt
Restructuring
AH® AW | 3URSAT3I ! I No. of borrowers 9 513 3752
ﬁg:lﬁ’&f FHIAT T Amount outstanding 639.48 91.53 431.69
Standard aifa (Wﬁ HH) Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 16.49 0.25 20.13
advances
restructured
STHTE® 3YRGBAI I TG No. of borrowers 0 115 360
ST BT o1 3T Amount outstanding 0 NS 15.72
EFF‘?‘CF{ Sub- 2 (H\?Uﬁ 6‘)’15!)[) Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 0 0.0034 0.03
Standard
advances
restructured
STR&AT3T BT F¥&T No. of borrowers 4 147 262
TifeTer 3firaT | ST 3T Amount outstanding 1.13 11.65 18.21
&1 g 1T (e § FHY) Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 0 0.0043 0.025
Doubtful
advances
restructured
el TOTAL | SURDAT3AT Bl AT No. of borrowers 13 775 4374
FH1aT T Amount outstanding 640.61 106.91 465.62
g (H\Wﬂ}i ?ﬁﬁq) Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 16.49 0.26 20.18
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m) s qrfFfor & fore SfRregfiraoygaffafor o 3 ach é frehrer st 3 firaon

c) Details of Financial assets sold to Securitisation /Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction:

® Eb?fs ff) (% in crores)

#d ltem 2010-11 2009-10
@Tdl & =T No. of accounts 6 1
T /3TR AT, T 99 T @Al &I el Yo (AT Pl berd) 0.00 8.29
Aggregate vallue (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC
el gfawa Aggregate consideration

28.70 20.35
forger aut & s @t & wder ¥ g sifaRaa ufawe . .
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years. Nil Nil
acr sgr T IR T ofH Aggregate gain over net book value 28.70 12.06

. @ /A 18 AR ferearess ot snfaait o1 faazor
d. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
e 18 IR Twes foxi snfaal o1 faavor

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:

(8 ﬁi—_‘,’ ﬁ) (% in crores)

&= Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
¢ & AR WIS T @raf dF [T ST Nil S Nil
No. of accounts purchased during the year

T IhIIT Aggregate outstanding 2= Nil 9= Nil
T ¥, 39 & AR GRS @l o g S Nil 2 Nil
Of these, number of accounts restructured

during the year

el IhIIT Aggregate outstanding ST Nil 9= Nil

g 8 R-Fwmes foxira snfaar @ fgaxor

Details of non-performing financial assets sold

® &)‘@'5’ ﬁ) (% in crores)

@Rt Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
I 7T WA @ AT No. of accounts sold 9= Nil 9= Nil
T dhIAT Aggregate outstanding 2= Nil 9= Nil
9T Pt gtaha Aggregate consideration received R Nil 2= Nil

T JTaer $ar st S (. HY.31R)

. Provisi Ratio (PCR
q T B TG BT TG DA U 74.62 & e wEr O oo S Ie Q)

: Rsf & ] . As on Balance Sheet Provision Coverage Ratio is 74.62 calculated as
& - e RO WAL ) DIEIDIDNIoHE 2 per RBI circular no. RBI2009-10/240 DBOD.NO.BP.BC.64/21.4.2009-
BC.64/21.4.048/2009-10 f&aia 01.12.2009 & o T )
. : ! 10 dated 01.12.2009. In terms of RBI circular no. DBOD.NO.BP.BC.
2 IR W) 9Raa Red 86 & aRuxy & Siarsie gamn. : ) )
- x e 87/21.04 /2010-11 April 21, 2011 on PCR the Bank is not required
87/21.04.048/2010-11 37T 21, 2011 & J Gl . to segregate any amount in to "counter cyclical provisioning buffer"
IO I & fow 3ifafkh gae § &8 6T 37T BT B ;

ATl T8l 2.
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18.9 WM& <4 & feTe YTaerm= Provision for Standard Assets:
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(. Eh‘ﬁ's’ fr) (. in crores)
#d Item 2010-11 2009-10
¥ & SR AH® 3Rt & fae fesar war graems
8.3 16.72
Provision for Standard Assets made during the year
GEERE] I Tafdr o7 g 3naat & foTe uTaem &1 99 Balance of Provision for Standard Assets as on 166.64 160.91
the Balance Sheet Date
18.10 $RISR &7 39T Business Ratios:
fa=ot Particulars 2010-11 2009-10
i.  PHeR i & ufaea & v § wrst o 3 8.21% 7.96%
Interest Income as a percentage to Working funds
i. PIeRI Hftar & ufdera & vu § IR TS 31T Non-Interest Income as a percentage to Working 0.87% 1.17%
funds
i.  ®ReRI fAftrt & gfaea & wu & uRare 1d ame 2% 1.67%
Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds
iv. 3nfedal R gfawa Return on Assets 1% 1.01%
v. UTd SHIR SRIGR (ST T2 310 (3. IS H) 10.77 8.27
Business (Deposits plus advances) per employee (Rs. in crore)
vi. ufa SR W & aEr ) 6.15 4.86
Profit per employee (Rupees in lacs)

18.11 3nfReT AT ySeH Asset Liability Management:
31 vd aaanstt @t e wal ot uRuaadr o1 w@weu

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

® mﬁs ff) (% in crores)

fera=or fE| 297| 8W14| 15%W28| 29fFA| 3WEW| 6WEW 19§9| 3adw 5af & B
: fem fem Re| swEdw| aftme| aft@i12| aftmsad| aftes iftrp
Particular Day — S = . — Total
] 2to 8to14| 15t028| 29 Days Over 5 Year
2davs days Days to3 Over 3 Over 6 Over 1 Over 3
y Months | Months | Monthsto| Yearto3| Yearto5
to6| 12 Months Years Years
Months
SR 7140 | 656.51 1161.29 949.18 | 7862.11 5376.04 13398.39 32552.47 1332.42 849.81 64209.62
Deposits
3fim 76.98 | 496.49 868.86 | 126297 | 3955.79| 3194.85 517046 | 15768.11 2496.80 11536.74 44828.05
Advances
fafem 14.08 | 567.37 227.46 197.13 613.36 151.69 104.04 1507.43 2168.80 13217.55 18768.91
Investments
3UR 100.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 225.66 210.00 1156.00 1691.66
Borrowings
qc3 garéaa 0 122.50 0.01 9.90 10.62 34.65 48.44 163.76 208.20 20.71 0.40 619.19
Foreign Currency Liabilities
foesh Hel snfqar 37.01| 266.52 53.93 28.82 360.26 628.97 0.60 1.78 0 0.08 1377.97
Foreign Currency Assets
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18.12 31K &3 Y ITR

Lending to Sensitive sector:

)

S[RIYET & BT KT oA

Exposure to Real Estate Sector:
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® RIS ﬁ) (% in crores)

2oft Category 2010-11 2009-10

®.  yge T faer

a. Direct Exposure
i TR §¢16 Residential Mortgages 1936.56 1784.06
- uTafHdar & & sfata urEar uTa & foe dafte smary T
Individual Housing Loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector
K 317 Others 1082.90 950.68
s Total 3019.46 2734.74
i.  aIfofsae YHUeT [ U6 ST+ U aY] Commercial Real Estate [FB+NFB] 323.70 442 51
i s g 7 fafem ufayfa @eudies) ik sma afayfaga faer
Investment in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposure
®. 3TANIA Residential 0.00 0.00
. anE"I'i\?\’TcBHFiqa Commercial real estate 0.00 0.00
@ 3cae %OT a9
T 37 dab 3R 31 3marig fa<irg swfar o faer

b.  Indirect Exposure 1821.81 1554.67
Exposure on National Housing Bank and other Housing Finance Companies

ST STIGTE &85 & e 0T Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 5164.97 4731.92

@ Yit SR H fFaw

b. Exposure to Capital Market:
® aﬁrg ﬁ) (X in crores)
2010-11 2009-10
1 | sforach erRly aRad=a do o, uRad=ra fedwi 3k sfaact 37y wRwaRes fferat & gfeh # g 94.63 73.85
fafrerm fomaast gar ffer siRe o # fraer 78 & 18 2.
Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
2 |sfrac IR e gTasiaes Afeq) afst sk fedwri, sfdact s Rk FHitat o gfber & 0.00 0.00
fafmers & foe safwat @1 2Rt w ar fad=er smemR oR sifim.
Advances against shares or on clean basis to individuals for investment in equity shares (including
IPOs/ ESOPS), bonds and debentures, units of equity oriented mutual funds
3 |3 fod yaeH & foe s1fim S8t R ar aRad-a afsh a1 aRacdHra fSaaRt ar gfdach 3 1.39 1.90
TR et & gfet &1 urafhe ufayfa & oo # foar mr g,
Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security
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AIRT B FUTIT D T yRad-rg arst a1 IRad-ra fSaoRT o sfdaer TR FferT &
el gRT yfayd AT ad 3 el yaiter & foe 31 s STet 2R giel/aRad=a
fedmRizgfaact 3@ mRaRe et @ wrfies ufaegfa fmt & g gRerm yem et &l 2.
Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security
other than shares/convertible bonds/convertible debentures/units of equity oriented mutual funds “does
not fully cover the advances;

0.00

0.00

IR Geilell I Hired qT i 3T Td 9TaR Qerrell T SoR Heramdist of 3R & SR aF T

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers
and market makers

81.00

132.12

FHTEHT & I &1 B Fearen # 75 dular @ sfaact # gadd & 3¥IEH B QX1 & & 67T 2R/
Fisi/fsdeR @ gyl R a1 37 fdwr TR IR ST B WiHd T,

Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares / bonds/debentures or other securities
or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of
raising resources;

64.00

0.00

anfard gferact yare / ffat o= duf-at &1 g o,

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues;

0.00

0.00

SRR & urathe A a1 oRad=a asi ar aRad+ra fedwRi o sfaact 3= mRaaRe Hiead o
gfet & e § d@T gRT & T8 gMIeR! yidaedr.

Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds;

0.00

0.00

Ao AR & foiv 2R et &1 foaareor,

Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;

0.00

0.00

10

39 g7 FAfEraT (detiga 3iR 1R daiigd ami) @ fow e |eit oi & 3fdact & aR1eR wmsh s, 3R
$AfeTe 3T STSTR 0T st (Teae 3R 3caer AT & 3T & feTe 0T & SE.

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) will be deemed to be on par
with equity and hence will be reckoned for compliance with the capital market exposure ceilings (both

15.22

7.05

direct and indirect)

SisTotal

256.24 214.92

18.13 SN Aol aR Ser o=y

®. faaelt ga1 oF <A & ddg #, wRag Red 3@ & feenfden &
IR, & TA® 2 & e aRasfera Hier smenRa siifew §&
oot IMRTAT & 1% 31T &, T B 370 ot graers o &. fomen
o aeT § 9 o frraer fftres 707 oot snfRalt & 1 % ¥ sifere = 2,
®1E O yraen= (e af o) Fet fosar man &,

@ §F GRT UGd IURGAT AT (THSNTE), THE IURGAT AT
(3Taree) I 3rfére ot feam S

¥ 2010 -11 & SRME, §b T IURDAT (W.BANTG HI-3TIRIed
AIHIET WBETH) BT T 575 HRIS B 0T WHHT TIdd df & ST&T f&id
31.03.2011 T FHMIT F0T , T 2011 H ST I P BRUT, 578.65
RIS IN. TS d1& (&A1 06.04.2011 BT TS BT YA bl TAT 3R
G, UadheT SURE! & e HeiRa fadeyoef ame A & siafa o,

18.13  Risk Category wise country exposure:

In respect of Foreign Exchange transactions, where the Bank’s net
funded exposure computed as per the guidelines of the RBI with
each country exceeded 1% of the total assets of the Bank, the Bank
is required to make the provision. Since, Bank’s net funded exposure
in any country does not exceed 1% of total assets, no provision
(Previous year Nil) is made.

Single Borrower Limit (SGL), Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded
by the Bank

During the year 2010-11, the Bank has sanctioned limit of I575
crores to one of the borrower (M/s Chhatisgarh Co operative
Marketing Federation) where outstanding as on 31.03.2011 was
%578.65 crores; due to interest application for March 2011. Interest
has been subsequently paid on 06.04.2011 & account was within the
prudential credit exposure limit in respect of single borrower.
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18.14  3Rf&d 7T Unsecured Loans

(& mﬁs ff) (% in crores)

fa=oT Particulars 31-03-2011
f&ai® 31.03.11 B e IRFarT 0T

i. 8252 41
Total Unsecured Loans as of 31.03.11
o= & arpet uforygfordt gRT ot

2a 372.06

Out of which secured by intangible securities

% U HUTRd® BT SIATHT Jod ( S1¥T STUBR, Mg, TIEIaH:or 31c )R THR) ek
Estimated Value of Such Collateral Securities (such as charge over the rights, licenses, authorization etc)
3= 3Rfera o

3 7880.35
Other Unsecured Loans (1 - 2a)

18.15 a¥ & SR AR Rad &6 7 6 R 1S &= 7} avman
Reserve Bank of India did not subject the Bank to any penalty during the year.

18.16 9% & SR oI T B~ o1 # M STeY T ITaer=ii d AT AT o7 faa=or

Details of Provisions and Contingencies debited to the Profit and Loss Account during the year:

® &Rﬁ%’ ﬁ) (% in crores)

&IRT Particulars 2010-11 2009-10

() | Freres snfat & foe geem 281.25 96.71

Provision for Non Performing Assets

(i) |3madR & e graem 186.42 74.51

Provision for Income Tax

(iiiy | 3Nt & <aam (o) 100.01 101.03

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
(iv) | 3EAT @ @R & fore grae 0.13 0.00

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax

(v) |\ sniaar & fere uraem 11.07 13.99

Provision for Standard Assets

(vi) |giTea @l W eR.arar. #§ siften & fav gaes (-)8.82 10.77

Provision for Sacrifice in NPV on restructured accounts

(vii) |2 STY.UIR.EN 2008 DTS & 3cHTd yraen= () 4.07 (-)7.27

Provision under ADWARD 2008 Scheme

wiii) | Taferm=T o sraeT & foe graem 47.61 26.12

Provision for Depreciation on Investments

(ix) |3HHD T 0.05 0.00

Contingent liabilities

(x) 31 Others (-)1.49 13.47

3iS Total 612.16 329.33
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18.17 3I®< & feTe UTaer = :Provision for Income Tax:
3. ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%w%h%wﬁm

qegidH1/3TaTe/ Feme d-lld‘éll/dﬂdl(d’d TaeHT & SRV H, fued
Iuf & 3T HR P few % 48.58 Hxs. (UseT 9§ o=y ot 18 % 10.75
FS) ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁ?aﬁa&%ﬁ%@msﬂ?mﬁ
@ﬁﬁg‘m&—d%‘.

@. 3 & AR IR &g [Be TE y1ae @i AT

a. Amount of provision made for Income-tax during the year,;

18.17 Provision for Income Tax:

During the year, pursuant to various assessments / appellate /
rectification orders, additional provision for Income Tax pertaining to
earlier years has been made amounting to %. 48.58 crore (previous
year % 10.75 crore written back) and charged to the Profit & Loss
Account for the year.

® &Rﬁ%’ ﬁ) (% in crores)

goaE Ty foreem o
Current Year Previous Year
¥ & 3MIHR & o yraen= 137.84 74.28
Provision for Income-tax for the year
Sirs/acr : fUeer aut &g e (@™ foram mam) 48.58 -10.75
Add/Less: Provided for/(Written back) for earlier years
Pl IHH Net Amount 186.42 63.53

18.18 U™ ¥ v wufw # 1/3 3ier (EA.R &< Preisr gag)
ﬁqﬁﬁ%?ﬁ?é@ﬁ%msﬁmé?mwwﬁaﬁ%ﬁmw
TPR

18.18 Premises include 1/ 3rd share in a property [SPBT College
Mumbai] jointly owned by the Bank with Central Bank of India,

as under:

® a@rs ﬁ) (% in crores)

d% & 2RIR Banks share 31.03.2011|  31.03.2010
I Cost 2.34 2.34
SIEGH HI=ERT Accumulated Depreciation 0.96 0.86
YCIu T He Written Down Value 1.38 1.48

d& ®I HURT &7 JIHcdidhT a¥ 2005-06 & ARM b M7 o7 3R
Y cdifha U T gel g3 Yo [edi 31.03.2011 PI % 14.38
I8 (freer af 7 2 14.63 BRIB) .

18.19 i) UTESI @} BT Customer complaints:

The property belonging to the Bank was revalued during the year
2005-06 and written down value of the revalued property as on
31.03.2011 is %.14.38 crore. (Previous Year . 14.63 crore).

®) |99 b IRY H ciftad BrerIdr or g 10
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

@) |af P SR U oAt o Tw=r 1243
b) No. of complaints received during the year

M |99 & SR FueE 1 Rrerdr o T 1234
©) No. of complaints redressed during the year

) |99 & 3 H dfiad Brhraar o Svear 19
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

ii) S FruTer gRT aTRe f5e e 3/arE Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen :

®) ¥ & IRY § IR Hrafi-aq 3ars! of Tw=r 0
a) No. of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year

@) ¥ & R ST eruTe gRT IR 3ratsf o T 3
b) No. of awards passed by Banking Ombudsmen during the year

M ¥ & SR praffad smamEt & Twer 3
c) No. of awards implemented during the year

) ¥ & 3T | Frafi-ad T8l fhU T 3Tt df T=T 0
d) No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year
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18.20 3% / TRERT TRICAT gRT giera T ( 3F=a-9 IRy (i) #
goife e &) # fafie 50 IRSRT gRT TREIEd % 3696.67 dxIs(Use
Iy 2.2686.16 PRIS) 2AMHT &.

18.21 Tieher® # 4 & a1 wic, S FOH! T F §F H doT H &,
DT IAHH TSR HIG W (I JeFid RUIe & 3MER TR ) TR
&% g # enfaa fovar mar €. aReR # enfia &t 18 faet @ 21.57
TR BT YN SR (I: Hearids 3TRT&rd) & 51 fopar man 2. o
B feAT® 1 31 2009 F Ugel & fohar T, &A= ay 2010 - 11 &
3R 39 &t # fosdit ot 37 s a1 et =1 fosam e,

18.22 SiEie A (B.89H.) & 3R UdHe:

&. B 5 & AR UdeA

U0 5 & 3fid qd 31afer s | Aefed uded & fae g
HTRIT & o

@. 00 9 & 3R UdheA

fag d.17.6.91. # 3fcaiiRad & 3R TG AT & SIAR 37T B
B T TN 3R TR A %Tl’s‘%‘

1. TS 10 & 3R UdHed
a¥ & SRM § 7 31T fepedt o sraet anfRa &1 g i =i T,
.. e 11 & 38R UdeA

a¥ & foe fafm siar & g8 faa sma 252.35 oI5 (fUedr oy
%.33.26 TRI8) o €11+ ot § 5707 F 7S &

F) U 15 (L) & SRR Yde - SHORY @

& R FrefaRad goem gee ot 7 &,
) AATHT A T 15 (L) & SR I -SHar) ard

18.20 The advances covered by Bank/ Govt. Guarantee [shown in
Schedule — 9 Para B (ii)] include . 3696.67 crore [Previous Year
% 2686.16 crore] guaranteed by various State Governments.

18.21 Two plots of land at Gandhidham, which are in the
possession of the bank since long, have been included in the value
of premises at their present market value (based on valuation reports
obtained). The net amount added to the premises . 1.57 crore has
been credited to Capital Reserves (Revaluation Reserve). The same
was done prior to April 1st, 2009. No assets in this block have been
revalued during the current year 2010-11.

18.22 DISCLOSURE AS PER ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (AS):

a) Disclosure as per AS 5:

There were no material prior period income/expenditure items
requiring disclosure under AS — 5.

b) Disclosure as per AS 9:

Certain items of income are recognised on realization basis as per
Accounting Policy as stated at point no. 17.6.b.

c) Disclosure as per AS 10:

The Bank has not revalued any of its fixed assets during the year.
d) Disclosure as per AS 11:

Net income on account of exchange differences credited in the
Profit and Loss account for the year is %. 52.35 crore (previous year:

% 33.26 crore).

e) Disclosure as per AS 15 (revised) : Employee Benefits:

The following information is disclosed in terms of Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

64 ?bffg ff) (% in crores

Tt Gratuity 4TH
Pension
() |HeTSITP® A ITTNTH TE M &. Principal Actuarial Assumptions used
gd f&¥%@13e &= Discount Rate Prev. 8.00% 8.00%
Uc\'a; st anfaal o) ufawee #F &R Rate of Return on Plan assets Prev. 8.00% 8.00%
g4 dc gl Salary Escalation Prev. 4.00% 4.00%
gaq fEwhI3e &) Discount Rate Current 8.50% 8.50%
g s anfal o) ufathe @l &% Rate of Return on Plan assets Current 8.50% 8.50%
I 9 gf.g Salary escalation Current 4.00% 4.00%
(i) | ® aRad= g2 arett . Table showing change in Benefit Obligation:
¥ & 3IRY ¥ STATU. Liability at the beginning of the year 222.59 860.53
&T5T TR Interest Cost 17.22 64.93
FA ST @RI Current Service Cost 11.64 228.04
g4 {7 @Td Past Service Cost 79.96 0.00
T o Benefit paid (40.12) (193.22)
aHifhd (@) / @l wR .
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation (13.35) 707.35
Y & 37 H <IAM Liability at the end of the year 277.94 1667.63
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(iii) | oy ETiea ® ufRkad= g@ifA arett afetet. Table of Fair value of Plan Assets:
¥ & IRY | e sniadl &1 3fua gea
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 222 /58) 802.26
st snfeaat oR srufara ufawa. Expected return on Plan Assets 18.92 68.19
3791 Contributions 30.00 151.14
Ua< A4, Benefit Paid (40.12) (193.22)
TaTs snfaal W §wifdhe e / (811) Actuarial Gain/(loss) on Plan Assets (2.27) 455.35
Iy & 3ia 7 Fantsra snfaar o 3t Hd. Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 229.12 1283.72
fefRa fosar seaTer oo aimifeds ar/(@Tf). Total Actuarial Gain/(Loss) to be recognised 11.08 (252.00)
(iv) |ufRadt 2aar &1 fHafRor Recognition of Transitional Liability |
3RY ¥ gRkadl ST Transitional Liability at start 9.73 8.41
¥ & R Freffka aRkad! <aar Transitional Liability recognized during the year 4.87 4.20
3id # gfkadf <TdT Transitional Liability at end 4.86 4.21
(v) |9Radt aaar &1 f5EfRor Il Recognition of Transitional Liability |1
¥ & SR B TI’% qfkadl ST Transitional Liability made during the year 79.96 255,612
¥ B <R FafRa oRkadt Saar Transitional Liability recognized during the year 15.99 70.78
3ia # gfRkadf <TaT Transitional Liability at end 63.97 283.14
(vi) |froirs anfiaal o) arefae gfase Actual return on Plan Assets
st anfeaal o= 3rufard ufawhel Expected return on Plan Assets 18.92 68.19
Tyars snfaar w Swifes amy/ (ET&T) Actual gain/(loss) on Plan Assets (2.27) 455.35
st anfeaat o= aredfad gfdwher Actual return on Plan Assets 16.65 523.54
(vii) | e o= H 2nfHeT IHH Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet:
¥ & 37 H <TG Liability at the end of the year 277.94 1667.63
9 & 3iq # fravem snfeaat o 3fd Hd. Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 22912 1283.72
3{cR Difference (48.82) (383.91)
ﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁaﬂﬁ.Unrecognized Cost 2.00 0.00
rferfRe ufkadf <T@, Unrecognized Transition Liability 68.83 287.35
LEERE] 7 afkd X9 Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet 18.01 (96.56)
(vii)y | 31 fqa=or ¥ forerffa =aa Expenses recognized in the Income Statement:
JTHTE I¥dT @FTA Current Service Cost 11.64 228.04
T5T eTHTd Interest Cost 17.22 64.93
o= snfaar w anfea ufawa Expected Return on Plan assets (18.92) (68.19)
fara fasea o= ufRkadt STar &7 R Deferment of Transition Liability on second option 0.00 (353.92)
qfRadl aanstl &T FefRuT. Recognition of Transition Liability 20.86 74.98
SHifcpe @ AT &M, Actuarial (Gain) or Loss (11.08) 252.00
T U9 g1 oRg | SmiHeT 9. Expenses Recognized in P&L 19.72 197.84
(viii) |3 fa@=oT Other Details:
UG TAD T 99 & i 15 &7 & 97 B & R YT oF STl & §9 b 3ferasaw I
%10 ,00,000 TT § DI AT &5 AR &
Gratuity is payable at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service subject to maximum of’
10,00,000 or as per bank's scheme
Te YIS WaT aY & feTe I & 1/66 BT X WX YA Bl STl & T2t fob Sferasaw 50% g
Pension is payable at the rate of 1/66 salary for each year of service subject to maximum of 50%
J0 gl HUHT GRT & T8 AT & 3R Il & il BHANRAT I Yal=td g AT ga 3mgfd
P €I W WG T AN H Jaterd UihaT & 3R &1l &
Salary escalation is considered as advised by the Bank, which is in line with the industry practice
considering promotion and demand and supply of the employees
eIt B G&T. No. of Members 9858 9908
Ja ufawre. Salary per Month 31.88 31.88
31TeT a¥ & feTe 319 Contribution for next year 0.00 0.00
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(ix) |3nf¥aat @t Aol Category of Assets:

RT IRBR P AT Government of India Assets
PIURE &7 Corporate bonds

ICHEECIE IS Special Deposits Scheme

15T WD State Govt.

Iufa Property

3= Other 229.12 1283.72
SHTHaT gRT FaTerd et Insurer Managed Funds

3T Total 229.12 1283.72

¥ & 2R fafia drafaftr svarht e & fere fose e graent (femm svaRal & wmer # i dem fasen qon d=gdh dmrd gfig; silk
Yarfrge wolRal & ame § g 2o s sRoTqRM 31k e uRacdl daar & 1/5d1 afg) & faazor R e

Details of Provisions (including 1/5the of transitional liability old and new viz on account of second pension option in case of existing
employees and enhancement in gratuity limit, and full liability in case of retires) made for various long term employee benefits during

the year are as follows:

X mg ﬁ) (X in crores)

FaE. | dufaftremy i
Sr. No. |Other long term benefits Amount
1 UBH Pension 197.85
2 3TdPIYT ThaIdRUT.Leave encashment 17.41
3 LT Gratuity 2
4 RaeaR el Silver Jubilee -0.51
5 g;qaﬁ'\rf Resettlement -0.08
6 31T AT AT Leave Travel Concession -3.20
7 SR 31THI Sick Leave 3.77

el TOTAL 236.95

i) SrHThd Peaid & MR TR HHARI @l 37 4o, T,
3TTPBTYT TAHAIPRUT 3R TRGihT AHD TeF 15 (FNEd) P AR
HEHAIRAT P 3T o4t & forw graen fHar mar &, 596 3ifaRem,
HRATT F6! TEIPR AR gRT SRfad HHART arHl )R agie
HFH-15 (FANE) P 3 & T 31 AT 2007 B HFHAOTBIAT
Tar3it & 1/5 B & BRUT X 21.57 RIS (User a§-21.58 HRIS) B
e @ af & RM v vd ey @ # gaRa fear war £ s
gwuumc?w T3 DI AT T 21.58 HRIS (FUwet I T 43.15 TRIB)

ii. af & AR, d& 7 0 HHaRA & foe, SR uger tem fadme
el T &, o o faden g fear 2. 59 ufesar & worawod (5448
HUANNGT & BROT), §6 DI 747156 BIS B T TgaT &1 &. 31,
¥ & SRM, Y- & e TGt & gram sifafom, 1972 § ge
<eiter % & i DHaRG} B 4 Feget <Hn a S A
%g? oY, TRUMRG™Y, 6 & TZCT STaT | 279.96 TRIS B

@B AMEG (TUF 15) B SWEm % IR, HHARI f&d &
% 551.52 BHRIS (31T UL T471.56 HRIS+N 379.96 HRIS) Bl
R BT A AR &1 @ # gHRa R I 9w 8. qy,
YR KT d 7 a1t &5 &b bl b DHANRET Bl U faded
O: &1 AT UL A # i - sifem feEs JeerR fedid 09
RART, 2011 TR GIRUF I SIaTaNsT. 4.y §1)1r.80/21.04.018/2010-11
STRY T3 €. 39 URUA & UTae & 3R, §b 5 ¥ df 37a1eT 7 3
433.88 dXIS WHR%II‘LH hHITT. CIG':J,HH, 386.77 XIS (3433.88 ﬁ’s’

c

BT 1/5) AN 3R &I @I BT FH1RA THar e, Iwh YRard Rerd

i) Provision has been made for Employees Benefits viz; Pension,
Gratuity, Leave Encashment and other Employees benefits in
accordance with AS-15 (revised) on the basis of actuarial valuation.
In addition, a sum of . 21.57 crore (Previous year 21.58 crore) has
been charged to Profit and Loss account during the year, being
1/5th of transitional Liability as on 31st March 2007, in compliance
with AS-15 (revised) on Employees Benefits notified by the ICAI.
The amount of unrecognized transitional liability is X. 21.58 crore
(Previous year ¥43.15 crores).

i) “During the year, the Bank reopened the pension option for such
of its employees who had not opted for the pension scheme earlier.
As a result of exercise of which by (5448 employees), the bank has
incurred a net liability of 3471.56 crore. Further, during the year,
the limit of gratuity payable to the employees of the banks was also
enhanced pursuant to the amendment to the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. As a result the gratuity liability of the Bank has increased
by %¥79.96 crore.

In terms of the requirements of the Accounting Standard (AS 15),
employee benefits, the entire amount of ¥551.52 cr (i.e. Pension
%471.56 cr + Gratuity ¥79.96 cr) is required to be charged to Profit
& Loss Account. However RBI has issued a circular no DBOD.No.
BP.BC.80/ 21.04.018/2010-11 on Re-opening of Pension Option to
Employees of Public Sector Banks and Enhancement in Gratuity
Limits — Prudential Regulatory Treatment dated 9th February,
2011. In accordance with this provision of said Circular, the Bank
would amortize the amount of ¥433.88 cr over a period of 5 years.
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d% & uRRux o semstt & AR, ¥347.11 aRI8 ( U9 2283.14
TRIS & AT LT 363.97 TRIB) B JAiRT TT IHH B 29 4
ay ! 1Aty § g9 o0 § yiRa fear smem. 3 sfefRa doar §
3TCTT g/ AdTfa e dHaRT enfie & 8.

e gRer Rerd §a g v aRud STRY 6t g3 &rar dr, §a o ary
T 15 B T3 & 3RO H % 347.11 RIS HH @Il

T . G A 17 & dad @ Rafém:

AR RoTd 9 & Heed feenfeel & AR eraidd A9 -17
R, 3 & uRaremi o yrIfid @ve 3 'Sy "Sike’ / ot

oRara # FgaR aifed faar mr .

Accordingly, ¥86.77 cr (representing 1/5th of I433.88 cr ) has
been charged to P & L Account. In terms of the requirements of
the aforesaid RBI circular, the balance amount carried forward i.e.
% 347.11 cr (Pension % 283.14 cr plus Gratuity ¥ 63.97 cr) does not
include any employee relating to separated/ retired employees.

Had such a circular not been issued by the RBI, the profit of the Bank
would have been lower by ¥ 347.11 cr pursuant to application of the
requirements of the AS 15.”

Segment Reporting under Accounting Standard 17:

As per the Reserve Bank of India revised guidelines on Accounting
Standard -17, the Bank’s Operations are classified into Primary
Segment, i.e., the business segment comprising of “Treasury”,
“Corporate / Wholesale Banking”, “Retail Banking” and “Other

Banking Operations”, as follows: .
el 64 aﬁﬁg ﬁ) [R in crores]

PRISR WUS ST raRe / wgof dfdm Readfen 3 & uRara Fa
Business Segment Treasury Corporate/ wholesale Retail Banking Other Banking Total
fqa=oT Particulars Banking Operations
gaA Ay | fUeeraf | adwe ad oo ad | adamad | U af | ooy | fUeeraf | odw=ay | fued af
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
year year year year year year year year year year
XT5T¥d Revenue 1313.65 1217.01 2765.16 2261.41 1337.43 999.34 151.13 121.23 5567.37 4598.99
URUTH Result (13.85) 5.505 798.53 683.94 466.14 272.98 127.86 105.63 1378.68 1068.10
X ariafea == 480.09 381.31
Unallocated Expenses
ORI Ty 898.59 686.79
Operating Profit
3TIHX Income Taxes 286.96 175.54
SIRTENROT AT/ETT 0 0
Extraordinary Profit/Loss
5196t e Net Profit 611.63 51129
Wug 3 Segment Assets 23369.57 19566.35 34790.18 27553.42 11325.39 9555.13 526.23 141.29 70011.37 56816.19
1R 3rfafed <Tam Unallocated 827.05 770.39
Assets
D ST Total Assets 7083842 | 57586.58
WUs TIAT0 Segment 23369.57 19566.35 32028.08 25105.46 10957.28 9210.34 715.11 867.70 67070.04 54749.85
Liabilities
1R arfafed <gam Unallocated 3768.38 | 283673
Liabilities
Lol STAIE Total Liabilities 70838.42 57586.58

Jo A ﬁ’g Titor (¥ \8165) WUs & €. The Bank does not have any secondary (geographical) segment.

oot

1) 3R WUS AN b PRUT GUS YIRUTH FHIATSH & §1G &l f-Idbetad
g fore d gy FrefRa & T aTell 3rRoT 4o Faen &
3R o) 91 foram war .

2)  ®icad 3R aif anieaal, aaamit ik Jesa & ©rs fear
T8

3) ISy uRareH # §% & Hyul st fafres diéw terar &
T &

4) IR amdfed Sgamsi & gs vd sTRerfaat enfhe €.

B ST RIS erdid A 18 3R IR Red d &
feenfadelt & srua § Faftra uref & a-3a1 I dafed iR
TRy fee e 2

Notes:

1. Segment Results are after adjustment on account of Inter
Segment Cost, which has been considered on the basis of
Transfer Price mechanism decided by the Bank.

2. Assumed Inter Segment Assets, Liabilities and Revenue have

been ignored.

3. Treasury Operations consist of entire treasury investment
portfolio of the Bank.

4. Unallocated liabilities include Capital and Reserves.
In compliance with Accounting Standard 18 issued by ICAI and RBI

guidelines, details pertaining to Related Party Transactions are as
under:
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Ag@yul ge=eH @it Key Management Personnel

T 9& Designation 7 rafer ¥ FHOT DI T
Name Item Period ®) &)
Amount Loan Amount
(ink.) (in%.)

At 1.0, Jact | 3reTe vd yae feeies | ade vd uRaterat 01.04.2010 ¥ 31.03.11 AH SoTTet2 - || N

Sh. D.L.Rawal |CMD Salary Emoluments & Incentives | 01.04.2010 to 31.03.11

A eh.ad HRUTAS Ha2d SECRRCREIEGIEIR) 01.04.10 ¥ 31.03.10 A® o e AT

Sh. A.K.Dutt ED Salary & Emoluments 01.04.10 to 31.03.11
3. 9fer 9OR 315197 - Aaip T 7S 20

g. Earning per Share - Accounting Standard 20:

gfer 919R 31514 Earning Per Share 31.3.2011 31.3.2010

21.26 17.83*

fadere o # ( FR13 H) 7RI A9 T & O & IR Had are 611.63 511.25
Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account Considered as numerator (" in crore)

Hea aif & o H gfFact IRt o wiRa sirad dwen

Weighted average number of Equity share considered as denominator 28,77,16,244 | 28,68,23,200
IR &1 3ifchd e () 10/- 10/-
Nominal value of share (')

* 30 PIS FIfad THT IR 8T & *There were no diluted potential equity shares
Tfea oo fas=om - e 99 21: Consolidated Financial Statements — Accounting Standard 21:
I B DI TEID DU L &, 3T %meqﬁﬁﬁé The Bank is not having any subsidiaries, therefore, this accounting

Standard does not apply.

3T R IR - AGH D 22: Taxes on Income : Accounting Standard 22:

P 7 URATT TGl AR I gRT SR fhU 0 "3 IR &i@id-T  The Bank has complied with requirements of “AS 22 on Accounting
TG 22' T 3T BT 3UTaH faT 8, 3R dagaR sTfiid & for Taxes on Income” issued by ICAI and accordingly, deferred tax

N U STl o Uga df TR . assets and liabilities are recognized.
31 O 2011 & T 76.60 mg (Fq@ﬁ Y % 176.61 aﬁg) HIIPFH FHI  The net balance of Deferred Tax Asset as on 31st March 2011
3t &% anlRaat & a9 § feteiag gafae & amounting to %.76.60 crore (Previous Year ¥ 176.61 crore) consists

of the following:

. Wé’ fr) (X. in crores)

2010-11 2009-10
3eIfire &% iR Deferred Tax Assets
% foerreds aniat / areied O & felu YTgen Provision for NPAs / Bad Debts 96.38 69.74
3TAGHIRT ABAIBRUT Leave Encashment 30.88 25.67
Ta.cl.od. yfayfadt & dafea aRenféa mffm Amortized premium on HTM securities 41.24 4459
[REEURES Hederd & feTu gTger. Provision for depreciation on investments -90.35 -24.46
YRT 40 (U) (dﬂém P 3T IRATH T Expenditure disallowable under section 40(a)(ia) 1.15 2.05
Ja-T eNEH JTaen Wage revision provision 0.00 47.59
qfudd arreT faeen Hal faem W & / ard (-)Loss/ Profit (-) on unmatured Forward Forex contract -4.71 4.83
ufRuda Trafer s IR i) deef graensT. Adhoc provision on matured Term Deposits 0.00 3.29
TEISTYSI3TRUY & foIe JTaer= Provision for ADWARDS 0.00 1.82
U.31T$.21.0cT o TeT8 UTaen= Provision for FITL 2.31 3.98
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DT AR 11 B 3NNl Total Deferred Tax Assets

76.90

179.10
HETU: 3TRIfIT B ATATE Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities
AR Afed Rer anfaar UX HcIeT™ Depreciation on Fixed Assets including software 0.30 2.49
T TR & QMU Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 0.30 2.49
3R 11 (3r 3NRTaT) H TRty T 3 & 3t & faet o e o
Net balance of DTA shown in the Schedule 11 (Other Assets)

Tfed foxita faaxforat & Teantt suftar § e o1 aaie -
G 7S : 23

e o o fafdr 1 § & P18 Fednm o TE

§<c fou e fraean - awied A 24: af & aRFE dF 7 DI
ferareema s 7 fooar.

G IS 28 : T B I 3D PIg UM 3nfqar g
& {5 W orgie A ved 28 @ &

TTGEIHT, 3THNHD AT JAT MBS MNTAT TR i@ AFD
29 & IR e

g3t & fore yraem= § ge-se
Movement of Provisions for Liabilities

Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements : Accounting Standard : 23

As on the Balance Sheet Date there is no such associate of the
Bank.

Discontinuing Activities - Accounting Standard 24: No activity
has been discontinued in the Bank during the year.

Accounting Standard 28: In the opinion of the Management, there
is no impairment to its assets, to which Accounting Standard- 28 is
applicable.

Disclosure in terms of Accounting Standard 29 on provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

® Wé’ fr) (% In Crores)

fera=or ST A/ TS RAGATE
Particulars Legal Cases / Contingencies
1 378 2010 BT 2T Balance as at 1st April 2010 21.38

¥ & R yTae= Provided during the year 0.09

¥ & AR= Ig<h 13T Amounts used during the year -

9Y & SR Jeardidd Reversed during the year 0.04

31 AT 2011 @ I Balance as at 31st March 2011 21.43

SIRIIHA / I3 &7 Pt Timing of Outflow / Uncertainties I Not Ascertainable
ﬁﬁf&iﬁqﬁ{% Reimbursement Expected ST Not Ascertainable

i ) SHRAD ST & HaG | JeIT DI IIAN-12 DT 78 F&=AT
() I (v) 309 U & AR A (A TSR B SMHRAD
T3 BT ST & T IRt B T8 qeT Afaer srerar arat | Aaterd
PITSTAT P TR W YTFBIcTd df TS . ThIAD ST & BRI
TEITA =TI ITT@RUT §RT HeAT & HUER & URoIH, Afaarsi
P HTe, TRET TN, G UAT & g<diaRUT, SaT & MU 37 i)
iR g, 0=y wert # fossit o ufagf o Srae &t aar e g
TR R G49q 78l 2.

18.23 TeT YTEn

b B U BIS TeT U TEl &

18.24 aTRféferal & sma=or

af & ARM d 7 JIRTETqa I BIg IHw el T o &

Iltem Nos (I) to (V) of the Schedule 12 of the balance sheet on
contingent liabilities, reflect the various types of contingent liabilities
categorized according to their nature. These amounts are estimated
on the basis of documents related to the basic contracts or claims
made. Outflow on account of these contingent liabilities would
depend upon the outcome of disposal of litigations by the respective
judicial authorities, execution of contracts, invocation of guarantees,
devolvement of LCs, settlement of claims etc.

Floating Provisions
Bank does not have any floating provisions.

18.24 Draw Down from Reserves

Bank has not drawn any amount from the Reserves during the year.
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18.25 3% gRT focel e @1 SIRY gavlar eI (U633
@I gde

s §5 of faeer & o1 Teas du / o T8 & |, 9o §6 3
facen fFrame & ordf & )1 a3 & foe &% garar s o
SR &Y fear &,

18.26 I BT I ST HRIGR & BUT 9.21 T8 (TUser av ? 8.33
PRIS) e / BHIL b 34 H ITa gL.

18.27 ¥ = fI<Iragr GAGYE ATSHT (Uh.313.4T) & 3faita ay 2010-
11 & SR 2000 T 31T STTERSATeT 299 TidT BT 2NTHA PR BT
oeg Treffka foar 2. 299ﬂ1aﬁastrqsarr§tﬁ W%W&T S
I gy 2010 - 1 %rah:rsm et B entHer fovar &, o & 303

g, HRIGR gfaffer @) dtsa & gRT 3R 7 Ma oray Sfease
BT WA & AT I IMMHeT fohe e,

18.28 STHT RATITAT BT BATDHRUT Concentration of Deposits

Disclosure of Letter of Comforts (LOCs) issued by bank to a foreign
regulator

Since the Bank does not have any subsidiary/branch in overseas,
Bank has not issued any Letter of Comfort [LOC] to meet the
requirement of foreign regulator.

Bank has received %.9.21 crore (Previous year % 8.33 crores) as
fees/commission from bancassurance business.

Bank has set a target to cover 299 villages with population above
2000 during 2010-11 under Financial Inclusion Plan (FIP). Against
the FIP projection of 299 villages, Bank has covered 310 villages
during 2010-11, out of which 303 villages have been covered through
the Business Correspondents (BCs) model and 7 villages have been
covered by opening of Branch / Satellite Offices.

®. IS H) (. in Crore)

f&a=or Particulars IB9 Amount
SN §8 STHTEAr3i dI $Hel ST Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 10,091.72
deb @I geT SIS H I F8T STHIBAT BT Flcrrd .
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest deposits to total deposits of the Bank o

18.29 31f3MI BT H=IHIUT Concentration of Advances

®. IS H) (. in Crore)

f&a=or Particulars IB9 Amount
i g3 310 B el 31039 Total Advances of twenty largest Advances 10079.86
d& & oot 31T # 91 a8 31T & 317 &7 ufcerd Percentage of Advances of twenty largest Advances to total e
Advance of the Bank g 2

18.30 T BT HeIPHRUT Concentration of Exposure

®. IS H) (. in Crore)

f&a=ot Particulars IHH Amount
N §8 IURGAA / Ted! & @l 2RUT Total Exposure of twenty largest borrowers/ customers 10163.10
JETHATS / TTEDT B dd & HeT KUTT H a1 98 JURAT3N / TTEDT & 0N BT TTId Percentage of Exposure to T
twenty largest borrowers/ customers to total Exposure of the Bank on borrowers/ customers S

18.31 B-1.UL.T T B0l Concentration of NPA

®. a@rg ﬁ) (X. in Crore)

feraxor Particulars

IHHA Amount
oY IR TA.ULE WAt & T ZRUT Total Exposure to top four NPA Accounts 198.28
18.32 7R TH.U1.T Sector wise NPA
fera=or 39 &5 H g 0§ AL BT
Particulars gfererd Percentage of NPAs to Total

Advances in that sector

D Y ug WWT Tl Agriculture & Allied activities

2.27
FENT (Y&H U9 oY, 7egH vd a8 39 -
Industry (Micro & Small, Medium & large) ]
G0 Services 5.01

fhTd 0T Personal Loans

0.77
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18.33 T1.4Y.T # ucae Movement of NPAs

®. IS H) . in Crore)

fera=oT Particulars IHH Amount
HaveT UF.97.8(01 31T 2010 &5 3R 3121R1Y) Gross NPA (Opening Balance as on 01st April, 2010) 641.99
¥ & SR e T (AT T.97.¥) Additions (Fresh NPA) during the year 758.69
39 - I1T Sub Total A 1400.68
YU Less:

(i) 399+ Upgradations 171.12
(i) G (37T fhe T @rdl § &F T8 I DI BIEaR) T
Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts)

(i) ScC Wi oI 7T Write Offs 196.27
39 - I Sub Total B 558.44
el BT (31 AT 2011 DT 37T ) Gross NPA (Closing Balance as on 31st March, 2011) 842.24

18.34 fqeen 3nRaal TF.U1.U Ud I157% Overseas Assets NPA & Revenue

®. PR3 H) (Z. in Crore)

fde=wT Particulars &9 Amount
T SRl Total Assets 93 Nil
T UA.91.T Total NPAs [T Nil
@l XT5IXd Total Revenue R Nil

18.35 d@ 3 foosll Ta.qr.aY &1 urde Tel fohar &

18.36 9 7 3 a¥ oI 313y F fore Toxirar e s & Sraf-aoe
2q TR JaT Jarar (Lo & 39 § H. el drace—<1! g
DI AW of &, IR W= F foig qaees & siaefa it o enfHe
T & 70 §% I T ofd gU . TIeT drace=T AfdeeT (S 3.e9)
T d6 o foxliar wEeE disHT & for A Agd) BR egeed
PR UUS SHITHSD SITTIHC (T3 .3.57) B PRIGR YTarrer @)
&% 20 7 Fges T . 6 F Uraiie! yardr & o9 # w9 € fafee
ace (H.U.0A.5Y) B AP @ & T TEXT 09 R EJell g had
TeT H UTgele AT b BrIT-aa- & o8 AR STRT ASeh! Brg——
oS AfdT Tufe GBSy (7. $95.0A.U% ) & JdTU o €.

18.37 fUsel a¥ & 37ids! ®I dle a9 & Ndsl & AT JaAAa T
& feTe SMaegBArIIR 3% GRIled / Gailigpd / Griegatwerd foar

T &,

18.35 Bank has not sponsored any SPVs.

18.36 The Bank has engaged M/s Tata Consultancy Services (M/s
TCS) as the Application Service Provider (ASP) for implementation
of FI Plan for a period of 3 years. M/s Society for Educational Welfare
& Economic Development (SEED) has been engaged by M/s Tata
Consultancy Services (TCS), as Business Correspondents (BC) for
Bank’s Financial Inclusion Project, in consultation with the Bank for
covering the Fl villages all over India. The Bank has engaged M/s
A Little World (M/s ALW) as Technology Service Provider and M/s
Zero Microfinance & Savings Support Foundation (M/s ZMF) for
the implementation of the Pilot Project in the UT of Dadra & Nagar
Haveli.

18.37 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified/re-
arranged, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with the
current year’s figures.
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& <1 § & 31 AT, 2011 & Her Ja-UF qAT 39S A1
e 3T dRIG BT A 37aT & ATH-aI oRal BT ol
e fomar €, foRm IR gRT o WIfard 20 SIRaTe qe 21
&g Bt ol faa=furar oY enfiyer €, 3/ orar WIerd! gRT
T WRITATT 885 IMETU T 289 ARATE T5idh! orear WRieT =gl
& T qRag Reid 86 g/1 do o v e feen et &
IR foman T €. 1R o wiférd et & 31t gt sifimt
P 2.00%, STHRIETET & 8.65 %, ST 3T & 1.62% 3R
TSI AT & 7.46% &I 8. T G U & A1 I TRIG P
T Y & fole Fehar JaTe fgavor oF Y orar e & &, 57
forira faaroit & fow 9 geeq SR & &Rt afia o

o Q

IIT URTETT & 3R UR 37 faxiie faa=ul U= 379+ Hef O H=T

g

O 3O oTEIORIE R H AMrIaar Wigd oIaTaRier
HFEET & IAR O 8. g AEe o 3ar & {6 & eraroier
B IS U ITHT HrAa0 $9 THR X b 34 AT Jfhgh
3TeaTe U1 & o5 3 forirr faaxon fosddt wmges g 9 <fea
T €. CIRETORIET § THAT SR W) ARt 3R faxitr fgazor
& Tdbe & qHIT ¥ ATedT BT URIETT e 8T &, ey
H UG eRai NIgial 3R Tae gRT fhe T Aew@qu 3/gAT!
& HE & ATI-A1 T 39 3 foxig fqazon & o= &

T 7d BT JIhgeh AR U B o

Je-uF 3R @ g @iy o dfden fafraes sitéfam,
1949 @ TRRI 3T & AL B "F R T H TR
fepe U E.

IR IRT 1 3k 2 # ffde eramiem & Bt & e sk
T U (3uhHT BT 3151 311X 3iaRwT) rttrfaw, 1970 7 1980
&R 3nuférd iR 399 T UdbeT o AT B e & 37N
g Ruré o=t & o o o) fewforadt aF s 18 & femon
=T 18.1 ¥ fobE U 30T & SRR -

F) IR I oG D gfafeat o1 aRfe ferm 31 At 2011
Top R forar mar € 3R 396 TERSH & ufhar TR 2.

@) g SfEdiRioReRt & dgae a6 YO §@ ¥
RTEN T BT P AN F ST &

) YA & (e & AT g1, FomT o 31T fobe e gre, 3da
THTATST, TaT ITRAT Od FHTLNE H HNT o= el Enf & ard
T @R URAT Ra1d § 91 37T dabf @f SR &
@rat # g yfafear €, fo=er THmeamas & SIRT 2.

IRfTH TAT 3T YSCHN/IHUT TR Y 4 YT BT UaT
TRITST 7 2.

3+ ToaR &7 geer fomm, 89 faxia faaxforn & e 9.18.22(3)
B 3R S BT PR & o g TRbRI &7 & bl b
FHHAIRAT BT 4o fodbea R & faw a9 iR Irger i

3.
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We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Dena Bank as
at 31st March, 2011 and the Profit and Loss Account annexed
thereto for the year ended on that date, in which are incorporated
the returns of 20 branches and 21 Regional Offices audited by
us, 885 branches audited by other auditors and 289 branches
which were not subject to audit. The branches audited by us
and those audited by other auditors have been selected by the
bank in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India. The unaudited branches account for 2.00%
of advances, 8.65 % of deposits, 1.62 % of interest income
and 7.46 % of interest expenses. We have also audited the
cash flow statement annexed to the balance sheet for the
year ended on that date. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the bank’s management. Our responsibility is
to express our opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in India. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of
material mis-statements. An audit includes examining on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosure in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have
been drawn up in Forms “A” and “B” respectively, of the Third
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in paragraphs
1 & 2 above, and as required by the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 / 1980
and subject to the limitation of disclosures required therein, we
report that: as referred to in Note No.18.1 of Schedule 18 of
Notes to Accounts: -

(a) Initial matching of entries in Inter-Branch Accounts has
been done up to 31st March 2011 and the process of
reconciliation is in progress,

(b) Balancing of subsidiary ledgers/registers and reconciliation
with general ledgers is in progress at some branches,

(c) There are outstanding entries in the accounts of demand
drafts payable, drafts paid ex-advice, suspense accounts,
dividend / interest warrants, refund orders paid, clearing
adjustments, reconciliation between the service branches
and participating branches in respect of clearing, balances
with Reserve Bank of India and other banks which are in
the process of reconciliation / balancing / adjustments.

Impact of the above, as also on the other disclosures / ratios is
not ascertained.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note
number 18.22 (e) to the financial statements, which describes
deferment of pension and gratuity liability of the Bank to the
extent of ¥ 347.11 cr pursuant to exemption granted by the
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H

TR - feTid 09 wRa<t 2011 & Taamyef fafams

fqa ) vRag Rod 95 & ooz Feravsnes 9. &
&IR11.80/21.04.018/2010-11 ERT oI HHB (T.0F 15) &
JTaEMT , BHART AT BT A TR & TRERI &7 B Jabi P af

T$ B @I €M ¥ IW@J gU T 347.11 TRIS BI a4 df U v
IZET AT & W & aR H 3w fpar mar g
6. &a3m Rurd a=a & e

(i)

o fewforat v 399 Sfeafed smxgfual & e ofsa
IRIE 4 F & M FER fewfirdt & ot W qer ARy
7T ¥ 3R EARY FafTH AT & SR R q2 g feu e
CIEHRUT & IR 09 d o afedt § gor gaffa

(@) Fe@yut o it 3R 3 W & w1 fewforat & wwer

fSa JeTT U 310 3Taeees iRt o Ty quf 3% aer
£ a1 29 09 3fud U ¥ OR far mar @ e 3Es
31 A1 2011 BT I P BRIBeT BT Tal 3R W
ot 3ufRerd &1 9.

(@) meayul awr Aifdar 3k N ddfea fewforar & arer

(ii)

fopu & iR 32 HarveHs &,
(i) §& & THTER, 3 FIRI STHGR! H 310 &, §& & 31fErdR
aTHE.
&} ver. Jae uHEd S A TE
3rerey vd ey fewies driuas Meeid IRt
D.L. Rawal A.K. Dutt Dr. Tarsem Chand
Chairman & Mg. Director  Executive Director Director
Afea @=n 31T$ ©F 31ewsT IR 4. e
fcer®s freee T g eI
Rohit Khanna I M Almeida R. M.Tiku
Director Director Chief Manager

gfesd @ 1 oT@T 31 | 2011 D FHIE Iy & oy
P arEdTad SITA2IT B aiar 2.

JheT YaTE faa=or 31 A1 2010 BT FHT I I el JaTg
@) arRafas Refd e 2.

EART AT W STM®RT U [a9aTs o SR SART eiwal uRIat
& YIS &g & THT Saedd JaTE U AT HR0T YTl
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Reserve Bank of India to the Public Sector Banks from the
application of Provisions of Accounting Standards (AS) 15,
Employee Benefits vide its Circular No. DBOD.No. BP.BC.80/
21.04.018/2010-11 on Re-opening of Pension Option to
Employees of Public Sector Banks and Enhancement in
Gratuity Limits — Prudential Regulatory Treatment dated 9th
February, 2011.

We further report that:

U

(ii)

(i)

(iii)

Subject to our comments in paragraphs 4 above, read
with the Notes to Accounts and Schedules mentioned
therein, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and as
shown by the books of the bank:

The Balance Sheet read with the Significant Accounting
Policies and the Notes thereon is a full and fair
Balance Sheet containing the necessary particulars
and it is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Bank as at 31st March
2011.

The Profit and Loss Account read with the Significant
Accounting Policies and the Notes thereon shows a
true balance of profit for the year ended 31st March
2011.

The Cash Flow Statement gives the true and fair view of
the cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2011.

We have obtained all the information and explanations,
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found
them to be satisfactory.

The transactions of the bank, which have come to our
notice, have been within the powers of the bank.

CIRRECE ot g e st
e Ao

B

B.P. Vijayendra

Dr. Pritam Singh Dr. Sunil Gupta

Director Director Director
i<, mf Ta.®.5H
37 AEIIS S HEUSeH
G. C. Garg S. K. Jain

Dy. Gen. Manager

General Manager

TARY Her wHfeifera 37 RUlE & 3FHR As per our separate report of even date attached

FAA.MEAWS D HAAL S ERWSH. FAMENBARIOSD. FHAN. &, AUSTLS  Hol (G-I . XA
T CTETBR f

For M/s. Gokhale &

EEARGECI RS EEARGECI RS

For B. KKhare & Co.

Sathe Chartered Accountants & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
PR T Ag—<ct Ty R 31T HeTeT

Kedar Mehendale Santosh Parab Ajay Katyal
HMER Partner YATER Partner YATIER Partner
(THH. M.No. 116065)  (TH. H. M.No. 047942)  (TH.H. M.No. 087915)

w1 §a3, fedia: 29 snkd, 2011

For Gandhi Minocha For P K Chopra & Co.

(TH. 5. M.No. 070276)
Place: Mumbai, Date: 29th April, 2011

HA TH. ). I e

. uUs THifeeE :
T CTETBR TS TTETBR T TETBR
For Avanish K Rastogi & For S. C. Bapna &
Chartered Accountants Associates Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
. T, UIgRar TreraTeT Tt o 3t S
K.S. Ponnuswami Yashpal Sharma S. C. Bapna
YAMER Partner YATER Partner YIMER Partner

(T . M.No. 404939) (T . M.No. 071765)
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31 9, 2011 Y T 9Y BT Tbe) YaTe [da’ol CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011

(000 Y BI's fézmd '000s omitted)

31.03.2011 ot fRufr & 3R 31.03.2010 # RIfer & sER
As on 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010

2 2 2 ?

T - | afRene waeh afcfaferal I Tt ya

Part - | Cash flow from operating activities

aﬂaﬁmﬁaﬁm Net profit after tax 6116298 5112531
S / (Tet) - IR-Tdt 7e 3R o= foraRa wd

Add / (Less) - Non-cash items and items considered seperately

(1) TR nferal & 319erauT Depreciation on fixed assets 305512 276088
2) R snfaar o faor 3 oy (+) /3159 ) (3831) 5015
Profit (-) / Loss (+) on sale of fixed assets
3) fafremt = s e mr Mfaow o1 aRkerem 282813 333526
Amortisation of premium paid on Investments
(4) TAFcdaR AT BT IRTNET Amortisation of software expenses 28611 24875
(5) &rafafér oM U= 31aT &TaT Interest paid on long-term loans 1447206 1486396
(6) UTTYUN 3R MHRHBAE Provision & Contingencies 3251853 1537826
(7) 3P U9 ..U, & foie uraem 2864300 1752900
Provision for Income Tax & DTL
(8) Uy S YTTE Provision for Wealth tax 4108 2500
9) ﬂiﬁﬂfﬁ oy W%ﬁ YTaeT Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 1304 22
(10) 3TAHIRT THEIEHRUT AT b HeaH 174200 97300
Leave Encashment Actuarial valuation
(11) SR 37191 P T TG Provision for Sick Leave 37800 38300
(12) TR SJfael A15el A 31a18 o f7e yTaen (5100) (200)
Provision For Silver Jubilee Milestone Award
(13)  3racprer fexrar Raraa & fae g1aer Provision for LFC (32000) 21000
(14) g:!ai‘a JaT P AU GTge= Provision for Resettlement Service 800 2800
(15) da= GeNeH P AT UTae™ Provision for Wage Revision 0 700000
8355976 6268318
Frieie gsit § uRacd= 9 gd afRare= @ 14472274 11380849
Operating profit before Working capital changes
Fraeia goit aRads & fore wwmtsE:
Adjustments for working capital changes :
(1) fafeemi § (@fg)/@ M (Increase)/Decrease in Investments (31505785) (32806190)
(2) 31 7 (@fg)/@HT (Increase)/Decrease in Advances (96380368) (66919720)
3) I srfeaal # (Q‘%{)Wﬁ (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (4674872) (567384)
(4) AR & gigy(@ ) Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits 128653431 82936618
(65) 3uR At § gy @) faxira fpar wamt & faar) 1297442 (62118)
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings (Excluding Financing Activities)
(6) 3T TgaT3 7 Q‘%/(Eﬁfﬁ) Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities (8386848) 1492786
(10997000) (15926008)
gRene™ Sif+id Ad<T Cash Generated from operations 3475274 (4545159)
ISR TGN /(YIH Foa T geaer 33) (3382432) (1785050)
Income tax refund / (Direct tax Paid)
R nfafaferat | e Tod yare 92842 (6330209)

Net Cash flow from operating activities
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DENA BANK
31 9, 2011 Y T 9Y BT Tbe) YaTe [da’ol CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2011
(000 Y BI's fezmd '000s omitted)
31.03.2011 ot fRufr & 3R 31.03.2010 # RIfer & sER
As on 31.03.2011 As at 31.03.2010
54 3 54 4

uqr || - fafsremsr nfcfaférat & Fod yae

Part Il - Cash flow from investing activities

e AR/ a1 Hgaa It 6 faer 0 0

Investments in Subsidiaries and/or Joint ventures

3ract Huftat & g (3 Tt 9@ enfie) (429665) (474980)

Purchase of fixed assets (Incl. intangible)

3raa afat &1 fagsa Sale of fixed assets 7387 19624

Tmtor & d8d waT Building under construction 676 (1295)

faferem nfafaferat & fafcanfsa frae od (421602) (456651)
Net Cash used in Investment activities

e 3R fafsrem nfafafeal 9 9o ga= (328760) (6786860)
Cash flow from operating and Investing activities

a1 111 - faf nfafafeal | 9o yae

Part Ill - Cash flow from financing activities

o TS Sferael Equity raised 465659 0
R NIHIH Share Premium 4924341 0
foram mar 3SdrEtans/ TiioT 0T IPDI/ Sub ordinated debts raised 0 1250000
I foaT AT ATHFET Dividend Paid (671138) (402683)
Srafafer o1 IR YA T 3T 15T Interest paid on long-term loan (1447206) (1486396)
fortta nfafaferat & fafranfsa fraa Tod 3271656 (639079)
Net Cash used in Financing activities
Adl 3R Td Tea A frae giig/at 2942896 (7425939)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents
G| WWW (31'(’3['@'50 Cash and Cash equivalents (Opening) 51145209 58571148
Aopdl 3R AT SHYT (3%‘@"3’) Cash and Cash equivalents (Closing) 54088105 51145209
APl U Thal THHET & 3T Y T ST A9 F 3R 2942896 (7425939)
Difference in opening and closing cash and cash equivalents

(ERGRIE)) (T.. &) (TE.%. 319)

31ez7eT vd gaer feeie BRI gD TET JHeH
(D.L. Rawal) (A. K. Dutt) (S.K. Jain)
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director General Manager

AG-HRY & BT YHOTI AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE
FA ST 9, 395 B 31.03. 2011 BT FAIG IY & ABal YATe [IaR0T &F 3ird F 7. I &R IR fovar 11 I8 f9azor i vaqdat & AT
T YAIaEd =R (WS-32) DI AT & 307 (IR fohaT T & TAT HRA o IGULT BT I SHR! FHAEID (e ol Rure # T
d% & qagoul o Td B oIy I ger U IR 3R & 3R 3% 39 7.
We have examined the above Cash Flow Statement of Dena Bank for the year ended 31.03.2011. The statement has been prepared by the
B ank in accordance with requirements of the Listing Agreements (Clause 32) with Stock Exchanges & is based on and in agreement with
the corresponding Profit & Loss account and Balance Sheet of the Bank covered by our Audit Report of even date to the President of India.

FAA.MEA WSO FAAL & ERWSH. HA M FAIess. $a @ &. TUST W Hd G S, KT P TH. ). 01808

FAST ETHR RECAGEEIGHES T ATEER B vus TaReeE e
T TETBR TS CTETBR T CTETBR
For M/s. Gokhale & For B. KKhare & Co. For Gandhi Minocha For P KChopra & Co. For Avanish K Rastogi & For S. C. Bapna &
Sathe Chartered Accountants & Co. Chartered Accountants Associates Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
LA GLILRECH 31T HedTel &. T AIgeari TreTaTeT gt 9. 9§
Kedar Mehendale Santosh Parab Ajay Katyal K.S. Ponnuswami Yashpal Sharma S. C. Bapna
WNER Partner YANER Partner YATER Partner YATIER Partner YATIER Partner YAMER Partner

(T, M.No. 116065)  (FH. 9. M.No. 047942)  (TH.H. M.No. 087915) (TH. . M.No. 070276)  (TH H. M.No. 404939) (T . M.No. 071765)
I §&, e 29 arter, 2011 Place: Mumbai, Date: 29th April, 2011
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Investor Relation Centre, Dena Corporate Centre,
C-10, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) Mumbai - 400 051

fei g 25, 2011
oo sreReRS,

fowa: srike e J gafaxo gRen & fore sum
HIURT B HATC (TH. . T.) = T8 T B g8 ' BIURS TR H GafaRor
JRem & fore ura * fope & (aRw v 17/2001 f&idb 21 4 2011 F1 aRU=
TR 18/2011 fe7db 29.4.2011) b TfE SUT 3107 ARGR DI B Feiag (11 AIS
& ATeI 3 AN / axardst Wil & T AT S o5 36 dbuit siferam
1956 S JTGeIT=T o1 3RIUTE foham 2.
P 39 3T FT FHIH FRAT & 3R IR, ot av 2011-12 § 78 9 B
aifie Rurd ot aiffes wmr=a Tum smehfora < o o enfie e 2,
oraTRifer fomtta fya o, Freeret o Rurd, cramierdt o Rurd anfe dgem
3 AT U4 ST ST SORYRDI Pl 37ch HaTerd fSuiforet b U siigpd v
§ P U TR T § A Ul TR SN 11 Y § AT T JRATd Il &.
IS IRYRS J9Yh TAdaT Hifcrdb / BT T W U HRAT el &, ar
3 fae & fob denabank @shareproservices. com @ ves § Aat st 31k da
9 T § 3NaeId® BRATs B, HUAT A B fob A HITT I 8N W,
YRRERE & T H 37T 3h TH TS e It I & fole 8 &,
TN, FRRERDI GIRT SIBTATS DI b (o1 3 axcIdoT §cb DI JTHTZE WWW.
denabank.com TR ¥ 3ucTer 8.
3 IRRUR®I & IR oI~ T H ST & alfce 3ai 31l b 370 §
et 31 51 30 Fmote gfernfirit & urer dstigee el d=aran & 31k 9 aifis
RUIE § - AeT GRT 9T AT AR &, 379 3R & b 9 370 afer feutfore=t
HEHTTAT o UTT 37011 §-t 3SST Ustighd bvaTl o,
e IRYRDT $ IR BRI B9 7 € 3R 7 aiffies RAE §- A1 & ured oz
arEd &, 9 FrfaRad Bric R ERaTeR TS TR ITRGR BT A9l
& fagare @ % 30 TRESR gRT 3R T 39 3 B FHdT B 31k gAR
TTaROT Y &M H § 31U TN Pl BT B &.
ggdia

Famds

3.5
T Jeers (orar / 7.%9.35.)

S & U $ A 31 S BT USHHRT
(PTTST Y | PIOR IE-ATe] YRERD! & fo1e)
QIoRYT |fdwis (s . fafics
gfe: & d®
13 U Y, Sifgar dReRR Hiwia
I WIS, AT CAlbIT Taiat & U

3iERI-Petl 15, ADMHTDT, 3TERY (), Hs - 400 072
Rraweea

o/ T SO HIS b LW ¥ axTdal Wot o ATd [adT T #RT/ EHRT
$ 7t 31 & 3 § ol . AR § AT I S F P wRa A AN F / &
AT IS & :
Biferar AT .

IRUR P R

* gfe R Y AW H W T & AN 3 T R UE IR GRS B GRRAER
Tafe 2.

Date: May 25, 2011

Dear Shareholder,

Sub: Green Initiative in Corporate Governance

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘“MCA”) has taken a “Green Initiative
in Corporate Governance” (Circular No.17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and
Circular No.18/2011 dated 29.04.2011) clarifying that a Company would
have complied with the provisions of the Companies Act 1956 if, service
of notices / documents on its shareholders is made through electronic
mode.

The Bank supports this initiative and accordingly, from the financial year
2011-12, it proposes to send documents such as, Annual Report of the
Bank which will include Notice convening the Annual General Meeting,
Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report, etc.
and other notices and documents, henceforth to the shareholders in
electronic form at the E-mail addresses registered by them with their
respective depositories and made available to the Bank by them.

In case the shareholder prefers to receive the above mentioned
documents in physical / paper form, you are requested to send an email
to denabank@shareproservices.com and Bank shall do the needful.
Please note that as a shareholder, you will be entitled to receive all these
documents free of cost, upon receipt of a requisition from you. However,
these documents will also be available on the Bank’s website www.
denabank.com for download by the shareholders.

The shareholders holding shares in electronic form but have not yet
registered their E-mail id with their depository participants and desire
to receive the Annual Report by E-mail are requested to register their
E-mail id with their respective depository participants.

In case of shareholders holding shares in physical form and desire to
receive the Annual Report by E-mail, shall fill up and signed the format
given below and forward it to our Registrar.

We are sure you will support this initiative taken by the Government and
look forward to your co-operation in the protection of our environment.
Thanking you,

For Dena Bank

S. K. Jain
General Manager
(Accounts / IRC)

Registration of E-mail id with the Bank
(For shareholders holding shares in physical form)

Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd.

Unit: Dena Bank

13 A B, Samhita Warehousing Complex,

2" Floor, Near Sakinaka Telephone Exchange,

Andheri-Kurla Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (E), Mumbai -400 072

Dear Sir,

Please register my / our Email id with the bank as mentioned herein
below for serving documents through Electronic mode to me / us. If there
is a change in the Email id, | / We will promptly communicate the same
to you.

Email id :

Folio No.

Signature(s) of the Shareholder®

*If shares are held jointly first shareholder’s sign on the aforesaid slip is
essential.



I, DENA BANK

Y ST : <1 BURCT AR, AN-10, 31 T, FIGT-Goet P, aigr (qd), G5 - 400 051.

fS. wiferhr =
(@fE SIS el &)
e 2y 3 .
&R (Tt B TTed 371 & .
@R URSG gIRT ¥R T §Xa1eR far ST ) (@f e 3
/8w 15 &
frer # feera

&1/ & AT &1 S BT / & ARURS / AIRIRD] & ¥ H TAGERT fSer &
e &1/ & ferarir
S/ T 37aT 30! srgurefa # I &
farer  feera & /05 famir
A/ s P a1 A5 B AHIR, 18 JAS, 2011 BT

3TRTET 3.00 §3 THTE, TR ARTGSN GraRIMIaTeT da<t ¢+ drerst, 31.d.a1EY. I, PR RUTaa & T, faeraret (af¥em), §a% - 400 056 & smafaa
21 dTell YAIRYRDT DI Uggd! i T THT 31X 39 Tl R & IuR ST oid THT H AR / 8AR T d2m Ax) / 89T 3R ¥ AdeM R & og

3T AR Fgeh R & / R &

TR O et 209 €5 smmmmmenremmimriees & exaner T
HaT
[T 1/-
BT T
fede Trme
T FTTH / Uehbel IORYRD & EETeR
A (T 31ERT H )
TRETRT & ERIER e

HEARY (STaT) BRf R SRR D 3R TKFT I o SR :

1. HREIRT ferad ¥ der 8N o1,
@) AT AIRYRS & AT H 98 I gRT AT 3 / IT! 3ieHt g1 fafaa vu § faftraq exanaiRa far 2,
(@) YT TRDT & WA § I8 eI Towex § Gw ATH g7 3reraT fafad ou # faftrad mitigsa 396 / 39ar 3Tt gRT a¥arei™a &,
() T dooet THiaTar & e § a7 390 JTERT gRT 3reraT fafad wu # faftrad miftrgsd s gRT a¥meid &,

2. U gIRT forad, FooR SoReR®T & EXIERT &F 819 &, TH! 3¢ 811 579 I foit =aramedirer, Afoeg e, TeRy & JToRgR a1 3UXToRgR a1 fovdtl TRBRY
TSI SR a1 &1 §a o STUBRT GRT FeaTud &,

3. g@rr{r’ré%w
mmmﬁw (@ 15 2) oI d8d 39 W g f6e T,
(@) e Uit AT Aot e ERT AU JREARAMT 37IaT 3 UTUBR &I B Ui Uggal i T dod o arieg 3 IR e uge 3riiq
13 TS, 2011 B BRI AHT B aRTT AT T Tedt o1 Ao, Hae1s Fuds g, 7 3, T Brafad, &1 SIaRe e, A1-10, Si-aiidw, aial-
AT Pdrecia, §iaT (3d), §aE - 400 051 F AT B S AR
4. IfE Hag GEIRAM AT 3 1A I TR 3{ARVT Toic & TR UGS &1 Uolichd [ 511 ol &l JRaIRTMI df Toid<oT e 3R U gaiia=or df
TR T 3eer<d fohaT e
s 9 GEIR! foRad 9 dd 3¢ el 811 519 ad a8 [arerad wiad 7 &l
do # S B T8 FEIRY fored sifaw Tam smfastexofia 2.
2 e - MfEdt & var ¥ dfeads U F gad YR forad & e 7 v & 3iftre B a1 e i @
571 SRRgR® = YR feraa Frefed & & 98 397 forad & Hafoa dod # afthira 3 3 Aaa $R &T GhaR el a1 (o9’ a8 forad Jafera &
& 3% & h PHART a1 AUBR! B faftrad afaffer ar gt & v # s Fe1 fovar smem.

O GOl 9RO
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DENA BANK
Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

Regd. Folio No.
(If not dematerialised)
D.P. ID No.
FORM B :
PROXY FORM Client ID No.
(to be filled in and signed by the Shareholder) (If dematerialised)

I/We resident/s

of in the district

of in the state of being a shareholder/shareholder(s)

of DENA BANK, Mumbai hereby appoint Shri/Smt.

resident of in the district of

in the state of or failing him /her, Shri/Smt.
resident of
inthe district of inthe state of as my/our proxy to vote

forme/us and on my/our behalf atthe Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of DENA BANK to be held on Monday, 18th July, 2011
at 3.00 P.M. at Auditorium, Sir Sorabji Pochkhanawala Bankers’ Training College, J.V.P.D. Scheme, Near Cooper Hospital, Vile Parle (West),

Mumbai - 400 056, and at any adjournment thereof. Please Afix

Re. 1/-

Revenue

Stamp

Signed this day of 2011.
Signature of first named/sole shareholder
NAME (IN BLOCK LETTERS)
Signature of the Proxy ADDRESS

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNING AND LODGING THE PROXY FORM

1. No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless,
(a) in the case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him/her attorney duly authorised in writing,
(b) in the case of joint holders, it is signed by the shareholder first named in the Register or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing,
(c) in the case of a body corporate signed by its officer or an attorney duly authorized in writing.

2. An instrument of Proxy shall be sufficiently signed by any shareholder, who is, for any reason, unable to write his/her name, if his/her mark is
affixed thereto and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other Government Gazetted Officer or an Officer
of Dena Bank.

3. The Proxy together with
(a) the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or

(b) a copy of the power of attorney or authority, certified by a Notary Public or a Magistrate, should be deposited with the Company Secretary, Dena
Bank, Investor Relations Centre, Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051 Not later
than FOUR DAYS before the date of the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the close of office hours on 13th July, 2011.

4. In case the relevant power of attorney is already registered with Dena Bank or its Share Transfer Agents, the registration number of the power of
attorney and the date of registration may be mentioned.

No instrument of Proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped.
An instrument of Proxy deposited with the Bank shall be irrevocable and final.
In the case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one form shall be executed.

The shareholder, who has executed an instrument of proxy, shall not be entitled to vote in person at the Annual General Meeting to which such
instrument relates.

No person shall be appointed as duly authorised representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee of Dena Bank.

o N e G

©



I, DENA BANK

T SIAfed: ST HURE Aex, -10, 3N @AM, TE-Fell Piverad, Jial (7d), §as - 400 051
Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

Uged anftfe T | 2011 & fere ufRerfey ueif
ATTENDANCE SLIP FOR FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2011
(7T I R UG DI ST 7)
(to be surrendered at the venue of the meeting)
# gHIOTT FRaT & / el & fob # &1 I BT Uaiighd YRURSD (GIRaT) & [eTC Uaiiged QARURaE / Giasit / Uit g
| certify that | am a registered shareholder/ proxy/ representative for the registered shareholder(s) of DENA BANK.
# TAgERT, ?ﬁﬂ“cﬂ? 18 eI, 2011 BT 3TRTET 3.00 FoT TR ARTGSN UIAEMIATAT S g =T Dretst, o1.a1.ULET. THIH, HUR 3RAAA b I,
fereraret (af¥em), o - 400 056 3T 3 3 FURERBT B Tgedt T THT F 3 Uy ot T / IR &,
| hereby record my presence at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Dena Bank at Auditorium, Sir Sorabji
Pochkhanawala Bankers Training College, J.V.P.D Scheme, Near Cooper Hospital, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai - 400 056 on Monday,
18th July, 2011 at 3.00 P.M.

SORERS T 19 31 ar fS. wiferar =
Name and Address of the Shareholder (?IFG’ é‘dﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬂﬁ :T_?f)
Regd. Folio No.
(if not dematerilised)
ST 3MSET A
DP | D No.
TTed 375 &7 .
(afe SBrTsTipd &)

Client | D No.
(if dematerilised)

T H IUTERIT SIORYRG/ YT/ Ufaf-ifer o gwaer

Signature of the Shareholder/ Proxy/ Representative attending the meeting

e IRERS & O HUAT T&T EXATER B afe gret/atafafer & o guar a8t exmer &2

If, Shareholder, please sign here If Proxy/ Representative, please sign here

I’ DENA BANK

9N SATed: ST HIARC A, A-10, ST &A1, TIET-GHel DIReTad, Il (Id), §as - 400 051
Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

YgEd! aiffe | §9T 2011 & fee gaer o
ENTRY PASS FOR FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2011
Gl ) 9_:1’ dth I XWT 5U)/(to be retained throughout the meeting)

AIRERD BT 9 31X Iar 5. wiferar 7 .
Name and Address of the Shareholder (Uﬁ! éﬂlﬁ%’gﬂ :fﬁ)
Regd. Folio No.
(if not dematerilised)
SIUT 3MSST .
DP | D No.
TTEd 3% &F .
(@fe SBTsTIHd &)

Client I D No.
(if dematerilised)

%lqwuml/H|w|mzlq<u|<m/ﬁ%‘9‘%ﬁ‘r‘ﬂﬁ@r & fosar ST & fo5 e ¥ gawr & fow gaer o3 & 91y d § Uoiiged 3 ERATERT & 30T 3T TH
MM“@;@%Q% BT, Huu‘l_sﬁuﬁ'?rﬂj?i/m St #if 3% &, B 2 IR BRA fea S, ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ?ﬁgﬁﬂ%%ﬂ%é%ﬁ%ﬁ

Shareholders/proxy or representative of shareholder(s) are requested to produce the above attendance slip duly signed in accordance with their specimen signatures
registered with the Bank, along with the entry pass for admission to the meeting hall. The admission will however be subject to verification/checks as may be deemed
necessary, under no circumstances any duplicate attendance slip will be issued at the entrance to the meeting hall.
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feuifstet dam:
fra TrReR,

3T S 379 TTEd! BT 23.12.1997 ¥ TeuTTore<! Famsil & 4RI el Ua™ BRd g€ I yiayfd fsuifoickl fafics (o7 ua &f va) &
Teutforest weum (@) & w0 § YR gfafd vd fafma are eagarsms) # voiiegd 8.

YT STSTR TITNET, Hag SIUT ST @ i TAUHS IO ¥ Soiagid! B9 I 38T 837 €. 9 o 370 Tl Bl [SUifoicRT Hamt Y& &R &g T
UEeT p I b vy ¥ faf¥g el W Fr=feriaa fFeffRa 90 emamstt # feuifsrest Jam gem & 2:

qs8
1) 9T ISR 8) IR TR 15 ) @rEEE Afha | 22) SHLERT (Yd) 29) TTRY 36) MY (TFeH)
2) TETAGTE! 9) TRl 16) 3T (afyam) 23) g foer uref 30) faer et (gd) 37) e
3) ATRdr Wi 10) TOTST AIHE , TTATTT 17) ater 24) Hicraet (af¥em) 31) faer aret (afeam) 38) UTAER.
4) R 11) I fier FmEs 18) SIRIGell (UFFTH) | 25) AT TR - 3O (@) | 32) SRIgel (Af¥am) -annR 39) T dd
5) U3 S 12)=g TR AT 19) IRIFE (Yd) 26) s (af¥am) 33) TRDIT 40) fRR (af¥em)
6) TfIdIe dIAR | 13) FHEAT 20) TERK (Id) 27) 4dE (49) 34 ) SO 41) el - 4T g9y
7) deewc fagar 14) G3i ISTR 9ET, a5 | 21) FEHIHR (Y9) 28) TS (AeTm) 35) W I8 3R 42) IR (qd)
SEHIEIE 43) WRER
1) 31979 Vg, IEHAEE | 2) TE© TR (@R | 3) vferw forot | 4) o | |
xd
1) TR | 2) g | 3) IR | 4) o =R g=a | |
feeeht
1) BT THT | 2) axier amr | 3) vew o | 4) <roig @ | 5) %I BT |
SR
Ne St dremant | 2) srEE | 3jefeedt - o - w=ar | | |
GE|
1) 3RS | 2) 2ftree= firsr [ 3) AR A= | | |
PIADTAT
1) FTE TS - DI | 2) ATfddea - BIeThIdm | 3)%?@%’-aﬁm| 4) TeAT | |
HETTR
1) WRAE HETR | 2) Ter | 3) sFRelr | 4) oroeR - g R | |
5T 1) Tieftemy
TMefTR
1) AR 22 | 2) A | 3) 37 16 | | |
AN
1) Er |2)CTITVFQT |3)€sﬁﬂ’s’-ﬁ%ﬂw | | |
o
1) HAM U6 - qOT | 2) Soa Tomamn - ot | | | |
IETHIC

1)m€1wﬁ€-uﬁz|2)@:r.nﬁ?ﬁﬁ§-qﬁw |3)f1?*6ﬁ3,nﬁé“r |4)iﬂmﬁg-ﬂ3ﬁﬁt | |

FSIExT
1) GFRICT STTR - A1SaTa | 2) TCTIGRT | 3) R IS - HHE | 4) .31 q1. s gereRT | |

SORYRE, 1 FEUITSTeRT JoTelt & Jaer Ao Setag-ids e H 3701 raRenRar 3@ ared €, d & 3udh foit o FrefRa omar & w@rar @re wad &

do s FrefRa emamit o Areom 37 feuifore Samstt & q3F gi@er g o & ford e sesisved (Zex-e smenia e @rdr faaxon) enfia &
ST 0 WIATIR®T & o8 0 Fiae & 517 dab H 3701 W Wierd & 3iR AT Tier & BIH H 3191 § Hef Ul BT 3eeizd PR 2. TALHSIUe, WATIRS P
30 GRT & T § HeT Udl UR TceT STSsISP0H 2 [0d o A1 § Hel Hol. S8 WAl &R dI $3-I¢ b AL 3 370 3T ST 1Y U4 37 feurfotey
rar # e 5 fa # e eiad S @ gfaer fer.

IRURDT I 3T € 6 9 7 e & b AT =1 310 ufRuzT Tvear vauas va/diieil/2006/0007 & 3 AR 2006 gRT T4 a7t & Se VARG B
fore ot =ranfer, =omy, fageh fmifad e, St FrRe, faeeh Semma faemem!, s e YR wfad €, & e 1 3nle 2006 I TeeT (PAN) 31f-arf
fopar & Tt 9Tt SroReR® it FeiRa Sansit & ATeaw I 9 # SHie W WIeT IIedT &, & U @Il @Ier &g UIeed 21T anee.

SRRYR®! 31 3R FAAT / TEHROT S & [T $TH &, 2T UG, &1 9o, G371 SISTR LI, 17-8, F+1 Tooet, BIE. Has 400023 F AT Fe=T
022-22661206, SEIthaT: 022-22694426 TR AT fopair FrerifRa SaT & 9T Uaerd ¥ U - Favd 2.




Dear Shareholder,

Depository Services

DEPOSITORY SERVICES

Your Bank is registered with Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as a Depository Participant (DP) of National Securities Depository Limited ( NSDL ) offering full
range of depository services since 23/12/1997 to its customers.

Capital Market Branch, Mumbai.is the DP Branch which is electronically connected to NSDL. As a part of major initiative to provide the

customers, Bank has extended the Depository services at the following 90 identified Branches at various centers :

Depository services to its

MUMBAI
1) Bhat Bazar 8) Share Bazar 15) Khodadad Circle | 22) Jogeshwari (East) 29) Trombay 36) Bhayandar (West)
2) Gulalwadi 9) Worli 16) Andheri (W) 23) Juhu Vile Parle 30) Vile Parle (East) 37) Kalyan
3) Nagdevi Street 10) Ganesh Market, Lalbaug | 17) Bandra 24) Kandivli (West) 31) Vile Parle (West) 38) Palghar
4) Parel 11) Sun Mill Compound | 18) Borivli (West) | 25) Manish Nagar - Andheri(W) |32) Borivli (West) -Yoginagar| 39) Panvel
5) Pedder Road 12) New Marine Lines 19) Borivli (E) 26) Mulund (West) 33) Charkop 40) Virar (West)

6) Sachivalaya Corner

13) Prabhadevi

20) Dahisar (E)

27) Mulund (East)

34 ) Thane

41) Vashi - New Bombay

7) Sandhurst Bridge

14) Capital Market Br Mumbai

21) Ghatkopar (E)

28) Santacruz (West)

35) Main Road Ulhasnagar

42) Bhayandar (East)

43) Kharghar

AHMEDABAD
| 1) Ashram Road, Ahmedabad | 2) Nehru Nagar (Ambawadi) | 3) Ellis Bridge | 4) Navrangpura |
SURAT
[ 1) Navsari | 2) Nanpura | 3) Ramnagar | 4) Vishal Nagar Surat |
DELHI
| 1) Connaught Circus | 2) Karol Baug | 3) Nehru Place | 4) Rajendra Place | 5) Scope Complex
JAIPUR
| 1) Mj V Khanna Marg | 2) Ambawadi | 3) Haldio-Ka-Rasta | |
CHENNAI
[ 1) Alwarpet, | 2) Hamilton Bridge | 3) Mount Road | |
KOLKATA
|1) Brabourne Road - Kolkata | 2) Maniktalla - Kolkata | 3) Park Street - Kolkata | 4) Patna |
BHAVANAGAR
|1) Khargate Bhavnagar | 2) Surendranagar | 3) Amreli | 4) Takhteshwar_bhavnagar |
BHUJ
| 1) Gandhidham |Gandhinagar | |
GANDHINAGAR
| 1) Sector 22 | 2) Modasa | 3) Sector 16 | |
MEHSANA
| 1) Deesa | 2) Palanpur | 3) Highway Road - Mehsana | 4) Unjha |
PUNE

1) Bhavani Peth - Pune

2) Deccan Gymkhana - Pune

3) Pune - Camp

4) Swargate - Pune

5) Shivaji Housing
Sty.-Pune

RAJKOT

| 1) Jagnath Plot - Rajkot

| 2) N. Mody Road - Porbandar

| 3) Nehru Gate, Morbi

| 4) Race Course Road - Rajkot |

VADODARA

| 1) Dumral Bazar - Nadiad

| 2) Alkapuri

| 3) Station Road - Bharuch

| 4) Vip Road Vadodara

Shareholders who wish to maintain their shareholding in the electronic form by joining the depository system, may open an account with the Bank at any of the above

identified Branches

Bank through the identified Branches is offering the full range of depository services including Direct IDeAS (Internet based demat account statement) a facility available to
the account holders who open the account with the Bank and mention their Email Address in the account opening form. NSDL will send an Email to the account holder on
the email address provided with a link for registration under Direct IDeAS. This facilitates the account holder to know through Internet the latest balances and transaction
that have taken place in last 5 days in their depository accounts.

The Shareholders are requested to note that the SEBI vide its circular No.NSDL/POLICY/2006/0007 dated 3rd March, 2006 has made PAN a mandatory requirement
w.e.f. 1st April, 2006 for all categories of demat account holders including minor, Trust, Foreign Corporate Body, Banks, Corporate, Flls and NRIs. Any Shareholder who
wish to open Demat account with the Bank through the identified Branches should have PAN number for opening the Account.

Shareholders interested in any further information /clarification, may contact the Branch Manager, Dena Bank, Capital Market Branch, 17-B, Horniman Circle, Fort,
Mumbai- 400 023. Tel: 022- 22661206 Telefax: 022- 22694426 or Branch Manager of any of the identified Branches.
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Shri D.L. Rawal, CMD, Dena Bank,
inaugurating Dena Bank’s New Branch
at Dwarka on 28.10.10. Also seen
alongside is Shri Pabua Manek, MLA,
Jamnagar & Saint Mahant.
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As a part of International Women's Day celebration on 08.03.11, Dena Bank inducted 12 women Kabaddi players on scholarship basis. Seen in
the picture, Shri. D.L. Rawal, CMD and Shri A. K. Dutt, E.D. Dena Bank, Ms Rajani Dandekar, Marketing Advisor Camlin Ltd. (Guest of Honour),
Shri M.K. Jain, GM, Dena Bank alongwith Kabaddi Players.
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i Ms. Mamata Prabhu, Manager, Dena
" Bank, was felicitated at the hands of

ug ~ Shri D.L. Rawal, CMD on 19.10.10,

y for her outstanding performance

and winning Silver Medal at the 19th
Common Wealth Games held at New
Delhi. Seen alongside Shri A.K. Dutt,

ED and other Senior Executives of the
Bank.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
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Dena Bank organised a DRI Camp in New Delhi on 26.02.2011 for
giving loans to people living below the poverty line at concessional
rate of interest. Shri Sandip Ghosh, Regional Director, RBI giving

away the loans to the beneficiaries. Also seen alongside is
Shri A.C. Katial, DGM, Dena Bank.

|

S §% BRT AT &AT TIOT 3%, g IeHaTa IO 36 & STeaE A
Ta. 0. PiEe Afger fEaw & 3R W WY GERdT 9Yg & At @ wor
faaRka a=d ge.

Shri S.P. Kohli, Chairman, Durg Rajanandgaon Grameen Bank, RRB spon- >

sored by Dena Bank, distributing the loans to women beneficiaries of Self
Help Group on the occasion of Women'’s Day.
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< Under the Financial Inclusion program of Government of India,
Shri A.K. Dutt, Executive Director, Dena Bank, distributing the "SWABHIMAN"
Cards to Villagers from Datli Village, Nashik.
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Dena Bank is the First Bank to extend Financial Support to the Pagadia
Fishermen in Kutch district. Under a special finance Scheme designed
for the fishermen, Bank provides them a Bicycle, Fishnet and a Weighing
Machine. Seen in the picture are the beneficiaries alongwith the officers of
Dena Bank.

1 3131 HTS , SETET, A S1. U6, 19, 3T U4 Y& FHeeis, SN SH Bl eI A A1
F1 2meT fea 32 & Forsids Tofe 378 1 QR 9Tt 311 1. $ e bl fawira
31§ B! HTETYR QTG gIRT e 311 XET 8. H1er o geed & 411 Jeilel HAR, TErId
ARG, T 9.

Shri Arjun Bhai the weaver showing a handwoven woolen shawl to
Shri D.L. Rawal, CMD, Dena Bank, for which he had received the National

Award. The unit is financed by Dena Bank’s Madhapar Branch. Also seen
Shri Sushil Kumar, AGM, Dena Bank.




3Ad

srer oft gf 3y, g9 89 "YU

mhanmgmmmmm
s ama Rrds o wesy ay we AR Quradl o st & wwd )

w1 & qrargs &
& 3w TR RS BT W e e 12 0
o M faen (3fw 5 deln) B/ gORL /3 £ oA o i
@ § 50 o uny Bees (Rt 3 wfvd & Pl @ &80 o0

o) s m) ® BN foger (3 10 Aedv)
® Sow & o wom B (a9 9 $983) @ P s (ved & ot @ 0 & 30)
o S & Ry (/) wrtx) @ PR sees (B0 bk wa s B eph )
o e it A% wen
o B sy (vt & ol A B v 3=7)

o 00 s (e vz e bt ) CETHCRSTRIEETING

- B

(WIeM  Weme W guaw)
ffmwm ofRefte &w




f3a=0T a1 81d IR BT fersaifeTRad Bl i e :

If undelivered please return to:

I, DENA BANK

SATHURE Aer, AM-10, STt &b, dicT-Pel Blaucia,
qieT (7d), F93-400 051

Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051

www.denabank.com
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